FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Mobile Coffee Company, LL.C

A Delaware limited liability company
5945 Centennial Circle

Florence, Kentucky 41042

Phone: 859-282-3203

Fax: (859) 282-9890
www.travelintomscoffeetruck.com
Tony@travelintomscoffeetruck.com

Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees operate mobile businesses providing coffees, teas, and related
products to the general public (“Travelin’ Tom’s Business(es)”).

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchised business
is between $194120201,620 and $246;325259,625. This includes between $1488;956199.450 and
$209,675230,175 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliates.

Travelin’ Tom’s Business area developers acquire the right to develop multiple Travelin’ Tom’s
Businesses in a designated development area. The total investment necessary to begin operation as an area
developer with two Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses is between $403,240 and $519.250. This includes between
$398.900 and $460.350 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliate(s). The total investment necessary
to begin operation as an area developer with three Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses is between $604.860 and
$778.875. This includes between $598.350 and $690.525 that must be paid to the franchisor or its

affiliate(s).

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully.
You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement
with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.
Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Tony Lamb, 5945 Centennial
Circle, Florence, Kentucky 41042 or at 1-800-566-2423.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and
this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.
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Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help
you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP, or by writing to the FTC at
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

ISSUANCE DATE: April 20;202318, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to
find more information:

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibit EG.

How much will T need to | Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
invest? franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes
the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the | I[tem 21 or Exhibit B includes financial statements.
financial ability to provide | Review these statements carefully.
support to my business?

Is the franchise system stable, | [tem 20 summarizes the recent history of the number
growing, or shrinking? of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only | [tem 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
Travelin®> Tom’s Business in | franchise agreement describe whether the franchisor
my area? and other franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a | Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
troubled legal history? management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Travelin’ | Item 20 or Exhibit EG lists current and former

Tom’s Coffee franchisee? franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.
What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should

look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you
sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue
to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda.
See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About 7This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve
disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in
Kentucky. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a
less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or
litigate with the franchisor in Kentucky than in your own state.

Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable
for all financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your spouse
has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both your and
your spouse’s marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk if your
franchise fails.

. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or advertising

fund payments regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make payments may
result in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Financial Condition. The Franchisor’s financial condition as reflected in its financial
statements (See Item 21) calls into question the Franchisor’s financial ability to
provide services and support to you.

Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and has
a limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment than a
franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

Unregistered Trademark. The primary trademark that you will use in your business
is not federally registered. If the franchisor’s right to use this trademark in your area
is challenged, you may have to identify your business and its products or services with
a name that differs from that used by other franchisees or the franchisor. This change
can be expensive and may reduce brand recognition of the products of services you
offer.

Supplier Control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory or supplies
that are necessary to operate your business from the franchisor, its affiliates, or
suppliers that the franchisor designates, at prices the franchisor or they set. These
prices may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same or similar
goods. This may reduce the anticipated profit of your franchise business.
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Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY
STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating to a
franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that the franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or
estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude
a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its
terms except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof
and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration
of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably
required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies
only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise
or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark,
service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent
to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least six (6) months advance notice
of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type or under similar circumstances. This section does
not require a renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall
not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration
at a location outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of
first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.
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(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all
lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed
transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a
right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide
third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that
grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such
assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure
the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made
for providing the required contractual services.

The fact there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does not constitute approval,
recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Department of Attorney General, State of
Michigan, 670 Williams Building, Lansing, Michigan 48913, telephone (517) 373-7117.

THE MICHIGAN NOTICE APPLIES ONLY TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE RESIDENTS OF
MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this Franchise Disclosure Document, “MCC,” “we,” “us,” and “our”
means Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, the franchisor. “You,” “your,” and “Franchisee” means the business
entity and its owners that buys the franchise from Mobile Coffee Company, LLC

The Franchisor

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC is a Delaware limited liability company formed on January 20,
2021. We operate under the name Mobile Coffee Company, LLC and Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee and no other
name. Our principal business address is 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence, Kentucky 41042. We began
offering Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchises in April 2021. We operate Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses similar
to the type being offered and have done so since 2020. Except as described above, we have not engaged in
or offered franchises in any other line of business.

Parent, Predecessors and Affiliates

We have several parent companies (our “Parents”).

_MCC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobile Coffee Company Intermediate Holdings, LLC,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kona Ice Ultimate Holdings, LLC. Our Parents share our principal
business address.

Our affiliate, TMJ Insurance, LLC (“Kona Insurance™) offers comprehensive property and casualty
insurance to our franchisees. Kona Insurance shares our principal business address.

Our affiliate, KonaOS Holdings, LLC (“Kona Software Affiliate”), offers software for our
franchisees. Kona Software Affiliate shares our principal business address.

Our affiliate, Kona Ice, Inc. (“Affiliate Franchisor”) shares our principal business address. Affiliate
Franchisor has offered and sold Kona Ice franchises since 2008. Kona Ice franchises operate mobile
businesses that sell flavored shaved ice, ice cream, and related products. As of December 31, 20232022,
Affiliate Franchisor had no corporate locations and 1,484670 franchise locations. Under certain
circumstances, existing Kona Ice franchisees may be granted a right to purchase a territory to which they
currently have rights under an executed franchise agreement with Affiliate Franchisor (See Item 12).
Affiliate Franchisor is not engaged in any other business activity and has not offered or sold franchises in
any other line of business.

Except for Affiliate Franchisor, our affiliates do not and have not offered franchises in this or any
line of business.

We do not have any predecessors.

Our agent for service of process in Delaware is The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust
Center 1209 Orange St., Wilmington, Delaware 19801. Our other agents for service of process are disclosed
on Exhibit A. If a state is not listed, we have not appointed an agent for service of process in that state in
connection with the requirements of franchise laws. There may be states in addition to those listed above
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in which we have appointed an agent for service of process. There may also be additional agents appointed
in some of the states listed.

The Franchise

We offer franchises (“Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise(s)” or “Franchise(s)”) for the use of our
“Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee” trademarks, trade names, service marks, and logos (“Marks”) for the operation
of Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses. Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses are operated under our proprietary Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee system (“System”). The System may be changed or modified by us throughout your
ownership of the Franchise. Travelin® Tom’s Businesses operate mobile businesses which includes our
proprietary Travelin® Tom’s Coffee mobile truck, known as the “Beverage Entertainment Vehicle” or
(“BEV”) with the patented “Creation Station Self-Service System” (U.S. Patent Number 8,157,136), and
other mobile units that sell coffees, teas, and related products. Customers can also book the BEV or other
mobile units for various events, including fundraising events, sports leagues, school events or sports,
festivals and fairs, birthday parties, corporate events, picnics, church events, block parties, daycares and
preschools, etc. You must use the BEV only for the operation of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business and only to
sell the products that we authorize. Whie-mestWe may allow certain franchisees to operate an additional
Travelin® Tom’s Business are—mebie,—seme—may—be—operated at a fixed leeations—with—our—written
apprevatlocation within their territory (“Fixed Location Business™). Franchisees will sign the then-current
Fixed Location Amendment, a sample is attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document in Exhibit [.

You must sign our standard franchise agreement attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document
as Exhibit C (“Franchise Agreement”). You must operate one BEV per Franchise Agreement. Each
Franchise will be granted an exclusive territory which will be described in the Franchise Agreement
(“Protected Territory”). Your Travelin’ Tom’s Business must offer only those services and products that
we have authorized. We reserve the right to add, modify, or delete any services or products that you must
offer or sell at your Travelin’ Tom’s Business at any time at our sole discretion. If you reserve an additional
Franchise and territory under an “Additional Franchise Reservation Agreement” you will sign our then-
current franchise agreement which may be materially different from the Franchise Agreement attached to
this Franchise Disclosure Document.

We also offer to select qualified persons (“Area Developers”) the opportunity to sign our area
development agreement (“Area Development Agreement”) attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document
as Exhibit D and acquire the right to develop multiple Travelin’® Tom’s Businesses in a designated
development area (“Development Territory’”) in accordance with a specified development schedule
(“Development Schedule”). The Development Territory will be established based on the consumer
demographics of the Development Territory, geographical area, city, county and other boundaries. If you
enter into an Area Development Agreement, you must sign a Franchise Agreement for your first Travelin’
Tom’s Business (“Initial Franchise Agreement”) at the same time that you sign the Area Development
Agreement. You will be required to sign our then-current form of Travelin’ Tom’s Franchise Agreement,
which may differ from the current Franchise Agreement included with this Franchise Disclosure Document
for each Travelin’ Tom’s Business that you develop under the Area Development Agreement. Unless
otherwise stated, any reference in this Franchise Disclosure Document to “you” or “franchisee” includes
you both as an Area Developer under an Area Development Agreement and as a franchisee under a
Franchise Agreement.

Existing franchisees also have the option to purchase other Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee equipment
(“Additional Equipment™);”) as sach-equipmentit becomes available. Franchisees may only use Additional
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Equipment in their Protected Territory. As of the Issuance Date of this Franchise Disclosure Document,
we do not offer any Additional Equipment:- but anticipate offering a BEV Cart in 2024.

Because the Travelin’ Tom’s Business is a mobile business; (unless you operate a Fixed Location
Business), you will most likely operate your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise from your home, but you
may choose to rent an executive suite office or other commercial office space. Depending on your local
laws and community rules, you may need to rent or lease storage space for your BEV at a commissary
location or other location.

Market and Competition

Travelin” Tom’s Businesses target their products and services to the general public. The market
for tea, coffee, and other food and beverage products served in a mobile dining atmosphere is competitive
and well-developed. The casual dining industry is highly competitive and is often affected by changes in
eating habits, by local and national conditions affecting spending habits, and by population and traffic
patterns. Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses will compete with other local businesses, as well as many local,
regional, and national restaurant businesses, grocery stores, street vendors, and other food service
businesses offering similar products for mobile consumption, take out, delivery, and catering services.

You will also face normal business risks that could have an adverse effect on your Travelin’ Tom’s
Business. These include industry developments, such as pricing policies of competitors, consumer tastes,

and supply and demand.

Industry-Specific Laws

Many states and local jurisdictions have enacted laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances which
may apply to the operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, including those which: (a) establish general
standards, specifications, and requirements for the construction, design, and maintenance of the BEV and
any Additional Equipment; (b) regulate matters affecting the health, safety, and welfare of your customers,
such as general health and sanitation requirements; employee practices concerning the storage, handling,
and preparation of food; special health, food service, and frozen dessert and drink machine licensing
requirements; restrictions on smoking and exposure to tobacco smoke or other carcinogens or reproductive
toxicants and saccharin; availability of and requirements for public accommodations, including restrooms;
(c) set standards pertaining to employee health and safety; (d) set standards and requirements for fire safety
and general emergency preparedness, (e) regulate the proper use, storage, and disposal of waste,
insecticides, and other hazardous materials, (f) establish general requirements or restrictions on advertising
containing false or misleading claims, or health and nutrient claims on menus or otherwise, such as “low
calorie” or “fat free,” and (g) establish requirements concerning withholdings and employee reporting of
taxes on tips. Additionally, most states require a food handler’s license and possibly a hawkers or peddlers
license which authorizes an individual to sell food from a mobile, outdoor business. Certain city or town
clerks in the communities you plan to service may have additional licensing requirements.

Many local or state jurisdictions require food service permits for those preparing, handling and
serving food to the public. You and your employees may be required to pass a test or other certification
process to obtain these permits. There may also be local ordinances and regulations governing food storage,
preparation and serving. The operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, including maintenance of the
equipment, conduct and appearance of personnel, and the preparation and sale of products from your
Travelin® Tom’s Business may be regulated by various governmental and municipal laws, rules,
regulations, and ordinances that you must follow. If any product dispensed at your Travelin’ Tom’s
Business is in violation of any applicable law or regulations, or if the food items, premises, equipment,
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personnel or operation of the Travelin® Tom’s Business pose a health risk to the public, the applicable
governing authorities or agencies may require you to immediately close your Travelin’ Tom’s Business,
terminate selling operations, destroy all contaminated products, eliminate the source of contamination, and
remedy all unsanitary conditions present. These governing authorities or agencies may require that you
undergo and pass inspection(s) before you reopen for business.

Any person who drives your BEV must have a valid driver’s license and each of your BEVs must
be properly licensed and registered. The requirements for these licenses may vary, depending on your
location. If we require safety additions to your BEV or any Additional Equipment or if your BEV is subject
to a manufacturer’s vehicle safety recall, you must immediately perform the required repairs, changes,
maintenance and/or inspections before using your BEV or any Additional Equipment in the operation of
your Travelin’ Tom’s Business.

You should consult with a legal advisor about whether these and/or other requirements apply to
your Travelin’” Tom’s Business. Failing to comply with laws and regulations is a material breach of the

Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer, President, Secretary and Board Member: Tony Lamb

Mr. Lamb serves as our Chief Executive Officer, President and Secretary, and also serves as a
member of our Board of Directors in Florence, Kentucky and has done so since our inception in January
2021. Mr. Lamb serves as the Chief Executive Officer, President and Secretary, and also serves as a
member of the Board of Directors of Affiliate Franchisor in Florence, Kentucky and has done so since its
inception in February 2008.

Board Member: Matthew Perelman

Mr. Perelman serves as a member of our Board of Directors in Florence, Kentucky and has done
so since our inception in January 2021. Mr. Perelman also serves as a member of the Board of Directors
of Affiliate Franchisor in Florence, Kentucky and has done so since July 2019. Mr. Perelman is a Co-
Founder and has been a Managing Partner of Garnett Station Partners, an investment firm in New York,
New York focused on retail and consumer companies, since September 2013. Mr. Perelman has been a
Trustee of the Heckscher Foundation for Children since June 2016, and a Trustee of Reading Partners, both
in New York, New York.

Board Member: Alexander Sloane

Mr. Sloane serves as a member of our Board of Directors in Florence, Kentucky and has done so
since our inception in January 2021. Mr. Sloane also serves as a member of the Board of Directors of
Affiliate Franchisor in Florence, Kentucky and has done so since July 2019. Mr. Sloane is a Co-Founder
and has been a Managing Partner of Garnett Station Partners, an investment firm in New York, New York
focused on retail and consumer companies, since September 2013. Mr. Sloane has been a Trustee of the
Heckscher Foundation for Children since June 2009 and a Trustee of America Needs You since 2011, both
in New York, New York.
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Board Member: Robert A. Whitehouse 11

Mr. Whitehouse serves as a member of our Board of Directors in Florence, Kentucky and has done
so since our inception in January 2021. Mr. Whitehouse also serves as a member of the Board of Directors
of Affiliate Franchisor in Florence, Kentucky and has done so since July 2019. Mr. Whitehouse has been
the Chief Executive Officer of Eagle Financial Services, Inc. and affiliated entities in Florence, Kentucky,
which focus on multi-state consumer lending, commercial real estate and furniture stores, since August
2014. Mr. Whitehouse is the past president and has been a member of the board of directors of the Ohio
Financial Services Association in Columbus, Ohio since August 2014, and has been a member of the board
of directors of the Kentucky Consumer Finance Association in Lexington, Kentucky since November 2014,

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

You must pay us an initial franchise fee (“Initial Franchise Fee”) of $15,000 when you sign the
Franchise Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee is payment for all of our pre-opening assistance that we
provide to allow you to open your Travelin’ Tom’s Business and also offsets some of our franchisee
recruitment expenses. Each Franchise Agreement will grant you the right to operate one BEV and
Additional Equipment (if offered) in the Protected Territory. If you desire to operate more than one BEV,
you will be required to purchase an additional Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise for each BEV. The Initial
Franchise Fee is due in full at the time you sign the Franchise Agreement(s), uniform, non-refundable, and
deemed fully earned by us once paid. During our last fiscal year, ended December 31, 20232022, we
collected Initial Franchise Fees of $15,000.

Additional Franchise Reservation Fee

Franchisees may also reserve an additional Franchise and territory (“Reserved Franchise”) subject
to availability and our approval by paying a reservation fee of $10,000 per territeryReserved Franchise
(“Reservation Fee) when you sign the “Additional Franchise Reservation Agreement” which is attached
as Exhibit HI-5 to this Franchise Disclosure Document. You will be able to reserve a territory for up to 12
months. We will also give you a right of first refusal for an additional 12 months if you do not purchase
the Reserved Franchise within the initial 12-month period. You cannot renew the Additional Franchise
Reservation Agreement if you do not purchase the Reserved Franchise. The Reservation Fee will be applied
to the Initial Franchise Fee if you execute a new franchise agreement for an additional Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee Franchise. The Reservation Fee is uniform and nonrefundable even if you do not open an additional
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise.
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Beverage Entertainment Vehicle

You must purchase one BEV from us. You will be required to pay the then-current BEV price at
the time you take delivery. As of the Issuance Date of this Franchise Disclosure Document, the current
BEV price is between $+6+;456171,950 and $476;456186,950. You will pay a nonrefundable $455,000
deposit when you sign the Franchise Agreement and the remaining balance of $+46;450156,950 to
$+6+450171.950 when you take delivery of your BEV.

You must also pay for any required modifications that government agencies require and that are
not standard on the BEV. BEV payments are nonrefundable even if you do not open a Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee Franchise. The BEV will come equipped with a commercial refrigerated base with tap dispensing
system, bean-to-cup machine, frozen beverage machine, music system and our proprietary patented
Creation Station System. This station allows the customers to choose and apply their own flavorings to
their beverage. Franchisees are required to operate at least one BEV, and may operate multiple BEVs, in
their Protected Territory.

You are responsible for picking up your BEV from Kona Ice Corporate Office located in Florence,
KY after initial training, or you may choose to have your BEV delivered. BEVs are delivered from
Florence, Kentucky. If you choose delivery, you will pay the delivery fee directly to us or the transportation
company based on the then-current delivery rate. If we delivery your BEV to you, you will pay us a delivery
fee of $10,000 upon delivery. The delivery fee is uniform and nonrefundable.

BEV Compliance Fee

You may-haveare required to pay afee-in-the-eventthat-we-or-our-affiliate-needs-to-meodifirfor any
part-efthemodification required for your BEV-fremeourstandard-speeifieations in order to comply with

relevant state or local health department requirements in your Protected Territory. These modifications
usually cost between $1,000 and $5,000. These payments are paid when you purchase the BEV and are
nonrefundable.

Initial Inventory and Equipment

We-require-allfranchiseestoeYou must purchase an initial supply of coffee and paper products
nechadingbutnotlimited-to; that includes bag-in-box concentrates, flavored syrups, coffee beans, powders,

cups, lids and other items. In addition, you are required to purchase a graphics package, and a Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee welcome box that includes branded t-shirt uniforms from us before you begin operation of
your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. The cost of the initial inventory, graphics package and welcome box is
$11,500 and must be paid prior to the beginning operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. This payment
is uniform and nonrefundable.

Optional Inventory

Y ou may;-butare-notrequired-te; purchase additional Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee branded merchandise
from us suaeh-asincluding jackets, polos, shirts and hats for approximately $225, depending on the quantity

you purchase. You may purchase these items at any time, including prior to opening your Travelin’ Tom’s
Business. These payments are uniform and nonrefundable.
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Insurance

You may;-but-are-netrequired-te; purchase your required insurance through our affiliate, Kona
Insurance. You must obtain your insurance prior to picking up your BEV. Your insurance will be
approximately $1,500 for three months of coverage but may depend on various factors, including your
location and whether you have had prior issues or claims from previous operations. These initial amounts
may be paid up to three weeks following issuance, depending on state law. Your rates may be significantly
higher if you have had prior issues or claims from previous operations. These payments are uniform and
nonrefundable.

Area Development Agreement

Franchisees may also purchase the rights to open additional Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses by signing
our Area Development Agreement and paying a development fee (“Development Fee”). The Development

Fee is equal to the Initial Franchise Fee for your first Franchise Agreement ($15,000). Area Developers
must open a minimum of one Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses and may open up a maximum of three Travelin’
Tom’s Businesses. The Development Fee is payable when you sign your Area Development Agreement.
We will credit the Development Fee against the Initial Franchise Fee for your First Franchise Agreement.
You must also pay us a $10.000 BEV deposit 12 months before the deadline to enter into each additional
Franchise Agreement with us. The deposit will be credited towards the purchase price of the BEV that you
purchase under each additional Franchise Agreement and is not refundable. You will be required to sign
our then-current form of Travelin’ Tom’s Franchise Agreement, which may differ from the current
Franchise Agreement included with this Franchise Disclosure Document for each Travelin’ Tom’s Business
that you develop under the Area Development. The Development Fee is uniform, payable when you sign
your Area Development Agreement and is nonrefundable under any circumstances, even if you fail to open
any Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses.

If you form an entity to open any of the Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses within the Development
Territory, you must own at least 51% of each entity. You must provide us with necessary documentation
to show your ownership interest.

Financial Assurance

Some states have imposed a financial assurance. Please refer to the Addendum in Exhibit GH to
the Franchise Disclosure Document.
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ITEM 6

years seven through ten;
$2.000-per-yearforany
e , .
Eixed 1 ot &
Business

August 31 of each
year, or six equal
installments due May
31, June 30, July 31,
August 31,
September 30 and
October 31, or nine
installments due fdue

dates}-April 30, May
31, June 30, July 31,

OTHER FEES
Type of Fee®" Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty®- $3,000 for years one and Three equal | This royalty (“Royalty”) is an ongoing
two; $4,000 for years three | installments due June | payment that allows you to use the
through six; and $5,000 for | 30, July 31, and | Marks and the intellectual property of

the System and pays for our ongoing
support and assistance. We reserve the
right to charge additional Royalties for
the use of Additional Equipment. If you
are renewing your franchise agreement,
you must pay our then-current successor
franchise Royalty payments. If you are
purchasing an existing Franchise, the
date for determining Royalty payments
will be determined from the date the

August 31, | initial franchise agreement was signed.
September 30, | If you open a Fixed Location Business,
October 31, | you will not pay this Royalty but will
November 30, and | pay the “Fixed Location Royalty.”
December 31.

Payable  beginning

the first calendar year
in which you take
delivery of the BEV

Additional
Equipment
Royalty®

Varies based on the type of
Additional Equipment

Same as Royalty

We currently do not have Additional
Equipment available. If we offer
Additional Equipment, you may
purchase it for use in your Protected
Territory. We estimate the Additional
Equipment Royalty to be between-$600
and-$2,000 per year. We do not require
you to purchase any Additional
Equipment during the term of the
Franchise Agreement.

Fixed Location
Business Royalty

The greater of $166.67 per

Same as Royalty

month or 2% of gross sales

for any Travelin’ Tom’s
operating as a Fixed
Location Business

You will pay this fee for any Fixed
Location Businesses you operate. This
fee is in addition to the Royalty you will
pay for your BEV.

Additional
Franchise
Reservation Fee

$10,000 per territory

As incurred

Franchisees may reserve territories in
addition to the Protected Territory. We
will apply an Additional Franchise
Reservation Fee to the Initial Franchise
Fee if you purchase an additional
Franchise and a new BEV.  The
Additional Franchise Reservation Fee
will not be applied to the Initial
Franchise Fee if you purchase a second-
hand BEV.
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Type of Fee® Amount Due Date Remarks
Territory $1,000 plus amount of As incurred Payable to us if you infringe on another
Infringement Fee applicable products and Travelin® Tom’s Coffee franchisee’s
services you invoiced Protected Territory by receiving
while infringing for first payment for goods and/or services
violation; $5,000 plus provided and/or rendered within the
amount of applicable other franchisee’s Protected Territory
products and services you without that franchisee’s and/or our
invoiced while infringing permission. We may direct the funds at
for second and subsequent our option.
violations
Initial  Territory | $1,000 to $2,500 As incurred We may, subject to availability and our
Adjustment Fee approval, allow you to modify your
Protected Territory during your first 90
days of operation of your Travelin’
Tom’s Business. You will be required
to pay an “Initial Territory Adjustment
Fee.” The amount of this fee will be
$1,000 during the first 30 days of
operation and $2,500 beginning on the
31 day. No modifications will be
granted after 90 days of the delivery of
the BEV.
Territory $2,500 As incurred This “Territory Relocation Fee” is

Relocation Fee

payable to us if we approve the
relocation of your Protected Territory.

Brand Fund Currently $1,000 per year-. | Same as Royalty We have established a system wide
Contribution Plus an additional $200 per “Brand Fund.” We reserve the right to
year for each piece of change the Brand Fund Contribution
Additional Equipment that annually by up to 10% upon 30 days’
you operate written notice to you.
Unauthorized $1,000 On demand This fee is payable the Brand Fund if
Advertising Fee you use unauthorized advertising in
violation of the terms of the Franchise
Agreement.
Additional Then-current fee (we do As incurred We may charge you for training newly-
Training not currently charge for hired personnel, refresher training
this) plus costs and courses, advanced training courses, and
expenses additional or special assistance or
training you may need or request. The
fee amount will depend on the training
required and experience level of the
trainer. We may also require you to
reimburse us for costs and expenses
incurred in providing training to you.
Email Address $168 per email address per | Same as Royalty Payable to us for each email address we
Fee/Google Voice | year and $3614 per month establish for you and for use of Google
Fee Voice. Each franchisee entity is
required to have at least one Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee email address. We
reserve the right to increase this fee upon
30 days’ written notice to you.
100453833,
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Technology Fee®

$500 per year

Same as Royalty

You will pay this fee for each Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee Franchise you operate.
We reserve the right to upgrade, modify
and add new technologies and software.
You are responsible for any increase in
fees that result from any third-party
price increases, upgrades, modifications
or additional software, including any
proprietary software. We reserve the
right to increase this fee upon 30 days’
written notice to you.

KonaOS Business
Management
Software Fee

$49Then current price

(currently $35 per month
for-oneper BEV operated
by-existing-franchisces-and
$29 per-month-foreach

additional BEV-yeou

operate;and-$1920 per

month for every ancillary

unit you operate:).

Same as Royalty

You will pay this fee directly to Kona
Software Affiliate. You are responsible
for any increase in in this fee that results
from any third-party price increases,
upgrades, or modifications. We may
allow you to use this software for non-
Travelin® Tom’s Businesses for an
additional charge.

Insurance Reimbursement of our On demand If you fail to obtain insurance, we may
costs, plus a 20% obtain insurance for you, and you must
administration charge reimburse us for the cost of insurance

obtained (currently $500 per month)
plus 20% of the premium for an
administrative cost of obtaining the
insurance.

Customer Varies under As incurred We may, in our sole discretion, remedy

Satisfaction circumstances any issues with customers of your

Reimbursement Travelin’ Tom’s Business, including full

reimbursement of any fees paid to you.
You must reimburse us for any such
costs.

Supplier and Costs of inspection As incurred Payable if we inspect a new product,

Product (estimated to be service, or proposed supplier nominated

Evaluation Fee approximately $100 to by you.
$500)

Misappropriated Will vary under the On demand Our “Brand Manual” contains valuable

Brand Manual circumstances intellectual property and trade secrets.

Fee® Each franchisee will get one copy of the

Brand Manual. If you lose, give away,
make unauthorized copies, fail to return
or otherwise misappropriate all or some
of the Brand Manual, you must pay us
liquidated damages according to the
formula listed in Note 6 to offset the
damages that we will incur as a result of
this misappropriation.
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Non-Compliance
Fee

$1,000 for the first
violation; $5,000 if
violation is not corrected
within 30 days; and $5,000
for the second violation.

As incurred

This fee is assessed if we notify you that
you are failing to follow our System
Standards (defined in Item 8), failing to
use the approved or required suppliers or
products, failing to comply with the
provisions of the Franchise Agreement
or failing to follow the provisions of our
Brand Manual. This fee is in addition to
any and all remedies that we have
available  under  the  Franchise
Agreement. If you commit three or
more violations in a single year, we may
terminate your Franchise Agreement.

Payment Service
Fees

Up to 34% of total charge

As incurred

If payment is made to us or our affiliates
by credit card for any fee required, we
may include a service fee of up to 34%
of the total charge.

Late Fees

$25 per day, plus the lesser
of the daily equivalent of
12% per year simple
interest or the highest rate
allowed by law

On demand

Payable if any payment due to us or our
affiliate is not made by the due date.
Interest accrues from the original due
date until payment is received in full.

Returned Check or
Insufficient Funds
Fee

$100

As incurred

Payable if any check or electronic funds
transfer payment is not successful due to
insufficient funds, stop payment, or any
similar event.

Indemnification

Varies under
circumstances

As incurred

You must indemnify and reimburse us
for any expenses or losses that we or our
representatives incur related in any way
to your Travelin® Tom’s Business or
Franchise.

Professional Fees
and Expenses

Will vary under
circumstances

As incurred

You must reimburse us for any legal or
accounting fees that we incur as a result
of any breach or termination of your
Franchise Agreement. You must
reimburse us if we are required to incur
any expenses in enforcing our rights
against you under the Franchise
Agreement. You will also be required to
pay any professional fees that we incur
for certain transfers as discussed in this
Item 6.

Renewal
Franchise Fee

$7,500

At the time you sign
the successor
franchise agreement

Payable if you qualify to renew your
Franchise Agreement and choose to
enter into a successor franchise
agreement.
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submittal and the
remaining balance of
fee at time of
approved transfer

Type of Fee® Amount Due Date Remarks
Transfer Fee $5,000 teor $7,500 plus $1,000 This fee (“Transfer Fee”) is payable in
$1.000 for each piece of nonrefundable connection with the transfer of your
Additional Equipment deposit at time of | Travelin’ Tom’s Business, your BEV, a
transfer application | transfer of ownership of your legal

entity, or the Franchise Agreement. If
you transfer to an existing Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee franchisee, the Transfer
Fee is $5,000. Otherwise, it is $7,500. In
addition, you must pay a transfer fee of
$1.000 for each piece of Additional
Equipment that your transfer.

If you are transferring the Franchise
Agreement to an entity that you control,
family, or adding minority equity
owners, we do not required you to pay a
Transfer Fee, but you must pay our
actual costs, including legal fees.

Additional
Equipment
Transfer Fee

$5601.000 per Additional
Equipment

At time of approved
transfer

Payable in connection with the transfer
of your Additional Equipment. You will
be required to pay off any loans on the
Additional Equipment prior to transfer.

BEV Remodel or
BEV Upgrades

Will vary under
circumstances

Upon execution of
successor franchise
agreement, upon a
BEV rewrap or upon
a transfer of an
existing BEV (and
Additional
Equipment, if any)
that has not
completed the
required remodels

You must keep your BEV and
Additional Equipment, if any) in
compliance  with  current System
Standards which includes a rewrap when
required (at least every seven years of
operation). You may need to pay this
fee for the BEV (and Additional
Equipment, if any): (1) upon execution
of successor franchise agreement for a
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise that
has not completed the required remodels
or is not in compliance with current
standards; (2) for the transfer of a
Travelin® Tom’s Business that has not
completed the required remodels; or (3)
if they are not in compliance with
current standards.

Mystery Shopper
Fee

$1,000 per occurrence

On demand

We may require you to conduct a self-
shop by sending us photos of your BEV
or any Additional Equipment. If the
results of the self-shop shop are
unsatisfactory or you do not participate,
we may send a mystery shopper or
similar third party to conduct a mystery
shop. If the results of the third-party
mystery shopper are unsatisfactory, we
will conduct a mystery shop of your
Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise and
you must pay us a fee of $1,000 to cover
our travel and expenses and you will be
subject to non-compliance fees.

100453833
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Monitor Content
Management
Software Fee

$240 per year per monitor

Same as Royalty

All BEVs are equipped with a monitor
on the exterior to allow both static and
video images to be displayed including
menu items, limited time offers,
holiday messaging and content for
specific events. Franchisees will have
their own account to store, edit and
customize the playlists on their monitor
content. You will be required to follow
the Monitor Guideline and Usage
Policy contained in the Brand Manual.

Document Fee

$250 per document

As incurred

You must pay us a document fee of $250
(“Document Fee”) if you need an
additional copy of your franchise
disclosure  document or  signed
Franchise Agreement. ¥Yeu—mustbea
ranchiseei | g i

Lead Procurement
Fee

$15,000 or the third-party
broker fee, currently
estimated to be $3,000

As incurred

Payable only in connection with the
transfer to a purchaser that was referred
to you through one of our leads or
through a third-party broker that we
have a contract with. This fee is in
addition to the Transfer Fee.

Branded Audit Fee

$3,000

On demand

You will be required to pay this fee if an
audit reveals your purchases of branded
cups and/or products equals less than
30% of your gross sales unless you can
provide written substantiation of your
proper usage of branded cups in the
operation of your Travelin® Tom’s
Business. This fee is in addition to all of
other rights and remedies that we have
in the Franchise Agreement.

Audit

Cost of audit and any
related accounting and
legal expenses and related
travel and administrative
expenses (we estimate this
cost to be between $1,000
and $10,000)

On demand

You will be required to pay these costs
if an audit reveals that you have failed to
submit required reports or other
information that we require.

Optional E-Lead
Program Fee”

$250 or $500 per year

On demand

You will be required to pay this annual
fee if you opt in to our optional “E-Lead
Program” which provides digital
marketing services.

100453833
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Type of Fee® Amount Due Date Remarks

Limited Time | Currently $150 to $500 per | On demand Fhe—Franchisees are required to
Offer Campaign | kit participate _in limited time eoffer
Fee campaiep—is—aoffering flavor and

marketing campaign——campaigns
(currently offered in the Spring, Summer

and Fall—Eaehkit). You are required to
purchase a kit that includes flavoring
and marketing materials—Y-eou—wil-be
required-to-pay-us—thisfee for each kit
you—purchase—H—you—opt—in—to—our
onal Limited i e
campaiga-campaign. We reserve the
right to increase this fee upon 30 days’
notice. Wereserve-therighttorequireit
upen-60-days—noticeto-your

Conference Fee Then-current fee On demand Payable if you attend our annual
conference. The conference fee for our
last annual conference ranged from $349
to $500 depending on when you paid.

Notes:

1. Fees. All fees paid to us or our affiliates are uniform and not refundable under any circumstances
once paid. Fees paid to vendors or other suppliers may be refundable depending on the vendors
and suppliers. We currently require you to pay fees and other amounts due to us and our affiliates
via electronic funds transfer (“EFT”) or other similar means. You are required to complete the EFT
authorization (in the form attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document in Exhibit HI. We can
require an alternative payment method or payment frequency for any fees or amounts owed to us
or our affiliates under the Franchise Agreement. All fees are current as of the Issuance Date of this
Franchise Disclosure Document. Certain fees that we have indicated may increase over the term
of the Franchise Agreement.

2. Installment Payments. Franchisees currently have the option to pay certain fees annually or in
installment payments on a three, six or ninth month schedule (“Installment Payments”). If you
choose to pay in Installment Payments, your fees will be divided equally over the Installment
Payment period you selected.

3. Royalty. Beginning on the opening date of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, and continuing for the
term of this Franchise Agreement, including any interim period between franchise agreements, you
agree to pay us the Royalty listed below annually in in Installment Payments (“BEV_Royalty
Schedule™):

400153833
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BEV Royalty Schedule BEV Royalty BEV Royalty Schedule
- - Total (If you make 3 Sehedule (If you make 9
Time Period* . y (If you make 6 installment payments per
Royalty installment payments .
installment payments year)
per year)
per year)
Years 1-2 $3,000 June 30: $1,000 May 31: $500 April 30: $333
July 31: $1,000 June 30: $500 May 31: $333
August 31:  $1,000 July 31: $500 June 30: $334
August 31: $500 July 31: $333
September 30:  $500 August 31: $333
October 31: $500 September 30: $334
October 31: $333
November 30: $333
December 31:
$334
Years 3-6 $4,000 June 30: $1,333 May 31: $666 April 30: $444
July 31: $1,333 June 30: $666 May 31: $445
August 31: $1,334 July 31: $667 June 30: $444
August 31: $667 July 31: $445
September 30:  $667 August 31: $444
October 31: $667 September 30: $445
October 31: $444
November 30: $445
December 31:
$444
Years 7-10 (plus $5,000 June 30: $1,666 May 31: $833 April 30: $556
any q bmterlm July 31: $1,667 June 30: $833 May 31: $555
period ~ between August31:  $1,667 | July31: $833 | June 30: $556
franchise
agreements,  if August 31: $833 July 31: 8555
applicable) September 30: $834 August 31: $556
October 31: $834 September 30: $555
October 31: $556
November 30: $555
December 31:
$556
Fixed—Loecation $2,000 June 30— $666 May3+——$333 April 30— $222
Business—for . Tune30: $333 .
cial , Fuby 3H——8667 May3+—$222
. od_if Atgust3——5667 July 33— 8333 June 30— $222
applicable August 31— $333 Faly-3+: $222
October3+——8222
November30:—$223
December34+:-—$223
100153833,
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You may choose your Installment Payment schedule each year so long as you make your selection prior to
our annual convention. If you do not make a selection before the convention, we will elect for you. If you
qualify to renew your Franchise Agreement and choose to enter into a successor franchise agreement, or, if
you are a transferee, the date for determining your BEV Royalty Schedule will be the date the initial
franchise agreement was signed for the Travelin’ Tom’s Business you are continuing to operate or acquired
and you must pay our then current successor royalty for successor franchlse agreements which is-eurrenthy

_we anticipate will be higher

than the rovaltv for new franchlsees For any other fees that can be paid as Installment Payments, you will

pay each fee in accordance with our payment polices as stated in the Brand Manual.

4.

Additional Equipment Royalty. We do not offer any Additional Equipment as of the Issuance Date
of this Franchise Disclosure Document.

Technology Fee. We provide you with eertaintechnieal-servieestechnologies in exchange for a
monthly technology fee (“Technology Fee”). The Technology Fee may change periodically based
on changes to the technological services we provide and/or our costs to provide these services. We
reserve the right to develop, license, sublicense, and create additional software and technologies
that Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees must pay for and use. We can change the software and
technology that must be used by our franchisees at any time, which may result in changes to the
Technology Fee.

Misappropriated Brand Manual Fee. This fee is determined by taking our total revenue from our
previous fiscal year, multiplied by the fraction which results from taking one divided by the current
number of Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees as of the date of the misappropriation, except that
this fee will not, under any circumstances, be less than $30,000.

Optional E-Lead Program Fee. The E-Lead Program is an optional digital marketing service to
manage the placement of digital ads. Franchisees can choose the E-Lead Lite for $250 or the E-
Lead Plus for $500. This fee is for administration of the program. Franchisees pay for the ads
directly to third parties.

ITEM 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Amount Method of When Due To Whom
Expenditure Payment Payment is
Low High Made
Initial Franchise $15,000 $15,000 Lump Sum Upon signing the | Us
Fee Franchise
Agreement
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Type of Amount Method of When Due To Whom
Expenditure Payment Payment is
Low High Made
BEV and Installed $161450171, $176,450186 | Two $15,000 due upon | Us
Equipment™® 950 950 Installments | signing the
Franchise
Agreement and the
balance of
$1446,450156,950 to
$4+64450171,950
due upon delivery or
pick up of the BEV
and related
equipment
Training Expenses® $140 $950 As Incurred | As Incurred Providers of
Travel,
Lodging, and
Food Services
BEV Delivery® $0 $10,000 Lump Sum | Upon delivery of Us or Third
the BEV and related | Party
equipment
BEV Compliance $1,000 $5,000 As Incurred | As Incurred Us or our
Fee affiliate
BEYV Insurance for 3 $600 $1,500 As Incurred | As Incurred Our affiliate
Months® or Insurance
Companies
Tax, Title, and $180 $8,000 Lump Sum | Upon delivery or Government
Licensing of BEV® pick up of the BEV | Agencies
Initial Inventory® $11,500 $11,500 Lump Sum | Before Opening Us
Optional $0 $225 As Incurred | As Incurred Us, Suppliers
Inventory?
Permits and $250 $1,500 Lump Sum | As Incurred Government
Licenses® Agencies
Real Estate or BEV $0 $32004,000 | AsIncurred | As Incurred Third Parties
Storage®®
Computer System $0 $1,000 As Incurred | Before Opening Suppliers
and Software
Additional Funds — $1,000 $14,000 As Incurred | As Incurred Us, Third
3 Months9 Parties
100153833,
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Type of Amount Method of When Due To Whom
Expenditure Payment Payment is
Low High Made
TOTAL
ESTIMATED $194:120201, | $246;325259,
INITIAL 620 625
INVESTMENT!)
Notes:

These estimated initial expenses are our best estimate of the costs you may incur in establishing and
operating your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. Except as stated in Item 10, neither we nor any agent or
affiliate of ours offers direct financing. You may be able to finance the purchase of your BEV or any
Additional Equipment (See Item 10). All expenditures paid to us or our affiliates are uniform and
nonrefundable under any circumstances once paid. All expenses payable to third parties are nonrefundable,
except as you may arrange for utility deposits and other payments.

1. BEV and Installed Equipment. Only the BEV or any Additional Equipment may be used in the
operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. No other truck or vehicle may be used in the operation
of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. These items must be purchased from us or our affiliate.

2. Training Expenses. We will pay for hotel and airfare for one attendee for our initial training
program in Florence, Kentucky, which we estimate to include approximately 16-20 hours of
training. You are responsible for all other costs and for any additional initial training program
attendees. The low estimate is for the one required attendee’s miscellaneous travel expenses such
as food and beverage purchases while traveling by car, and assumes the cost of the attendee’s hotel,
airfare, or otherwise cost of and transportation to our headquarters is paid for by us. The high
estimate includes one additional attendee’s airfare, hotel and miscellaneous travel expenses such
as food and beverage purchases while traveling through airports.

3. BEV Delivery. You are responsible for picking up your BEV from the manufacturer located in
Eldhart-Florence, Kentuckylndiana after initial training, or you may choose to have your BEV
delivered. BEVs are delivered from Florence, Kentucky. If you choose delivery, you will pay the
delivery fee directly to us if we deliver your BEV or to the transportation company based on the
then-current delivery rate.

4. BEV Insurance- for 3 Months. You must obtain and maintain, at your own expense, the insurance
coverage we require, and satisfy other insurance-related obligations. Please note that if you have
had prior issues or claims from previous operations unrelated to the operation of a Travelin” Tom’s
Business, your rates may be significantly higher than those estimated above. You may, but are not
required to, purchase this insurance through the captive insurance program offered through our
affiliate.

5. Tax, Title, and Licensing of BEV. You are required to pay all federal and state tax, title, licenses,
and other costs of titling the BEV. The estimates above include a sales (or usage) tax of an
estimated 6% of the purchase price of the BEV. The actual amount may be more depending on the
tax rate in the jurisdiction where you title your BEV. You should check with your local county
clerk’s office or other governmental titling office for your state’s tax rate and the exact cost to title
and license your BEV.

100453833
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10.

1.

100453833

Initial Inventory. You must purchase an initial inventory of coffee and paper products including,
but not limited to, bag-in-box concentrates, flavored syrups, coffee beans, powders, cups, lids and
other items. In addition, you are required to purchase a graphics package, and a Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee welcome box that includes branded t-shirt uniforms to begin operation of your Travelin’
Tom’s Business. These items must be purchased from us or our affiliate, and you are not permitted
to purchase any of these items, with the exception of ice, from alternate sources.

Optional Inventory. You may also purchase Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee branded merchandise such as
jackets, polos, shirts and hats from us.

Permits and Licenses. You must pay for local permits and licenses, which are usually required in
each city, county, and state where you operate. You should check with your local taxing authorities
and with your tax advisor for the amount of such governmental charges.

Real Estate or BEV Storage. Because most of our franchisees will operate their Travelin® Tom’s
Business out of their residences, this chart does not include estimates for items such as real property,
real estate deposits, leases, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures, fixed assets, remodeling,
construction, decorating costs, utility deposits, or security deposits, which will likely not apply
unless you choose to acquire a business premises. In addition, we assume that you will not need to
obtain desks, chairs, and other standard office supplies and equipment and do not include estimates
for these items. You may need to rent a storage area for your BEV and any Additional Equipment.
The low end assumes that you can store your BEV at your residence. The high estimate provides
for three months of storage at an outdoor vehicle storage area.

Additional Funds — 3 Months. These amounts represent our estimate of the amount needed to cover
your expenses for the initial three-month start-up phase of your Travelin® Tom’s Business.
Expenses could include office/warehouse space (if required), utilities, special event fees, uniforms,
as well as additional operating capital for other variable costs such as fuel, vehicle maintenance,
internet service, and mobile phones/telephone. These amounts include $4,000 in payroll expenses,
in the event you intend to hire employees to operate your BEV. The high figure includes $3,000
in Royalty fees and $1,000 in Brand Fund contributions and $500 in Technology Fee payments,
which may be due within your initial three-month start-up phase. These figures also include $500
payable to us if you chose to participate in the E-Lead Program in your first three months’ of
operations. We have elected to include certain fees as line items above, including the BEV
insurance payments. These fees could also be included in our Additional Funds amounts. For
purposes of this disclosure, we estimated the start-up phase to be three months from the date your
Travelin’” Tom’s Business opens for business. We have relied on our affiliate’s operation of a
mobile business since 2007 and its franchising experience since 2008 to arrive at these estimates.

This is an estimate of your initial start-up expenses for one Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. ¥eu
shewldreview

Area Developer
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Amount Method of To Whom
Type of Expenditure Pavment When Due Payment is to
Low High Payment be Made
Lump sum At the Time You | Us
Sign your Area
Development Fee®" $15,000 $15.000 Sign your Area
Development
Agreement
Lump sum 12 months before | Us
entering into each
BEV Deposit $10,000 $30.000 subsequent
Franchise
Agreement
Initial Investment for Per Table Per Table Above | Per Table
the First Travelin’ $201,620 $259,625 Above Above
Tom’s Business®
TOTAL ESTIMATED
INITIAL
INVESTMENT FOR
UP TO TWO $403,240 $519.250
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S
BUSINESSES®
TOTAL ESTIMATED
INITIAL
INVESTMENT FOR
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S
BUSINESSES®
Notes:

These estimated initial expenses are our best estimate of the costs you may incur in establishing and

operating your Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses under an Area Development Agreement. We do not offer direct

or indirect financing for these items. The factors underlying our estimates may vary depending on several

variables, and the actual investment you make in developing and opening your Area Development Franchise

may be

greater or less than the estimates given depending upon the locations of your Travelin’ Tom’s

Businesses and current relevant market conditions. All expenses payable to the parties are non-refundable,

except as you may otherwise arrange.

1.

Development Fee. If you sign an Area Development Agreement to develop a mutually agreed

number of Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses, you will pay a Development Fee which is equal to the
Initial Franchise Fee for your first Franchise Agreement ($15,000). You will be required to pay
the Initial Franchise Fees for the additional Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses when you sign each
subsequent Franchise Agreement. Area Developers must open a minimum of one Travelin’ Tom’s
Businesses and a maximum of three Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses. See Item 5 for more information
on the Development Fee.

Initial Investment for First Travelin’ Tom’s Business. These are the estimates to start your Travelin’

100453833

Tom’s Business as described in the single franchised Travelin’ Tom’s Business chart above, except
for the Initial Franchise Fee which is replaced by the Development Fee. You will be required to pay
the balance of $5.000 owed for the Initial Franchise Fee for each additional Travelin® Tom’s
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Business when you sign each subsequent Franchise Agreement. Costs associated with starting
additional Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses are subject to factors that we cannot estimate or control, such
as inflation, increased labor costs or increased materials costs and will depend on when the additional
Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses are opened.

3. If you purchase multiple franchised businesses under the Area Development Agreement, you will
incur all of the costs listed above for each Travelin’ Tom’s Business you open. This is only an
estimate of your initial investment and is based on our estimate of domestic costs and market
conditions prevailing as of the Issuance Date of this Franchise Disclosure Document. This estimate
includes the total Initial Franchise Fees you will be required to pay for each Travelin’ Tom’s
Business developed under the Area Development Agreement. You must bear any deviation or
escalation in costs from the estimates that we have given. Review these figures carefully with a
business advisor before-making-any-deeisionto-purchase-the Franchise-and/or legal counsel
before deciding to purchase an Area Development Franchise. The availability and terms of financing
depend on several factors, including the availability of financing, your creditworthiness, collateral
you may have, and lending policies of financial institutions.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF SERVICES AND PRODUCTS

System Standards

To ensure the highest degree of quality and service is maintained, you must operate the Travelin’
Tom’s Business in strict conformity with the methods, standards, and specifications (“System Standards™)
we list in our proprietary and confidential operating manual (“Brand Manual”), which may exist in various
parts, locations, and formats, and may include a combination of audio, video, written material, electronic
media, website content, and/or software components. Our Brand Manual will include our “Success Guide”
and may also include other written components.

System Standards may regulate, among other things, the types, models, and brands of supplies,
equipment, furnishings, and signs; services, products, and supplies the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise
must offer; unauthorized and prohibited services and products; inventory requirements; and designated and
approved suppliers of these items. You must not: (i) deviate from these methods, standards, and
specifications without our prior written consent, or (ii) otherwise operate in any manner which reflects
adversely on our Marks or the System. Your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise must prepare and sell only
the products that we designate and approve. We have the right to periodically make modifications to these
products and you agree to comply with these modifications. You may not offer or sell any other product
or service without our prior written consent. Establishing and enforcing System Standards are the
mechanism by which we maintain the quality and consistency of the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee brand. If any
product dispensed at your Travelin’ Tom’s Business violates our System Standards or any applicable laws
or regulations, or poses a health risk to the public, we may require that you immediately close your Travelin’
Tom’s Business and not reopen until approved to do so by us after our inspection. In order to protect the
public from any risk of harm and to protect the goodwill and reputation of the System, we may seek
immediate injunctive relief seeking an order to close your Travelin’ Tom’s Business if you fail to close
your Travelin’ Tom’s Business upon our request.

We will notify you of new or modified specifications, standards, and guidelines through periodic
amendments or supplements to the Brand Manual or through written communication (including electronic
communication). We will issue copies of our standards and specifications to you unless these standards
and specifications contain our confidential information. We may require you to remodel; and modernize;

100453833
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and-redeeerate the BEV, at your sole expense, so that the BEV reflects our then-current System Standards
as to image and quality.

You must use the computer hardware and software, including the point-of-sale system that we
periodically designate to operate your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. You must obtain the computer
hardware, software licenses, maintenance and support services, and other related services that meet our
specifications from the suppliers we specify.

BEV-Appearance

You must maintain the appearance of the BEV in accordance with our System Standards, including
a rewrapping, at your expense, as required by us based on the condition of the BEV (but no later than seven
years after you purchase the BEV). You are required to update the wrap every seven years, or sooner, if
needed, at your expense. There are no limits on the number of times we may require you to rewrap your
BEV, but we do not expect to require you to do so more than once every seven years, except in extraordinary
circumstances based on the condition of the BEV. If you sign a successor franchise agreement, we may
require you to purchase a replacement BEV after 14 years. You will be required to update the BEV
appearance as follows: (1) upon the execution of successor franchise agreement for a Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee Franchise with a BEV that has not completed the required remodels or is not in compliance with
current standards; (2) for the transfer of a Travelin’ Tom’s Business with a BEV that has not completed the
required remodels; or (3) for a BEV that is not in compliance with current standards. See Item 11 for more
information. You must use our approved supplier for the window tinting, wrapping and upfitting of your
BEV._You may be required to purchase a new BEV depending on age, condition and wear. If you signed
an Area Development Agreement, you must also pay us a non-refundable $10,000 BEV deposit 12 months
before the deadline to enter into each additional Franchise Agreement with us.

Additional Equipment

You must maintain the appearance of any Additional Equipment in accordance with our System
Standards, including a rewrapping, at your expense, as required by us based on the condition of Additional
Equipment (but no later than seven years after you purchase Additional Equipment). See Item 11 for more
information. You must use our approved supplier for the window tinting, wrapping and upfitting of your
Additional Equipment.

Insurance

You must obtain and maintain at your own expense and from a supplier rated “A-" or better by
Best’s Insurance Reports, the insurance coverage that we periodically require, and satisfy other insurance-
related obligations. You currently must have the following coverage:

A. If you have employees, workers’ compensation insurance in an amount not less than
$500,000 or a higher amount as required by state statute or rule in the state in which your
Travelin’ Tom’s Business is located;

B. Comprehensive business automobile insurance, including physical damage for the BEV in
an amount of $3+644506171,950 or greater, except that an appropriate deductible clause
(maximum $5,000 deductible) will be permitted. Also including any ancillary equipment
and any other property used in the operation of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business;

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance and product liability insurance coverage in such
amounts and upon such terms as may generally be customary for a mobile coffee business
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located in your Protected Territory, but not less than $1,000,000, insuring both you and us
against all claims, suits, obligations, liabilities and damage, including attorney fees, based
upon or arising out of actual or alleged personal injuries or property damage relating to the
use or condition of the Franchise;

D. You must procure, maintain and provide evidence of automobile (truck) vehicle liability
insurance covering the driving of the BEV, Hire/Non Owned Autos and any Additional
Equipment or vehicles used in your business in an amount of not less than $1,000,000; and

E. Such additional insurance as may be required by the terms of any lease or mortgage for the
Franchise.

We may periodically increase the amounts of coverage required under these insurance policies
and/or require different or additional insurance coverage at any time. You may purchase all of your
insurance through the captive insurance program offered by our affiliate, Kona Insurance. The captive
insurance program is a comprehensive property and casualty insurance program covering the Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee franchisees in the following areas: Commercial Auto Liability; Commercial Auto Physical
Damage; Commercial General Liability; Property Coverage and Inland Marine; Workers Compensation;
and Commercial Umbrella. The program is underwritten by Great American Insurance Group and
administered by Cornerstone Insurance.

All insurance policies, except for employment liability insurance policies, must name us and any
affiliates we designate as additional named insured parties and provide for 30 days prior written notice to
us of a policy’s material modification, cancellation, or expiration. You must furnish us with a copy of your
Certificate of Insurance within ten days after the policy is issued or renewed.

Approved Products and Services

We may develop proprietary food products (“Products”) and may develop and own proprietary
recipes (“Proprietary Recipes”). In order to protect their trade secrets and to monitor the manufacture,
packaging, processing, and sale of Products, we or our affiliate will: (i) manufacture, supply, and sell
Products to Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees; and/or (i) disclose Proprietary Recipes to a limited number
of suppliers, including our affiliate.

You must obtain services and products from: (1) designated suppliers, (2) approved suppliers,
and/or (3) according to our specifications. We will issue you a list of the designated and approved suppliers.
If you want to use or sell a product or service that we have not yet evaluated or if you want to purchase or
lease a product or service from a supplier or provider that we have not yet approved (for services and
products that require supplier approval), you must follow the policies and procedures contained in our
Brand Manual. Our approval generally will be based on the supplier’s ability to consistently make the
manufactured product to our standards, requirements, and/or specifications; the supplier’s willingness to
protect our confidential information; production, delivery, and service capability to meet supply and service
commitments; and other criteria detailed in the Brand Manual. We will use commercially reasonable efforts
to notify you within 60 days after receiving all requested information and materials whether you are
authorized to purchase or lease the product or service from that supplier or provider. Costs associated with
gaining approval may be your responsibility and/or the supplier’s where existing suppliers are capable of
providing an existing product. We may periodically re-inspect approved suppliers’ facilities and products,
and we reserve the right to revoke our approval of any supplier, provider, product or service that does not
continue to meet our specifications. We do not provide material benefits to you based solely on your use of
designated or approved suppliers. Some of our officers own an interest in our affiliate, Kona Insurance, which
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is an approved supplier of comprehensive property and casualty insurance. Some of our officers own an
interest in Kona Software Affiliate, which is the only approved supplier of the business management
software, KonaOS. Some of our officers own an interest in MCC, which is the only approved supplier of the
BEV, the Additional Equipment, coffee products and certain branded merchandise. One of our directors is an
officer of Eagle Financial Services, Inc., which is an approved supplier of financing. The owner of Eagle
Financial Services, Inc. has an indirect small minority interest in us. During the last fiscal year, ending
December 31, 20232022, our affiliate, Kona Insurance collected revenue of $29:08297,973 from the sale of
products or services to franchisees.

We estimate that approximately 70% of purchases required to open your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee
Franchise and 30% of purchases required to operate your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise will be from
us or from other approved suppliers or under our specifications. During our last fiscal year, ended
December 31, 20232022, we received $5:804;904+18.857.570 in revenue from these required purchases.
This number represents 96:297.8% of our total revenues of $6;035;34419,276,571.

We have negotiated purchase arrangements with suppliers and distributors for the benefit of our
Franchisees, and we may receive rebates or volume discounts Graximamef3%)-from our purchase of
equipment and supplies that we resell to you. Other than these cooperatives, there are currently no other
purchasing or distribution cooperatives in effect.

Approval of New Suppliers

We may update the list of approved suppliers in the Brand Manual. If you desire to have a non-
approved supplier of a product or service designated as an approved supplier, you must submit samples of
the supplier’s products or services to us, along with a written statement describing why such items, services,
or suppliers should be approved for use in the System. We may charge the cost of evaluating a proposed
new vendor, supplier, or product to you, the vendor, or supplier. We do not make our supplier specifications
and/or standards generally available to franchisees or suppliers. While we will be required to respond to a
request within 60 days, we generally respond to a request for an additional approved supplier within seven
days. Our written approval must be received before you use products not purchased from an approved
supplier. We may revoke our approval at any time if we determine, in our discretion, that the supplier no
longer meets our standards. You must stop selling any products and/or stop purchasing products from any
supplier if we notify you we no longer approve of that specific product or supplier.

ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise agreement and other
agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these
agreements and in other items of this disclosure document.

Obligation Section in Franchise Eranehise-Disclosure
Agreement/Additional Eranchise Document Item
Reservation (‘FA”) / Area
Development Agreement (“ADA”)

a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease Seections2,3A;and 3B/FA Section Items 7 and 11
37
ADA Section 6
b.  Pre-opening purchases/leases FA Sections 7 and 19 Hemltems 7, 8 and 11
ADA Section 3/N/ANetAppheable
400453833
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ADA Section N/A

c.  Site development and other pre-opening FA Sections 3;4A;4B;-5A;7 and Itemltems 7 and 11
requirements 9/Seetions4-and-619
ADA Section 7
d. Initial and ongoing training SectionsSASBand S5E/MNet Hemltems 6, 7 and 11
ApplieableFA Section 8

ADA Section N/A

e. Opening FA Sections 7 and 12 Hemltems 6, 7,9 and
ADA Section 3/Net-Applicable7 11
f.  Fees FA Sections 5, 6,7, 8,12, 13, 14, Items 5, 6 and 7
16, 19,20 and 21
ADA Section 4/Seetion-63
g. Compliance with standards and FA Sections 56:-5D9, 12 and 9/Net | Items 8, 45511, 12, 14
policies/Eranchise- Operations Applieablel3 and +6Exhibit F
Manualoperating manual ADA Section N/A
h. Trademarks and proprietary information FA Sections 69, 14 and #/Net Items 13 &and 14
Applicable]7
ADA Section 1
i.  Restrictions on products/services offered Scetions-9B-and 9D/ Neot Items 8 and 16
ApplieableFA Section 13
ADA Section N/A
j-  Warranty and customer service ScettonsHAHB-and 9Not Neot-Applicableltems
requirements ApplieableFA Section 13 land 11
ADA Section N/A
k.  Territorial development and sales quotas FA Section 2/Net-Applicable4 Hemltems 1, 11 and
ADA Section 5 12
l.  On-geingOngoing product/service FA Section 9b/ANet-Applieablel3 Hemltems 8 and 16
purchases ADA Section N/A
m. Maintenance, appearance; and remodeling Sections3-and-9/Noet-ApplicableFA | Items 7, 8;and 11
requirements Section 13
ADA Section N/A
n. Insurance FA Section 9G/NetApplieable19 Hemltems 6, 7 and 8
ADA Section N/A
0. Advertising FA Section 10/ANet-Applicable]12 Items 611, 13 and
ADA Section N/A +H14
p.- Indemnification FA Section +7B/ANet-Applicable22 Not Applicablefter6
ADA Section 13
g.- Owner’s participation/management and Scettons 355, 5F and 9FE/Neot Items 11, 15 and
staffing ApplieableFA Section 10 1517
ADA Section 12
r.  Records and reports FA Section HANet-Apphicable20 Item +711
ADA Section N/A
s.  Inspections and audits FA Section 12/Net-Applieable21 Hemltems 6 and 11

ADA Section 17

t.  Transfer FA Sections 15 and 16 Item 17
ADA Section 13/Section-79
u. Renewal FA Section +4/Net-Applicable 5 Item 17
ADA Section 2
v.  Post-termination obligations FA Sections 18 and 25 Item 17
ADA Section +6NetAppheabled
w. Non-competition covenants FA Section 16D/NetApplieable 18 | Item 17 and Exhibit
ADA Section 2 1-2
x.  Dispute resolution FA Section 18/Net-Applicable 27 Item 17
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ITEM 10
FINANCING

Except as stated below, neither we nor any agent or affiliate of ours offers direct financing. We do
not guarantee your note, lease or obligation. We do not have any past or present practice to sell, assign or
discount to any third party, in whole or in part, any financing arrangements. We reserve the right to offer
further financing or assist franchisees in obtaining financing in the future.

At their sole discretion and if you qualify, the following lenders may offer you financing for the
purchase of your BEV and/or initial inventory (“Financing”): (i) Eagle Financial Services, Inc. (“Eagle”);
(ii) a hybrid of Ally Financial, Inc. (“Ally”) and Eagle (together, “Ally-Eagle”); (iii) Auxilior Capital
Partners (“Auxilior”); and (iv) Osgood Bank (“Osgood Bank™). The owner of Eagle has an indirect small
minority ownership interest in us. An officer of Eagle is also one of our directors.

Auxilior Capital Partners

Auxilior may offer you Financing for the purchase of your KEV and initial inventory pack. You
will be required to enter into a loan and security agreement (“Loan and Security Agreement”) attached in
Exhibit HI to this Franchise Disclosure Document. The following table summarizes the Financing
Auxilior Capital Partners may offer you:

SUMMARY OF AUXILIOR FINANCING OFFERED®

Item Financed One BEV and initial inventory pack
The full purchase price of BEV (currently $1+61;456171.950 to
Amount Financed $476;450186,950) less $20,000 down payment, plus purchase

price of initial inventory pack (currently $11,500)

Balance of purchase price after Financing amount has been
determined (not less than $20,000)

Term 36 to 66 months (includes up to 6 months of deferments)

(A Credit) 8.2499% (regardless of enrollment in deferments) or
(B Credit) 10.49% to 10.99% (with deferments); up to 11.99%

Down Payment

o

AEE T for first year only under interest-only plan (if allowed); rates may
vary based on swap rates.

Monthly Payment 36 to 66 monthly 1nstallme1}ts (includes up to 6 months of
deferments); may vary according to amount financed

5 - —

Prepayment Penalty S)I;E percent (1%) for each year or partial year remaining on the

Sty e Partner. or(;hareholder and personal guarantee and pledge of the
Franchise

o Late penalty of the higher of 10% of the amount due or $25.00,

Ll Uisem Deeml as permitted by law; acceleration of amounts due; fees®

Loss of Legal Right On Includes waiver of trial by jury and right to interpose any defense,

Default set-off, or counterclaim of any nature or description®

As consideration for your use of this lender, we may receive trade show sales and marketing
support, including trade show assistance and promotional materials. The specific amount of support and
materials are negotiated on a case-by-case basis, but typically ranges from 0.0% to 0.5% of the principal
amount for new loans during the year. We also receive sponsorship fees to support certain conventions,
which range from 50 to 100 basis points (0.5% to 1%) of the principal amount for new loans and from 50
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to 150 basis points (0.5% to 1.5%) of the principal amount for refinances. Neither we nor any affiliate or
agent receives any additional consideration for our franchisees’ use of this lender for Financing.

Notes:
1. Aucxilior Capital Partners reserves the right to change the terms, interest rate, and amounts financed.

2. Payment structure will reflect the seasonal nature of the Travelin’ Tom’ Business. During the first
year, contract payment of $100/per month will be required in off-season months (up to four months)
and during the second year, contact payments of $100/per month in off-season months (up to two
months) will be required. Payments made during the remaining in-season months of the year will
be higher to allow for repayment of the loan and will vary based on the loan amount (equal to the
current price of one BEV and one initial inventory pack, less any down payment) and the
borrower’s interest rate, which is determined by credit score and subject to swap rates” (ranging
from 7.5% for higher credit scores to 9.99% for lower credit scores, or up to 11.99% if an interest-
only plan is allowed). “Rates listed are as of March 31, 2021. Interest would continue to accrue at
the standard rate during the off season period.

3. If your franchisee entity is a partnership, corporation, or other recognized legal entity, the Loan and
Security Agreement must be guaranteed individually by all partners or shareholders. The Loan and
Security Agreement must be secured by the assets of the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise.

4, If you are late on your payments, Auxilior Capital Partners can charge a late penalty. In the case
of nonpayment or other default under the Loan and Security Agreement, Auxilior Capital Partners
can require immediate payment of all amounts due them and can collect reasonable attorney fees
and all costs and expenses of collection.

5. The Loan and Security Agreement requires that you waive trial by jury and the right to interpose
any defense, set-off, or counterclaim of any nature or description. Arbitration or trial by judge will
take place on an individual basis without any form of class action. Auxilior is not liable for specific
performance for any loss, damages, delay or failure to deliver equipment.

Osgood Bank Financing

Osgood Bank may offer you Financing for the purchase of your BEV and initial inventory and
equipment. You will be required to enter into a promissory note, guaranty, security agreement
(“Promissory Note and Security Agreement”) attached in Exhibit HI to this Franchise Disclosure
Document. The following table summarizes the Financing Osgood Bank may offer you:

SUMMARY OF OSGOOD BANK FINANCING OFFERED®

Item Financed One BEV and initial inventory pack

The full purchase price of BEV and related equipment and
inventory, less any down payment made by borrower to MCC
Balance of purchase price after financing amount has been

Amount Financed

Down Payment

determined
Term 3060 to 6072 months
100153833
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APR% Rate is fixed for the life of loan. Rate varies based on
personal credit score of applicants as shown below (rates subject
to change with WSJ Prime):
640-700 score WSIJ Prime + 4.25%,
AL currently 8:459.99%
700-750 score WSJ Prime + 3.50%,
currently 8.15%
750+ score WSJ Prime +2.75%,
currently 858.75%
Monthly Payment 60 installment payments®
Two percent (2%) of the original loan balance if paid in full
e ] duriné3 the ﬁrsgc tW()) years of th% loan b
Sty e Personal Gua.ranty of Owner, Partner or Shareholder and pledge
of the Franchise®
Liability Upon Default Late penalty; acceleration of amounts due; fees®
Loss of Legal Right On Waiver of trial by jury and right to interpose any defense, set-off,
Default or counterclaim of any nature or description®®
Fee(s) $200 Documentation Fee. Amount can be financed in loan.

Neither we nor any affiliate or agent receives any consideration for our franchisees’ use of Osgood

Bank for Financing.

Notes:

b

100453833

Osgood Bank reserves the right to change the terms, interest rate and amounts financed.

Payment structure will reflect the seasonal nature of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business. During the off-
season (up to three months) of every year, contract payments of $100/per month will be required.
Payments made during the in-season (the other nine months of the year) will be higher to allow for
repayment of the loan to occur over 60 months and will vary based on the loan amount (equal to
the current price of one BEV and one initial inventory pack, less any down payment) and the
borrower’s interest rate, which is determined by credit score (ranging from WSJ Prime + 4.25% for
lower credit scores to WSJ Prime + 2.75% for higher credit scores). Interest would continue to
accrue at the standard rate during the off-season period.

If your franchisee entity is a partnership, corporation, or other recognized legal entity, the
Promissory Note and Security Agreement must be guaranteed individually by all partners or
shareholders. The Promissory Note and Security Agreement must be secured by the assets of the
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise, including applicable titles.

If you are late on your payments, Osgood Bank can charge a late penalty. Inthe case of nonpayment
or other default under the Promissory Note and Security Agreement, Osgood Bank can require
immediate payment of all amounts due them and can collect reasonable attorney fees and all costs
and expenses of collection.

The Promissory Note and Security Agreement requires that you waive trial by jury and the right to
interpose any defense, set-off, or counterclaim of any nature or description.
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Eagle Financing

Eagle may also offer you Financing for the purchase of your BEV and initial inventory and
equipment . You will be required to enter into a commercial promissory note (“Note”) attached in Exhibit
HI to this Franchise Disclosure Document. Neither we nor any affiliate or agent receives any consideration
for our franchisees’ use of Eagle for Financing. The following table summarizes the financing Eagle may
offer you:

SUMMARY OF EAGLE FINANCING OFFERED®

Item Financed Purchase price of a BEV and initial inventory pack

The full purchase price of BEV and related equipment and

Amount Financed inventory pack, less any down payment made by borrower to

MCC

e Balancg of purchase price after Financing amount has been
determined

Term 36 months

APR % 910.99%

el Pimen 36 equal monthly installments; varies according to amount
financed

Prepayment Penalty None

sty e Partner or shareholder and personal guarantee and pledge of the

Franchise®

Liability Upon Default

Late penalty, including accrued interest as allowed by law;

acceleration of amounts due; fees®

Loss of Legal Right On Includes waiver of trial by jury and right to interpose any
Default defense, set-off, or counterclaim of any nature or description
Notes:
1. If your franchisee entity is a partnership, corporation or other recognized legal entity, the Note must

be guaranteed individually by all partners or shareholders. The Note must be secured by the assets
of the Travelin” Tom’s Coffee Franchise.

2. In the case of nonpayment or other default under the Note, Eagle can require immediate payment
of all amounts due them, and can collect reasonable attorney fees and all costs and expenses of
collection.

3. The Note requires that you waive trial by jury and the right to interpose any defense, set-off or

counterclaim of any nature or description, as well as waive demand, presentment, protest, notice of
dishonor, notice of protest, notice of default and all suretyship defenses.

100453833
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Ally-Eagle Financing

Ally and Eagle in combination may also offer you Financing for the purchase of your BEV and
initial inventory pack. You will be required to enter into the Note for Eagle and a Retail Installment
Contract — Motor Vehicle — Simple Interest for Ally (“Retail Contract”) both attached in Exhibit HI to this
Franchise Disclosure Document. Neither we nor any affiliate or agent receives any consideration for our
franchisees’ use of Ally-Eagle for Financing. The following table summarizes the financing Ally-Eagle
may offer you:

SUMMARY OF ALLY-EAGLE FINANCING OFFERED®"

Item Financed Purchase price of one BEV and initial inventory pack
Full balance of BEV (currently $161456171.950 to
Amount Financed $176,450186.950) plus initial inventory pack (currently

$11,500), split between Ally and Eagle

Balance of purchase price after Financing amount has been
determined

Down Payment

Term 60 months

For Ally portion of loan: rate based on credit application results
APR % (best results have been approved at #10%, subject to change)
For Eagle portion of loan: 910.99%

For Ally portion of loan: 60 equal monthly installments; varies
according to amount financed and rate

Monthly Payment For Eagle portion of loan: 60 equal monthly installments; varies
according to amount financed
Prepayment Penalty None

Partner or shareholder and personal guarantee and pledge of the

Security Required Franchise®

Late penalty, including 5% of the installment if the installment is
in excess of $200, or $10.00 if the installment is for $20 or less
Liability Upon Default (Ally); and late penalty; including accrued interest as allowed by
law; acceleration of amounts due; fees® (Eagle); acceleration of
amounts due; fees®

Loss of Legal Right On Includes waiver of trial by jury and right to interpose any defense,
Default set-off, or counterclaim of any nature or description®

Notes:

For the Ally portion of the loan: the Financing for the chassis and hard components is paid in 60
equal monthly installments of an interest rate based on credit application results.

For the Eagle portion of the loan: the Financing for the remaining portion of the BEV and inventory
pack is paid in 60 equal monthly installments at an interest rate of 9.99%.

Notes:

1. If you elect this option, you will submit an application to Ally, and if approved by Ally, Ally will
finance up to $65,000 of your BEV. Once Ally has approved your application, a separate
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application is not required by Eagle. If approved, Eagle may finance the remaining balance of your
BEV.

2. If your franchisee entity is a partnership, corporation or other recognized legal entity, the Retail
Contract and Note must be guaranteed individually by all partners or shareholders. The Retail
Contract and Note must be secured by the assets of the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise.

3. If you are late on your payments, Ally and Eagle can charge a late penalty. In the case of
nonpayment or other default under the Retail Contract and Note, Ally and Eagle can require
immediate payment of all amounts due them, and can collect reasonable attorney fees and all costs
and expenses of collection.

4. The Retail Contract and Note require that you waive trial by jury and the right to interpose any
defense, set-off or counterclaim of any nature or description, a waiver of demand, presentment,
protest, notice of dishonor, notice of protest, notice of default and all suretyship defenses (Eagle),
and arbitration or trial by judge will take place on an individual basis without any form of class
action and the lender is not liable for specific performance for any loss, damages, delay or failure
to deliver equipment (Ally).

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR'’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEM, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, MCC is not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-opening Obligations

Before you open the Travelin’ Tom’s Business, we (or our affiliate or designees) will provide the
following assistance and services to you:

1. Agree to the Protected Territory in which you will operate your Travelin’ Tom’s Business
before you purchase the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. If you sign an Area Development Agreement,
we will designate the Development Territory before you sign the Area Development Agreement. If we
cannot agree on a territory location, we will not award you a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. Because
you do not have to locate a site from which to operate your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, we do not provide
you with assistance in doing so. You may open an office, but it is not required and does not need to be
approved by us. You must find a location to store the BEV and any Additional Equipment, which may be

at your residence if permitted (Franchise Agreement — Seetions3A-—and-3B)-Section 4).

2. Provide you with mandatory and discretionary specifications for the Travelin’ Tom’s
Business, including standards and suggested criteria for design, image, and branding of the BEV and
Additional Equipment (Franchise Agreement — Seetions3-and-9Section 13).

3. Identify products, supplies, and designated and approved suppliers that you must use to
develop and operate the Travelin’ Tom’s Business, and establish minimum standards and specifications
that you must satisfy while operating the Travelin’ Tom’s Business (Franchise Agreement — Sections 3-and
913).

4. Loan to you or make available to you on our website one copy of our Brand Manual. The
Brand Manual contains approximately 390 pages. The table of contents for the Brand Manual is attached
to this Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit EF (Franchise Agreement — Section 5D9.1).
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5. Provide an initial training program (Franchise Agreement — Section 5AS8.1).

6. Provide you with the BEV. We reserve the right to establish requirements regarding the
design, image, and branding of the BEV, and the right to control and approve all content of the BEV,
including the right to use the BEV to advertise our brand, products, and services (Franchise Agreement —
Seetions3-and-9Section 13.13).

7. Provide you with advice and guidance regarding your pricing policies in compliance with
the applicable laws. We have the right to recommend retail prices and prescribe minimum and/or maximum
retail prices for the products and/or services offered and sold at your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, as allowed
by law. (Franchise Agreement — Section 913.1).

We do not provide the above services to renewal franchisees and may not provide all of the above
services to franchisees that purchase existing Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses.

Schedule for Opening

We estimate that it will take two to 12 weeks after you sign the Franchise Agreement before you
open your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. The factors affecting this length of time include the time necessary
for you to obtain the BEV and equipment, schedule your initial training, and hire and train any necessary
employees.

Continuing Obligations

During the operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, we (or our affiliates or designees) will
provide the following assistance and services to you:

1. Provide advice regarding the Travelin’ Tom’s Business operations based on your reports
and our inspections, upon reasonable request. We also will guide you on standards, specifications, and
operating procedures, and methods that Travelin® Tom’s Businesses use; purchasing required and
authorized operating assets and other items and arranging for their distribution to you from us or the
suppliers; advertising and marketing materials and programs; employee training; and administrative,
bookkeeping, accounting, and inventory control procedures. We will guide you through the Brand Manual
in bulletins or other written materials, through the use of electronic media, telephone conferences, and/or
meetings at our offices or at your Travelin’ Tom’s Business (Franchise Agreement — Section 5€9.2).

2. Continue to loan to you or make available to you on our website one copy of the Brand
Manual, which may consist of electronic media, and/or written materials. We may modify the Brand
Manual periodically to reflect changes in System Standards (Franchise Agreement — Section 559.1).

3. Periodically modify System Standards, and those modifications may require you to invest
additional capital in the Travelin’ Tom’s Business and/or incur higher operating expenses (Franchise
Agreement — Seetton-9Sections 9.1 and 13.1).

4. License to you for your use confidential and proprietary information designed to assist you
in the operation of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business (Franchise Agreement — Section 717).

5. License the Marks to you (Franchise Agreement — Seetions-6A-and-6BSection 17).
100453833,
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6. Maintain and administer one or more websites to advertise, market, and promote Travelin’
Tom’s Businesses and the services and products offered (each a “Website”) (Franchise Agreement —
Section +6E9.3).

7. Provide for your BEV to come wrapped in vinyl containing the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee®
design and insignia. You are required to update the wrap every seven years, or sooner, if needed, at your
expense to comply with our current System Standards. All necessary updates, removal of vinyl, and
installation of vinyl must be performed at an authorized upfit facility. The current authorized upfit facility
is currently located in Florence, Kentucky (Franchise Agreement — Section 3E13.13).

8. Provide additional training to you for newly-hired personnel regarding the Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee brand and System Standards through our learning management system, refresher training courses,
and additional training or assistance that you need or request, subject to our discretion. We may require
you to pay additional fees for this training or assistance (Franchise Agreement — Section 58).

Optional Assistance

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we (or our affiliates or designees) may, but are not
required to, provide the following assistance and services to you:

1. Modify, update, or change the System, including the adoption and use of new or modified
trade names, trademarks, service marks, or copyrighted materials, new products, new menu items, new
equipment, or new techniques.

2. Maintain and administer the Brand Fund. We may dissolve the Brand Fund upon written
notice (Franchise Agreement — Section +0A-and10B11).

3. Hold periodic national or regional conferences to discuss business and operational issues
affecting Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees.

4. Reserve the right to establish minimum and maximum resale prices for use with multi-area
marketing programs and special price promotions as allowed by law.

Our affiliate, Kona Insurance, may offer a comprehensive property and casualty insurance program
to you.

Advertising
Brand Fund

We have established a Brand Fund for Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses. You must pay $1,000 per year
to the Brand Fund for each Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise you own: and $200 per year for each piece
of Additional Equipment you operate. This amount can be raised annually by up to 10% in our sole
discretion. The amount of the Brand Fund contribution may also be increased at any time upon super-
majority (75%) of the Ad Council (which is defined below) and upon 30 days’ notice to you of the increase.
The Brand Fund may be held in a separate bank account, commercial account, or savings account, but we
are not required to do so. The Brand Fund is administered by us or one of our affiliates, and we may use a
professional advertising agency or media buyer to assist us with the supervision and administration of the

Brand Fund. Seurcesforadvertising-materialsWe may ineludepreparation-in-house;-as-wel-asuse national

and/or regional advertising agencies_as the source for our advertising materials, or we may prepare them
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in-house. Your contribution to the Brand Fund will be in addition to all other advertising requirements set
out in this Item 11.

We may reimburse ourselves, our authorized representatives, or our affiliate from the Brand Fund
for administrative costs, independent audits, reasonable accounting, bookkeeping, reporting and legal
expenses, taxes, and all other reasonable direct or indirect expenses that may be incurred by us or our
authorized representatives and associated with the programs funded by the Brand Fund. We assume no
fiduciary duty to you or other direct or indirect liability or obligation to collect amounts due to the Brand
Fund or to maintain, direct, or administer the Brand Fund. Any unused funds in any calendar year will be
applied to the following year’s funds, and we reserve the right to contribute or loan additional funds to the
Brand Fund on any terms we deem reasonable. Because we do not have this fund audited, audited financial
statements are not available to Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees. We will provide to you each year an
annual accounting for the Brand Fund that shows how the Brand Fund proceeds have been spent for the
previous year upon written request (Franchise Agreement — Section +0B11). We do not guarantee that
advertising expenditures from the Brand Fund will benefit you or any other franchisee directly, on a pro
rata basis, or at all.

We are not obligated to spend any amount on advertising in the geographical area where you are
or will be located. We may use the Brand Fund for local, regional or national marketing, and any other
purpose to promote the Travelin’ Tom’s brand. We will not use the Brand Fund payments for advertising
that is principally a solicitation for the sale of Franchises, but we reserve the right to include a notation in
any advertisement indicating “Franchises Available” or similar phrasing.

During our most recent fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, the Brand Fund was spent as
follows: 77.69% on content creation, 5.89% with Google AdWords 15.90% for social media advertising,

0% on public relations, and 0.52% on print and email marketing. 2022 -we-did-net-spend-anyfundsfrom
the Brand-Fund-

Local Advertising

You are not required to advertise on a local basis as an individual Travelin’ Tom’s Business, and
you are not required to spend a minimum of your gross revenues on local marketing and promotion in your
Protected Territory. You are not required to participate in a local or regional advertising cooperative. We
may conduct market research and testing to determine consumer trends and the marketability of new food
products and services. You agree, at your sole cost and expense, to issue and offer such rebates, giveaways,
and other promotions in accordance with advertising programs established by us, and further agree to honor
the rebates, giveaways, and other promotions issued by other Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees under
any such program, so long as such compliance does not contravene any applicable law, rule, or regulation.
You will not create or issue any gift cards/certificates and will only sell gift cards/certificates that have been
issued or sponsored by us and which are accepted at all Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses, and you will not issue
coupons or discounts of any type except as approved by us. We may conduct market research and testing
to determine consumer trends and the marketability of new food products and services.

You will not participate in any crowdfunding campaigns or similar money-raising programs for
your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. You agree to cooperate by participating in our market research programs,
test marketing new food products and services in the Travelin’ Tom’s Business and providing us with timely
reports and other relevant information regarding such market research. You must conduct and participate
in promotional campaigns (“Promotions”) which we may periodically require in the Brand Manual, and
you must conduct and participate in those Promotions in accordance with the policies and provisions set
forth in the Brand Manual. This may include requiring you to offer free products to customers on certain
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days or providing coupons (not to exceed $500 per year unless authorized by the Ad Council). The value
of Promotions you must offer may be increased at any time upon super-majority (75%) of the Ad Council
and upon 30 days’ notice to you of the increase, but will not exceed more than $1,500 per year. If we
require you to conduct and participate in any Promotion, we reserve the right (but we are not required) to
use a portion of the Brand Fund to defray a portion of any costs attributable to the Promotions (Franchise
Agreement — Section +8B11). If we exercise this right, we will use the Brand Fund on a pro rata basis.

It is a material breach of the Franchise Agreement to use other marketing material, logos, and our
Marks without obtaining our prior written approval. If you desire to use your own advertising materials,
you must obtain our prior approval, which may be granted or denied in our sole discretion. We will review
your request and we will respond in writing within 30 days from the date we receive all requested
information. Our failure to notify you in the specified time frame will be deemed a disapproval of your
request. Use of logos, Marks, and other name identification materials must be consistent with our approved
standards (Franchise Agreement — Section 10B-and1+6D12.4).

System Website

We have established a website for Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses (“System Website”). Additionally,
we reserve the right to develop a local website or local pages on the System Website. If you wish to
advertise online, you must follow our online policy, which is contained in our Brand Manual. Our online
policy may change as technology and the internet changes. Under our online policy, we may retain the sole
right to market on the internet, including all use of websites, domain names, advertising, and co-branding
arrangements. We may restrict your use of social media. We may prohibit you from independently
marketing on the internet, or using any domain name, address, locator, link, metatag, or search technique
with words or symbols similar to the Marks. We intend that any franchisee website will be accessed only
through our home page. As long as we maintain a System Website, we will have the right to use the Brand
Fund assets to develop, maintain, and update the System Website.

We are only required to reference your Travelin’ Tom’s Business on the System Website while you
are in full compliance with your Franchise Agreement and all System Standards. If you are in default of
any obligation under the Franchise Agreement or System Standards, then we may temporarily remove
references to your Travelin’ Tom’s Business from the System Website until you fully cure the subject
default(s) (Franchise Agreement — Section +6E9.3).

Ad Council

We intend to create a brand advisory board (“Ad Council”) to help determine the type of advertising
(television, radio, billboard, internet, or other medium) we will use. Members of the Ad Council would
consist of franchisees and at least one franchisor representative. We plan to have franchisees serve two-
year terms. In order to be chosen for the Ad Council, the franchisee must be in good standing, operate
multiple Franchises, and be actively involved in the betterment of the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee System.
Your Brand Fund Contributions and costs to participate in Promotions may be increased or decreased at
any time upon super-majority (75%) approval of the Ad Council, upon 30 days’ notice to you. We have
the power to change the Ad Council, the selection process, and the members at any time. We also have the
power to dissolve the Ad Council.

E-Lead Program

We operate a digital marketing service (“E-Lead Program’) where we manage the placement of
our franchisees’ digital advertisements. Franchisees that enroll in our E-Lead Program pay an annual, non-
refundable administrative fee of either $250 (for E-Lead Lite) or $500 (for E-Lead Plus), plus the actual
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costs of the digital advertisements. The E-Lead Program is currently optional, but we reserve the right to
make it mandatory in the future upon 60 days’ written notice.

Computer System

You must have regular access to a computer that is capable of connecting to the internet for the
operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. You may use a computer that you own. If you choose to
purchase a computer, we estimate the cost to range up to $1,000. You are responsible for implementing
and maintaining all necessary cybersecurity measures, including anti-virus protection, for your computer
system to protect against unauthorized access and data breaches, in compliance with applicable laws and
our guidelines. You may need to buy and/or license third-party software such as QuickBooks and Microsoft
Office to use in the operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business. You must use the KonaOS software. We
reserve the right to specify required computer hardware or software and to specify other computer-related
standards in the future. We may require you to purchase other point-of-sales hardware and/or software
(“POS System”) in the future. Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee will not have independent access to the information
generated by or stored in your computer, but you are required to provide sales and other reports that we
require in the Brand Manual. You must periodically check your email and the portion of our website
devoted to franchise owners. We reserve the right to market and sell over the internet. You must use any
payment vendors and methods that we determine.

We need not provide you with any ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades, updates, or support for
the Computer System (Franchise Agreement — Section 3€14.1). You must arrange for installation,
maintenance, and support of the Computer System at your cost. There are no limitations in the Franchise
Agreement regarding the costs of such required support, maintenance, repairs, or upgrades relating to the
Computer System. While we do not require you to purchase a computer, you may need to upgrade your
hardware and/or software in order to utilize the computerized system as technological advances require,
which may include a POS System. You will be responsible for the cost of such upgrades, which we estimate
to be between $0 and $250 annually.

Training
Initial Training

Your Managing Owner (defined in Item 15) and any designated manager or representative that we
require must complete the training program to our reasonable satisfaction before you open your Travelin’
Tom’s Business. You will be enrolled in the initial training program which we call “Keffee keHege>Tom’s
Coffee Academy.” We provide initial training at no cost for one attendee. We will pay for hotel and airfare
for one attendee for our initial training program in Florence, Kentucky; however, you are responsible for
all other expenses to attend the initial training program, including any ground transportation, food and
similar expenses. Franchisees that purchase existing Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchises as a result of a
transfer are also required to attend KeffeekoHegeTom’s Coffee Academy and are responsible for their own
travel and hotel expenses. Initial training classes are held whenever necessary to train new franchisees.
You will not receive any compensation or reimbursement for services or expenses for participation in the
initial training program. You are responsible for all expenses for any additional attendees to attend any
training program, including lodging, transportation, food, and similar expenses. We plan to provide the
training listed in the table below. The hours presented for each subject are estimates and may change as
our training program continues to evolve.
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TRAINING PROGRAM

Hours of Hours of
Subject - On-The-Job Location
Classroom Training .
Training
. . Our corporate office in
BEV & Equipment Operation 04 4 Florence, Kentucky
. . Our corporate office in
BEV & Equipment Maintenance 02 42 Florence, Kentucky
Field Sales and Customer Service 08 8124 Our corporate office in
Florence, Kentucky
TOTAL HOURS 014 162010

Notes:

1. The training may be less than the times indicated above depending on the number and experience
of the attendees. Training includes actual operation of a BEV under our supervision. The
instructional materials for the training program consist of the BEV and its equipment, manufacturer
brochures and operational manuals, and the Brand Manual.

2. Tony Lamb, our CEO, President, Secretary and Board Member, currently oversees our training

program to which he brings more than 25 years of management experience. Mr. Lamb also brings
his experience as the Chief Executive Officer, President and Secretary, and member of the Board
of Directors of Affiliate Franchisor since 2008. Other training staff will include manager-level
individuals who have at least two years of experience in the subject matters that they teach.

Ongoing Training

We may require that you, designated managers, and other employees periodically attend system

wide refresher or additional training courses. Some of these courses may be optional, while others may be
required. If you appoint a new designated manager, that person must attend and successfully complete our
initial training program before assuming responsibility for the management of your Travelin’® Tom’s
Business. If we conduct an inspection of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business and determine you are not
operating in compliance with the Franchise Agreement or our System Standards, we may require you to
temporarily close your Travelin’ Tom’s Business, and we may require that you attend remedial training that
addresses your operational deficiencies and pass our inspection before reopening. You may also request
that we provide additional training (either at corporate headquarters or at your Travelin’ Tom’s Business).
You are responsible for costs and expenses for all training attendees. We may charge a fee for providing
training and may require you to reimburse us for our associated costs and expenses.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Franchise Agreement

The Franchise Agreement for your Travelin’ Tom’s Business grants you an exclusive territory.

Your Protected Territory will be based on the geographic area and population properties within that area
and other relevant demographic characteristics. We will generally grant only one license to a franchisee
for any area with a population up to 100,000. We will use the population as listed on zip-codes.com, which
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is derived from known delivery information, household occupancy rates, as well as any other sources that
we believe are reliable for determining the current population in and around your Protected Territory. In
certain densely populated metropolitan areas, a territory may be considerably smaller, while franchisees
operating in less densely populated urban areas may have significantly larger areas. If the population of
your Protected Territory increases by more than 25%, we may reduce the size of your Protected Territory
to 100,000 people unless you purchase an additional BEV.

You will operate a single Travelin® Tom’s Business and a single BEV within the Protected
Territory identified in the Franchise Agreement. You are not restricted from the amount of Additional
Equipment that you may operate in your Protected Territory. Your Protected Territory will be identified
in an exhibit to your Franchise Agreement. The boundaries of your Protected Territory will coincide with
the boundaries of one or more adjacent zip codes. You will be permitted to engage in direct advertising
and solicitation of clients only within the boundaries of your Protected Territory unless we approve
otherwise. Other than as described below, while the Franchise Agreement is in effect and you are not in
default, we and our affiliate will not, in your Protected Territory, operate a company-owned unit or grant a
franchise for a similar or competitive business. You will only have the right to operate the Travelin’ Tom’s
Business in your Protected Territory under the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement, and we
reserve all other rights to ourselves and our affiliate. You may not operate, solicit, or accept orders outside
your Protected Territory unless we allow otherwise in our sole discretion. We have no plans to allow
franchisees to solicit or accept orders outside of their Protected Territory other than in an open territory on
a case-by-case basis.

We reserve all rights not expressly granted in the Franchise Agreement. Affiliate Franchisor’s
franchisees may operate Kona Ice franchises in your Protected Territory. We or our affiliate may own,
operate, or authorize others to own or operate Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses or any other form of Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee’s business outside your Protected Territory, including co-branding activities, and may
operate other kinds of businesses under other marks within your Protected Territory. We and our affiliate
may conduct, or authorize others to conduct, any form of business at any location selling any type of
product or service not offered under the Marks. We reserve the right to purchase or be purchased by, or
merge or combine with, to convert to the System, or be converted into a new system or chain with any
business, whether franchised or corporately owned, including a business that competes directly with your
Travelin® Tom’s Business, wherever located, provided that in such situations the newly acquired
business(es) may not operate under the Marks inside of your Protected Area; and to implement multi-area
marketing programs which may allow us or others to solicit or sell to customers anywhere. We reserve
the right to issue mandatory policies to coordinate such multi-area marketing programs.

Although we have not done so, we and our affiliate may sell products under the Marks within and
outside your Protected Territory through any method of distribution other than through a dedicated
Travelin” Tom’s Business, including sales through such channels of distribution as the internet, mail order
sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, wholesalers, unrelated retail outlets or other
distribution outlets (together, “Alternative Distribution Channels”). You may not use Alternative
Distribution Channels to make sales outside or inside your Protected Territory and you will receive no
compensation for our sales through Alternative Distribution Channels except as described in the following
paragraph.

If we engage in electronic commerce through the internet, or sell through any other Alternative
Distribution Channel, and we receive orders for any products or services calling for delivery or
performance in your Protected Territory, then we will offer the order to you at the price we establish. If
you choose not to fulfill the order or are unable to do so, then we, our affiliate, or a third party we designate
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(including another Travelin’ Tom’s Business) may fulfill the order, and you will be entitled to no
compensation in connection with the sale.

Your Travelin’ Tom’s Business and Protected Territory do not depend upon obtaining any certain
sales quotas, sales goals, or market penetration. You must not relocate the Travelin® Tom’s Business
without obtaining our written consent of the relocation. If you wish to purchase an additional Travelin’
Tom'’s Business, you must apply to us, and we may offer an additional Franchise to you.

If you wish to revise, amend, or relocate your Protected Territory, you must apply to us to do so,
and we may, but are not required, to grant your request. We may condition our approval of such request
on any terms or conditions which we deem reasonable, including, but not limited to, requiring you to pay
an Initial Territory Adjustment Fee or a Territory Relocation Fee of $2,500 as discussed in Item 6.

Exeeptas-deseribed-belowforkonaleefranchisees;weWe do not grant a right of first refusal to

franchisees to purchase new or existing Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses, but we do allow you to reserve
adjacent territories by signing the Additional Franchise Reservation Agreement and paying the Reservation
Fee._We may also allow certain franchisees to open Fixed Location Businesses in their Protected Territory.

You do not receive the right to acquire additional Travelin’ Tom’s Franchises unless you purchase
the right in your Area Development Agreement. You are not given a right of first refusal on the sale of
existing Travelin’ Tom’s Franchises.

Area Development Agreement

You are assigned a Development Territory in the Area Development Agreement. You must
develop a designated number of Travelin” Tom’s Franchises in the Development Territory. The size of the
Development Territory will depend on the number of Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses to be developed, the
demographics of the territory, the population and other factors. If you are a Kona Ice franchisee that
operates multiple Kona Ice franchised businesses then the size of the Development Territory will typically
be the same as the territories under your Kona Ice franchise agreements. The size of the Development
Territory may be a single or multi-city area, single county area or some other area, and will be described in
Attachment A of your Area Development Agreement. We will determine the Development Territory before
you sign the Area Development Agreement based on various market and economic factors. In certain
densely populated metropolitan areas, a Development Territory may be small if it has a high population

density, while Development Territories in less densely populated urban areas may have significantly larger
areas.

The Development Territory will be an exclusive territory for the development of Travelin’ Tom’s
Franchises during the term of the Area Development Agreement so long as you are in compliance with the
Area Development Agreement and each franchise agreement with us and our affiliates. This exclusivity
grants you the exclusive rights to open a certain number of Franchises in the Development Territory. The
rights granted under the Area Development Agreement relate only to the development of the Travelin’
Tom'’s Franchises identified in the Area Development Agreement. So long as you are in compliance with
the Area Development Agreement, we will not establish or franchise others to establish another Travelin’
Tom'’s Business within your Development Territory during the term of the Area Development Agreement.
If you are also a Kona Ice franchisee and the protected territory of your Kona Ice franchised business
overlaps with or is located inside the Development Territory, we may remove those portions of your
Development Territory if you transfer your Kona Ice franchised business or otherwise lose the protected
territory of your Kona Ice franchised business.
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We may conduct any other type of activities within your Development Territory that we are
permitted to conduct under the Franchise Agreement. The Development Territory will terminate upon the
earlier of completion of the Development Schedule or the termination of the Area Development Agreement.
After the termination or expiration of the Area Development Agreement, the only territorial protections that
you will receive upon termination will be those under each individual franchise agreement.

Any failure to adhere to the Development Schedule will constitute a material event of default under
the Area Development Agreement and we may: (i) terminate the Area Development Agreement; (ii) reduce
the area of the Development Territory; (iii) permit you to extend the Development Schedule; or (iv) pursue
any other remedy we may have at law or in equity, including, but not limited to, a suit for non-performance.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

The Marks and the System are owned by us. No agreement significantly limits our right to use or
license the Marks in any manner material to the in any manner material to the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee
Franchise. You may also use other future trademarks, service marks, and logos we approve to identify your
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. We have registrations for the following trademarks with the United
States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”):

Mark Registration No. | Registration Date Register
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE TRUCK 6,694,159 April 5, 2022 Principal
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S 6,701,459 April 12,2022 Principal
TRAVELIN’ TOM'S COFFEE TRUCK 6,914,042 November 29, 2022 Principal
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S 6,914,041 November 29, 2022 Principal
7,265,989 January 9, 2024 Principal
100153833
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We have applied for registrations for the following trademarks with the USPTO:

Mark b, Filing Date Status
98.038.264 June 12,2023 | bending onthe
Principal Register
98.038.282 June 12, 2023 Pending on the

Principal Register

TOMS-COEEEETRUCKTILT ENERGY

90,646,26197.870.8
55

April $4;20213,

[}
[\
w

Pending on the
Principal Register
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Mark Serial No. Filing Date Status
56.93 June+4-April 3, Pending on the
97:456:934870.887 0232022 Principal Register
TILT
NITRO ENERGY
Pending on the
98,017,089 May 28, 2023 Pendding on the
Principal Register
We claim common law rights in the following trademark:
Mark Serial No. Filing Date Status
. Not NAANot applicable Common Law
applicable
100153833
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We do not have federal registrations for the principal trademarktrademarks in the two tables above
(serial numbers 90;646;26+-ard98.,038.264, 98.038.282, 97,456;934870.855, 97.870.887, 98,017,089, and
the common law trademark). Therefore, these trademarks do not have the same legal benefits and rights as
a federally registered trademark. If our right to use any of these Marks is challenged, you may have to
change to an alternative trademark, which may increase yourexpenses.

There are no effective adverse material determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and
Appeal Board or the trademark administrator of any state, or any court, and no pending infringement,
opposition or cancellation proceedings or material litigation involving the Marks. All required affidavits
and renewals have been filed.

No agreement significantly limits our right to use or license the Marks in any manner material to
the Travelin” Tom’s Business. We do not know of any superior prior rights or infringing uses that could
materially affect your use of the trademarks. You must follow our rules when using the Marks. You cannot
use our name or Marks as part of a corporate name or with modifying words, designs, or symbols unless
you receive our prior written consent. You must indicate to the public in any contract, advertisement, and
with a conspicuous sign in your BEV that you are an independently owned and operated licensed franchisee
of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC. You may not use the Marks in the sale of unauthorized services or
products or in any manner we do not authorize. You may not use the Marks in any advertising for the
transfer, sale, or other disposition of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business or any interest in the Franchise. All
rights and goodwill from the use of the Marks accrue to us.

We will defend you against any claim brought against you by a third party that your use of the
Marks in accordance with the Franchise Agreement infringes upon that party’s intellectual property rights.
We may require your assistance, but you are not permitted to control any proceeding or litigation relating
to our Marks. We have no obligation to pursue any infringing users of our Marks. If we learn of an
infringing user, we may take any action appropriate we deem appropriate, but we are not required to take
any action if we do not feel it is warranted. You must notify us within three days if you learn that any party
is using the Marks or a trademark that is confusingly similar to the Marks. We have the sole discretion to
take such action as we deem appropriate to exclusively control any litigation or administrative proceeding
involving a trademark licensed by us to you.

If it becomes advisable at any time, in our sole discretion, for us and/or you to modify or discontinue
using any Mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute trademarks or service marks, you must
comply with our directions within a reasonable time after receiving notice. We will not reimburse you for
your direct expenses of changing signage, for any loss of revenue, or other indirect expenses due to any
modified or discontinued Mark, or for your expenses of promoting a modified or substituted trademark or
service mark.

Y ou must not directly or indirectly contest our right to the Marks. We may acquire, develop, and
use additional marks not listed here, and may make those marks available for your use and for use by other
franchisees.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

The information in the Brand Manual is proprietary and is protected by copyright and other laws.
The designs contained in the Marks, the layout of our advertising materials, the content and format of our
products, and any other writings and recordings in print or electronic form are also protected by copyright
and other laws. Although we have not applied for copyright registration for the Brand Manual, our
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advertising materials, the content and format of our products or any other writings and recordings, we claim
common law and federal copyrights in these items. We grant you the right to use this proprietary and
copyrighted information (“Copyrighted Works™”) for your operation of your Travelin® Tom’s Coffee
Franchise, but such copyrights remain our sole property.

There are no determinations in effect that significantly limit our rights to use or license others to
use the patents in any manner material to the franchise by the USPTO, the Patent Trial And Appeal Board,
or the patent administrator of any state or any court, nor any pending interference, opposition or cancellation
proceeding or litigation involving the patent.

We will defend you against any claim brought against you by a third party that your use of our
patent in accordance with the Franchise Agreement that infringes upon that party’s intellectual property
rights. We may require your assistance, but you are not permitted to control any proceeding or litigation
relating to our patent. We have no obligation to pursue any infringing users of our patent. If we learn of
an infringing user, we may take any action appropriate we deem appropriate, but we are not required to take
any action if we do not feel it is warranted. You must notify us within three days if you learn that any
unauthorized party is using the patent. We have the sole discretion to take such action as we deem
appropriate to exclusively control any litigation or administrative proceeding involving the patents. We are
not required to participate in your defense nor are we required to indemnify you for expenses or damages
in a proceeding involving a patent, patent application, or copyright licensed to you. You must also agree
not to contest our interest in these or our other trade secrets. If we decide to add, modify, or discontinue
the use of an item or process covered by a patent or copyright, you must also do so.

We claim copyrights in the Brand Manual, which contains trade secrets, advertising and marketing
materials, the Website, and similar items used in operating a Travelin® Tom’s Business. We have not
registered these copyrights with the United States Registrar of Copyrights, but need not do so at this time
to protect them. You may use these items only as we specify while operating your Travelin’ Tom’s
Business (and must stop using them if we so direct you).

There are no effective adverse determinations of the USPTO, the Copyright Office (Library of
Congress), or any court regarding the copyrighted materials. No agreement limits our right to use or allow
others to use the copyrighted materials. We do not actually know of any infringing uses of our copyrights
that could materially affect your use of the copyrighted materials in any state. We need not protect or
defend copyrights, although we intend to do so if in the System’s best interests. We may control any action
we choose to bring, even if you voluntarily bring the matter to our attention. We need not participate in
your defense and/or indemnify you for damages or expenses in a proceeding involving a copyright.

Our Brand Manual, passwords, and other materials contain our confidential information (some of
which constitutes trade secrets under applicable law). This information includes site selection criteria;
training and operations materials; methods, formats, specifications, standards, systems, procedures, sales
and marketing techniques, knowledge, and experience used in developing and operating Travelin’ Tom’s
Businesses; marketing and advertising programs for Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses; any computer software
or similar technology that is proprietary to us or the System; knowledge of, specifications for, and suppliers
of operating assets and other products and supplies; and knowledge of the operating results and financial
performance of Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses other than your Travelin’ Tom’s Business.

All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials concerning a Travelin’® Tom’s Business, whether or
not they are protected intellectual property and whether created by or for you or your owners or employees,
must be promptly disclosed to us and will be deemed to be our sole and exclusive property, part of the
System, and works-made-for-hire for our use. If any item does not qualify as a “work-made-for-hire” for

100453833
{00169511.DOCX. } 44
[26232024 FDD v1F]



us, you must assign ownership of that item, and all related rights to that item, to us and must take whatever
action, including executing an assignment agreement or other documents, that we request to show our
ownership or to help us obtain intellectual property rights in the subject item(s).

You may not use our confidential information in an unauthorized manner. You must take
reasonable steps to prevent its improper disclosure to others and use non-disclosure and non-competition
agreements with those having access to such information. We may regulate the form of confidentiality
agreement that you use and must be included as a third-party beneficiary with independent enforcement
rights in that agreement. No patents or patents pending are material to us at this time.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You must own your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise through a legal entity. The sole purpose of
your legal entity will be the development and operation of a Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise. The
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise shall be managed by one of your owners who is a natural person with at
least a 51% ownership interest and voting power in the entity (“Managing Owner”). During the term of the
Franchise Agreement, the Managing Owner shall directly supervise and participate in the day-to-day
operation of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business.

Because franchisees who have actually been owner/operators in the past have generally proven to
have greater success than passive owners, we require you or Managing Owner to be an active owner and
operator of your Travelin’ Tom’s Business for at least the first 60 days that you operate as a Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee franchisee.

Under certain circumstances, after the first 60 days of operation, we may allow you to appoint a
designated manager (“Designated Manager”) who has been approved by us, to run the day-to-day
operations of the Travelin® Tom’s Business. The Designated Manager must successfully complete our
Keoffee kKoHegeTom’s Coffee Academy training program (See Item 11). The Designated Manager need not
have an ownership interest in the Travelin’ Tom’s Business. If you replace a Designated Manager for any
reason, the new Designated Manager must satisfactorily complete our KeffeeelegeTom’s Coffee
Academy training program at your own expense.

Any Designated Manager and any officer that does not own equity in the Franchisee entity must
sign the “System Protection Agreement,” the form of which is attached to this Franchise Disclosure
Document in Exhibit HI. All of your employees, independent contractors, agents, or representatives that
may have access to our confidential information must sign a “Confidentiality Agreement” (unless they
already signed a System Protection Agreement), the current form of which is attached to this Franchise
Disclosure Document in Exhibit HI. Each direct and indirect owner (i.e., each person holding a direct or
indirect ownership interest in your entity) of the Franchisee entity must sign an~Ownersa “Franchise Owner
Agreement,” the form of which is attached to the Franchise Agreement as Attachment C. We also require
that the spouses of the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise owners sign the OwsnersFranchise Owner
Agreement. The OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement extends the obligations of the Franchise Agreement
to each owner and their spouse with each owner and spouse bound to and liable for the terms of the
Franchise Agreement.

400153833
{00169511.DOCX. } 45
[26232024 FDD v1F]




ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer for sale only products and services that have been approved and specified by us in
the Brand Manual and any updates that are periodically incorporated in the Brand Manual. You must sell
or offer for sale all types of products and services specified by us. You may not offer for sale any products
or services not specifically approved by us in writing. We reserve the right to establish minimum and
maximum resale prices for use with multi-area marketing programs and special price promotions as allowed
by law. There are no limitations on our rights to make changes to the required products and services offered
by you.

Our online policy may completely prohibit you from any use of the Marks in social networking
sites or other online use. You may not sell products through other channels of distribution such as

wholesale, internet or mail order sales.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Section in
Franchise
Provision Agreement/Additional Summary
Franchise Reservation
Agreement
(a) Length of the Franchise term Section H25.1/Not Ten years.
Applicable
(b) Renewal or extension of the Section +4AS5.1/Not If you are in good standing and you meet
term Applicable other requirements, you may apply for two
successive terms of ten years.
(c¢) Requirements for Franchisee to SectionsH4A The term “renewal” refers to extending our
renew or extend &14BSection 5.2/Not | franchise relationship at the end of your
Applicable initial term and any other renewal or
extension of the initial term. Your successor
franchise rights permit you to remain as a
Franchise after the initial term of your
Franchise Agreement expires.  Written
notice must be provided and you must be
fully compliant with the Franchise
Agreement. You must sign our then-current
Franchise = Agreement and ancillary
documents for the successor term, and this
new franchise agreement may have
materially different terms and conditions
(including, e.g., higher royalty and
advertising  contributions)  from  the
Franchise Agreement that covered your
100453833,
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Section in

Franchise
Provision Agreement/Additional Summary
Franchise Reservation
Agreement
original term. You will be required to pay
the highest tier of royalty payment under the
new franchise agreement (meaning that you
will not be able to take advantage of any
step-up royalty schedules that may be
offered to new franchisees).
(d) Termination by Franchisee Section +5A23/Not You may terminate the Franchise Agreement
Applicable if you are in compliance with it and we are in
material breach, and we fail to cure that
breach within 3660 days of receiving written
notice, subject to applicable state law.
(e) Termination by franchisor Not Applicable/Not Not Applicable.
without cause Applicable

(f) Termination by franchisor with

cause

Section +5B24/Section 8

We can terminate upon, among other things,
certain  violations of the Franchise
Agreement by you. You will be in default
under the Franchise Agreement and the
Additional Franchise Reservation
Agreement if any other franchise agreement
or other agreement between you or your
affiliates and us or any of our affiliates is
terminated.

(g) “Cause” defined - curable

defaults

Section +5B24/Not
Applicable

You have three days to cure health, safety, or
sanitation law violations or failure to operate
safely. You have ten days to cure monetary
defaults. You have 30 days to cure the
operational defaults listed in Section
145B24.3 of the Franchise Agreement: failure
to satisfactorily complete the initial training
program, or failure to comply with System
Standards.

(h) “Cause” defined - non-curable

defaults

Seetion15BSections
24.1 and
24.2/Section 8

Non-curable defaults: the defaults listed in
Seetion—15BSections 24.1 and 24.2 of the
Franchise Agreement, including
misrepresentation, failure to open within
three months of signing the Franchise
Agreement, failure to operate the Travelin’
Tom’s Business for a period of 12
consecutive months, transfer violation,
conviction or pleaded no contest to a felony,
failure to maintain insurance, commit an
action or inaction to adversely affect the
System, unauthorized use or disclosure of
any Confidential Information, failure to cure
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement/Additional
Franchise Reservation
Agreement

Summary

any health, safety or sanitation law violations
within three days, failure to cure any other
law violation within 48 hours, failure to pay
taxes, failure to comply with the Franchise
Agreement on three or more occasions
within 12 consecutive months, your
Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise is
assigned or seized, you or your owners
assets, property or interests are blocked
related to terrorist activities, you have three
or more insufficient funds or returned checks
in any one calendar year, you indicate in
writing your intention to consummate any of
the preceding actions, a termination of any
other agreement between you or your
affiliates and us or any of our affiliates, or
your Travelin’ Tom’s Business is cited for
improper operation three or more times
within any calendar year.

(i) Franchisee’s obligations on

termination/non-renewal

Seetion16Sections18.3
and 25/Not Applicable

Obligations include ceasing operating the
Travelin’ Tom’s Business; ceasing use of all
confidential information, trade secrets and
trademarks; delivering property containing
the trademarks; cancelling assumed similar
name registrations; payment of outstanding
amounts and damages; return of Brand
Manual; assignment of phone numbers to us;
and compliance with all other covenants.

(j) Assignment of contract by

franchisor

Section +3A15/Section 7

No restriction on our right to assign.

(k) “Transfer” by Franchisee -

definition

Section +3B16.1/Not
Applicable

Includes any voluntary, involuntary, direct,
or indirect assignment, sale, gift, exchange,
grant of a security interest, or change of
ownership in you (if you are an entity), the
BEV, Franchise Agreement, the Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee Franchise or any interest in the
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise.

(1) Franchisor’s approval of

transfer by Franchisee

Sections 3B
&13€16.1/Not
Applicable

We have the right to approve all transfers,
including the transfer of Additional
Equipment.

(m) Conditions for franchisor’s

Section +3€16.3/Not

Our requirements for approving the transfer

approval of transfer Applicable of this Franchise Agreement include, but are
not limited to: full compliance with the
Franchise Agreement; all amounts paid in
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement/Additional
Franchise Reservation
Agreement

Summary

full; completion of training; transfer fee paid;
agreement of transferee to all terms of
Franchise Agreement; the execution of other
possible documents including a general
release; the transferee meets certain
suitability requirements and passes our
training program; the transferee and its
owners or affiliates and family members are
not involved in a competitive business; the
transferee agrees to remodel the BEV and
any Additional Equipment; and we will be
reimbursed for the fees of our broker or other
placement agent. You must also fully de-
identify your BEV if you wish to transfer it
to any party besides us or another franchisee.

(n) Franchisor’s right of first refusal
to acquire Franchisee’s business

Section +3G16.2/Not
Applicable

We have 30 days to match any offer for your
Travelin’ Tom’s Business or your BEV.

(o) Franchisor’s right to purchase
Franchisee’s business

Section +6E26/Not
Applicable

We may, but are not required to, purchase
your Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise,
inventory, BEV, or equipment at fair market
value if your Travelin® Tom’s Coffee
Franchise is terminated for any reason by
giving you written notice of our intent to
exercise this option within 30 days after the
date of termination or expiration of the
Franchise Agreement.

(p) Death or disability of
Franchisee

Section $3E16.5/Not
Applicable

Franchisee must be a legal entity. Upon the
Managing Owner’s death or disability, the
Managing Owner’s interest must be assigned
to a qualified party within 90 days of death
or disability of the Managing Owner or the
Franchise Agreement may be terminated.

(q) Non-competition covenants
during the term of the Franchise

Section 818.2/Not
Applicable

Subject to applicable state law, neither you,
your principal owners, nor any immediate
family members of you or your principal
owners may participate in a competitive
business, have no owning interest in, loan
money to, or perform services for a
competitive business anywhere. You may
not interfere with us, our affiliates, or any
other Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise.

(r) Non-competition covenants
after the Franchise is terminated
or expires

Section +6B18.3/Not
Applicable

Owners cannot have an interest in, own,
manage, operate, finance, control, or
participate in any competitive business
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement/Additional
Franchise Reservation
Agreement

Summary

within a 20-mile radius from any Travelin’
Tom’s Business, whether owned by us or a
franchisee, that is operating or under
development, for two years. Owners may
not solicit any customer of Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee or any Travelin® Tom’s Coffee
Franchise for two years, subject to applicable
state law.

(s) Modification of the agreement

Seetion+8LESections 9.1
and 29.9

No modifications of the Franchise
Agreement during the term unless agreed to
in writing, but the Brand Manual is subject
to change at any time in our discretion.
Modifications of the Franchise Agreement
are permitted on renewal.

(t) Integration/merger clause

Section+8N/Seetion
29.9

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement
and other related written agreements are
binding (subject to state, FTC, or federal
law). Any representations or promises
outside of this Franchise Disclosure
Document and Franchise Agreement may
not be enforceable.

(u) Dispute resolution by arbitration
or mediation

Sections18E-&
+8GSection 27/Not
Applicable

Except for certain claims, all disputes must
be mediated and arbitrated in the principal
city closest to our principal place of business
(currently Florence, Kentucky), subject to
applicable state law.

(v) Choice of forum

Section +8127.4/Section
9

All disputes must be mediated, arbitrated,
and if applicable, litigated in the principal
city closest to our principal place of business
(currently Florence, Kentucky), subject to
applicable state law.

(w) Choice of law

Section +8H29.1/Section
9

Kentucky law, except for The Kentucky
Business Opportunity Investment Act
applies, subject to applicable state law.
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This table lists certain important provisions of the development agreement and related

agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure

document.
Section in
Provision Area Development Summary

Agreement

a. Length of the franchise term 2 Until the expiration or termination of the Area

Development Agreement.
b. Renewal or extension Not applicable Not applicable.
c. Requirements for area developer to Not applicable Not applicable.

renew or extend

d. Termination by area developer

Not applicable

You may terminate under any grounds

permitted by law.

franchisor

e. Termination by franchisor without Not applicable Not applicable.
cause
f. Termination by franchisor with Section 8 We can terminate if you or any of your
cause affiliates materially default under the Area
Development Agreement, any individual
Franchise Agreement or any other agreement
with us or our affiliates, or if you fail to comply
with the Development Schedule.
g. “Cause” defined — curable defaults Not applicable Not applicable.
h. “Cause” defined — non-curable Section 8 If you default on the Area Development
defaults Agreement or any individual Franchise
Agreement, or any other agreement with us or
our affiliates, or if you fail to comply with the
Development Schedule.
i. Area Developer’s obligations on Section 8 Obligations include the payment of all amounts
termination/non-renewal due. You remain bound by all Franchise
Agreements.
j. Assignment of contract by Section 9.1 No restrictions on our right to assign the Area

Development Agreement.

k. “Transfer” by area developer —
definition

Not applicable

Not applicable.

1. Franchisor approval of transfer by

Sections 8.2 and 9.2

You may not assign the Area Development

area developer

Agreement or any rights to the Development
Territory unless in the event of death or
disability of your Responsible Owner.

m. Conditions for franchisor approval

Not applicable

Not applicable.

of transfer

n. Franchisor’s right of first refusal to

Not applicable

Not applicable

acquire area developer’s business

0. Franchisor’s option to purchase
area developer’s business

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Section in
Provision Area Development Summary
Agreement
p. Death or disability of area Section 8.2 Upon death or disability, you may assign the
developer Area Development Agreement within 180 days.

If not assigned within 180 days, the Area
Development Agreement automatically
terminates.

g. Non-competition covenants during Not applicable Not applicable.

the term of the franchise

r. _Non-competition covenants after Not applicable Not applicable.

the franchise is terminated or
expires

s. Modification of agreement Section 11 No modifications of the Area Development
Agreement unless agreed to in writing.

t. Integration/merger clause Section 11 Only the terms of the Area Development
Agreement are binding (subject to state law).
Any representations or promises outside of this
Disclosure Document and the Area
Development Agreement may not be
enforceable.

u._Dispute resolution by arbitration or Section 17 Except for certain claims, all disputes must be

mediation mediated and arbitrated in the principal city
closest to our principal place of business
(currently Florence, Kentucky).

v. Choice of forum Section 17 All disputes must be mediated, arbitrated, and
if applicable, litigated in the principal city
closest to our principal place of business
(currently Florence, Kentucky). subject to
applicable state law.

w. Choice of law Section 17 Kentucky law, except for The Kentucky
Business Opportunity Investment Act applies,
subject to applicable state law.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figures to promote the Franchise.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for
the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that which is included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor
provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements

100453833
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the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance
at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past
financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees
or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other
financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the
franchisor’s management by contacting Tony Lamb, 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence, Kentucky 41042

and 1-800-566-2423, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1

System-wide Outlet Summary

For Years 2020—2021 - 20232022

Outlet Type Year Sgrliti)eftihf gleear Outlettshe;t;[{};eafnd aif Net Change

20212620 0 0815 0+15

Franchised 2022202+ 015 1550 +1535
20222023 1550 50139 +3589
20212620 02 26 +24

Company-Owned 20222021 26 63 +4-3
20222023 63 3 30
20212620 02 1721 +1+719

Total Outlets 2020262+ 01 2153 1932
20222023 2153 53142 +3289

Table No. 2

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)

For Years 2020—2021 - 20232022

State Year Number of Transfers
Georgia 2021 0
2022 0
2023 1
Totals 20212620 0
202+ 9
2022 0
2023 1
00453833
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Status of Franchised Outlets

Table No. 3

For Years 2020—2021 - 20232022

Outlets at Outlets | Termina-| Non- Reacquired Cgased Opera- | Outlets at
State Year Start of Opened tions | Renewals by . tions-Other | End of the
the Year Franchisor Reasons Year

Alabama %2(—) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0”2
%%9 02 21 0 0 0 0 23

;_ngj@ 23 12 0 0 0 0 35

%% %29 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Colorado 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
Georgia %9?2& 02 01 0 0 0 0 03
Connecticut 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Florida 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Georgia 2021 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 2 0 0 0 0 4
tndiana %9'31_?& 04 05 0 09
Idaho 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

[llinois 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Indiana 2021 0 3 0 0 0 0 3
2022 3 2 0 0 0 0 5
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Outlets at Outlets | Termina- | Non- Reacquired | Ceased Opera- | Outlets at
State Year | Startof Opened e Renewal by tions-Other | End of the
the Year pene ons CNEWAIS | Eranchisor Reasons Year
20 05 97 0 0 0 0 612
23
lowa 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 3 0 0 0 0 4
Kansas 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 3 0 0 0 0 3
Kentucky 202020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21
2022 0 3 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 2 0 0 0 0 S
Louisiana 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 30 0 0 0 0 30
? 232 0 03 0 0 0 0 03
Maryland 2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Michigen 29?2@ ol 04 0 0 0 0 05
Michigan 2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 2 0 0 0 0 3
Minnesota 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Mississippi 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Missouri %O%?& 0 o1 0 0 0 0 o1
2021 0 1 0 9 9 9 +
2022 1 3 0 0 0 0 4
2023 4 3 0 0 0 0 7
Nebraska 202020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
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Outlets at Outlets | Termina- | Non- Reacquired | Ceased Opera- | Outlets at
State Year Start of Opened e Renewal by tions-Other | End of the
the Year pene ons CNCWAIS | pranchisor Reasons Year

2023 1 2 0 0 0 0 3

Nevada 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 10 0 0 0 0 10

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

New Mexico Q%Ozlﬂ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 9 9 9 9 9 9 9

2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

New York 202020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

21

RUREE 9 9 9 9 9 9 0

2022 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

North Carolina %9%021 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 3 0 0 0 0 4

Ohio 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
23E 01 06 0 0 0 0 o7

Oklahoma 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 10 0 0 0 0 10

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Oregon 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Pennsylvania 203?2_0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RUREE 9 9 9 9 9 9 9

2022 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 4 0 0 0 0 6

South Carolina %9’31?2_0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 9 9 9 0 9 9 0

2022 1
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Outlets at Outlets | Termina- | Non- Reacquired | Ceased Opera- | Outlets at
State Year | Startof Opened tions | Renewals by tions-Other | End of the
the Year P Franchisor Reasons Year
2023 1 3 0 0 0 0 4
Tennessee 202020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21
2021 9 9 9 0 9 9 0
2022
23E 02 04 0 0 0 01 05
Texas 2021 0 5 0 0 0 0 5
2022 5 8 0 0 0 0 13
2023 13 15 0 0 0 0 28
Utah 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Virginia 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
West Virginia 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Wisconsin 292—91 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 9 9 9 0 9 9 0
2022
Fotats %9%?@ 02 02 0 0 0 0 04
Totals 2021 0 15 0 0 0 0 15
2022 15 35 0 0 0 0 50
2023 50 90 0 0 0 1 139
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Table 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets

For Years 2020—2021 - 20232022

State Vear Outlets at Outlets Reacoulﬁlee(;SFrom Outlets | Outlets Sold | Outlets at
Start of Year [ Opened quirec Closed | to Franchisee |End of Year
Franchisee
Kentucky 202020 02 24 0 0 0 26
21
202226 26 40 0 0 03 63
2+
202220 63 0 0 0 30 3
23
Total Outlets 202020 02 24 0 0 0 26
21
202226 26 40 0 0 03 63
2+
202220 63 0 0 0 30 3
23
Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of
December 31, 20232022
. . Projected New Projected New
State Frar};clilsoe ﬁg:;:nzegts ilﬁned Franchised Outlets Company-Owned Outlets
ut Dutiet Not Lpene in the Next Fiscal Year in the Next Fiscal Year
Alabama 0 43 0
Arizona 0 32 0
Colorado 0 32 0
Connecticut 0o 1 0
Florida 0 54 0
Georgia 0 75 0
Illinois 0 2 0
Indiana 0 52 0
Towa 0 21 0
Kansas 0 3 0
Kentucky 0 5 0
Matne 0 1 9
Maryland 0 32 0
Michigan 0 2 0
100453833,
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Franchise Agreements Signed 75 ee el NG Ligjeied] o
State But Outlet Not Opened . Franchlsed.Outlets Cpmpany—pred Outlets
in the Next Fiscal Year in the Next Fiscal Year
Minnesota 0 1 0
Misseuri 0 3 9
Mississippi 0 1 0
NebraskaMissouri 0 4 0
Nevada 0 32 0
New Hampshire 0 1 0
New Jersey 0 1 0
NewYork 0 + 0
North Carolina 0 3 0
Ohio 0 75 0
Oklahoma 0 3 0
Oregon 0 3 0
Pennsylvania 0 1 0
South Carolina 0 32 0
Tennessee 0 5 0
Texas 0 106 0
Utah 0 } 9
Virginia 0 3 0
West Virginia 0 1 0
Wisconsin 0 2 9
Totals 0 10075 0

The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of our current franchisees are attached to this
Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit EG. The name and last known address and telephone number
of every current franchisee and every franchisee who has had a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise
terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under
our franchise agreement during the one year period ending December 31, 20232022, or who has not
communicated with us within ten weeks of the Issuance Date of this Franchise Disclosure Document, is
listed in Exhibit EG. In some instances, current and former franchisees may sign provisions restricting their
ability to speak openly about their experiences with the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee System. You may wish to
speak with current and former franchisees, but know that not all such franchisees can communicate with
you. During the last three fiscal years, certain franchisees have signed confidentiality provisions that would
restrict their ability to speak openly about their experience with the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee System. If you
buy a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when
you leave the Franchise System.

As of the Issuance Date of this Franchise Disclosure Document, there are no franchise organizations
sponsored or endorsed by us and no independent franchisee organizations that have asked to be included in
this Franchise Disclosure Document. We do not have any trademark specific franchisee organizations.

400153833
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ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit B contains the financial statements required to be included with this Franchise Disclosure
Document: audited financial statements as of December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and December 31,

2021.2022-and - Decembe —202H—TFhetranehiser-hasrnot-beentbustie or-three-years-ormore,—and

more-years: Our fiscal year end is December 315,
ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Exhibit C Franchise Agreement

Exhibit D Area Development Agreement

Exhibit GE  Franchise Disclosure Questionnaire

Exhibit H State Addenda and Agreement Riders

Exhibit [ Contracts for use with the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

The last page of this Franchise Disclosure Document, Exhibit JK, is a detachable document in
duplicate. Please detach, sign, date, and return one copy of the Receipt to us, acknowledging you received
this Franchise Disclosure Document. Please keep the second copy for your records.
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EXHIBIT A

STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
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STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
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CALIFORNIA

State Administrator and Agent for
Service of Process:

Commissioner
Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation
320 W. 4t Street, #750
Los Angeles, CA 90013
(213) 576-7500

(866) 275-2677

HAWAIIL

Commissioner of Securities of
the State of Hawaii

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, HI 96813

(808) 586-2722

Agent for Service of Process:

Commissioner of Securities of the
State of Hawaii

Department of Commerce and
Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

Illinois Attorney General
Chief, Franchise Division
500 S. Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706
(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Secretary of State
Securities Division

Room E-018

302 W. Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202

(410) 576-6360

MARYLAND CONTINUED

Agent for Service of Process:

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020

MICHIGAN

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

525 W. Ottawa Street

Lansing, MI 48913

(517) 373-7117

MINNESOTA

Department of Commerce
Commissioner of Commerce

85 Seventh Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, MN 55101-3165

(651) 539-1600

NEW YORK
Administrator:

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21 Floor
New York, NY 10005
(212) 416-8222

Agent for Service of Process:

Secretary of State
99 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12231

NORTH DAKOTA

Administrator:

North Dakota Securities Department

600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, Fourteenth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(701) 328-4712

Agent for Service of Process:

Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, Fourteenth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Business Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 68-2
Cranston, RI 02920

(401) 462-9527

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

124 South Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501

(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and
Retail Franchising

1300 E. Main Street, 9™ Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Agent for Service of Process:

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 E. Main Street, 1% Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

WASHINGTON
State Administrator:

Washington Department of Financial
Institutions

Securities Division

P.O. Box 963341200

Olympia, WA 9856798504-1200
(360) 902-8760

Agent for Service for Process:

Director of Department of Financial
Institutions

Securities Division

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

WISCONSIN

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

201 W. Washington Avenue
Madison, WI 53703

(608) 266-3364

Rev. 642723090723
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EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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) 2617 Legands Way
Accounting - Tax » Business Insight Crestview Hills, KY 41017
Main: 859.344.6400

Fax: 859.578.7522

@ BARNES DENNIG

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Member of

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Mobile Coffee Company Intermediate
Holdings, LLC) dba Travelin’ Tom's Coffee

Florence, Kentucky

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (a limited liability
company) dba Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and
2022, and the related statements of income, member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Mobile
Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin’ Tom's Coffee and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba
Travelin’ Tom's Coffee's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is'not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

wyaw barnesdennig.com
Ohio » Kentucky + Indiana | Independent Member, Allinial Global



BARNES DENNIG

Independent Auditors’ Report
(Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin' Tom's Coffee’s internal control.
Accordmgly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin' Tom's Coffee's
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

i G
%M I ’

April 11, 2024

Crestview Hills, Kentucky



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’' TOM’S COFFEE

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023
Assets
Current:
Cash $ 3,669,273
Inventory 1,741,359
Accounts receivable 701
Accounts receivable - other 16,740
Prepaid expenses 4,502
Total current assets 5,432,575
Fixed assets:
Property and equipment 42,989
Less: Accumulated depreciation (9,060)
Total fixed assets 33,929
Other:
Accounts receivable - related parties 223,248
Net deferred tax asset 1,635,561
Total other assets 1,858,809
Total assets $ 7,325,313

(Continued)
3

2022

$ 4,753,223
612,246
1,929

7,973

5,375,371

37,081

(1.236)

35,845

400

254,036
254,436

$ 5,665,652



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’' TOM'S COFFEE

Balance Sheets (Continued)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Liabilities
Current:

Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Accrued expenses
Accrued federal income tax
Accrued state and local income tax
Deferred franchise fee revenue
Customer deposits

Total current liabilities
Long-term:
Defenjed franchise fee revenue - net of current portion

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Member's equity

Total liabilities and member's equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

4

$

2023

90,289
4,349,556
472,165
191,586
204,000
10,000

5,317,596

1,540,500

1,540,500

6,858,096

467,217

7,325,313

2022

$ 74,694
4,307,770
2,004
297,383
55,468
70,500

4,807,819

541,500

541,500

5,349,319

316,333

_$ 5665652



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM'S COFFEE

Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Revenues ' $ 19,276,571 $ 6,035314
Cost of goods sold 14,016,016 4,594,163
Gross profit 5,260,555 1,441,151
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses 802,898 604,306
Income before other income (expense) 4,457,657 836,845
Other income (expense):
Management fee expense {4,336,728) -
Interest income 92,725 -
Total other income (expense) (4,244,003) -
Income before income taxes 213,654 836,845
Income tax (expense) benefit:
Current (1,444,295) (357,663)
Deferred 1,381,525 139,485
Total income tax (expense) benefit (62,770) (218,178)
Net income $ 150,884 $ 618,667

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

5



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Statements of Member’s Equity (Deficit)
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Balance (deficit) at December 31, 2021 $ (302,334)
Net income 618,667

Balance at December 31, 2022 316,333
Net income . 150,884

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 467,217

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 150,884 $ 618,667
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 7,824 1,236
Changes in:
Accounts receivable 1,228 (1,929)
Accounts receivable - other (16,740) -
inventory (1,129,113) 361,605
Prepaid expenses 3,471 78,490
Net deferred tax asset (1,381,525) (139,485)
Accounts receivable - related parties (222,848) 4,600
Accounts payable 15,595 (103,918)
Accounts payable - related parties 41,786 3,016,055
Accrued expenses (2,004) 2,004
Accrued federal income tax 472,165 297,383
Accrued state and local income tax (161,265) 54,677
Deferred franchise fee revenue 1,132,500 409,500
Customer deposits 10,000 -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,078,042) 4,598,885
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purcha§es of property and equipment (5,908) (37,081)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,908) (37,081)
Net change in cash (1,083,950) 4,561,804
Cash beginning of year 4,753,223 191,419
|
Cash end‘ of year $ 3,669273 $ 4753223

Supplemt‘antal disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for taxes

§ 600000  § 1182

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTE 1

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM'S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (the “Company”) is a limited liability company providing franchise
services and operating trucks in the coffee industry throughout the United States of America. They
contract directly with individuals for the purchase of a coffee truck and a territory in which to operate.
The Company provides marketing services and advertising for the franchisees.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance (FASB ASC 326)
which significantly changed how entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and
certain other instruments that aren’t measured at fair value through net income. The most
significant change in this standard is the shift from the incurred loss model to the expected loss
model. Under the standard, disclosures are required to provide users of the consolidated financial
statements with useful information in analyzing an entity's exposure to credit risk and the
measurement of credit losses. Financial assets held by the Company that are subject to the
guidance in FASB ASC 326 were trade accounts receivable. The Company adopted the standard
effective January 1, 2023. The impact of the adoption was not considered material to the financial
statements and primarily resulted in new/enhanced disclosures only.

Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms
generally requiring payment within 30 days from the invoice date. Currently, the Company may
charge interest on delinquent accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are stated at the amount
billed to the customer

Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's
remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. The carrying amount
of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance that reflects management‘s best
estimate of the amounts that may not be collected. Management individually reviews all accounts
receivable balances that exceed 90 days from invoice date and based on an assessment of current
credltworthmess estimates the portton if any, of the balances that will not be collected.
Management also uses past experiences and future economlc conditions in estimating the total
uncollectible amount. Based on these criteria, the allowance for doubtful accounts at December
31, 2023 and 2022 is $-0-.

Ad&ertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to operations when mcurqed Advertising costs charged to

operations was $75,227 and $12,561 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.



NOTE 1

|
MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM'S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

SPMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The Company is a wholly owned limited liability company and has elected to be treated as a
disregarded entity for tax purposes. The election provides that for tax purposes, all activity, assets,
and liabilities are that of its sole member who then reports this activity for federal and state
purposes.

Income taxes are provided for the proportionate share of the member’s tax liability for the tax effects
of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred
taxes. Deferred taxes are recognized for the difference between the basis of assets and liabilities
for financial statement versus income tax purposes. The differences relate primarily to amortization,
deferred revenue, accrued management fee, and net operating loss carryforwards. The deferred
tax assets represent the future tax consequences of those differences, which will be deductible
when the assets are recovered. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. Income tax expense is the tax payable
for the period plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets.

The Company adheres to the GAAP provisions of Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
These provisions clarify the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s
financial statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement principles for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on
a tax return that are not certain to be realized.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk.

Revenue Recognition

The new truck sales are considered separate performance obligations, based on significant
judgments, and recognized upon delivery. Payment is due, and revenue is recognized, for these
items upon delivery.

Franchise fee revenue is paid when the franchise agreement is signed and recognized over the ten
year franchise period on a straight-line basis once the truck is delivered and every anniversary date
subsequent to the delivery. The current portion of the deferred franchise revenue is based on
anniversary date.

Annual marketing and royalty fees (contractually fixed fees) are paid over one to four months and
are'recognized on a straight-line basis over the fiscal year.

Inventory sales, product sales, and flavoring sales are recognized at a point in time when
performance obligations are completed and paid under customary terms.



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’' TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Tl?e majority of the revenue recognized by the Company is at a point in time with the remainder

recognized over time. Approximately $18,851,300 and $5,893,000 of total revenue is recognized
at a point in time with approximately $425,300 and $142,300 recognized over time in 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Contract Liability

Déferred franchise fee revenue represents a contract iiability.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2022 amounts in order to be consistent with the
classifications adopted for reporting in 2023. These reclassifications had no effect on net income.

Subsequent Event Evaluation

In preparing the financial satements, the Company has evaluated events subsequent to the balance
sheet date through April 11, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

INVENTORY
Invéntory is value at the lower of cost (determined on a FIFO basis) or market. It consists primarily

of trucks that are in various stages of construction and supplies. Inventory consisted of the following
at December 31:

2023 2022
Flévoring $ 516,298 $ 269,758
Trucks and truck supplies 186,974 -
Merchandise and parts 1,038,087 342,488

INCOME TAXES PAYABLE

The income tax (expense) benefit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 consists of

the following: ‘

2023 2022

Federal, state and local taxes $ (1.444,295) $ (357,663)
Net effect of temporary timing differences H,381 ,525 139,485

Total income tax (expense) $ (62770) $ (218,178)

10



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

NOTE3 INCOME TAXES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The tax effect of temporary timing differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:

Depreciation and amortization $ 18,716 $ 19,602

. Accrued expenses 1,073,449 -
Inventory section 263A 3,793 16,283

. Deferred franchise fee revenue 431,807 146,651
Net operating loss carryforward - 2,038

. Research and experimentation credit 107,796 69,462
Total net deferred tax assets $ 1635561 $ 254036

The Company has reflected deferred income taxes at 26% for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, which represents a blended statutory federal and state income tax rate.

The following reconciles the statutory income tax rate to the rate used for the income tax expense:

2023 Gross Tax Effect Rate
Net income before taxes - 21% $ 213,654 3 44 867 21.00%
Permanent true up - 21% (1,588) (333) -0.16%
State tax - 79% 22,124 17,478 8.18%
Other - 758 0.35%
S 234100 § 62770 __29.02%

2022 Gross Tax Effect Rate
Net income before taxes - 21% $ 836,845 3 175,738 21.00%
Permanent true uo - 21% (19,293) (4,052) -0.48%
State tax - 79% 33,189 26,219 3.13%
Research credit true up - 100% 19,268 19,268 2.30%
Other - 1,005 0.12%

$ 870,009 $ 218178 23.65%
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NOTE 4

NOTE §

NOTE 6

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has receivables in the amount of $223,248 and $400 due from related parties at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Company has payables in the amount of $4,349,556 and $4,307,770 due to related parties at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Starting in 2023, the Company is charged a management fee, from a related party, for use of
employees, facilities, and other administrative functions. The Company is also charged a 4%
royalty fee on all truck sales and a 10% commission fee on truck sales/franchise fees for each new
franchisor that is introduced by the related party to the Company. The royalty and commission fees
are included in the management fee. Management fee expense was $4,336,728 and $-0- for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is regulated by state laws and regulations in each state in which it operates, including
those governing franchise sales and licensing, which are subject to change. These laws and
regulations, among other things, establish franchise and licensing requirements which regulate the
Company's ability to issue franchise rights. Any adverse change in or interpretation of existing laws
or regulations or the failure to comply with any such laws and regulations could resuit in fines, class
action litigation, or interruption or cessation of certain business activities of the Company. Any of
these events could have a material effect on the Company’s business. In addition, there can be
no assurance that amendments to such laws and regulations or new or more restrictive laws or
regulations, or interpretations thereof will not be adopted in the future which may make compliance
more difficult or expensive, further limit or restrict fees and other charges, curtail the current
operations of the Company, restrict the Company's ability to expand its operations or otherwise
materially adversely affect the business or prospects of the Company.

FRANCHISES IN OPERATIONS

The following summarizes the franchise ownership changes for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Franchises in operation at beginning of year 49 17
Franchises sold % 90 . 32
Franchises purchased by franchisor ‘ (1) -
Franchises in operation at end of year ! 138 49
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Member of

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (A Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of Mobile Coffee Company Intermediate
Holdings, LLC) dba Travelin’ Tom's Coffee

Florence, Kentucky

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (a limited liability
company) dba Travelin’ Tom's Coffee, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the related statements of income, member's equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin' Tom's Coffee as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for.Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Mobile
Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin’ Tom's Coffee and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba
Travelin® Tom's Coffee's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

www.barnesdennig.com
Ohio » Kentucky * Indiana | Independent Member, Allinial Global



BARNES DENNIG

Independent Auditors’ Report
(Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin' Tom's Coffee's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Mobile Coffee Company, LLC dba Travelin’ Tom's Coffee’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reaschable pericd of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

s o # G E

March 29, 2023
Crestview Hills, Kentucky



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2022 and 2021

Assets
Current:
Cash
Inventory
Accounts receviable
Accounts receviable - related party
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Fixed aésets:
Property and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total fixed assets

Deferred tax asset

Total assets

(Continued)

3

2022

$ 4,753,223
612,246
1,929

400

7,973

5,375,771

37,081

(1,236)

35,845

254,036

5 5665652

2021

$ 191419
973,851
5,000

86,463

1,256,733

114,551

$ 1,371,284



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Balance Sheets (Continued)
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Liabilities
Current:

Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Accrued expenses
Accrued federal income tax
Accrued state and local income tax
Deferred franchise fee revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term:
Deferred franchise fee revenue - net of current portion

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Member's Equity (Deficit)

Total liabilities and member's equity (deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

4

2022

$ 74,694
4,307,770
2,004
297,383
55,468
70,500

4,807,819

541,500

541,500

5,349,319

316,333

$ 5,665,652

2021

$ 178,612
1,291,715

791
22,500

1,493,618

180,000

180,000

1,673,618

(302,334)

$ 1,371,284



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022
Revenues $ 6,035314
Cost of goods sold 4,594,163
Gross profit 1,441,151
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses 604,306
Operating income (loss) 836,845
Income tax (expense) benefit:
Current (357,663)
Deferred 139,485
Total income tax (expense) benefit (218,178)
Net income $ 618,667

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

5

2021

$ 2,436,386

1,959,078

477,308

488,358

(11,050)

(791)
114,551

113,760

$ 102,710



MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Statements of Member's Equity (Deficit)
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Balance (deficit) at December 31, 2020 $ (405,044)
Net income 102,710

Balance (deficit) at December 31, 2021 (302,334)
Net income 618,667

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 316,333

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax asset
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued federal income tax
Accrued state and local income tax
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Advances on accounts receivable - related party
Payments on accounts receivable - related party
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on accounts payable - related parties
Advances from accounts payable - related parties
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash

Cash beginning of year

Cash end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for taxes

2022

$ 618,667

1,236
(1,929)
361,605
78,490
(139,485)
(103,918)
2,004
297,383

54,677
409,500

1,578,230

4,600
(37,081)

(32,481)

(1,632,385)
4,648,440

3,016,055
4,561,804
191,419

$ 4,753,223

3 1,182

2021

$ 102,710

(973,851)
(86,463)

(114,551)
178,612

791
202,500

(690,252)

(5,000)

(5,000)

(4,015,662)
4,902,333

886,671

191,419

$ 191419

S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



NOTE 1

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (the “Company”) is a limited liability company providing franchise
services and operating trucks in the coffee industry throughout the United States of America. They
contract directly with individuals for the purchase of a coffee truck and a territory in which to operate.
The Company provides marketing services and advertising for the franchisees.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses: Measurement
of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The standard mcdifies the impairment model for most
financial assets and certain other instruments to utilize an expected loss methodology in place of
the currently used incurred loss methodology. The standard will be effective for the Company for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating
the impact of adoption of this ASU on its financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms
generally requiring payment within 30 days from the invoice date. Currently, the Company may
charge interest on delinquent accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are stated at the amount
billed to the customer

Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer's
remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. The carrying amount
of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance that reflects management's best
estimate of the amounts that may not be collected. Management individually reviews all accounts
receivable balances that exceed 90 days from invoice date and based on an assessment of current
creditworthiness, estimates the portion, if any, of the balances that will not be collected.
Management also uses past experiences and future economic conditions in estimating the total
uncollectible amount. Based on these criteria, the allowance for doubtful accounts at December
31,12022 and 2021 is $-0-.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. Advertising costs charged to

operations was $12,561 and $27,410 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.



NOTE 1

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
{Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes

The Company is a wholly owned limited liability company and has elected to be treated as a
disregarded entity for tax purposes. The election provides that for tax purposes, ali activity, assets,
and liabilities are that of its sole member who then reports this activity for federal and state
purposes.

Income taxes are provided for the proportionate share of the member’s tax liability for the tax effects
of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred
taxes. Deferred taxes are recognized for the difference between the basis of assets and liabilities
for financial statement versus income tax purposes. The differences relate primarily to amortization,
deferred revenue, and net operating loss carryforwards. The deferred tax assets represent the
future tax consequences of those differences, which will be deductible when the assets are
recovered. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amount expected to be realized. Income tax expense is the tax payable for the period plus or
minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets.

The Company adheres to the GAAP provisions of Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
These provisions clarify the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s
financial statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement principles for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on
a tax return that are not certain to be realized.

ancentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk.

Revenue Recognition

The new truck sales are considered separate performance obligations, based on significant
judgments, and recognized upon delivery. Payment is due, and revenue is recognized, for these
items upon delivery.

Franchise fee revenue is paid when the franchise agreement is signed and recognized over the ten
year franchise period on a straight-line basis once the truck is delivered and every anniversary date
subsequent to the delivery. The current portion of the deferred franchise revenue is based on
anniversary date.

Annual marketing fees (contractually fixed fees) are paid over one to four months and are
recognhized on a straight-line basis over the fiscal year.

Inventory sales are recognized at a point in time when performance obligations are completed and
paid under customary terms.



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

The majority of the revenue recognized by the Company is at a point in time with the remainder
recognized over time. Approximately $5,893,000 and $2,410,600 of total revenue is recognized at
a point in time with approximately $551,800 and $25,800 recognized over time in 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Contract Liability

Deferred franchise fee revenue represents a contract liability.

Subsequent Event Evaluation

In preparing the financial satements, the Company has evaluated events subsequent to the balance
sheet date through March 29, 2023, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

INVENTORY

Inventory is value at the lower of cost (determined on a FIFO basis) or market. It consists primarily

of trucks that are in various stages of construction and supplies. Inventory consisted of the following
at December 31:

2022 2021
Flavoring $ 269,758 $ 115819
Merchandise and parts 342,488 858,032
S 612246 S 973851

INCOME TAXES PAYABLE

The income tax (expense) benefit for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 consists of
the following:

2022 2021
State and local taxes $ (357,663) $ (791)
Net effect of temporary timing differences 139,485 114,551
Total income tax (expense) benefit $ (218,178) $ 113,760
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MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

NOTE3 INCOME TAXES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The tax effect of temporary timing differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

2022 2021

Deferred tax assets: '
Depreciation and amortization $ 19,602 $ 30,359

Inventory section 263A 16,283 -
Deferred franchise fee revenue 146,651 48,524
Net operating loss carryforward 2,038 16,399
Research and experimentation credit 69,462 19,269

Total deferred tax assets § 254,036 $ 114,551

The Company has reflected deferred income taxes at 25% for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, which represents a blended statutory federal and state income tax rate.

The following reconciles the statutory income tax rate to the rate used for the income tax expense:

2022 Gross Tax Effect Rate
Net income before taxes - 21% $ 836,845 $ 175,737 21.00%
Permanent true up - 21% (19,293) (4,052) -0.48%
State tax - 79% 33,189 26,219 3.13%
Research credit true up - 100% 19,268 19,268 2.30%
Other - 1,005 0.12%

2021 Gross Tax Effect Rate
Net loss before taxes - 21% $ (11,0500 $ (2,321) 21.00%
Prior year loss true up - 21% (405,044) (85,059) 769.77%
Permanent differences - 21% 19,268 4,046 -36.62%
State tax - 79% (13,593) (10,738) 97.18%
Current year research credit - 100% (19,268) (19,268) 174.37%
Other - (420) 3.80%

429,687 $ (113,760) 851.33%
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NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
DBA TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has receivables in the amount of $400 and $5,000 due from a related party at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Company has payables in the amount of $4,307,770 and $1,291,715 due to related parties at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The related party payable is a current liability used to
fund start-up expenses and ongoing operational costs that the Company repays as cash flow
permits throughout the year. Management expects to be able to meet the obligation through growth
in operations, and will be able to extend the due date of the related party payable sufficient to enable
the Company to meet its obligations.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is regulated by state laws and regulations in each state in which it operates, including
those governing franchise sales and licensing, which are subject to change. These laws and
regulations, among other things, establish franchise and licensing requirements which regulate the
Company's ability to issue franchise rights. Any adverse change in or interpretation of existing laws
or regulatlons or the failure to comply with any such laws and regulations could result in fines, class
actlon litigation, or interruption or cessation of certain business activities of the Company. Any of
these events could have a material effect on the Company’s business. In addition, there can be
no assurance that amendments to such laws and regulations or new or more restrictive {aws or
regulations, or interpretations thereof will not be adopted in the future which may make compliance
more difficult or expensive, further limit or restrict fees and other charges, curtail the current
operations of the Company, restrict the Company's ability to expand its operations or otherwise
materially adversely affect the business or prospects of the Company.

FRANCHISES IN OPERATIONS

The following summarizes the franchise ownership changes for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Franchises in operation at beginning of year 21 -
Franchises sold 31 15
Franchises purchased by franchisor - 6
Franchises in operation at end of year 52 21

12
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ¢his—(‘“Franchise Agreement”) is made-and, entered into and
effective as of the “Effective Date” set forth in Attachment A to this Franchise Agreement, by and between
Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company—wrth—rts—pﬂ-nerpal—b&smess—add-ress
at-5945-Centenntal-Cirele, Florence, Kentuelkyy,—41042(“Franehiser, ™ (“we,” “us,” or “our”), and the
Eranchise-Owneridentified-on-thesignature bleck-of franchisee set forth in Attachment A to this Franchise
Agreement (“Franchisee>“you” or “your™);-made-effective-as-ofthe-date”). If more than one person or

entity is listed ir-Attachment A (the~Effeetive Pate”)-as the franchisee, each such person or entity shall

be jointly and severally liable for all rights, duties, restrictions and obligations under this Franchise
Agreement.

IJ o PREAMBLEES; ACKNOWLEEDGMENTS; AND-INTRODUCTION

This Franchise Agreement includes several attachments, each of which are legally binding and are a
part of the complete Franchise Agreement. It is your responsibility to read through the entire Franchise
Agreement. This Franchise Agreement creates legal obligations you must follow. We recommend that you
consult with a legal professional to ensure that you understand these obligations. If you have questions, or
if you do not understand a certain provision or section, please review it with your legal and financial
advisors before you sign this Franchise Agreement.

This Franchise Agreement has defined terms. A defined term is a shorthand reference within a
document that refers to another name or idea in the document. Defined terms are underlined and surrounded
by double quotes, typically with capitalized first letters, and may be contained in parentheses throughout
the Franchise Agreement.

| 2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE:

+A—PREAMBLES:

H—We-have-developedAs a untquesystem-of for-the-eperation-ef [ravelin’ Tom’s franchisee,

you will operate a mobile businessesbusiness providing coffees, teas, and related products

to the general publrc (“%llmelrn—Tem—sFranchrsed Busrness(—es-)%—"llrwehn—"l:em—s

F ranchrsed Busrness erl operate under our service rnarks trademarks, trade names, trade
dress, logos, slogans and commercial symbols as we may from time to time-

&)—— authorize or direct you to use with the operation of the Franchised Business (the “Marks”).
We and our affiliates use, promote, and license eertain-trademarks;service marks;and-other
commereial-symbelsa registered patent to be used in connection with the operation of
Fravelir—Fem’s—Franchised Businesses, and we may create, use, and license other

trademarks;-service-marks,and-commeretal-symbels-patents for the same use (eeHeetively;
the~Marks™):

the “Patent”). This Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate a single one proprietary

Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee truck, known as the Beverage Entertainment Vehicle (“BEV”) within the Territory
(deﬁned below) We may grant ﬁaﬂehﬂes—FPPavehn—TeﬂH—Geffee—Fﬁm*elﬂse—er—‘Fﬁmwhme—He
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you the opportunity to operate with multiple Franchised Businesses under an area development agreement
(“Area Development Agreement”) in which case each BEV shall be operated under a separate franchise

29

agreement with us.Standards;” which-con of busine ormats—methods,procedure ans—desisn

ThatWe grant you a non-exclusive license to own and operate a single Franchised Business using the
business formats, methods, procedures, signs, designs, standards, specifications, distinguishing elements,
and intellectual property (the “System’) that we authorize strictly in compliance with the terms and
conditions set forth in this Franchise Agreement, within the Territory or other areas we may specify in
Attachment A to this Franchise Agreement. You recognize and acknowledge the distinctive significance
to the public of the System and Marks and acknowledge and understand our high and uniform standards of
quality, appearance and service to the value of the System. You acknowledge that we may change, improve
or otherwise modify the System as we deem appropriate in our discretion, and you agree to promptly accept
and comply with any such changes, improvements or modifications. You further acknowledge that our
grant to operate a Franchised Business is based on the representations made in your application. You
acknowledge and agree this Franchise Agreement does not grant you the right or option to open any
additional Franchised Businesses or any right to sublicense or subfranchise any of the rights we grant you
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in_this Franchise Agreement. You may only open an additional Franchised Business under a separate
franchise agreement with us, which we may grant in our sole discretion.

H—As part of accepting our grant for you to own and operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Franchised
Business, you hereby represent that: (i) you have received a copy of our current franchise
disclosure document; (ii) you are aware of the fact that other present or future franchisees
of ours may operate under different forms of agreement and consequently that our
obligations and rights with respect to our various franchisees may differ materially in
certain circumstances:

8)>TFhat; and (iii) you are aware of the fact that we may have negotiated terms or offered concessions
to other franchisees and we have no obligation to offer you the same or similar negotiated terms or
concessions._This Franchise Agreement does not grant you rights to pursue any of our or our affiliates’
business concepts other than the Travelin’ Tom’s Business.

| 3. FRANCHISEE AS ENTITY

| 3.1 Entity Representations

For purpose of this Franchise Agreement, “Owner(s)” means any person holding a direct or indirect
ownership interest (whether of record, beneficially, or otherwise) or voting rights in you, this Franchise
Agreement, or the Franchised Business. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or
other form of business entity (“Entity”), you agree and represent that:

3.1.1 Authority. You have the authority to execute, deliver, and perform your obligations
under this Franchise Agreement and all related agreements and are duly organized or formed-and, validly
existing, and in good standing under the laws of the state of your incorporation or formations.

Y our—oroanizational—doecuments oneratine— soreement or—partherchin—aoreement aq
Y-OUr—ofrgamiZationar—agocUmentS;,—operating—agreement,—or—partierSHp—agreement.—as

appheable;3.1.2 Company Documents. At our request, you will furnish copies of all documents and
contracts governing the rights and obligations of your Owners (such as, Articles of Incorporation or
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Organization and partnership, operating or shareholder agreements or similar documents, the “Company
Documents™). You will not alter, change, or amend your Company Documents, without obtaining our prior
written approval, which approval we will not unreasonably deny or withhold, and will grant if such changes
will not prevent you from performing your obligations under this Franchise Agreement.

3.13 Transfer Restrictions. Your Company Documents will recite that this Franchise
Agreement restricts the issuance and transfer of any ownership interests in you, and all certificates and other
documents representing ownership interests in you will bear a legend referring to this Franchise
Agreement’s restrictionss.

3.14 Naming. You agree not to use the name “Travelin’ Tom’s” or any similar wording
in the name of your Entity.

3.1.5 Owner Identification. You certify that Attachment- B to this Franchise Agreement

completely and accurately descnbes all of your dﬁeet—aﬁd—mdﬁeet—ewnem—&%eaelmemeiwenmy—heléng

and-Owners and

S 3 30 You agree to s1gn and dehver
to us a rev1sed yePS}eﬂs—ef—Attachment- B ﬁcem—&mﬁe—&m%to reﬂect any permitted changes in the
information that Attachment- B now contains:.,

3.1.6 Single Purpose Entity. The Fravelin™Fom’s-Coffee Eranehise-Franchised Business
will be the only business you-eperate—duringthat the term—of-this Franchise-Agreement(althoughrour
OwnersEntity may ewn-othernoncompetitiveoperate, and your organizational documents must reflect this
(although the Owners in the Entity may have other business interestsy:—ane subject to any restrictions on
competitive businesses contained in this Franchise Agreement).
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; : : rou3.1.7 Franchlse Owner Agreement
All Owners and thelr spouses must sign the Franchlse Owner Agreement, attached as Attachment C to this
Franchise Agreement. You agree that, if any person or Entity ceases to be one of your Owners, or if any
individual or Entity becomes an Owner of you (such ownership change must comply with the “Transfer
Conditions” discussed later in this Franchise Agreement), you will require the new Owner (and the new
Owner’s spouse) to execute all documents required by us, including the Franchise Owner Agreement.

3.1.8 No Offerings. You agree that you will not offer any securities (in a public or private
offering or otherwise) or engage in any type of fundraising (like crowdfunding) without our prior written
consent, which may be withheld in our sole discretion.

| 4. TERRITORIAL RIGHTS AND LIMITATIONS

Business—within-grant you a designated territory consisting of the geographic area deseribedidentified in

Attachment A ¢the-“Proteeted-(“Territory’”). We will not operate, or grant a franchise or license to a third
party to operate, a Franchised Business that operates within your Territory>)-, except as otherwise provided
in this Section. If the population of your-Preteeted Territory increases during the Initial Term of this
Franchise Agreement by more than 25% using the population listed on zip-codes.com, we may reduce the
size of your Preteeted Territory to 100,000 people upon 30 days’ notice unless you purchase an additional
BEV—franchised business.

We, and our affiliates, have the right to operate, and to license others to operate, Franchised Businesses

at any location outside the Territory, even if doing so will or might affect your operation of your Franchised
Business.

We retain all territorial rights not expressly granted to you. This includes, but is not limited to, the right
to (1) to own, franchise, or operate Franchised Businesses at any location outside of the Territory, regardless
of the proximity to your Franchised Business; (i1) to use the Marks and the System to sell any products or
services, similar to those which you will sell, through any alternate channels of distribution within or outside
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of the Territory, including, but not limited to, other channels of distribution such as television, mail order,
catalog sales, wholesale to unrelated retail outlets, or over the Internet; (iii) to use and license the use of
other proprietary and non-Marks or methods which are not the same as or confusingly similar to the Marks,
at any location, including within the Territory, which may be similar to or different from your Franchised
Business; (iv) to engage in any transaction (including purchases, mergers or conversions), involving the
System or a new system, with any business, including businesses that directly or indirectly compete with
your Franchised Business, regardless of their location, provided that any competing businesses located
inside your Territory will not operate under the Marks; (v) to implement multi-area marketing programs
which may allow us or others to solicit or sell to customers anywhere:; (vi) to engage in any other business
activities not expressly prohibited by this Franchise Agreement. We are not required to pay you if we
exercise any of our rights, including within your Territory including orders accepted or solicited by other
Travelin® Tom’s franchisees. We are not required to pay you compensation for soliciting or accepting
orders inside your Territory, or for exercising any of our rights within or outside of your Territory. You
agree that you may face competition from us, from other franchisees and from other channels of distribution
or competitive brands that we control within the Territory.

“Territory Infringement” occurs when a franchisee generates income from a customer by receiving

payment for goods and/or services provided and/or rendered within the preteeted—territory of another
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisee without first obtaining that franchisee’s and our written permission. A

You may provide services and sell products to customers located outside of the-Preteeted Territory
without being subject to Territory Infringement under the following circumstance: (1) there is no other
franchisee or area developer in that area; (2) the customer initiates the contact with you; and (3) you first
receive our express written consent, which may be withheld in our sole discretion. You are prohibited from
directly marketing to or soliciting customers whose principal business office (or principal residence; if the
customer is an individual) is outside of your Preteeted-Territory unless we specify otherwise to you in
writing. You agree that you must cease from marketing and soliciting or servicing customers upon our
notice to you than an area has become the territory of another Travelin’ Tom’s franchisee. You may not
advertise in any media whose primary circulation is outside of the—Preteeted Territory without our
perm1ss1on unless the advertlsement 18 part ofa cooperatlve advemsmg prograrn W&de—net—gfaﬂt—a—r-l-gh%
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franchisee locations-inside-and-outside

H—touse-and-license-the-use-of technologyto-nen-A_
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aﬁﬁhsafet*reeaﬂ—e{#h%BE%Le%e#aﬂMddﬁeﬂaLEqumenﬁhe followmg ﬁnes pavable to us W1th1n ﬁve

days after the infringement(s) is/are proven:

(1) first violation - $1,000 plus the invoice amount for the products or services sold; and

(2) second violation and subsequent violations - $5,000 plus the invoice amount for the products or
services performed.
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_ : : dditional Equip sl Any fines we collect
shall become our sole property and may be distributed by us in our sole discretion. You agree that violations
are counted cumulatively over the life of the Franchised Business regardless of where and when they occur,
including in any prior terms if this is a Successor Franchise Agreement.

S. TERM AND RENEWAL

| 5.1 Generally

The term of this Franchise Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and continue for 10 years
(“Term™). If you would like to operate more than one BEV, you will be required to purchase an additional
franchised business for each BEV and execute an additional franchise agreement. If this Franchise
Agreement is the initial franchise agreement for your Franchised Business, you may enter into a maximum
of two successor franchise agreements (a “Successor Franchise Agreement”), as long as you meet the
conditions for renewal specified below. The Successor Franchise Agreement shall be the current form of
franchise agreement we use in granting Travelin’ Tom’s franchises as of the expiration of the Term. The
terms and conditions of the Successor Franchise Agreement may vary materially and substantially from the
terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement, including a higher Royalty. Each successor term will
be ten years. If you are signing this Franchise Agreement as a Successor Franchise Agreement, the
references to “Term” shall mean the applicable renewal term of the Successor Franchise Agreement. Except
as otherwise provided in this Section, you will have no further right to operate your Franchised Business
following the expiration of the successor term unless we grant you the rights to enter into another franchise
agreement, in our sole discretion. If you are renewing a prior franchise agreement with us under this
Franchise Agreement, the renewal provisions in your initial franchise agreement will dictate the length of
the Term of this Franchise Agreement, and your remaining renewal rights, if any.

5.2 Renewal Requirements

To enter into a Successor Franchise Agreement, you must:

5.2.1 Notice. Notify us in writing of your desire to enter into a Successor Franchise
Agreement not less than six months nor more than twelve months before the expiration of the Term;

5.2.2. No Defaults. Not be in default under this Franchise Agreement or any other
agreement with us or any affiliate of ours at the time you send the renewal notice or the time you sign the
Successor Franchise Agreement or on the date on which the term of the Successor Franchise would
commence and you must not have received more than three separate written notices of default from us in
the previous term;
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5.2.3 Modifications. Have the right to maintain possession of your BEV and, if your
BEV is not in compliance with our current standards you must either: (1) replace, remodel, repair and/or
upgrade the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) you have for your Franchised Business in accordance
with Section 13.4 of this Franchise Agreement, as well as add or replace improvements, assets, signage,
and otherwise modify the Franchised Business as we require to comply with our then-current System
standards for new Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchised businesses at your sole cost and expense;

524 Successor Franchise Agreement. Sign the Successor Franchise Agreement and all
ancillary documents we require franchisees to sign;

5.2.5 General Release. Sign and have each of your Owners sign our current form of
general release which contains a release of all claims, known or unknown, against us and our affiliates and
subsidiaries, and our and their respective members, officers, directors, agents and employees, in both their
corporate and individual capacities. Unless otherwise prevented by state law, we will consider your failure
to sign the release within 30 days after it is delivered to you to be an election not to acquire a Successor
Franchise;

5.2.6 Renewal Fee. Pay us a non-refundable renewal fee of $7.500 (“Renewal Fee): and

5.2.7 Additional Actions. Take any additional actions we reasonably require.

5.3 Notice Regarding Renewal Decision

Within six months after we receive your notice of intent to renew the Franchise Agreement of
our decision to: (a) grant you a Successor Franchise Agreement; (b) grant you a Successor Franchise
Agreement on the condition you correct existing deficiencies of the Franchised Business or in your
operation of the Franchised Business; (¢) not grant you a Successor Franchise Agreement based on our
determination you or your Owners have not fully complied with this Franchise Agreement during its Term
or were not in full compliance with this Franchise Agreement and all System sstandards on the date you
gave us written notice of your election to enter into a Successor Franchise Agreement; or (d) not grant you
a Successor Franchise Agreement because we no longer maintain a franchise program for Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee. If applicable, our notice will: describe the remodeling, expansion, improvements, and/or
modifications required to bring your Franchised Business, the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) into
compliance with Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchised businesses, and state the actions you must take to
correct operating deficiencies and the time in which you must correct these deficiencies.

If we elect not to grant you a Successor Franchise Agreement, our notice will describe the
reasons for our decision. If we elect to grant you a Successor Franchise Agreement, your right to acquire
a Successor Franchise Agreement is subject to your full compliance with all of the terms and conditions of
this Franchise Agreement through the date of its expiration, in addition to your compliance with the
obligations described in our notice. If our notice states that you must remodel the Franchised Business
and/or must cure certain deficiencies of the Franchised Business or its operation as a condition to our
granting you a Successor Franchise Agreement, we will give you written notice of our decision not to grant
a Successor Franchise Agreement, based upon your failure to complete the remodeling and/or to cure those
deficiencies, not less than 90 days before this Franchise Agreement expires, provided, however, that we
need not give you this 90 days’ notice if we decide not to grant you a Successor Franchise Agreement due
to your breach of this Franchise Agreement during the 90 day period before it expires. We may allow this
Franchise Agreement to continue on an Interim Term (defined below) to give you either reasonable time to
correct deficiencies or the 90 days’ notice of our refusal to grant a Successor Franchise Agreement.

5.4 Interim Term
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If you do not sign a Successor Franchise Agreement after the expiration of the Term and you continue
to accept the benefits of this Franchise Agreement, then, at our option, this Franchise Agreement may be
treated either as: (1) expired as of the date of the expiration meaning you are operating the Franchised
Business without a valid franchise agreement in violation of our rights; or (ii) continued on a month-to-
month basis (“Interim Term”) until either party provides the other party with 30 days’ prior written notice
of their intention to terminate the Interim Term. In the latter case, all of your obligations will remain in full
force and effect during the Interim Term as if this Franchise Agreement had not expired, and all obligations,
restrictions and covenants imposed on you upon the expiration or termination of this Franchise Agreement
will be deemed to take effect upon the termination of the Interim Term. Except as permitted by this Section,
you have no right to continue to operate your Franchised Business following the expiration of the Term.

|6.  FEES

| 6.1 Late Fee

If any sums due under this Franchise Agreement have not been received by us when due then, in addition
to those sums, you must pay us $25 per day, plus the daily equivalent of twelve percent (12%) per year
simple interest or the highest rate allowed by law, whichever is less (“Late Fees”). Such interest will be in
addition to any other remedies we may have under law or equity. We may debit your bank account
automatically or deduct from amounts we owe you for service charges and interest. You acknowledge this
Section is not our agreement to accept any payments after they are due or our commitment to extend credit
to, or otherwise finance your operation of, the Franchised Business. If no due date has been specified by

us, then interest accrues from the original due date until payment is received in full.

6.2 Payment Methods

You must complete our automated clearing house (ACH) authorization form allowing us to
electronically debit a bank account you designate (“Franchise Account™) for: (i) all fees payable to us under
this Franchise Agreement (other than the Initial Franchise Fee); and (ii) any other amounts you owe to us
or any of our affiliates including, but not limited to, those owed for the purchase of products or services.
We will debit your Franchise Account for these payments on or after the due date. You must sign and
deliver to us any other documents we or your bank may require authorizing us to debit your Franchise
Account for these amounts.

You must deposit all revenue you generate from operating your Franchised Business into the Franchise
Account. You must make sufficient funds available for withdrawal from the Franchise Account by
electronic transfer before each due date. If any check or electronic payment is unsuccessful due to
insufficient funds, stop payment or any similar event, any excess amounts you owe will be payable upon
demand, together with a non-sufficient funds fee of $100 per occurrence plus Late Fees. If we allow you
make any payment to us or our affiliate(s) by credit card for any fee required, we may charge a payment
service fee of up to 4% of the total charge. We reserve the right to periodically specify (in the Brand Manual
or otherwise in writing) different required payment methods for any payment due to us or our affiliates.

6.3 Payment Frequency

We reserve the right to periodically specify (in the Brand Manual or otherwise in writing) different
payment frequencies (for example, weekly/biweekly/monthly payments) for any payment due to us or our
affiliates.

6.4  Application of Payments
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We have sole discretion to apply any payments from you to any past due indebtedness of yours or in any
other manner we feel appropriate. We are not obligated to follow any instructions you provide for allocation
of the payments. We may set off any amounts you or your Owners owe us or our affiliates against any
amounts we or our affiliates owe you or your Owners. You may not withhold payment of any amounts you
owe us due to our alleged nonperformance of any of our obligations under this Franchise Agreement-as
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6.5 Payment Obligations

Your obligations to pay us the fees under this Franchise Agreement are absolute and unconditional, and
will remain in full force and effect throughout the entire duration of this Franchise Agreement, and shall
continue for such period of time thereafter as you owe us fees under this Franchise Agreement. You will
have no right to offset any fees paid to us and must pay us all fees regardless of any claims you may have
against us. We will have the right, at any time before or after termination of this Franchise Agreement,
without notice to you, to offset any amounts or liabilities you may owe to us against any amounts or
liabilities we may owe you under this Franchise Agreement or any other agreement, loan, transaction or
relationship between the parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, you agree that you will
not, on grounds of the alleged nonperformance by us of any of our obligations, withhold any fees due to us
or our affiliates or amounts due to us for purchases by you or any other amounts due to us.

6.6 Initial Franchise Fee
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Yeoumustpay-us-an-initial-franchise fee-of $15;000-(“Initial Franchise Fee™y” listed in Attachment

A in one lump sum when you sign this Franchise Agreement._The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned by

us when-paid-and is ret-non-refundable vnder-any-eircumstaneces-

4B—RESERVATHONEEE:

Pfewded—yea—aﬁd—yehwaﬁﬁha{es—af%ﬁet—m—def&&h—eﬁonce thlS Franchlse Agreement er—aﬂ%e%her

e Hory "hasbeensuzned If
dditi i tor-Agreement; is

sep&ra%erenewal of a prior franchlse agreement w1th us aﬁd—yea—mﬂst—&ga—ea-rfor an ex1st1n2 Franchlsed
Business or the transfer of the Franchlsed Busmess frorn another franchlsee then—e&&ent—ﬁanehse
- v = A B v

| —_ RoyaltyROYALTY FEE.

Beginning on the Opening Date, and continuing for the term of this Franchise Agreement, including any
Interim Period, you agree to pay us the royalty fees listed below (the “Royalty” or “Royalties™) in either
three, six, or nine installments per year (“BEV Royalty Schedule”):
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BEV Royalty Schedule BES\c]hlzc(l)Zlael vy B]ES\c]hlzc(;Zfel RS
Time Period* Total Royalty . (If you make 3 (If you make 6 (If you make 9
installment payments installment payments installment

per year) per year) payments per year)
Years 1-2 $3,000 June 30: $1,000 May 31: $500 April 30: $333
July 31: $1,000 June 30: $500 May 31: $333
August 31: $1,000 July 31: $500 June 30: $334
August 31: $500 July 31: $333
September 30: $500 August 31: $333
October 31:  $500 September 30: $334
October 31:  $333
November 30: $333
December 31: $334
Years 3-6 $4,000 June 30: $1,333 May 31: $666 April 30: $444
July 31: $1,333 June 30: $666 May 31: $445
August 31: $1,334 July 31: $667 June 30: $444
August 31: $667 July 31: $445
September 30: $667 August 31: $444
October 31:  $667 September 30: $445
October 31:  $444
November 30: $445
December 31: $444
Years 7-10 (plus $5,000 June 30: $1,666 May 31: $833 April 30: $556
any Interim July 31: $1,667 | June 30: $833 | May31: $555
i;;‘l‘i’f;ble)* if August31:  $1,667 | July3I: $833 | June 30 $556
August 31: $833 July 31: $555
September 30: $834 August 31: $556
October 31:  $834 September 30: $555
October 31:  $556
November 30: $555
December 31: $556
Fixed—Loecation $2,000 Fune 30:——$666 May3+—$333 April30:—$222
Business—for Falyr 33— $667 Fune30:——$333 | May 3k $222
W August3l—$333 | July3L: $222
Oectober 31— $222
November30—$223
December31:—$223
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*1f you are a
transferee signing thrs Franchlse Agreement the date for deterrnlnlng your BEV Royalty Schedule will be
determined from the date the initial Franchise Agreement was signed for the TravelinTFem’sFranchised

Busmess you are contlnulng to operate or acqulred#eur—Reya#y—MH—beeM&en—emren&sueeesser—Reﬁ%y

If you purchase Additional Equipment, you will be required to pay additional royalty fees fer—theper
piece of Additional Equipment Additional Equipmentthat you purchase (“AE Royalty”). The
Additional EquipmentAE Royalty will depend on the type of Additional Equipment and will be the then-
current rate at the time you enter into the Additional Equipment Amendment. The Additienal
EquipmentAE Royalty will be due for as long as you own the Additional Equipment. For this Franchise
Agreement, all references to Royalty shall include any Additional EquipmentAE Royalty unless otherwise
noted. We reserve the right to adjust your Royalty annually based on the Consumer Price Index as defined
by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.

6.8  Brand Fund Contribution

4.c——You must pay a “Brand Fund Contribution” in the amount we specify in our Brand Manual,
which is currently $1,000 per year. Brand Fund Contributions are due at the same time as your Royalty or
at such other date we choose, as may be more fully set forth in the Brand Manual. We reserve the right to
adjust your Brand Fund Contributions annually by up to 10% FERRIFORY CHANGE-

you. Addltlonallv, the Council, if estabhshed may increase your Brand Fund Contributions at any time
upon 75% approval from the Council’s members. The Brand Fund Contribution will be used for the
Travelin’ Tom’s brand fund (“Brand Fund”) to promote awareness of our brand and to improve our System.

6.9 Technology Fee and Business Management Software Fee
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You must pay us our then-current technology fee-{the-“Technology Fee”),-which-is-$500-per-yearfor
each-Travelin™ Tom’s(“Technology Fee”) throughout the Term of this Franchise Agreement beginning on

the date your Franchised Business you—operate—opens for the use of certain technologies used in the
Franchised Business. The Technology Fee is currently $500 per year. In addition-te-the-TechnologyFEee;
we-charge-you-a-separate, you must pay us our then-current fee for the usage of our proprietary KonaOS

operatlng software (or then-current software) (the “Bus1ness Management Software Fee”) For—e*rstmg

We reservecan change the rightsoftware and technology that must be used by Franchised Business at
any time we deem appropriate in our sole discretion, which may result in changes to periedically-inerease
the Technology Fee and/or Busmess Managernent Software F ee—uﬁen—wrﬁten—ne&e%te—yea—based—en

3 DL 3 : W : he-. An increase in
th1rd-nartv fees may also cause the Technologv Fee and/or Business Management Software Fee to increase.

You will be responsible for anetherbusinessany increase in fees that is-net-yourFravelin™ Fom s Business
for-anresult from any upgrades, modification, or additional fee;which-permisston-wesoftware by us or by

third-party vendors. We may graﬂt—er—wrthhe}d—m—emhse%e—ésereﬁei#owmodlfy the Technology Fee

and/or Business Management Software Fee
or-as-otherwise statedin-our-Brand-Manualupon wr1tten notice to you.
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You must pay our then-current technology business solutions fees to approved suppliers for certain

business solutions that will support your business efficiencies. These may include phone systems, security
systems, scheduling software, employee shift/task management software, inventory solution and any other
solutions we may require in the Brand Manual for your Franchised Business. We reserve the right to
upgrade, modify and add new systems, which may result in additional initial and ongoing expenses that
you will be responsible for. You will be responsible for any increase in fees that result from any upgrades,
modifications or additional systems and for any increase in fees from third-party providers. We may include
these third-party fees in the Technology Fee and/or Business Management Software Fee and pay suppliers
directly on our behalf.

|6.10 Document Fee

You must pay us a document fee of $250 “DecumentFee”)-if you need an additional copy of your

franchise disclosure document or signed Franchise Agreement. ¥eu-mustbeaecurrentfranchisee-ingood
standins-in-orderto-obtainany-documentsFromts:

41H—MONITOR-CONTENTMANAGEMENT SOETWARE FEE-

| 6.11 Monitor Content Management Fee

Your KEMBEV will be equipped with an exterior monitor for displaying content that you can customize
in accordance with our Monitor Guideline and Usage Policy contained in our Brand Manual. You will pay
us a “Monitor Content Management Software Fee” of $240 per year per monitor. The Monitor Content
Management Software Fee is due at the same time as your Royalty.

6.12 Other Fees and Payments

You agree to pay all other fees, expense reimbursements, and all other amounts specified in this
Franchise Agreement in a timely manner. You also agree to promptly pay us an amount equal to all taxes
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levied or assessed against us based upon products or services you sell or based upon products or services
we furnish to you (other than income taxes we pay based on amounts).

7. ESTABLISHING YOUR FRANCHISED BUSINESS

| 7.1 nin

You must open your Franchised Business to the public within 3 months of the Effective Date. You
may not open your Franchised Business before: (i) all required attendees have successfully completed Initial
Training (defined below); (ii) you purchase all required insurance and provide us with all required insurance
certificates; (ii1) you obtain all required licenses, permits and other governmental approvals required to
establish, open and operate the Franchised Business; (iv) you pay all initial fees owed to us; and (v) you
receive our written approval.

If you believe that we (or our affiliates) have failed to adequately provide any assistance or services to
you as provided in this Franchise Agreement, you will notify us in writing within 30 days following ours
or our affiliates’ provision of such assistance or services. Without the timely provision of such notice to us,
you will be deemed to conclusively acknowledge that all such assistance or services required to be provided
by us or our affiliates were sufficient and satisfactory in your judgment.

If this Franchise Agreement is the second or subsequent territory under an Area Development
Agreement no initial training will be provided by us and you must immediately begin operating the BEV

upon signing this Franchise Agreement upon delivery from us, subject to any applicable new or different
permits, licenses, governmental approvals or insurance required.

7.2 Site Selection

Because most of the Travelin’ Tom’s franchisees will operate their Franchised Business out of their
residence or BEV, we do not provide site selection assistance. If you decide to operate your Franchised
Business out of an office, you will be solely liable for its compliance with all applicable business ordinances
and building codes, and for obtaining all necessary health, building, sign, and other permits, licenses, and
bonds, as may be required for the operation of the office. You may not operate your Franchised Business
from a fixed location without our written approval, which we may withhold in our sole discretion and enter
into_our then-current form of fixed location amendment, the current form of which is attached to the
Franchise Disclosure Document in Exhibit 1.

7.3  Territory Revision

You may not revise or amend your Territory (a “Territory Revision”) without our express written
consent, which we may withhold in our sole discretion. If you request and we approve of a Territory
Revision, you will pay us a fee of $1.000 if the Territory Revision is made within 30 days of delivery of
the BEV; or $2.500 if the Territory Revision is made between 31 and 90 days of delivery of the BEV. You
cannot request a Territory Revision more than 90 days the delivery of the BEV.

You may not relocate your Territory (a “Territory Relocation”) without our express written consent,
which we may approve or reject in our sole discretion. If you request and we approve of a Territory
Relocation, you agree to pay us a fee of $2,500.

If you wish to amend your Territory after the Effective Date, you must submit to us a written request
for approval of the proposed Territory Revision or Territory Relocation, which we may accept or reject in

{00169371.DOCX. } C-20
[2024 FA vIF]



our sole discretion. We may, but have no obligation to, grant such a written request in our sole discretion.
If we grant your request for a Territory Revision or Territory Relocation, in addition to payment of the
applicable fee by you, we may condition such approval on fulfillment of any conditions that we deem
reasonable.

7.4 Additional Equipment

We may make such additional equipment (‘““‘Additional Equipment”) available for purchase in the future
for use. The purchase of such Additional Equipment will be optional. If we make such Additional
Equipment available and you decide to purchase Additional Equipment, you will be required to pay us an
additional Royalty and other fees including the Brand Fund Contribution. The Royalty and Brand Fund
Contribution for Additional Equipment, if any, will depend on the type of Additional Equipment that you
operate and will be the then-current Royalty and Brand Fund Contribution for the Additional Equipment
that we charge and set forth in an amendment to this Franchise Agreement which will govern the terms of
the Additional Equipment, the current form of which is attached as Attachment D.

You may not transfer any Additional Equipment without our prior written consent. We may approve or
reject your request to transfer Additional Equipment in our sole discretion. In addition, we reserve the right
to condition our approval of a transfer on: (1) you being in good standing under this Franchise Agreement
at the time of transfer, (i1) you paying off any loans or debts related to the Additional Equipment; (iii)
Additional Equipment being modified in such a way to protect the System and/or any proprietary interests
or trade secrets we have in the Additional Equipment; (iv) that the purchaser of the Additional Equipment
be an existing Travelin’ Tom’s franchisee; and/or (v) such additional conditions that we deem reasonable
in the circumstances. If we approve of your request to transfer any Additional Equipment, then in addition
to any conditions to transfer that we impose, you agree to pay us a transfer fee of $1.000 per piece of
Additional Equipment that you transfer. You will be required to enter into an amendment to this Franchise
Agreement governing the terms of the Additional Equipment that you purchase.

| 2-8. TRAINING AND ASSISFANCE:CONFERENCES

4F—INFHAETRAINING-

| 8.1 Initial Training Program

You are requlred to complete our 1n1t1a1 tralnlng program at the tlmes and places we designate (“Initial
Training”).—tnitia 3 M _The
Managing Owner and if apphcable Desrgnated Manager ése%Seeﬁen—QF)—rnust attend and complete Inrtlal
Training to our satisfaction prior to the FravelinFom’s-Coffee FranchiseFranchised Business opening for
business (“Initial Training Deadline”). If you have purchased an existing FravelnFom’s—Ceoffee
Eranehisefranchised business pursuant to this Franchise Agreement, the Initial Training Deadline will be
the Effective Date.-

We will provide Initial Training at no cost for one attendee. Additional persons may attend Initial
Training atand will pay our then- current training fees.- We W111 pay for hotel and a1rfare for one attendee
to attend the Initial Training : 3
unless the %Era#el-m—"Pem—s—Fra-neh-lseFranchlsed Busmess is belng acqulred as the result ofa transfer You
are responsible for all other costs of attendance, including any and all travel and/or living expenses which
you or any other attendees incur.-. We reserve the right to charge a fee for providing training and may
require you to reimburse us for our associated costs and expenses. Any new Managing Owner or

Designated Manager must also complete Iattial Fraining-to-etrsatisfactionthe training required for all new
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managers before assuming responsibility for the management of your Fravelinr—Fem’sFranchised
Business.-_ If any of your attendees are unable to complete Initial Training to our satisfaction, we may
terminate this Franchise Agreement without refunding your Initial Franchise Fee.-_If you own multiple

Franchised Businesses, we will provide the Initial Training only for the first Franchised Business that you
open.

We reserve the right to vary the length and content of the Initial Training as we deem appropriate in our

sole discretion based on the experience of the attendee. We shall determine the scheduling, exact duration,
contents and manner of the Initial Training in our discretion and may delay your attendance until a suitable
time near the grand opening date for your Franchised Business in our discretion.

8.2 Additional Training

We may offer periodic refresher training courses or develop additional training courses. Attendance at
these training programs may be optional or mandatory. You may be required to pay our then-current fee

for this training as specified in our Brand Manual.

8.3 Requested Training

Upon your written request, we may provide additional assistance or training to you at a mutually

convenient time. You may be required to pay the then-current fee for this training as specified in our Brand
Manual.

8.4 Remedial Training

If we determine, in our sole discretion, that you are not operating your Franchised Business in
compliance with this Franchise Agreement and/or the Brand Manual, we may require that you, your

employees and other designees attend remedial training relevant to your operational deficiencies. Y ou must
pay us the then-current training fee as specified in our Brand Manual.

8.5 Conventions

We may hold periodic national or regional conferences to discuss various business issues and operational
and general business concerns affecting Travelin’ Tom’s franchisees. Attendance at these conferences may
be mandatory or optional. You are responsible for paying our then-current conference fee for any
conferences that attend.

8.6 Training Expenses

You are solely responsible for all expenses and costs that your trainees incur for all trainings and

conferences under this Section, including wages, travel, lodging, food and living expenses. You also agree
to reimburse us for all expenses and costs we incur to travel to your Franchised Business under this Section,

including travel, food, lodging and living expenses.
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9. OTHER ASSISTANCE

4K —Brand ManualONGOING TRAINING.

We will lend you our confidential Brand Manual (the “Brand Manual”) in text or electronic form for the
Term of this Franchise Agreement. The Brand Manual will help you establish and operate your Franchised
Business in accordance with the System. The information in the Brand Manual is confidential and
proprietary and may not be disclosed to third parties without our prior written approval. You agree to keep
your copy of the Brand Manual current and in a secure location The Brand Manual may be updated and
modified throughout the Term, both formally through amendments to the Brand Manual and informally
through email or other written materials we provide to you. You acknowledge that your compliance with
the Brand Manual is vitally important to us and other System franchisees andbecause it is necessary to
protect our reputation-and, the goodwill of the Marks, the Patent and te-maintain the uniform quality of

operation—However,-whie-the-the System.

You agree to establish and operate your Franchised Business strictly in accordance w1th the Brand
Manual. The Brand Manual may contam among other thmgs ( 1) a descriptionB+an A 0

services you may offer at your Franchlsed Busmess (i1) mandatorv and suggested specifications, operating

procedures, and quality standards for goods, products, services, that you use or offer at your Franchised
Business; (iii) policies and procedures we prescribe from time to time for our franchisees; (iv) mandatory
reporting and insurance requirements; (v) policies and procedures pertaining to refleet-changesin-System
Standardsany gift card program we establish: and (vi) a written list of furniture, fixtures, equipment,
products and services (or specifications for such items) you must purchase for the development and
operation of your Franchised Business and a list of any designated or approved suppliers for such items.
The Brand Manual establishes and protects our brand standards and the uniformity and quality of the
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products and services offered by our franchisees. We can modify the Brand Manual at any time. The
modifications will become binding as soon as we send you notice of the modification. All mandatory
provisions in the Brand Manual (whether they are included now or in the future) are binding on you.

a oree-toleepnzo OPV—O he B nd- N an r1ron ndan e el on haora d

misappropriate, all or some of the Brand Manual, you will be required to pay us liquidated damages to
offset the damages we will incur as a result of this misappropriation. These liquidated damages are
determined by taking our total revenue from our previous fiscal year, multiplied by the fraction which
results from taking one divided by the current number of Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees as of the date
of the misappropriation, except that this fee will not, under any circumstances, be less than $30,000.

_At our option, we may post some or all of the Brand Manual on a restricted website or extranet to which
you will have access. If we do so, you agree to monitor and access the website or extranet for any updates
to the Brand Manual or System Standardsstandards. Any passwords or other digital identifications
necessary to access the Brand Manual on a website or extranet will be deemed part of Confidential
Information (defined n-Seetten7below).
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While the Brand Manual is intended to protect our reputation and goodwill of the Marks, you will be
responsible for the day-to-day operation of your Franchised Business and the Brand Manual is not designed
to control the day-to-day operation of the Franchised Business.

9.2  General Guidance

We will, upon reasonable request, provide advice or guidance regarding your Franchised Business’s
operation based on reports or inspections or discussions with you. We will provide reasonable marketing
consulting, guidance and support throughout the Term we deem appropriate. Any advice will be given
during our regular business hours and via written materials, electronic media, telephone or other methods,
in our discretion.

We maintain a staff to manage and operate the Travelin’ Tom’s System and our staff members can
change as employees come and go. We cannot guarantee the continued participation by or employment of
any of our shareholders, directors, officers, employees or staff.

9.3  Website

We will maintain a website for Franchised Businesses (‘“System Website”) that will include the
information about your Franchised Business we deem appropriate. We may modify the content of and/or
discontinue the System Website at any time in our sole discretion. We are only required to reference your
Franchised Business on our System Website while you are in full compliance with this Franchise
Agreement and all System standards. We must approve all content about your Franchised Business. We
will own the System Website (including any webpages for your Franchised Business) and domain names.
We intend that any franchisee website will be accessed only through this System Website. Y ou must obtain
and use at least one Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee email address from us. You must pay us and initial fee and
our then-current fee for each email address you obtain, which is currently due at the same time as your
Royalty. We reserve the right to increase this fee upon 30 days’ written notice to you. You must maintain
at least one unique email address for each ”’Find a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Mini Website” that you maintain.
You must have access to and utilize our approved accounting software and any other software that we
require you to use.

9.4 Supplier Agreements

We may, but are not required to, negotiate agreements with suppliers to obtain products or services for
our franchisees. If we negotiate an agreement, we may arrange for you to purchase the products directly
from the supplier. We may receive rebates from these suppliers based on your purchases. We may also
purchase certain items from suppliers in bulk and resell them to you at our cost (including overhead and
salaries), plus shipping fees and a reasonable markup, in our sole discretion.

|_10. MANAGEMENT AND STAFFING

| 10.1 Owner Participation

If you are an Entity, you must designate an Owner who will be principally responsible for
communicating with us about the Franchised Business (“Managing Owner”). If you are an individual, you
are the Managing Owner. The Managing Owner must have the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day operations of your Franchised Business and must have at least 51% equity. You acknowledge that a
major requirement for the success of your Franchised Business is the active, continuing and substantial
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personal involvement and hands-on supervision by your Managing Owner, who must at all times be actively
involved in operating the Franchised Business on a full-time basis and provide in-person and supervision,

unless we permit you to delegate management functions to a Designated Manager, see below. If you

appoint a new Managing Owner, the new Managing Owner, must attend and successfully complete our
then-current initial training program.

& F—Designated ManagerMANAGEMENT—OFE —THE TRAVEHIN"—TOM’S COFFEE
FRANCHISE:

| 10.2

Subject to this Section, the Managing Owner shall directly supervise and participate in the day-to-day
operation of the FravelnFom’s-Coffee EranchiseFranchised Business during the term of this Franchise
Agreement. At your request, we may, but are not obligated to, agree for you to employ a Designated
Manager after the first 60 days of operation (other than the Franchisee/Managing Owner) to operate the
Fravelin™Tom’s—CoffeeFranchise-Franchised Business. The term “Designated Manager” means an
individual with primary day-to-day responsibility for the FravelinFom’s-Coffee Franchise’sFranchised
Business’ operations, and may be you (if you are an individual) or an Owner, officer, director, or employee
of yours (if you are other than an individual). The Designated Manager shall have similar responsibilities
as a Managing Owner. You must deliver to us an amended Attachment AB accurately identifying such
appointed Designated Manager. The Designated Manager will be obligated to devote his or her full time,
best efforts, and constant personal attention to the Fravelin™Fom’s-Coffee Eranchise’sFranchised Business’
operations, and must have full authority in order to comply with this Franchise Agreement. You must not
hire any Designated Manager or successor Designated Manager without first receiving our written approval
of such Designated Manager’s qualifications. Each Designated Manager must attend and complete our
Initial Training (as—detatled—in—Seetion—-S5—of thisFEranchise—Agreement)and sign a System Protection
Agreement, the current form of which is attached to the Franchise Disclosure Document asin Exhibit HI.
You must forward to us a copy of each such signed agreement. If we determine, in our sole discretion,
during or following completion of the Initial Training program, that your Designated Manager (if any) is
not qualified to act as designated manager of the FravelinFom s-Coffee FranchiseFranchised Business,
then we have the right to require you to choose (and obtain our approval of) a new individual for that
position. If you are required to appoint a new Designated Manager, you must do so within 30 days of the
termination of the previous Designated Manager.

10.3 Staff

You must determine appropriate staffing levels for your Franchised Business to ensure full compliance
with this Franchise Agreement and our System standards. You are solely responsible to hire, train and
supervise employees or independent contractors to assist you with the proper operation of the Franchised
Business. You must pay all wages, commissions, fringe benefits, worker’s compensation premiums and
payroll taxes (and other withholdings levied or fixed by any city, state or federal governmental agency, or
otherwise required by law) due for your employees or as applicable, for your independent contractors.
These employees and independent contractors will be your employees or contractors, not ours. We do not
control the day-to-day activities of your employees or independent contractors or the manner in which they
perform their assigned tasks. You must inform your employees and independent contractors you are
exclusively responsible for supervising their activities and dictating the manner in which they perform their
assigned tasks. In this regard, you must use your legal business entity name (not our Marks or a fictitious
name) on all employee applications, paystubs, pay checks, employment agreements, consulting agreements,
time cards and similar items.
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You must hire and supervise efficient, competent, and courteous persons as vour employees for the
operation of your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise. You must require all your employees to work in clean
uniforms approved by us, but furnished at your cost or the employees’ cost as you may determine. You
understand and acknowledge it is your responsibility to hire and supervise a satisfactory number of
employees in order to efficiently operate the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Business and meet your obligations
under this Franchise Agreement.

You have sole responsibility and authority for all employment-related decisions, including employee
selection and promotion, firing, hours worked, rates of pay and other benefits, work assignments, training
and working conditions, compliance with wage and hour requirements, personnel policies, recordkeeping,
supervision and discipline. We will not provide you with any advice or guidance on these matters. You
must require your employees and independent contractors to review and sign any acknowledgment form
we prescribe that explains the nature of the franchise relationship and notifies the employee or independent
contractor that you are his or her sole emplovyer. You agree that any direction you receive from us regarding
employment/engagement policies should be considered as examples, that you alone are responsible for
establishing and implementing your own policies, and that you understand that you should do so in
consultation with local legal counsel competent in employment law. Your employees hired working for
you will be your employees alone and will not, for any purpose, be deemed our employees or subject to our
control, including with respect to any mandated or other insurance coverage, tax, or contributions, or
requirements pertaining to withholdings, levied or fixed by any city, state, or federal governmental agency.
You agree to inform each of your employees that you alone are the employer, and that we are not. You and
we will file our own tax, regulatory, and payroll reports, and be responsible for all employee benefits and
workers compensation payments with respect to our respective employees and operations, and we will save
and indemnify one another of and from any liability of any nature whatsoever by virtue thereof.
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9— MARKEFING-

3:11. BRAND FUND €ONTRIBUTIONS

Fund is used to promote public awareness of our brand and to improve our System. You are required to
pay the Brand Fund Contribution. The Brand Fund may be administered by us or our affiliate or designees,
at our discretion. We may use the Brand Fund for any expenditure that we, in our sole discretion, deem
necessary or appropriate to promote or improve the System or the Travelin’® Tom’s brand. We may
incorporate the Brand Fund or operate it through a separate entity whenever we deem appropriate.

To illustrate, these may include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) developing, maintainin
administering, directing, preparing or reviewing advertising and marketing materials, promotions and
programs, including social media management; (i1) public awareness of any of the Marks; (iii) public and
consumer relations and publicity; (iv) brand development; (v) research and development of technology,

roducts and services; (vi) website development (including social media) and search engine optimization;
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(vi1) development and implementation of quality control programs and other reputation management
functions; (viii) conducting market research; (ix) changes and improvements to the System; (x) the fees and
expenses of any advertising agency we engage to assist in producing or conducting advertising or marketing
efforts; (x1) the proportionate salary share of our employees that devote time and provide services for

advertisin romotion, collection, accounting or administration of the Brand Fund; (xii) preparing and

distributing financial accountings of the Brand Fund; (xiii) training tools: and (xiv) our and our affiliates’

expenses associated with direct or indirect labor, administrative, overhead, or other expenses incurred in
relation to any of these activities.

ta——We have sole discretion in determining the content, concepts, materials, andmedia,

endorsements-used-and-their seographie; marketand-media, frequency, placement
and-aHeoeation-

b)——We—will-acecountfor, location, and all other matters pertaining to any of the

foregoing activities. Any surplus of monies in the Brand Fund may be invested.
Any unused funds collected in any calendar year will be applied to the following
year’s funds, and we reserve the right to contribute or loan additional funds to the

Brand Fund separatelyfrom-our-otherfunds-andnetuse-theon any terms we deem
reasonable. The Brand Fund fer-eurgeneral-operating-expenses:

fe)—We—deis not_a trust, and we have anyno fiduciary ebligatien—fer
administeringobligations to you regarding our administration of the Brand Fund.

Fhe Brand-Fund-We may spend inany-fiseal-yyear-more or less than the total Brand
Fund payments in that year, berrow—from—us—orothers-lend to the Brand Fund
(paying reasonable interest) to cover deficits, or invest any surplus funds for future
use. We will use all interest earned on Brand Fund payments to pay costs before
using the Brand Fund’s other assets.

_We will prepare an annual, unaudited statement of Brand Fund collections and expenses and give you

the statement W1th1n 45 days upon the rece1pt of a written request W&ma&meefpefateth%BPaﬂd—Fm&d—ef

eempfeme—aﬂ—elam—by—er—agamt—ln or affectmg anV geographlc area are
propomonate or equlvalent to the Brand Fund—E*eept—&s—aepressl—y—pfeﬂéed—m

Contrlbutlon bV our franchlsees operatlng in that geographlc area or that anV of
our franchisees benefit directly or in proportion to their Brand Fund-

A ~ § § ) Contribution.
We reserve the right to change merge, re-form or dissolve the Brand Fund in our dlscretlon We will not
use the Brand Fund andfor advertising principally for the solicitation for the sale of Franchises, but we
reserve the right to include a notation in any advertisement or website indicating “franchises available or
similar phrasing. We may, upon 30 days’ prior written notice to you, reduce or suspend Brand Fund
paymentsContribution and operations for one or more periods of any length and terminate (ands—f
terminated;/or reinstate) the Brand Fund. H-we-terminate-We will spend all amounts before any termination

{00169371.DOCX. } C-40
[2024 FA vIF]



All advertisements and promotions you create or use must be completely factual and conform to the

highest standards of ethical advertising and comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and
You must ensure that your

regulations and our standards and requirements in the Brand Manual.
advertisements and promotional materials do not infringe upon the intellectual property or legal rights of

others. You may not advertise in any media whose primary circulation is outside of the Territory without
our permission unless the advertisement is part of a cooperative advertising program.

12.2 Promeotional Programs

H——We may periodically create advertising and sales promotion programs and
materials atne-eost:

—We-intendenhance the BrandFund-to—maximize recognition—of the Marks—and
patrenagecollective success of Fravelin—Fom s-Coffee Eranchises—Although—we

> 5 :
n-adverticinoand—m etino mater: N
paay -ahd a 2 d a ahnd

C-41
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Counet-in-oursole-diseretionfromour-all Travelin’ Tom’s franchisees #operating under the System. ks

relevantinformation—regarding such-marketreseareh—You must conduct and participate in promotional
campaigns (the “Promotions”) which may from time to time be required, and you must conduct and
participate in those Promotions in accordance with our policies and procedures. This may include requiring
you to offer free products to customers on certain days or providing coupons (not to exceed $500 per year
unless authorized by the Ad-Council, if established). The value of Promotions you must offer may be
increased at any time upon super-majority (75%) of the Ad-Council, if established, and upon 30 days’ notice
to you, but will not exceed $1,500 per calendar year. If we require you to conduct and participate in any
Promotion, we reserve the right (but we are not required) to use a portion of the Brand Fund to help Fravelin™
Fom’s-Coffee Franechisesour franchisees defray a portion of any costs attributable to the Promotions. If we
exercise this right, we will use the Brand Fund on a pro rata basis.

You agree, at your sole cost and expense, to issue and offer such rebates, giveaways, and other
promotions in accordance with advertising programs established by us, and further agree to honor the
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rebates, giveaways, and other promotions issued by other Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees under any
such program, so long as such compliance does not contravene any applicable law, rule, or regulation. You
will not create or issue any gift cards/certificates and will only sell gift cards/certificates that have been
1ssued or sponsored by us and which are accepted at all franchised businesses, and you will not issue
coupons or discounts of any type except as approved by us.

12.3  Marketing Materials

You must order any sales and marketing material from us, or our designated suppliers (which may be
an affiliate), that we require. We may create and make available to you, advertising and other marketing
materials. We may charge you for these materials. We may make these materials available over the Internet
(in which case you must arrange for printing the materials and paying all printing costs). We may also enter
into relationships with third party suppliers who will create the advertising or marketing materials for your

purchase.

|12.4 Approval

We must approve all advertising and promotional materials that-we did not prepare or previously
approve (including materials that-we prepared or approved; and you modify).) before you use them. We

will be deemed to have disapproved the materials if we fail to issue our witten-approval within 30 days
after receipt. You may not use any advertising or promotional materials that we have disapproved

(1nclud1ng materlals that we prev10usly approved and later dlsapprove) Al—l—aelvemsmg—nws{—b%eleaf—

fer—reﬂew—lf you use anV advertising or promotlonal materlals that are not am)roved by us ( 1nclud1ng
materials that we previously approved and later disapprove) then, in addition to any other remedies under
this Franchise Agreement, you will pay us an unauthorized advertising fee of $1,000 per occurrence.

12.5 Grand Opening Advertising

Although you are encouraged to engage in grand opening advertising, you do not have to spend any
minimum amount on grand opening advertising to promote your Franchised Business.

12.6 Local Advertising Requirement

Although you are encouraged to engage in local advertising, you do not have to spend any minimum
amount on local advertising to promote your Franchised Business. You agree to participate in our market
research programs, test marketing new food products and services at the Franchised Business and providing
us with timely reports and other relevant information regarding such market research.

12.7 Online Advertising

You may not maintain a separate website, conduct e-commerce, or otherwise maintain a presence on the
Internet in connection with your Franchised Business without our express written permission, which we
may revoke at any time, in our sole discretion. Any website we permit you to establish will be subject to
all of your marketing and advertising requirements under this Franchise Agreement and the Brand Manual.

If you wish to utilize social media or advertise via-theInternet-or-a-worldwide-web-page-unless—we have
avthorized-yotto-do-so-in-writing—Any-such-advertising-online, you must follow asyour online policy that
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may—be—contarned in our Brand Manual. _Our onhne polrcy may change as technology and the Internet
changes. : : : We may require
that you utilize our designated sumoher for social medla rnarketln,q services, at your expense. You may not

use the Marks in any fundralslng campaign, 1nclud1ng aH—&se—e#websrtes—demam—n&mes—seareh—teehmques—
: - rowdfundlng We may restrict your use of

We restrict your ab111ty to independently market on the Internet or—and we may not allow you to use any
domain name, address, locator, link, metatag; or search technique with words or symbols that-are-similar to
the Marks. We-intend

12.8 Adyvisory Council

We may form, change, merge or dissolve an advisory council (“Council”) at any time, in our sole
discretion, to advise us on advertising policies and to promote communications between us and all
franchisees. Any such Council will be governed by bylaws that will specify that anyfranchisee—website
wil-be-aceessedmembers of the Council would consist of both franchisees and franchisor representatives
and will specify how members are selected, subject to any changes to such bylaws or structure we deem

necessary in our sole dlscretlon Any Council would serve in an advrsory capa01ty only—threagh—ea—r—heme

&sage—agreements—rﬂreqﬂested—by—&s— If we appomt you to the Counc11 you agree to join, partrcmate in,

and actively support the Council. Your Brand Fund Contributions may be increased or decreased at any
time upon super-majority (75%) approval of the Council, upon 30 days’ notice to you. We may grant the
Council any operation or decision-making powers we deem appropriate.
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12.9 sE-Lead Program |

We operate a digital marketing service to manage the placement of digital ads (the “E-Lead Program™)
that you may elect to use. If you elect to use the E-Lead Program, in addition to the actual costs of the
digital advertisements themselves, you agree to pay us an annual administrative fee (the “E-Lead Fee”) of
$250 for E-Lead Lite or $500 for E-Lead Plus. Your E-Lead Fee shall be paid when you enroll in the E-
Lead Program, and shall be paid annually on the anniversary date of your enrollment. The E-Lead Program
is currently optional, and you may un-enroll from the E-Lead Program at any time upon 30 days’ written
notice to us. Any E-Lead Fees paid to us are non-refundable under any circumstances. We reserve the right
to require yourenrelmentyou to enroll in the E-Lead Program in the future, upon 60 days’ written notice
to you. We further reserve the right to discontinue the E-Lead Program, increase the fees and costs
associated with the E-Lead Program, or otherwise revise the terms and conditions of the E-Lead Program
at any time, in our sole discretion.

| Fhe limited-time-offercampaignis-Limited Time Offer Campaign

We have a flavor and marketing campaign (“Limited Time Offer Campaign™) currently offered in the

Spring, Summer and Fall. Each-kitis-eurrently-$150-t0-$500You must participate in each Limited Time

Offer Campaign, and inelades-you must purchase Kkits that include flavoring and marketing materials—We
from us at our then current pricing Whlch We reserve the rlght to 1ncrease—th*s—fe%t—pe¥1%9—el—ays—wmen—te

| 13.  SYSTEM STANDARDS |

|13.1 Generally |

You agree to operate your Franchised Business: (i) in a manner that will promote the goodwill of the
Marks: and (i1) in full compliance with our standards and all other terms of this Franchise Agreement and
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the Brand Manual. Any required standards exist to protect our interests in the System and the Marks, and
not for the purpose of establishing any control or duty to take control over those matters that are reserved
to you. The required standards generally will be in the Brand Manual or other written materials and may
be periodically modified over the Term. To protect our interests in the System and Marks, we reserve the
right to determine if you are meeting a required standard and whether an alternative is suitable to any
recommendations or guidelines.

We may, from time to time, make suggestions to you regarding your pricing policies in compliance with
applicable laws. We retain the right to establish minimum and maximum prices to be charged by you
subject to applicable laws, but any exercise of that right will be specifically set forth in writing. It is
furthermore understood and agreed that any list or schedule of prices furnished to you by us may unless
otherwise specifically stated as to the minimum or maximum price be treated as a recommendation only
and failure to accept or implement any such suggestion may not in any way affect the relationship between

you and us.

13.2 Authorized Products and Services

The products or services offered by the Franchised Business are subject to change and we do not
represent that your Franchised Business will always be permitted or required to offer all of the products or
services currently offered. You agree to offer all products and services we require from time to time. You
may not develop or offer any other products or services at your Franchised Business without our prior
written permission. We may, without obligation to do so, add, modify or delete authorized products and
services, and you must do the same upon notice from us. You may incur additional expenses to offer new
products or services. Our addition, modification or deletion of one or more products or services shall not
constitute a termination of this Franchise Agreement. You will not enter into any agreements with any third
parties that can process orders for you on your behalf without our express written permission, which we
may revoke at any time, in our sole discretion. We may, but are not required to, create Travelin’ Tom’s
proprietary products for sale at your Franchised Business. If we develop any of these products, you agree
to maintain a reasonable inventory of these items at all times.

13.3 Suppliers and Purchasing

You agree to purchase or lease all products, supplies, equipment, services, and other items specified in
the Brand Manual. If required by the Brand Manual, you agree to purchase or lease certain products and
services only from suppliers designated or approved by us (which may include, or be limited exclusively
to, us or our affiliates). You acknowledge that our right to specify the suppliers you may use and add or
remove suppliers is necessary and desirable so we can control the uniformity and quality of products and
services used, sold or distributed in connection with the development and ongoing operation of your
Franchised Business, maintain the confidentiality of our trade secrets, obtain discounted prices for our
franchisees if we choose to do so, and protect the reputation and goodwill associated with the System and
the Marks. If we receive rebates or other financial consideration from these suppliers based upon your
purchases or any other of our franchisee’s purchases, we have no obligation to pass these amounts on to
you or to use them for your benefit. If we do not require you to use a designated source or approved supplier
for a particular item, you may purchase the item from any vendor you choose so long as your purchases
conform to our System and specifications. We may restrict the sourcing of current and future items. You
agree to maintain an adequate inventory of all items in accordance with the Brand Manual.

If you wish to purchase any items or supplies from a supplier we have not approved or wish to offer any
new product or service we have not authorized in writing, you must send us a written notice specifying the
supplier’s name and qualifications or product or service information and provide any additional information
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we request. We will approve or reject your request within 30 days after we receive your notice and all
additional information (and samples) that we require. If we fail to issue our approval within the 30-day
period, it will have the same effect as a rejection to the request. You must reimburse us for all costs and
expenses we incur in reviewing a proposed supplier within ten days after invoicing. We may revoke
approval of any supplier, product or service in our sole discretion in which case you must stop purchasing
from such supplier.

| 13.4 Egquipment Maintenance and Changes

You agree that our ability to require Travelin’ Tom’s franchisees to make significant changes to their
BEV (and any Additional Equipment) is critical to our ability to administer and change the System and to
maintain the Travelin’ Tom’s brand’s image of cleanliness, efficiency and quality. You agree to proactively
maintain, modify, repair and upfit your BEV (and any Additional Equipment) over time to meet our
standards.

Should we determine that the cleanliness or appearance of your BEV (and any Additional Equipment)
fall below our standards, you must promptly address the issue at your sole cost and expense. This includes
repairing any damages. updating equipment, and refreshing the BEV’s (and any Additional Equipment's)
aesthetic to maintain a "like new" condition and to meet our then-current standards and with the Brand
Manual.

You acknowledge and agree that your BEV (and any Additional Equipment) will depreciate, damage,
wear out and become obsolete over time and that, depending on the age, mileage, condition and features of
your BEV (and any Additional Equipment), we may require that you replace, repair, retrofit or upfit these
items in accordance with our then-current standards and the Brand Manual over time. We reserve the right
to require refurbishment, retrofitting and upfitting of the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) to align
with the latest branding and image standards in accordance with our directives and with the Brand Manual.
Such refurbishment, retrofitting and upfitting may involve significant changes, replacements, modifications
and new equipment, as well as any other updates specified by us. You further agree to purchase a
replacement BEV (and any Additional Equipment) whenever these items no longer meet our standards.
You must purchase a new BEV (and any Additional Equipment) within 30 days of our notice to you or such
other time period that we designate. You must commence all maintenance and remodeling promptly upon
recelving our notice and complete it within 60 days, or such other time period that we designate. You are
solely responsible for all associated costs and expenses.

If the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) is damaged in an accident, totaled or is otherwise deemed
unable to operate by you or by us in our discretion, then you agree to perform all repairs or obtain all a
replacement BEV (and any Additional Equipment) at your sole cost and expense within 60 days or such
other time period that we designate.

You acknowledge and agree that vehicle repairs and maintenance may occasionally result in unforeseen
mechanical issues. In such cases, you will notify us of any issues encountered and provide reasonable
opportunity for us to rectify the problem. You further agree that routine maintenance and occasional repairs

are necessary for the proper functioning of the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) and agree to bear any

associated costs unless such issues arise directly from our gross negligence or willful misconduct.

You acknowledge and agree that your BEV (and any Additional Equipment) and/or your entire
Franchised Business may not be operational during the time that maintenance, repairs, upfits, retrofits or
replacement occurs under this Section, which could be for a significant period of time. You also
acknowledge and agree that replacing your BEV and/or other Additional Equipment may be delayed and is
subject to availability. During such time periods, you acknowledge and agree that we are not responsible
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or liable to you for any loss of revenue, profits or damages experienced by your Franchised Business. You
agree that we shall not be liable for any mechanical issues or damages incurred by you as a result of such
repairs, upfits, retrofits or maintenance. You also agree that we will not be responsible for any
manufacturing or mechanical issues.

You agree to fully cooperate with us and our affiliates with all obligations under this Section.

13.5 Hours of Operation

You must keep your Franchised Business open for the minimum hours and minimum days of operation
as specified in the Brand Manual, which may change over the Term. We may require you to establish

specific hours of operation and submit those hours to us for approval.

13.6 Customer Issues

You acknowledge the importance to the System and uniform standards of quality, service and customer
satisfaction, and recognize the necessity of opening and operating a Franchised Business in conformity with
the System. You agree to manage the Franchised Business in an ethical and honorable manner and ensure
that all those working at the Franchised Business provide courteous and professional service to customers.
If you receive a customer complaint, you must promptly follow the complaint resolution process we specify
to protect the goodwill associated with the Marks. Also, if we are contacted by a customer of your
Franchised Business who wishes to lodge a complaint, we reserve the right to address the customer’s
complaint to preserve goodwill and prevent damage to the Marks. Our right to address complaints may
include refunding money to a dissatisfied customer, in which case you must reimburse us for these amounts
including the value of any gift card, refund or other value we provide to the customer as part of addressing
the issue.

We may contact any customer of your Franchised Business at any time for any purpose. We, or our
authorized representative, shall have the right, during regular business hours, or at such other times as may
be mutually agreed upon by you and us, to inspect all client lists and documents and records related to the
Franchised Business. Upon reasonable request, you must furnish to us in whatever format we require, all
client information and records for the Franchised Business, both active and inactive, which shall include,
but not be limited to, names, addresses, and telephone numbers of such clients (“Customer List”). You
acknowledge and agree that we are the sole owner of the Customer List and that you shall not use the
Customer List for any purpose other than for the operation of the Franchised Business or distribute, in any
form or manner, the Customer List to any third party without our prior written consent.

13.7 Standards Compliance

You acknowledge the importance of every standard and operating procedures to the reputation and
integrity of the System and the goodwill associated with the Marks. If you fail to follow any of the System
standards, we may send you a notice of violation and charge you a fee of $1.000 for you first violation and
an additional $5,000 if you fail to comply with the System standard in the notice of violation within 30 days
of the date of our notice. We may charge you a fee of $5.000 for each additional violation after your first.
These fees are in addition to any and all remedies that we have available under this Franchise Agreement,
including but not limited to termination.

13.8 Payment Vendors and Data Security
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You agree to maintain, at all times, credit card relationships with the credit and debit card issuers or
sponsors, check or credit verification services, financial center services, payment providers, merchant
service providers, loyalty and gift cards, and electronic fund transfer systems (together, “Payment
Vendors”) that we may periodically designate as mandatory. The term “Payment Vendors” includes,
among other things, companies that provide services for electronic payment. You agree not to use any
Payment Vendor for which we have not given you our prior written approval or as to which we have revoked
our earlier approval. We may modify our requirements and designate additional approved or required
methods of payment and vendors for processing such payments, and to revoke our approval of any service
provider. You agree to comply with the then-current Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards as
those standards may be revised and modified by the PCI Security Standards Council, LLC, or any successor
organization or standards we may reasonably specify. You agree to implement the enhancements, security
requirements and other standards that PCI Security Standards Council, LLC (or its successor) requires of a
merchant that accepts payment by credit and/or debit cards or electronic payments.

13.9 Gift Cards and Lovalty Programs

You agree to participate in our gift card and loyalty programs, if any, and agree to make gift cards and
loyalty programs available for purchase and redemption at your Franchised Business subject to the policies
and procedures in the Brand Manual.

Privacy

You agree to comply with all applicable international, federal, state and local laws pertaining to the
privacy of customer, employee and transactional information (“Privacy Laws”). You agree to research and

proactively ensure that your Franchised Business is in compliance with Privacy Laws, which may vary
depending on the location of your Franchised Business. You also agree to comply with our standards and
policies pertaining to Privacy Laws. You agree to inform us of any conflict between our standards and
policies and any local or state Privacy Laws that govern your Franchised Business to ensure that your
conduct complies with all those local or state Privacy Laws.

| 13.11 Mystery Shopper

We may require you to conduct a self-shop by sending us photos of your BEV (and any Additional
Equipment). If the results of the self-shop are unsatisfactory, or you do not participate in the self-shop, we
may send a third-party mystery shopper to conduct a mystery shop. We also may inspect your BEV (and
any Additional Equipment) at any time. You agree to fully cooperate with any such inspection. If the
results of any mystery shopper determine that your Franchised Business is in violation of any System
standard and we inspect your Franchised Business, we will conduct a mystery shop of your Franchised
Business, you must pay us a fee of $1,000 to cover our travel and expenses. You will also be subject to
non-compliance fees set forth in Section 13.7. Alternatively, we may be invoiced by the mystery shopper
or quality assurance firm, in which case you must pay your proportional share of the total fee based on
number of inspections performed. You agree to pay us this fee within ten days after invoicing.

Remodeling

You agree to remodel and make all improvements and alterations to your Franchised Business we
reasonably require from time to time to reflect our then-current image, appearance specifications. There is
no limitation on the cost of any remodeling that we may require.
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Beverage Entertainment Vehicle

You must purchase the BEV from us or our affiliate. You will pay the current cost of the BEV in effect
at the time of delivery, which may increase from the time of the signing of this Franchise Agreement. You
will pay a non-refundable $5.000 deposit when you sign this Franchise Agreement and pay the entire
remaining balance in full when you take delivery of your BEV. The BEV deposit is in addition to the Initial
Franchise Fee. If this Franchise Agreement is entered into under an Area Development Agreement, then
you may receive a credit towards the BEV and any credit would be based on the terms of your Area
Development Agreement with us. BEV payments are non-refundable. You may not utilize any other truck
or vehicle, other than the BEV (and any Additional Equipment), in the operation of your Franchised
Business, and the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) must only be used for the operation of your
Franchised Business and not for any other purpose. You must operate at least one BEV and may operate
multiple BEVs in the Territory if we allow you to sign additional franchise agreements with us. Currently,
we require that the BEV be upfitted every seven years.

Although all BEVs will follow a consistent theme, the details of design may differ, often based upon
local requirements and you agree that your BEV may not be identical to those of other franchisees. If
modifications to the BEV are necessary to comply with applicable local laws and/or ordinances, you may
be required to pay a fee to us or our affiliate for the costs and expenses in making the necessary
modifications to the BEV. You will also be required to purchase an initial inventory of Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee equipment, uniforms, and supplies from us or our affiliates when you purchase the BEV. These
payments are non-refundable.

You must find a location to store the BEV (and any Additional Equipment), which may be at your
residence if permitted. You must use our approved supplier for the window tinting, wrapping, and upfitting
of your BEV. Any person who drives your BEV must be 18 years of age or older and have a valid driver’s
license, and each of vyour BEVs must be properly licensed, registered and insured. 16-H:
—UNAUTHORIZED ADVERTISING EEE

We-Should your BEV (or any Additional Equipment) be subject to a manufacturer’s vehicle safety
recall, you must appreve-immediately notify us in writing and perform the required repairs, maintenance,
and/or inspections at your sole cost and expense before using your BEV (or any Additional Equipment) in
the operation of your Franchised Business. You acknowledge and agree that we are not responsible for any
obligations or costs associated with the operation of the BEV (and any Additional Equipment), including
any safety recall.

Your BEV must meet our then-current standards that we specify and that are contained in the Brand
Manual. You must not use the BEV for any purpose other than the operation of your Franchised Business.
You agree to: (i) decorate and wrap your BEV under our then-current System standards, and at our request,
periodically update or improve the decoration and wraps of the BEV (any such updates or improvements
must be made within 30 days of our delivery of notice to you that such updates or improvements must be
made); (ii) maintain the condition of the BEV consistent with the image of a Franchised Business and in
accordance with the System standards; (ii1) not sell or otherwise transfer the BEV without first removing
all of the Marks from the BEV; and (iv) obtain and maintain all appropriate permits, business and contractor
licenses and certifications including but not limited to valid driver’s licenses for all drivers and current
vehicle registrations for the BEV used in the Franchised Business. During the Term, you agree to take the
following actions: (A) thoroughly clean, repaint, and redecorate the interior and exterior of the BEV( and
any Additional Equipment) at intervals we prescribe: (B) repair the interior and exterior of the BEV (and
any Additional Equipment; and (C) at our request, to periodically improve and modify the BEV and any
Additional Equipment) to conform to the then-current System standards. You will place or display on the
BEV (and any Additional Equipment), only those signs, emblems, designs, artwork, lettering, logos, and
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display and advertising and-premetional-materials we did-not-prepare-or—previousty-approve{inclading
rraterials-we-prepared-er-approve from time to time. If at any time in our reasonable judgment, the general

state of repair, appearance, or cleanliness of the BEV, (and any Additional Equipment of the Franchised

Business) or its fixtures, furnishings, equipment, assets, or signs does not meet our standards, we may notify

you and specify the action you must take to correct the deficiency. You agree to fully de-identify any BEV
(and any Additional Equipment) you no longer utilize. These corrective actions will be performed at your

sole expense.

14. TECHNOLOGY

| 14.1 Technology

You must utilize the technology, including software, computer hardware and components, point of sale
system, cash register(s), communication equipment, and other related accessories or peripheral equipment
(collectively, “Technology”) that we require. We may change the Technology you must use for your
Franchised Business at any time. You will utilize the Technology with the Franchised Business under our
policies and procedures in the Brand Manual. You must pay the Technology Fee for the use of certain
technologies used in the operation of your Franchlsed Business. For other requlred Technologv, you agree
at your expense to use any approved

supphers of thlS Technologv at any tlme in our sole dlscretlon You W111 at your expense, Durchase and

maintain any required communication services, Internet services (including the requirement to maintain a
high-speed Internet connection), dedicated telephone and power lines. You acknowledge and agree that
changes to Technology are dynamic and not predictable within the Term of this Franchise Agreement;ret
willpay-an-. To provide for inevitable but unpredictable changes to technological needs and opportunities,
you agree that we may establish, in writing, reasonable new standards for implementing Technology in the
System and you agree to comply with those reasonable new standards we establish as if we periodically
revised this Section for that purpose. You will keep the Technology in good maintenance and repair, and
you will promptly install, at your expense, any additions, changes, modifications or substitutions to
Technology, as we may specify periodically. There is no limitation on the frequency and cost of your
obligation to maintain, update or upgrade your Technology or its components. You acknowledge that you
are solely responsible for protecting your Franchised Business from computer viruses, bugs, failures, data

breaches and attacks by hackers and other unauthorized advertisingfee-o£-$1,000-per-occurrence-to-the

Brand Fundintruders in the Technology.
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| 14.2 TRANSEFERProprietary Software

We may also develop proprietary software or technology that must be used by Travelin’ Tom’s
franchisees. If this occurs, you agree to enter into a license agreement with us (or an affiliate of ours) and
pay us (or our affiliate) commercially reasonable licensing, support and maintenance fees. The license
agreement will govern the terms under which you may utilize this software or technology. We also reserve
the right to enter into a master software or technology license agreement with a third-party licensor and
then sublicense the software or technology to you, in which case we may charge you for all amounts we
must pay to the licensor based on your use of the software or technology.

14.3  QOur Access

You will provide any assistance we require to connect to the Technology. We will have the right at any
time to retrieve data and other information from your Technology as we, in our sole discretion, deem
necessary or desirable. You shall ensure that we have access at all times to any Technology we request, at
your cost. You must provide us with any and all requested codes, passwords and information necessary to

access your Technology. You must receive our prior approval before changing such codes, passwords and
other necessary information.

| 4.15. TRANSFER BY US:
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This Franchise Agreement is fully assignable by us (without prior notice to you) and shall inure to the
benefit of any assignee(s) or other legal successor(s) to our interest in this Franchise Agreement; provided
that we shall, subsequent to any such assignment, remain liable for the performance of our obligations under
this Franchise Agreement up to the effective date of the assignment. We may also delegate some or all of
our obligations under this Franchise Agreement to one or more designees without assigning this Franchise
Agreement.

We may change our ownership or form and/or assign this Franchise Agreement and any other agreement
to a third party without restriction. After our assignment of this Franchise Agreement to a third party who
expressly assumes the obligations under this Franchise Agreement, we no longer will have any performance
or other obligations under this Franchise Agreement.
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| 16. ___yewTRANSFER BY YOU

| 16.1_Approval

For purposes of this Franchise Agreement, “Transfer” means any direct or indirect, voluntary or
involuntary (including by judicial award, order or decree) assignment, sale, conveyance, subdivision
sublicense or other transfer or disposition of the Franchise Agreement, the Franchised Business (or any
portion thereof), or a direct or indirect ownership interest in an Entity that is the franchisee (or any interest
therein), including by merger or consolidation, by issuance of additional securities representing an
ownership interest in the Entity that is the franchisee, or by operation of law, will or a trust upon the death
of an Owner (including the laws of intestate succession).
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Neither you nor any Owner may engage in any Transfer without our prior written approval. Any
Transfer without our approval shall be void and constitute a breach of this Franchise Agreement. Our
consent to a Transfer shall not constitute a waiver of any claims we may have against you or the Owners,
nor shall it be deemed a waiver of our right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms or conditions
of the Franchise Agreement by the transferee.

16.2 Our Right of First Refusal

If you or an Owner desires to engage in a Transfer, you or the Owner, as applicable, must obtain a bona
fide, signed written offer from the fully disclosed purchaser and submit an exact copy of the offer to us.
We will have 30 days after receipt of the offer to decide whether we will purchase the Franchised Business
(our “Right of First Refusal”). If we notify you that we intend to purchase the Franchised Business within
such 30-day period, you or the Owner, as applicable, must sell the Franchised Business to us on the same
terms as contained in the offer you received; provided that we may substitute cash for any non-cash form
of payment proposed in the offer.

We will have at least an additional 30 days to conduct a due diligence review and to prepare for closing.
You agree to provide us with all information and records we request about the Franchised Business, and
we will have the absolute right to terminate the obligation to purchase the Franchised Business for any
reason during the due diligence period. You and we will act in good faith to agree on the terms and
conditions of the written offer, and closing will take place on the 61% day following receipt of your offer.
We will be entitled to receive from you or the Owner, as applicable, all customary representations and
warranties given by you as the seller of the assets or the Owner as the seller of the ownership interest or, at
our election, the representations and warranties contained in the offer. If we do not exercise our right of
first refusal, you or the Owner, as applicable, may complete the Transfer to the purchaser pursuant to and
on the terms of the offer, subject to the requirements of this Section (including our approval of the
transferee). However, if the sale to the purchaser is not completed within 120 days after delivery of the
offer to us, or there is a material change in the terms of the sale, we will again have the Right of First
Refusal specified in this Section.

Our Right of First Refusal is fully transferable by us to any affiliate or third party.

16.3 Transfer Conditions

We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of any proposed Transfer; provided that the following
conditions are all satisfied (“Transfer Conditions™):

16.3.1 Written Notice. You have provided us with written notice of the proposed Transfer
at least 45 days before the transaction. You must also submit a copy of the proposed purchase agreement
together with all supporting documents and schedules between you and the proposed transferee to us for
our review to ensure that the Transfer does not violate any term of this Franchise Agreement.

16.3.2 Qualified Transferee. The proposed transferee does not own or perform services
for a Competitive Business, and is, in our opinion, an individual of good moral character with sufficient
business experience, aptitude and financial resources to own and operate a Franchised Business and
otherwise meets all of our then-applicable standards for franchisees and the purchase price and terms of the
proposed transfer must not be so burdensome to the prospective transferee as to impair or threaten the future
operation of the Franchised Business.

16.3.3 Monetary Obligations. All of your monetary obligations to us and our affiliates
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have been paid in full and you and the Owners are in full compliance with the terms of this Franchise
Agreement and all other agreements with us or our affiliate(s) and have cured all existing defaults of this
Franchise Agreement.

16.3.4 Compliance with Franchise Agreement. You have not violated any provision of
this Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with us during both the 60—day period before you
requested our consent to the transfer and the period between your request and the effective date of the
transfer;.

ﬂeftaher—t-he16 3 5 Tralnmg The transferee ﬂer—}ts—ewxqefs—é as (or 1f the transferee 1s an

o a ne h ntere a A i ary ' ompe

4—the-transferee(or, its_approved Managing Owner;-er-applicable; Designated- Manager)
satistactorty-complete-our and any Franchise Manager have) successfully completed, or
made arrangements to attend, the initial training programs:

(and the transferee has paid us the training fee for each new person who must attend training).

16.3.6 Licenses and Permits. The transferee agreesand its owners, to the extent necessary,
have obtained all licenses and permits required by applicable law to own and operate the Franchised
Business.

16.3.7 New Franchise Agreement. You must request that the transferee be provided with
our then-current form of franchise disclosure document. You agree that we will not be liable for any
representations that you or your Owners make that are inconsistent with such franchise disclosure
document. The transferee and its owners sign our then-current form of franchise agreement and related
documents, including, but not limited to, our then-current form of Franchise Owner Agreement or other
guaranty (unless we, in our sole discretion, instruct you to assign this Franchise Agreement to the
transferee), except that: (i) the Term and successor term(s) shall be the Term and successor term(s)
remaining under this Franchise Agreement; and (i1) the transferee does not need to pay a separate initial
franchise fee.

16.3.8 Transfer Fee. You pay us a transfer fee of: (i) $5.000 if the transferee is an existing
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisee; or (ii) $7.500 if the transferee is not a current Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee
franchisee plus $1,000 for each piece of Additional Equipment (if any) that you transfer (“Transfer Fee”).
You will pay the Transfer Fee to us as follows: (i) $1,000 non-refundable deposit at the time of your transfer
application request; and (ii) the remaining balance shall be due at or before the time you consummate the
approved Transfer. If the transferee is a lead of ours or was referred to you by us, then in addition to the
transfer fee, you agree to pay us $15.000.

16.3.9 General Release. You and each of your Owners sign a general release in the form
we prescribe for all known and unknown claims against us, our affiliates and subsidiaries, and our and their
respective members, officers, directors, agents and employees, arising before or contemporaneously with
the Transfer. If the proposed transferee has any previous relationship with us or our affiliates, then the
proposed transferee must also execute a general release.

16.3.10 Right of First Refusal. We do not elect to exercise our Right of First Refusal.

16.3.11 Subordination. We may. in our sole discretion, require you to enter into an
agreement with us to subordinate the transferee’s obligations to you to the transferee’s financial obligations
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owed to us under the Franchise Agreement.

16.3.12 Broker Costs. You must pay any broker costs, commissions or other placement
fees we incur as a result of the Transfer.

16.3.13 BEV and Additional Equipment. The transferee must agree to take possession of
the BEV (together with all Additional Equipment, if any, under this Franchise Agreement), as a condition
to the transfer. The transferee must agree to pay us or our affiliates a remodel fee to upgrade, remodel, and
refurbish the FravelinFom s—Ceoffee—FranechiseFranchised Business, including the BEV (and any
Additional Equipment;), in accordance with our current requirements and specifications for the Fravelin™
TFem’s-Cotfee EranchiseFranchised Business, within 45 days after the effective date of the transfer (we will
advise the transferee before the effective date of the transfer of the specific actions it must take within this
time period), and to deposit with us the estimated cost to complete the upgrade or remodels, If the BEV
(and/or any Additional Equipment) does not meet our System standards then the transferee must replace
such BEV (and/or Additional Equipment) at its sole cost and expense.

16.3.14 Other Conditions. You and each of your Owners agree to comply with all
obligations that survive the tra-nsferee—shal—l—@#t—he—tran-s—fer—rstermlnatlon exprratron or Transfer of th1s
Franchise Agreement :

oHr—Ov TescS ise-agreemen § The transfer
must be made in comnlrance w1th any laws that annlv to the transfer 1nclud1ng but—net—l—mted—te—ear—t—hen—

eurrent-form—of-Owners—Asreement-or-otherguaranty,—any-all laws governing the offer and allsale of
franchises. You or the previsiens—ef—which—maydiffer materiallyfrom—any—transferring Owner, as

applicable, and alt-efthese-contained-in-this Franchise-Agreement;

" .

$4—990—nen—reﬁa—nd&b4e—depes+t—&pen—ﬂae—request—fer—have satrsﬁed any other condltlons we reasonablv

require as a cond1t10n to our approval of the transfer—Lﬂthw#ra—vehn—”Pem—s—Geffe&Franehrs&transfer—rs
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16.4 Y¥Yeu-may transfer-your-ownership-interests—to—a-differentIransfer to an Entity-with-eur
approval;

If you are an individual, you may transfer your ownership interests to an Entity provided that: (i) the
controlling-ewnership-interestsremaimnOwner or Owners of the Entity are the same and-all-ewners-persons
who signed this Franchise Agreement and (ii) you comply with all-ecenditions—setforth-inSeetion13C;
exeept-that-yeuthe Transfer Conditions. Our Right of First Refusal will not berequired-to-pay-usapply for
a transfer-feeTransfer conducted under saehseetion—Heweverthis Section and you must reimburse us for
all of our fees and costs, including attorney fees; (in lieu of the Transfer Fee), associated with your

transferTransfer to the Entity. In lieu of entering into a new Entity—Ourrightef firstrefusalin-Seetion 136G
shall-net-apply—foranytransfer-conducted—under—this Seetion13DP—Franchise Agreement, you will be

required to enter into any required documentation, which may include an approval of transfer agreement, a
general release of claims and a Franchise Owner Agreement in the forms we prescribe.

12 D—DEATH OR DISABHITY:

| 16.5 Fransfer Upoen-Death or Disability-

QH—Upon the M—anagrn-g—@wner—s—death or drsablhty—thHél-anagmg—aner—s—@eeeuter—

: : : : of you
glf you are an 1nd1v1dua1) or of the Managlng Owner 1 if you are an Entrty ), your interest in
the Franchised Business or the Managing Owner’s ownership interest in you-te-a-third-party
ewhreh—ncralyL as am)hcable must be yeur—er—th%M—aﬁagrng—er—s—he&s—beneﬁe}aﬂes—

assigned to a
th1rd party or another Managlng Owner approved by us wrthln a—reaseﬁab%e—tr-me—net—te

exeeed—90 days ﬁem—th%dat&of uch person s death or drsabrhty, and-is-subjeet-to-al-of

and—ﬂars—FraneMs&A:greernent—ma&bHe&nmated—Th&term—as the case may be For

purposes of this Section, a person is deemed to have a disability>seans—a— only if the

person has a medical or mental erphysical-disability—impairmentor-illness, problem or
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incapacity that would prevent the person from substantially complying with his or her
obligations under this Franchise Agreement or otherwise operating the Franchised
Business in the manner required by this Franchise Agreement and the Brand Manual for a

continuous Deriod of at least 90 consecutive calendar days, and from which condition

@ef:fe%F-Paﬁ%h}S&

Operation-Upon-Death-or Disability or Default:the date of determination of disability is unlikely. If the
parties disagree as to whether a person is disabled, the existence of disability will be determined by a
licensed practicing physician selected by us, upon examination of the person; or if the person refuses to
submit to an examination, then (for the purpose of this Section) the person automatically will be considered
disabled as of the date of refusal. Your (or the deceased Managing Owner’s) estate or legal representative
must apply to us for the right to Transfer to the next of kin within 60 calendar days after your or your
Managing Owner’s death or disability. If, upon the Managing Owner’s death or disability, a manager
approved by us is not managing the FravelinTFom s Coffee FranchiseFranchised Business, your or the
Managing Owner’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal representative must
appoint a replacement manager within 15 days from the date of death or disability. The manager must
complete our standard Initial Training at your expense. If applicable, a new Managing Owner acceptable
to us also must be appointed for the FravelinFom s-Coffee FranchiseFranchised within 30 days of the date
of the death or disability.

12 E—EEEECT OE CONSENTTO-TRANSEER:

17. Our-consent-to-atransferINTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

| 17.1  Ownership and Use of Intellectual Property

For purposes of this Franchise Agreement-and-the—TFravelinTom s—CoffeeFranchise, “Intellectual
Property” means the Marks, the Patent, our copyrighted materials including all artworks and designs,
“Confidential Information” (defined below), the System and “Improvements” (defined below). You
acknowledge that: (i) we, or any—our affiliates, if applicable, are the sole and exclusive owner of the
Travelin’ Tom’s Intellectual Property and the goodwill associated with the Marks: (i1) your right to use the
Intellectual Property is derived solely from this Franchise Agreement; and (iii) your right to use the
Intellectual Property is limited to a license granted by us to operate your Franchised Business during the
Term pursuant to, and only in compliance with, this Franchise Agreement, the Brand Manual, and all
applicable standards, specifications and operating procedures we prescribe from time to time. You may not
use any of the Intellectual Property in connection with the sale of any unauthorized product or service, or
in any other manner not expressly authorized by us. Any unauthorized use of the Intellectual Property
constitutes an infringement of our rights. You agree to comply with all provisions of the Brand Manual
governing your use of the Intellectual Property. This Franchise Agreement does not confer to you any
goodwill, title or interest in yeou-eryrour-Ownersis-not-any of the Intellectual Property. You agree that
during the Term of this Franchise Agreement and after its termination, expiration or Transfer you will not,
directly or indirectly, contest our interest in the Intellectual Property.

For purposes of this Franchise Agreement, “Confidential Information” means all of our trade secrets
and other proprietary information relating to the development, construction, marketing and/or operation of
a Franchised Business, including, but not limited to, methods, techniques, specifications, procedures,
policies, marketing strategies and information comprising the System, the Brand Manual, written directives
and all drawings, equipment, computer and point of sale programs (and output from such programs),

{00169371.DOCX. } C-60
[2024 FA vIF]



software including the KonaOS operating software, passwords, source code and any other information,
know-how, techniques, material, data and similar items imparted or made available by us to you.

For purposes of this Franchise Agreement, “Improvements” means any improvements or additions to
the System, the Patent, Marks, marketing, method of operation, or the products or services offered by a
Franchised Business.

17.2 Changes to Intellectual Property

We may modify the Intellectual Property at any time in our sole and absolute discretion, including by
changing the Marks, the System, our copyrights or the Confidential Information. If we modify or
discontinue use of any of the Intellectual Property, then you must comply with any such instructions from
us within 30 days, at your expense. We will not be liable to you for any expenses, losses or damages you
incur (including the loss of any goodwill associated with a Mark or Patent) because of any addition,
modification, substitution or discontinuation of the Intellectual Property.

17.3 Use of Marks and Patent

Your right to use the Marks and the Patent are derived only from this Franchise Agreement and limited
to your operating the Franchised Business according to this Franchise Agreement and all System standards
we prescribe. You agree that any use of the Marks and the Patent by you and your Franchised Business
shall contribute and inure to our benefit. Your unauthorized use of the Marks and/or Patent is a breach of
this Franchise Agreement and infringes our rights in the Marks and/or Patent. You acknowledge and agree
that any unauthorized use of the Marks and/or Patent will cause us irreparable harm for which there is no
adequate remedy at law and will entitle us to injunctive relief. You acknowledge and agree that your use
of the Marks and Patent and any goodwill established by that use are exclusively for our benefit and this
Franchise Agreement does not confer any goodwill or other interests in the Marks or Patent upon you (other
than the right to operate the Franchised Business under this Franchise Agreement). All provisions of this
Franchise Agreement relating to the Marks and Patent apply to any additional trademarks or patents we
authorize you to use.

You agree to use the Marks as the sole identification of your Franchised Business; provided, however,
you must identify yourself as the independent owner of your Franchised Business in the manner we
prescribe. You may not use any Marks in any modified form or as part of any corporate name or with any
prefix, suffix or other modifying words, terms, designs or symbols (other than logos licensed to you by this
Franchise Agreement). You may not use any Mark in advertising the transfer, sale, or other disposition of
the Travelin’” Tom’s Coffee Franchise or an ownership interest in you without our prior written consent,
which we will not unreasonably withhold. You agree to: (i) prominently display the Marks on or in
connection with any media advertising, promotional materials, posters and displays, receipts, stationery and
forms that we designate, and in the manner we prescribe to give notice of trade and service mark
registrations and copyrights; and (i1) obtain any fictitious or assumed name registrations required under
applicable law. You may not use the Marks in signing any contract, lease, mortgage, check, purchase
agreement, negotiable instrument, or other legal obligation or in any manner that is likely to confuse or
result in liability to us for any indebtedness or obligation of yours.

17.4 Use of Confidential Information

You acknowledge that you will use the Confidential Information only in operating the Franchised
Business, and you will not disclose Confidential Information to others, except as expressly authorized by
this Franchise Agreement. You will take all actions to preserve the confidentiality of all Confidential
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Information, including safeguarding access to the Brand Manual. You will not copy or permit copying of
Confidential Information. Your obligations under this Section begin when you sign this Franchise
Agreement and continue for trade secrets as long as they remain secret, and, for other Confidential
Information, for as long as we continue to use the information in confidence (even if edited or revised) plus
an additional three years afterwards. We will respond promptly and in good faith to any inquiry by you
about continued protection of any Confidential Information.

All data you collect, create, provide or otherwise develop (including, but not limited to, customer
information and customer lists) is (and will be) owned exclusively by us, and we will have the right to use
such data in any manner that we deem appropriate without compensation to you. Copies and/or originals
of such data must be provided to us upon our request. We license use of such data back to you, at no
additional cost, solely for the Term of this Franchise Agreement and solely for your use in connection with
the Franchised Business. You agree to provide us with the information we reasonably require regarding
data and cybersecurity requirements. You agree to indemnify us for any loss of data, including, but not
limited to, customer information resulting from a breach of such data caused, in whole or in part, by you.
You agree to solely use customer lists and customer information for the operation of the Franchised
Business and for no other purpose.

The restrictions on the disclosure and use of the Confidential Information will not apply to disclosure of
Confidential Information: (i) made in confidence to a government official, either directly or indirectly, or
to an attorney, solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; (i1) made in
a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal; or
(1i1) made in cases of suit for retaliation based on the reporting of a suspected violation of law, disclosure
of Confidential Information to an attorney, and for use of the Confidential Information in such court
proceeding, so long as any document containing the Confidential Information is filed under seal and
Confidential Information is not otherwise disclosed pursuant to a court order.

We do not make any representation or warranty that your use of the System and Confidential Information
will not infringe on the patent, copyright or other proprietary rights of third parties. You agree that we will
have no liability to you if the System and/or any Confidential Information is held not to be secret or
confidential or in the event that any infringement of others’ proprietary rights occurs because of your use
of the System and Confidential Information.

17.5 Improvements

If you conceive of or develop any Improvements, you agree to promptly and fully disclose the
Improvements to us without disclosing the Improvements to others. You must obtain our approval before
using any such Improvements. Any Improvement we approve may be used by us and any third parties we
authorize to operate a Franchised Business, without any obligation to pay you royalties or other fees. You
must assign to us or our designee, without charge, all rights to any such Improvement, including the right
to grant sublicenses. In return, we will authorize you to use any Improvements we or other franchisees
develop that we authorize for general use with the operation of a Franchised Business. These obligations
shall survive the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Franchise Agreement.

17.6 _Notification of Intellectual Property Issues

You must notify us as soon as possible, but no later than three business days of any: (i) apparent
infringement of any of the Intellectual Property; (ii) challenge to your use of any of the Intellectual Property;
or (iii) claim by any person of any rights in any of the Intellectual Property. You may not communicate
with any person other than us and our counsel in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim.
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We will have sole discretion to take such action as we deem appropriate. We have the right to exclusively
control any litigation, Patent and Trademark Office proceeding, or other proceeding arising out of any such
infringement, challenge or claim. You agree to execute any and all instruments and documents, render such
assistance, and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of our counsel, be necessary or advisable to
protect and maintain our interest in any such litigation, Patent and Trademark Office proceeding, or other
proceeding, or to otherwise protect and maintain our interest in the Intellectual Property.

18. BRAND COVENANTS

| 18.1 Reason for Covenants

The covenants in this Section 18 shall be referred to as the “Brand Covenants.”

You acknowledge that the System is distinctive and has been developed by us and/or our affiliates at
great effort, time and expense, and that the Intellectual Property and the training and assistance we provide
would not be acquired except through implementation of this Franchise Agreement. You also acknowledge
that competition by you, the Owners, or persons associated with you or the Owners (including family
members) could jeopardize the entire System because you and the Owners have received an advantage
through knowledge of our day-to-day operations and Confidential Information related to the System.
Accordingly, you and the Owners agree to comply with the covenants described in this Section to protect
the Intellectual Property and our System.

18.2 Unfair Competition During the Term

For purposes of this Franchise Agreement, “Competitive Business” means any business that: (i) operates
a food truck, beverage truck or primarily serves food and/or beverages from a vehicle, kiosk or other
moveable property; (ii) derives at least 5% or more of its gross sales from the offering of coffee, tea or
similar products; (iii1) sells or offers to sell products the same as or similar to the type of products sold by
the Franchised Business as the concept evolves over time; (iv) provides or offers to provide services the
same as or similar to the type of services sold by you; or (v) any business that grants franchises or licenses
to others or operates the type of businesses specified in subparagraphs (i) through (iv) above, but excludes
a Franchised Business operating under a franchise agreement with us or our affiliates. A Competitive
Business shall not include ownership of up to five percent (5%) of any publicly-held company or mutual
fund that owns, operates, has an interest in, or controls any business that otherwise would meet the definition
of a Competitive Business.

You agree not to compete with us during the Term by engaging in any of the following activities

“Prohibited Activities™): (i) owning, operating, or having any other interest (as an owner, partner, director.

officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, creditor, representative, agent, or in any similar
capacity) in any Competitive Business; (ii) diverting or attempting to divert any business from us (or one
of our affiliates or franchisees); or (iii) inducing any customer of ours (or of one of our affiliates’ or
franchisees’) to transfer their business to you or to any other person that is not then a franchisee of ours.

18.3 Unfair Competition After the Term

For purposes of this Section, the “Restricted Period” means a period of two years after the termination,
expiration or Transfer of this Franchise Agreement. For purposes of this Section, the “Restricted Territory”
means the geographic area within: (i) a 20-mile radius of the Territory; and (ii) a 20-mile radius from all
other Franchised Businesses that are operating as of the date of the termination, expiration or Transfer of
this Franchise Agreement.
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During the Restricted Period, you agree that you will not engage in any Prohibited Activities within the
Restricted Territory and that you will cause each of your Owners to not engage in any Prohibited Activities
within the Restricted Territory. If you or any Owner engages in a Prohibited Activity within the Restricted
Territory during the Restricted Period, then the Restricted Period applicable to you (and applicable to each
non-compliant Owner under the Franchise Owner Agreement) will be extended by the period of time during
which you or the non-compliant Owner, as applicable, engaged in the Prohibited Activity.

18.4 Employees and Others

Any Franchise Manager and, if you are an Entity, any officer that does not own equity in you must sign
our current System Protection Agreement. You must ensure that all of your employees, officers, directors,
partners, members, independent contractors, and other persons associated with you or your Franchised
Business who may have access to our Confidential Information, and who are not required to sign a System
Protection Agreement, sign the Confidentiality Agreement before having access to our Confidential
Information. You must use your best efforts to ensure these individuals comply with the terms of the
Confidentiality Agreements and System Protection Agreements, and you must immediately notify us of
any breach that comes to your attention. You agree to reimburse us for all expenses we incur in enforcing
a Confidentiality Agreement or System Protection Agreement, including reasonable attorney fees and court
costs.

18.5 Covenants Reasonable

The parties agree that the Brand Covenants will be construed as independent of any other covenant or
provision of this Franchise Agreement. It is the parties’ intent that the provisions of this Section be
judicially enforced to the fullest extent permissible under applicable law. If all or any portion of any Brand
Covenant is held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction in a final
decision to which we are a party, you agree to be bound by any lesser covenant subsumed within the terms
of such Brand Covenant that imposes the maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting Brand
Covenant were separately stated in and made a part of this Section. Accordingly, the parties agree that any
reduction in scope or modification of any part of the non-competition provisions contained herein shall not
render any other part unenforceable. You acknowledge and agree that: (i) the terms of this Franchise
Agreement are reasonable both in time and in scope of geographic area; (i1) our use and enforcement of
covenants similar to those described above with respect to other “Travelin’ Tom’s” franchisees benefits
you and the Owners because it prevents others from unfairly competing with your Franchised Business;
and (ii1) you and the Owners have sufficient resources and business experience and opportunities to earn
an adequate living while complying with the terms of this Franchise Agreement. You hereby waive any
right to challenge the terms of the Brand Covenants as being overly broad, unreasonable or otherwise
unenforceable.

We have the right, in our sole discretion, to unilaterally reduce the scope of all or part of any Brand
Covenant without your consent (before or after any dispute arises), effective when we give you written
notice of this reduction and you agree to comply with any covenant as so modified.

18.6 Breach of Covenants

You agree that failure to comply with the terms of Brand Covenants will cause substantial and
irreparable damage to us and/or other “Travelin’ Tom’s” franchisees for which there is no adequate remedy
at law. Therefore you agree that any Vlolatlon of the terms of thls Sectlon 189f—th%ﬁam&ess—ef—th%teﬂﬁs—ef

%Famferee—s—pfespeets—e{lsueeess—er—aAWAfer—e{laﬁy— w111 entltle us to 1n1unct1ve rehef We may applv for
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such injunctive relief without bond, but upon due notice, in addition to such further and other relief as may
be available at equity or law, and the sole remedy of yours, in the event of the entry of such injunction will
be the dissolution of such injunction, if warranted, upon hearing duly held (all claims we-for damages by
reason of the wrongful issuance of any such injunction being expressly waived hereby). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if a court requires the filing of a bond, the parties agree that the amount of the bond shall not
exceed $1,000. None of the remedies available to us, at law or in equity, under this Franchise Agreement
are mutually exclusive, and may be combined with others, including injunctive relief, specific performance,
and recovery of monetary damages. Any claim, defense or cause of action you or an Owner may have

against you-{or-your Owners)-or-of ourright-to-demand-the transferee’sfull compliance-with-this Eranchise

Agreementus, regardless of cause or origin, cannot be used as a defense against our enforcement of the
Brand Covenants.

19. INSURANCE

Before your Franchised Business opens for business, you shall procure, maintain, and provide evidence
of insurance as follows: (a) workers’ compensation insurance in an amount not less than $500,000 or a
higher amount as prescribed by state statute or rule in the state in which your Franchised Business is located;
(b) comprehensive business automobile insurance, including physical damage for the BEV, in an amount
covering the cost of the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) or greater, except that an appropriate
deductible clause (maximum or $5,000 deductible) will be permitted, also including any ancillary
equipment and any other property used in the operation of the Franchised Business; (¢) comprehensive
general liability insurance and product liability insurance coverage in such amounts and upon such terms
as may from time to time be customary for a mobile food business in your Territory, but not less than
$1.000.000, insuring both you and us against all claims, suits, obligations, liabilities, and damage, including
attorney fees, based upon or arising out of actual or alleged personal injuries or property damage relating
to the use or condition of the BEV (or Additional Equipment); (d) automobile (truck) vehicle liability
insurance covering the driving of the BEV (and any Additional Equipment) in an amount of not less than
$1,000,000; and (e) such additional insurance as we may periodically require.

All of these policies must contain the minimum coverage we periodically prescribe in our Brand
Manual or other written communications to you and must have deductibles not to exceed the amounts we
specify. These insurance policies, except for employment liability insurance policies, must name us and
any affiliates we designate as additional named insureds.

If your state requires higher coverages than we prescribe, you will be required to obtain insurance that
satisfies your state law requirements. We may periodically increase the amounts of coverage required under
these insurance policies and/or require different or additional insurance coverage (including reasonable
excess liability insurance) at any time to reflect inflation, identification of new risks, changes in law or
standards of liability, higher damage awards, or other relevant changes in circumstances as provided in our
Brand Manual, as amended from time to time. These insurance policies must be purchased from an
insurance company satisfactory to us and provide for 30 days prior written notice to us of a policy’s material
modification, cancellation, or expiration. You may purchase this insurance through our captive insurance
program, which is offered through our affiliate. Each insurance policy must contain a waiver of all
subrogation rights against us, our affiliates, and their successors and assigns. You must routinely furnish
us copies of your certificates of insurance or other evidence of your maintaining this insurance coverage
and paying premiums. If you fail to maintain any required insurance coverage, we have the right to obtain
the coverage on your behalf (which right shall be at our option and in addition to our other rights and
remedies in this Franchise Agreement), and you must promptly sign all applications and other forms and
instruments required to obtain the insurance and pay to us, within ten days after invoicing, all costs and
premiums that we incur, plus a 20% administrative surcharge.
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| 20. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

| 20.1 Books and Records

You agree to record all transactions and Gross Sales of your Franchised Business in the manner we
specify. You agree to prepare and maintain for at least seven years after their preparation, complete and
accurate books, records, accounts and tax returns pertaining to your Franchised Business including a list of
all customers that your Franchised Business does business with and all contracts that your Franchised
Business enters into. You must send us copies of your books, records, customer data and contracts within
five days of our request. This obligation survives the expiration, termination or Transfer of this Franchise

Agreement.

20.2 Reports

You will prepare and submit other reports and information about your operations as we may request in
writing or as required by the Brand Manual. You will submit all required reports in the formats and by the
due dates specified in the Brand Manual. We may modify the deadline days and times for submission of
all reports. We may require, in our sole discretion, that certain reports be certified as accurate and complete
by you, your owners or your chief financial officer, and that they be submitted in certain methods or formats.
If requested by us, your profit and loss statements and balance sheets must be certified by a certified public
accountant at your expense. You must also make your certified public accountant available and cover the
cost for him or her to consult with us concerning these statements and balance sheets.

20.3 Financial and Tax Statements

You will deliver the financial statements that we proscribe, which may include a balance sheet, profit
and loss statement, statement of cash flows and explanatory footnotes prepared under generally accepted
accounting principles applied on a consistent basis or such other items we designate related to the financial
activity of the Franchised Business (‘“Financial Statements”) to us within the time period required by the
Brand Manual. All Financial Statements must be in the form specified by us and must conform to our
standard chart of accounts as prescribed by us. We have the right to use such Financial Statements in our
franchise disclosure document to make financial performance representations and to share these reports on
a system-wide intranet or other similar means.

You must also provide us with complete signed copies of all state sales tax returns and state and federal
income tax returns covering the operation of the Franchised Business within 30 days of filing.

20.4 Legal Compliance

You must secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and regulatory approvals for the
operation of your Franchised Business, and operate and manage your Franchised Business in full
compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations including, without limitation,
government regulations relating to truth-in-lending, Department of Transportation regulations, safety and
sanitation, truth in advertising, occupational hazards, health, laws relating to non-discrimination in hiring
and accessibility, worker’s compensation and unemployment insurance. You are solely responsible for
complying with all federal, state and local tax laws, agree to timely pay all applicable federal, state and
local taxes, and timely file all returns, notices and other forms required to comply with all federal, state and
local tax laws in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business. You and the Franchised

Business must, in all dealings with customers, suppliers, us, and the public adhere to the highest standards
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of honesty, integrity, fair dealing, and ethical conduct. It is your responsibility to make sure that you comply
with all laws that are applicable to the Technology.

You must notify us in writing within three business days of the beginning of any action, suit,
investigation or proceeding, or of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, disciplinary action, award or
decree of any court, agency or other governmental instrumentality, which may adversely affect the
operation of your Franchised Business or your financial condition. You must immediately deliver to us a
copy of any inspection report, warning, certificate or rating by any governmental agency involving any
health or safety law, rule or regulation that reflects a claim you have failed to fully comply with the law,
rule or regulation.

If any product dispensed by your Franchised Business violates our System standards or any
applicable laws or regulations, or poses a health risk to the public, we may require that you immediately
close the Franchised Business and not reopen until approved to do so by us and, if applicable, by any
governmental entity or agency. In order to protect the public from any risk of harm and to protect the
goodwill and reputation of the System, we may seek immediate injunctive relief seeking an order to close
your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Business if you fail to close your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Business upon our
request. In the event that injunctive relief is necessary, you shall pay all costs and expenses, including our
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred. The remedies herein are in addition to and not in substitution for those
stated elsewhere in this Franchise Agreement.

You agree to comply, and to assist us to the fullest extent possible in our efforts to comply, with Anti-
Terrorism Laws (defined below). In connection with that compliance, you certify, represent and warrant
that none of your property or interests is subject to being blocked under, and that you and the owners
otherwise are not in violation of, any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws. “Anti-Terrorism Laws” mean Executive
Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States, the USA PATRIOT Act, and all other present
and future federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies, lists and other requirements
of any governmental authority addressing or in any way relating to terrorist acts and acts of war. Any
violation of the Anti-Terrorism Laws by you or the Owners, or any blocking of your or the Owners’ assets
under the Anti-Terrorism Laws, shall constitute good cause for immediate termination of this Franchise

Agreement.
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| 21. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

| 21.1 Inspections

To ensure compliance with this Franchise Agreement, we or our representatives will have the right to,
evaluate your Franchised Business operations, and inspect or examine your books, records, accounts and
tax returns. We may also interview personnel and customers of the Franchised Business. Our evaluation
may include observing or participating during business hours. We may conduct our evaluation at any time
and without prior notice. During the course of our inspections, we and our representatives will use
reasonable efforts to minimize our interference with the operation of your Franchised Business, and you,
your employees and independent contractors will cooperate and not interfere with our inspection. You
consent to us accessing your Technology and retrieving any information we deem appropriate in conducting
the inspection. At all times and without prior notice to you, we and our designated agents or representatives
may: (1) inspect the Franchised Business, BEV, (and/or any Additional Equipment); (2) photograph the
Franchised Business, BEV., (and any Additional Equipment) and observe and videotape the operation
thereof; (3) observe any products and supplies; (4) interview the Franchised Business’ managers, personnel,
and customers; (5) inspect and copy any books, records, and documents relating to the Franchised Business’
operation; and (6) access any electronic records related to the Franchised Business.

21.2 Audit

We may, at any time during your business hours, and without prior notice to you, examine your
Franchised Business bookkeeping, and accounting records, sales and income tax records and returns, and

other records. We may also conduct an audit through independent auditors, which may involve auditors
conducting an examination at the location of your Franchised Business or, alternatively, your submission
of such materials to auditors. We may also require you to conduct a complete self-audit of the Franchised
Business, in which case you agree to audit the Franchised Business in accordance with our instructions and
System standards. You agree to cooperate fully with us, our representatives, and independent accountants
in any examination. Furthermore, if an examination is necessary due to your failure to furnish reports,
supporting records, or other information as required, or to furnish these items on a timely basis, or if our
examination reveals a failure to report, you agree to reimburse us for the costs of the examination, including,
without limitation, the charges of attorneys and independent accountants and the travel expenses, room and
board, and compensation of our employees. If an audit reveals that your purchases of Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee branded cups equals less than thirty percent (30%) of your gross sales, you shall pay us a branded
cup audit fee of $3,000 unless you can provide written substantiation of proper usage of branded cups in

your Franchised Business. These remedies are in addition to our other remedies and rights under this
Franchise Agreement and applicable law.

| 22.  INDEMNITY

| 22.1 Your Indemnification of Us

Independent of your obligation to procure and maintain insurance, you and your Owners will indemnify,
defend and hold us and our affiliates, the respective officers, directors, managers, partners, shareholders,

members, employees, agents and contractors of these entities, and the successors, assigns, personal
representatives, heirs and legatees of all of these persons or entities (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties™
harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against all expenses, losses, payments or
obligations to make payments either (i) to or for third party claimants by any and all Indemnified Parties,

including refunds, or (ii) incurred by any and all Indemnified Parties to investigate, take action, respond to

or defend a matter, including investigation and trial charges, costs and expenses, fees, fees paid to
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professionals, attorney fees, experts’ fees, court costs, settlement amounts, judgments and costs of
collection (collectively, “Losses and Expenses”), incurred by any Indemnified Parties for any investigation,
claim, action, suit, demand, administrative or alternative dispute resolution proceeding, actually or
allegedly, directly or indirectly, relating to, arising out of, or resulting from or in connection with: any
transaction, occurrence, product or service involving the Franchised Business or this Franchise Agreement;
your employment or other contractual relationship with your employees, workers, managers, or independent
contractors, including but not limited to any allegation, claim, finding, or ruling that we are an employer or
joint employer of your employees; your marketing, selling, or providing of items and services; and any
breach of violation of any agreement (including this Franchise Agreement). or any law, regulation or ruling

by any act, error or omission (active or passive) of you, any party associated with you, or any of your or
your affiliates’ owners, officers, directors, managers, employees, owners and agents, including when any

of the Indemnified Parties is alleged or proven to be negligent.

You agree to give us notice of any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation

described above. The Indemnified Parties shall have the right, in their sole discretion to: (i) retain counsel

of their own choosing to represent them with respect to any claim; and (ii) control the response thereto and
the defense thereof, including the right to enter into an agreement to settle such claim. You may participate
in such defense at your own expense. You agree to give your full cooperation to the Indemnified Parties in
assisting the Indemnified Parties with the defense of any such claim, and to reimburse the Indemnified
Parties for all of their costs and expenses in defending any such claim, including court costs and reasonable
attorney fees, within ten days of the date of each invoice delivered by such Indemnified Party to you
enumerating such costs, expenses and attorney fees.

22.2  Our Indemnification of You

Provided that you are not in default under this Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with us, we
will indemnify you and hold you harmless for, from and against any and all costs and expenses incurred by
you as a result of or in connection with any claim asserted against you based upon the violation of any third
party’s intellectual property rights caused by your use of our Marks in strict compliance with the terms of
this Franchise Agreement and Brand Manual. You must promptly notify us of any such claim and fully
cooperate with us in the defense of such claim.

12E—TERMINATION BY YOUQURRIGHT OEFIRST REEUSAL:
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You may terminate this Franchise Agreement if you are in full compliance and we materially breach
this Franchise Agreement and fail to cure the breach within 60 days after you send us a written notice
specifying the nature of the breach. You may also terminate this Franchise Agreement if you and we
mutually agree, in our sole discretion, which may be withheld, in writing to terminate this Franchise
Agreement. In such an event, you and we will be deemed to have waived any required notice period. If
you terminate this Franchise Agreement, you must still comply with your post-termination obligations
described below and all other obligations that survive the expiration or termination of this Franchise

Agreement.

24. TERMINATION BY US

The rights to terminate the Franchise Agreement in this Section shall be referred to as our “Termination
Rights.”

24.1 Automatic Termination Without Notice

You shall be in default under this Franchise Agreement, and we may automatically terminate all rights
granted to you by this Franchise Agreement without notice if (i) you file or cause to be filed a petition in
bankruptcy or you are adjudicated bankrupt or judicially determined to be insolvent (subject to any contrary
provisions of any applicable state or federal laws); or (ii) you admit to your inability to meet your financial
obligations as they become due, or make a disposition for the benefit of its creditors (unless prohibited by
law); or (ii1) a receiver or custodian (permanent or temporary) is appointed for any of your assets or
property; or (iv) a final judgment in excess of $10,000 against you remains unsatisfied or of record for sixty
(60) days or longer (unless a bond is filed or other steps are taken to effectively stay enforcement of such
judgment), except that we may provide you with additional time to satisfy the judgment if you demonstrate
that you are using commercially reasonable efforts to resolve the issues related to the judgment.

| 24.2  Option to Terminate Without Opportunity to Cure
B)——We may, in our determination-you-and-yourOw

A

{00169371.DOCX. } C-72
[2024 FA vIF]



Franchise Agreement

than—90-days—before-immediately upon written notice to you, without opportunity to cure, upon the
occurrence of any of the following events, each of which constitute material events of default under this

b

Franchise Agreement-expires—provided—however—thatweneed-notgivevou-this-90-days’ neticeifwe

yvowdonet24.2.1  Failure to Open. If you fail to open the-FravelinFom’s-Coffee Franchise
for-business-your Franchised Business within three months afterof the Effective Date;.
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you-ceaseto-operate the Travelin’ Tom’s Businessorotherwise 24.2.2 Material

Misrepresentation. If you or any Owner commits any fraud or makes any material misrepresentation to us,
whether occurring before or after the Effective Date.

24.2.3 Violation of Law. If you fail, for a period of 2 days after having received
notification of noncompliance from us or any governmental or quasi-governmental agency or authority, to
comply with any federal, state or local law or regulation applicable to the operation of the Franchised
Business.

24.2.4 Criminal Offense. If you or any of your Owners, officers, directors, or key
employees is convicted of or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to a felony or any other crime or offense that
1s reasonably likely, in our sole opinion, to adversely affect our reputation, the System, or the Marks, which
expressly includes any harm or criminal activity to minors in our sole discretion. If the crime or offense is
committed by an Owner other than a Managing Owner, then we may, in our sole discretion, terminate if
such Owner fails to sell its ownership interest in the Entity to any of the other Owners within 30 days after
the conviction or guilty plea, whichever first occurs.

24.2.5 Under-Reporting. If an audit or investigation discloses that you have knowingly
maintained false books or records, or submitted false reports to us, or knowingly understated its Gross Sales
or withheld the reporting of same, or, if, on two or more occasions in any single 24 month period, any audits
or other investigations reveals an under-reporting or under-recording error of two percent (2%) or more, or
on any single occasion any audit or other investigation reveals an under-reporting or under-recording of
five percent (5%) or more.

24.2.6 Intellectual Property Misuse. If you misuse or make any unauthorized use of the
Marks or Patent, or if you otherwise impair the goodwill of our rights, or you take any action which reflects
unfavorably upon the operation and reputation of the Franchised Business, the System, or the Travelin’
Tom’s brand generally. If your employees or independent contractors engage in any of the same actions
described above, unless you shall have exercised your best efforts to prevent such disclosures or use.

24.2.7 Health or Safety Violations. If you manage or operate your Franchised Business in
a manner that presents a health or safety hazard to your customers, employees or the public, or your
Franchised Business is cited by an authority for improper operation(s) three or more times within any

calendar year.

24.2.8 Abandonment. If you abandon the—Fravelin™ Tom’sCoffeeFEranchiseor fail to
operate your Franchised Business for a period of 12 consecutive months, or any shorter period that indicates

an intent by the Franchisee to dlscontlnue operatlon of the %weha—"Pem—s—Geﬁfee—Fpaﬂemse—bm-less—aﬂd

FPaﬁethse%F ranchlsed Business. unless you had received our prior written authorlzatlon to do so.

24.2.9 Failure to Pay. If you fail to pay any amount owed to us or an affiliate of ours
within ten days after receipt of a demand for payment or you have three or more insufficient funds or
returned checks in any one calendar year. If you fail to pay when due any federal or state income, service,
sales, or other taxes due on the Franchised Business operation, unless you are in good faith contesting your
liability for these taxes.
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24.2.10 Unauthorized Transfer. If you attempt to sell, Transfer, encumber or otherwise
dispose of any interest in you, this Franchise Agreement or the Franchised Business in violation of Section
16 of this Franchise Agreement.

24.2.11 Unauthorized Disclosure of Confidential Information. If you or any of your

Owners knowingly make er-attempt-to-make-any-transfer-in—violation-ef Seetton13:any unauthorized use

or disclosure of any part of the Brand Manual or any other Confidential Information.

24.2.12 Brand Covenants. If you or any of your Owners are-or-have-been-convicted-bya
trial-court-of-orplead-or-have pleaded no-contest-to;a-felomysviolates any of the Brand Covenants.

24.2.13 Failure to Maintain Insurance. If you fail to maintain the insurance we require or
fail to name us and our affiliates as additional insureds on the required insurance and do not correct the
failure within ten days after we deliver written notice of that failure to yous,

24.2.14 License/Permits. If a regulatory authority suspends or revokes a license or permit
held by you or an Owner that is required to operate the Franchised Business, even if you or the Owner still
maintain appeal rights.

24.2.15 F allure to Complete Initial Tralnlng Ifyou or any ef—yetm@%ters—lﬂaewmgh’—make

jEna%Lel-}n—"l:ena—s—Ge£feeF-Panelﬁs&rn—an—unsafen&anner—requ1red attendee falls to attend and
i attoncomplete the 1n1t1a1
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to-comphy-with-prescribed in this Franchise Agreement;-whether-orneot

a he e orre o
v, O o 5V O O O casge

yvou24.2.16 Repeated Defaults. If you commit a default of any obligation under this Franchise
Agreement and have previously received three or more written notices of default from us within the

preceding 12 months, regardless of whether any default is cured, or if you commit the same default twice
within the preceding 12-month period.

24.2.17 Cross Default. If we terminate any other agreement between you and us, or if any
affiliate of ours terminates any agreement between you and the affiliate because of your default.

24.2.18 Franchise Owner Agreement Default. If any Owner, or the spouse of any Owner,
breaches a Franchise Owner Agreement.

24.2.19 Territory Infringement. You commit Territory Infringement three or more times in
any 12 consecutive month periods-.
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24.3 unless-Termination with Notice and Opportunity to Cure

In addition to our Termination Rights, we may, in our sole discretion, terminate this Franchise
Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice if you or an Owner fails to comply with any other provision of this
Franchise Agreement (including failure to comply with any provision in the Brand Manual) or any other
agreement with us, unless such default is cured, as determined by us in our sole discretion, within such 30-
day notice period, each of which shall constitute a material event of default under this Franchise Agreement.
If we deliver a notice of default to you pursuant to this Section, we may suspend performance of any of our
obligations under this Franchise Agreement until you fully cure the breach.

25. POST TERM OBLIGATIONS

The obligations contained in this Section shall be referred to as your “Post Term Obligations.” After
the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Franchise Agreement, you agree to undertake each and every
one of the obligations listed in this Section.

25.1 Cease Operations

Immediately cease to be a franchise owner of the Franchised Business under this Franchise Agreement
and cease to operate the Franchised Business under the System. You agree to not hold yourself out to the
public as a present or former franchise owner of the Franchised Business.
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25.2 Intellectual Property

Immediately cease to use the Intellectual Property in any manner whatsoever and not use any trademarks
or trade names that may be confusingly similar to the Intellectual Property. You acknowledge and agree
that any continued use of the Marks would constitute trademark infringement.

| 25.3 Monetary Obligations

Pay us all amounts you owe us and our affiliates within 15 days.

| 25.4 Surviving Covenants

Comply with all covenants described in this Section and otherwise in this Franchise Agreement that
apply after the expiration, termination or Transfer of this Franchise Agreement or of an ownership interest

by an Owner.

25.5 De-Identification

Unless we exercise our right to purchase under Section +6E26 of this Franchise Agreement, you agree

to—del-wer—te—&s at your expense, wﬁhm%@—éays—ef—aepﬁaﬁef%emmﬁ%—aﬂ—ﬁgm—sfg*kﬁae%%ﬁ

fe}afemg—te—a—"Ffa*zel-m—Tem—s—Geﬁfee—FPaﬂemse—m&d to fully decommlssmn the BEV (and any Addltlonal

Equipment) by removing all proprietary items and Marks from the BEV (and Additional Equipment) in
accordance with Seetion3E(H—ofthisFranchise—Agreement—and—theSystemr—Standards-our System
Standards, including, but not limited to: all vinyl wraps, internal and external Creation Station components
and signage, bottle racks, drip trays, external fins and awnings, LED lighting. menu boards, stickers, decals,
KIB display monitor, and scent diffuser. If you fail to do so in the required time period, you agree to allow
us, without liability to you or third parties for trespass or any other claim, to take possession of the BEV
(and any Additional Equipment;) to remove any signs or other materials containing any Marks from the
Fravelinm Tom’s—CoffeeFranchiseFranchised Business, and to otherwise modify the BEV (and any
Additional Equipment) so as to no longer be identifiable as related to the Travelin® Tom’s Coffee
Eranehise;System.
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| 25.6 OURBranded Items

Return all copies of the Brand Manual, or any portions thereof, as well as all signs, sign faces, brochures,
advertising and promotional materials, forms and any other materials bearing or containing any of the
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Marks, our copyrights or other identification relating to a Franchised Business, unless we allow you to
Transfer such items to an approved transferee.

25.7 Technology and Data

Return all copies of any software we license to you (and delete all such software from your computer
memory and storage), provide us the then-current customer list and contracts that your Franchised Business
has entered into and transfer all login information and data from any Technology, social media accounts
and email addresses from your Franchised Business.

| 25.8  Entity Name

Ensure that any names or registrations related to your use of the Marks are canceled.

| 25.9 Identifiers and Advertisements

Immediately stop using all telephone numbers, advertisements, domain names and social media
accounts associated with the Franchised Business. Notify all telephone companies, listing agencies, social

media companies and domain name registration companies (collectively, the “Agencies”) of the termination
or expiration of your right to use the following, and immediately transfer to us: (A) the telephone numbers,
accounts and/or domain names, if applicable, related to the operation of your Franchised Business; and (B)
any online listings associated with the Marks (you hereby authorize the Agencies to transfer such telephone
numbers, domain names and listings to us and you authorize us, and appoint us and any officer we designate
as your attorney-in-fact to direct the Agencies to transfer the telephone numbers, domain names and listings
to us if you fail or refuse to do so).

Modifications

Remove all trade dress, equipment, software and property owned by us and make such modifications
and alterations that are necessary or that we require to prevent any association between us or the System
and any business subsequently operated by you or any third party using any of the inventory, BEV,
equipment used in the operation of the Franchised Business; provided, however, that this subsection shall
not apply if your Franchised Business is transferred to an approved transferee or if we exercise our right to
purchase your entire Franchised Business.

Customers

We may contact customers of your Franchised Business and offer such customers continued rights to
use one or more Travelin’ Tom’s franchises on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate, which in
no event will include assumption of any then-existing liability arising or relating to those customers or act
or failure to act by you or your Franchised Business.

Compliance Evidence

Provide us with written satisfactory evidence of your compliance with the above obligations within 30
days after the effective date of the termination, expiration or Transfer of this Franchise Agreement.
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| 26.  RIGHT TO PURCHASE

| 26.1 Generally

Upon the expiration or termination of this Franchise Agreement for any reason, we will have the right
but not the obligation to purchase from you some or all of the assets used in the Franchised Business
(“Acquired Assets’). We may exercise our option to begin this process by giving written notice to you at
any time following expiration or termination up until 30 days after the later of: (a) the effective date of
expiration or termination; or (b) the date you cease operating the Franchised Business (the “Specified
Date”). We have the right to inspect the assets used in the Franchised Business in order to determine which
we wish to acquire and any refusal by you to cooperate with our right to inspect will extend the Specified
Date by an equal period. The term “Acquired Assets” means, without limitation, equipment, BEV,
furnishings, fixtures, signs and inventory (non-perishable products, materials and supplies) used in the
Franchised Business, all licenses necessary to operate the Franchised Business (if transferable) and the real
estate fee simple or the lease or sublease for the Premises. Customer information and customer lists are
owned by us and accordingly are not included within the definition of “Acquired Assets” and must be
returned to us without charge upon expiration or termination. You may not sell the information or lists to a
third party. We will be entitled to have the provisions in this Section enforced by a court of competent
jurisdiction should you fail to meet your obligations. We will have the unrestricted right to assign this option
to purchase the Acquired Assets. We or our assignee will be entitled to all customary representations and
warranties, including that the Acquired Assets are free and clear (or, if not, accurate and complete
disclosure) as to: (1) ownership, condition and title; (2) liens and encumbrances; (3) environmental and
hazardous substances; and (4) validity of contracts and liabilities inuring to us or affecting the Acquired
Assets, whether contingent or otherwise.

26.2 Purchase Price

The purchase price for the Acquired Assets (“Purchase Price’) will be their fair market value (or, for
leased assets, the fair market value of the lease), determined as of the Specified Date in a manner that
accounts for reasonable depreciation and condition of the Acquired Assets. The Purchase Price for the
Acquired Assets will not factor in the value of any rights granted by this Franchise Agreement, trademark,
service mark, or other commercial symbol used in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business,
nor any goodwill or “going concern” value for the Franchised Business. We may exclude from the Acquired
Assets purchased in accordance with this Section any equipment, BEV. and inventory that are not accepted
as meeting then-current standards for a Franchised Business or for which you cannot deliver a Bill of Sale
in a form satisfactory to us.

If you and we cannot agree upon a fair market value, we shall appoint an independent, third party
appraiser with experience appraising businesses comparable to your Franchised Business in the United
States (“Qualified Appraiser”) within 30 days after the Specified Date. We shall pay for 50% of the cost
of this Qualified Appraiser, and you shall pay the other 50% of the cost.

The Qualified Appraiser shall appraise the Acquired Assets as described above (‘“‘Appraised Value™). If
you agree with the Appraised Value, the Appraised Value shall be the Purchase Price. If you disagree with
the Appraised Value, upon written notice to us, you may hire an additional Qualified Appraiser at your
expense. In such situation, the Qualified Appraiser chosen by you shall appraise the Acquired Assets at
fair market value determined as described above. The average of the two values provided by the Qualified
Appraisers shall be the Purchase Price.

26.3 Access to Franchised Business
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The Qualified Appraiser will be given full access to the Franchised Business, the Premises and your
books and records during customary business hours to conduct the appraisal and will value the leasehold
improvements, equipment, furnishings, fixtures, signs and inventory in accordance with the standards of
this Section.

26.4 Exercise of Option; Operation

Within 10 days after the Purchase Price has been determined, we may fully exercise our option to
purchase the Acquired Assets by notifying you of our decision in writing (‘“Purchase Notice”). The Purchase
Price will be paid in cash or cash equivalents at the closing of the purchase (“Closing”), which will take
place no later than 60 days after the date of the Purchase Notice. From the date of the Purchase Notice until
Closing, you will operate the Franchised Business and maintain the Acquired Assets in the usual and
ordinary course of business and maintain in full force all insurance policies required under this Franchise
Agreement. Alternatively, we may require you to close the Franchised Business during that time period
without removing any Acquired Assets from the Franchised Business.

26.5 Due Diligence

For a period of 30 days after the date of the Purchase Notice (“Due Diligence Period”), we will have the
right to conduct such investigations as we deem necessary and appropriate. You will grant us and our
representatives access to the Franchised Business and the Premises at all reasonable times for the purpose
of conducting inspections of the Acquired Assets; provided that such access does not unreasonably interfere
with your operations of the Franchised Business.

Prior to the end of the Due Diligence Period, we will notify you in writing of any objections that we
have to any finding disclosed in any title to lien search, survey, environmental assessment or inspection. If
you cannot or elect not to correct any such title defect, environmental objection or defect in the working
condition of the Acquired Assets, we will have the option to either accept the condition of the Acquired
Assets as they exist or rescind our option to purchase on or before the Closing.

26.6 Closing

15 E—We will have the right to set off against and reduce the Purchase Price by any and all
amounts owed by you to us or our affiliates, and the amount of anyRIGHTTO DLIRCIIASE THE

.- C '-
ownership-and-condition-of and-tithe-to-assets: liens-and encumbrances en-assets:-validity-of contractsand
. and liabilit cfocting il : . - ol e

h a_1n dino ”.A
a 0 o <) O
b

{00169371.DOCX. } C-82
[2024 FA vIF]



If you cannot deliver clear title to all of the purchased assetsAcquired Assets as indicated in this Section,
or if there are other unresolved issues, we-and-you-wil-close-the-sale-through-an-eserow—Y-ou-and-you

accomplished through an escrow.

|_27. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

| 27.1 Mediation Requirement
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Except for any “Litigation Exceptions” as defined below, without limiting our Termination Rights, all
claims or disputes between you and us or our affiliates arising out of, or in any way relating to, this Franchise
Agreement, or any of the parties’ respective rights and obligations arising out of this Franchise Agreement,
shall be submitted first to non-binding mediation (“Required Mediation’) prior to a hearing in binding
arbitration. Before commencing any mediation against us or our affiliates with respect to any such claim
or dispute, you must submit a notice to us, which specifies, in detail, the precise nature and grounds of such
claim or dispute. Such mediation shall take place in the city closest to our principal place of business
(currently Florence, Kentucky) under the auspices of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), or
other mediation service acceptable to us in our sole discretion, in accordance with AAA’s Commercial
Mediation Procedures then in effect. Such mediation shall be concluded within 60 days of the issuance of
your request, or such longer period as we may agree upon. You may not commence any action against us
or our affiliates with respect to any such claim unless mediation proceedings have been terminated either:
(1) as the result of a written declaration of the mediator(s) that further mediation efforts are not worthwhile;
or (i1) as a result of a written declaration by us. The parties shall each bear their own costs of mediation

and shall share equally the filing fee imposed by AAA and the mediator’s fees. We reserve the right to
specifically enforce our right to mediation.

15 E—Arbitration CONTINUING-OBEIGATIONS:
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If the parties cannot fully resolve and settle a dispute through Required Mediation, all unresolved

issues involved in the dispute shall be, at the request of either party, submitted to final and binding
arbitration to be conducted in the city closest to our principal place of business (currently Florence,
Kentucky) by AAA (if AAA or any successor thereto is no longer available for arbitration in such city, you
and we will agree on another arbitration organization to conduct the arbitration proceeding), in accordance
with AAA’sEereeMatenre should-be-construed-narrowly-and-does-not-include-general-economic;-marke
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%S—%WMW%%}%&%%&H‘M&%&&H% Commerc1al Arb1trat10n

A}-and otherwise as
set forth below on an 1nd1V1dual bas1s (not a class act10n)—) ( “Requ1red Arb1trat1on )

In any arbitration proceeding, each party will submit or file any claim that would constitute a compulsory
counterclaim as defined by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure within the same proceeding as the claim it
relates to. Any claim that is not submitted or filed as required is forever barred. Except for claims excluded
from mediation and arbitration herein, the arbitrator, and not any federal, state, or local court or agency,
shall have exclusive authority to resolve any dispute relating to the interpretation, applicability,
enforceability; or formation of this Franchise Agreement; including, but not limited to; any claim that all or
any part of this Franchise Agreement is void or voidable.

Nelt—he1=27.2.1 Not1ce of Arb1trat10n E1ther party may 1n1t1ate afbftnat-ten—pﬂer—te—the

arb1trat10n proceedmg by makmg a wr1tten demand to the other—Bet-h— nartv, and both Dames w111 then be

obligated to engage in arbitration. ‘The demand for arbitration must be served on the other party within the
period provided by Seetion1+8Mthe applicable statute of limitations, and must contain a statement setting
forth the nature of the dispute, the amount involved, if any, and the remedies sought. A demand for
arbitration will not operate to stay, postpone; or rescind the effectiveness of any termination of this
Franchise Agreement. _Arbitration will not proceed until any protest of arbitrability is resolved by the
arbitrator or by an appropriate court, if necessary.

27.2.2 Selection of Arbitrator. Arbitration will be conducted before a single, neutral
arbitrator who is familiar with legal disputes of the type at issue and who has atdeast10-years™experience
as—alawyer-orinthe-franchise business-_or contract experience. The parties will mutually agree on the
selection of the arbitrator; however, if the parties have not agreed on the selection of an arbitrator within 30
days after the arbitration demand, either party may request the-AAA or successor organization, to appoint
a qualified arbitrator. —Within10

27.2.3 Discovery. All discovery must be completed within 60 days afterfollowing

appo1ntment of thean arbitrator, unless otherw1se agreed bV the pa1t1es—w1-l-1—meet—wrt—h—the—a1=b+t1¢ate&m

Depos1t10n w1ll 3
deeuments—tdent—x—t:}eaﬁen—ef—w%nesses—be l1m1ted t0 a maximum of ﬁve per nartv and will be held w1th1n

30 days after maklng a reguest Add1t10na1 depos1t10ns—and—the—s&pul&&en—ehmeentested—faets%t—th+s

may be scheduled only with the permission of the arb1trator and for good cause shown. Each depos1t1on

will setforth-the-proceduresto-befollowed-at-the-hearing-be limited to a maximum of six hours duration.
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Should a dispute arise over the extent of or propriety of any discovery request, the arbitrator will make a
final determination after hearing each party’s position.

2724 Statement of Case. At least 5five days before the scheduled hearing, each party
must deliver to the arbitrator and to the other party a written summary of its position on the issues in dispute.

27.2.5 Arbitrator’s Decision. The arbitrator will issue a written decision within +6ten days
after conclusion of the hearing, explaining the basis for the decision. Judgment upon the decision rendered
by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. _This decision will be binding upon both
parties. _The arbitrator will have authority to assess actual damages sustained by reason of any breach or
wrongful termination of this Franchise Agreement, including monetary damages and interest on unpaid
amounts from date due, specific performance, injunctive and declaratory relief, and legal fees and costs,
but will not have any authority to amend or modify the terms of this Franchise Agreement or to assess
exemplary or punitive damages-er—treble-damages—. Except for claims excluded from mediation and
arbitration herein, the arbitrator, and not any federal, state, or local court or agency, shall have exclusive
authority to resolve any dispute relating to the interpretation, applicability, enforceability or formation of
this Franchise Agreement including, but not limited to any claim that all or any part of this Franchise
Agreement is void or voidable.

27.2.6 Time Schedule. Any award will be made within nine months of the filing of the

notice of intention to arbitrate and the arbitrator will agree to comply with this schedule before accepting

appointment. The parties will use due diligence to meet the foregoing time schedule, and the arbitrator will

have the right to 1mpose approprlate sanctlons against any party who falls to comply with the agreed upon
t1me schedule re—pa 3 :

a@e%seh@éa%% The arbltrator W111 use hlS best efforts to comply W1th the foregomg time schedule but
may unilaterally modify it if, in his opinion, modification is necessary for a proper and just resolution of
the dispute. _The parties may jointly modify the agreed—upon time schedule, subject to the arbitrator’s

approval.

27.2.7 Arbitration Expenses. The fees eharged-byof, and authorized costs incurred by, the
arbitrator will be shared equally by the parties, and each party will bear all of its own costs of arbitration;
provided, however, that the arbitration decision will provide that the substantially prevailing party will
recover from the other party its actual costs and expenses (including arbitrator’s fees and expenses, and
attorney fees and expenses) incurred in connection with the dispute.

Disputes Not Subject to

Mediation or Arbitration
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If any of the following exceptions occur, either party may immediately file a lawsuit in accordance
with this Section without going through the Required Mediation or Required Arbitration (for purposes of

th1s Franchise Agreement, the followmg shall be referred to as the “Lrtlgatlon Exceptrons ) Aﬁb#%r@#Aet

A ocreemen Q elie o ourt—o ompete d O

mekadmg—bat—net—lrrmﬁed—te— 6] enforcement of liens, security agreements or attachment as we deem to be
necessary or appropriate to compel you to comply with your obligations to us and/or to protect the Marks,
Patent, trade secrets, copyrighted materials, intellectual property, or Confidential Information; (ii) any claim
or dispute involving or contesting the validity of any of the Marks, Patent, trade secrets, copyrighted
materials, intellectual property, or Confidential Information; (iii) alleged violations of federal or state
antitrust laws; (iv) the right to indemnification or the manner in which it is exercised, any claim or
controversy arising out of or related to this Franchise Agreement, or the making, performance, breach,
interpretation, or termination thereof, (iv) relief against threatened or actual conduct that has or will cause
us, the Marks, the Patent, the Confidential Information, and/or the System loss or damage; (v) any of the
restrictive covenants contained in this Franchise Agreement; or (vi) enforcement of any of the post-

termination obhgat1ons under thrs Franchlse Agreement 4%—&gre%w%may—ebt—a+n—saeh—speerﬁe
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| 27.4 Venue

All disputes and the

%W%ﬁmw&edﬂﬁk%%mlalmsmskwm%ﬁg%m
herebﬁ—ﬂ&%p%evaﬁmg—p&%ﬂ&aﬂ—b&emﬂed%e%eeeve%—eeﬁsmust be medlated arbltrated and

fe&s&eh—hﬁgaﬂen—shaﬂ—b%@h%s%e&feéeml—e%&%ea%ed—m—th&eﬁy if am)hcable 11t1gated in the

principal city (and, if applicable, court) closest to our principal place of business (currently Florence,

Kentuckyy;); provided however-that-we-may-ebtain-sachreltef-that for claims brought under the Litigation
Exceptions, we have the option to bring suit against you in any state or federal court with-preperwithin the
jurisdiction_where your Franchised Business is or was located, or where any of your owners lives. The
parties consent to the exercise of personal jurisdiction over them by these courts, and to the propriety of
venue in these courts for the purpose of this Seetien+8KFranchise Agreement, and the parties waive any
objections that they would otherwise have in this regard._Each of the parties specifically waives any defense
of inconvenient forum, and waives any bond, surety, or other security that might be required of any other
party with respect to venue.

27.5 Fees and Costs

If you breach any term of this Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with us or an affiliate of
ours, you agree to reimburse us for all reasonable attorneys’ fees and other expenses we incur relating to
such breach, regardless of whether the breach is cured prior to the commencement of any dispute resolution

proceedings.

If we or you must enforce this Franchise Agreement in an arbitration or judicial proceeding, the
substantially prevailing party will be entitled to reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including
reasonable fees for accountants, attorneys, and expert witnesses, costs of investigations and proof of facts,
court costs, travel and living expenses, and other dispute-related expenses.

If there is a mixed decision involving an award of money or money equivalent and equitable relief, the
arbitrator will award the above fees to the party that it deems has substantially prevailed over the other party
using reasonable business and arbitrator’s judgment. We reserve the right, but have no obligation, to
advance your share of the costs of any arbitration proceeding for such arbitration proceeding to take place,
and by doing so will not be deemed to have waived or relinquished our right to seek recovery of those costs
in accordance with this Section. If either party commences any legal action or proceeding in any court in
contravention of the terms of this Section, that party shall pay all costs and expenses that the other party
incurs in the action or proceeding, including, without limitation, costs and attorneys’ fees as described in
this Section.

27.6 Jury Trial, Class Action and Punitive Damages Waiver

WE AND YOU IRREVOCABLY WAIVE: (I) TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY PROCEEDING OR
COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR EQUITY, REGARDLESS OF WHICH PARTY BRING
SUIT; (II) THE RIGHT TO ARBITRATE OR LITIGATE ON A CLASS ACTION BASIS IN ANY
ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT
BY EITHER OF THE PARTIES; AND (III) ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE OR
EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER.
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27.7 Limitation of Actions and Waiver of Punitive Damages

We and you agree that any legal action of any kind by a party arising out of or relating to this Franchise
Agreement or a default of this Franchise Agreement must be commenced within one (1) year from the
occurrence of the facts giving rise to any such claim or action or such claim or action will be barred
provided, however, that the forgoing limitation shall not apply where required by applicable law, to the
parties indemnification obligations under this Franchise Agreement or to the Litigation Exceptions. You
and we, for yourselves, ourselves and on behalf of the Owners respectively, hereby waive to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law, any right to, or claim for, punitive or exemplary damages against the
other, and agree that except to the extent provided to the contrary in this Franchise Agreement, in the event
of a dispute you and we shall each be limited to recovering only the actual damages proven to be sustained
any legal action of any kind.

27.8 Confidentiality

Except as required by applicable law, including the required disclosure in our franchise disclosure
document, the entire mediation, arbitration or litigation proceedings and related documents are confidential.
Except as necessary to enforce the decision of the arbitrator hereunder, all conduct, statements, promises,
offers, views and opinions, whether oral or written, made in the course of the arbitration by any of the
parties, their agents, employees or representatives and by the arbitrator, are confidential. These matters
will not be discoverable or admissible for any purposes, including impeachment, in any litigation or other
proceeding involving the parties, and will not be disclosed to anyone who is not an agent, employee, expert
witness, or representative for any of the parties; however, evidence otherwise discoverable or admissible is
not excluded from discovery or admission as a result of its use in the arbitration.

27.9 Acknowledgment

The parties acknowledge that nothing herein shall delay or otherwise limit our Termination Rights. A
notice or request for arbitration or mediation will have no effect on the status of any demand for

performance or notice of termination under this Franchise Agreement.

Survival

We and you agree that the provisions of this Section shall apply during the Term of this Franchise
Agreement and following the termination, expiration, Transfer or non-renewal of this Franchise Agreement.
You agree to fully perform all obligations under this Franchise Agreement during the entire mediation,
arbitration or litigation process.

28. SECURITY INTEREST

You grant to us a security interest (“Security Interest”) in all of the furniture, fixtures, the BEV (and
any Additional Equipment), equipment, signage and real estate (including your interests under all real
property and personal property leases and all improvements to real estate) of the Franchised Business,
together with all similar property now owned or hereafter acquired, including additions, substitutions,
replacements, proceeds and products thereof, wherever located, used in connection with the Franchised
Business.

You are prohibited from granting a security interest in the Franchised Business or in any of your assets
without our prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. We may take a subordinate

position in the security interest if a Small Business Administration-participating or third-party lender
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requires a first or senior lien, and the appropriate subordination documentation is executed by all parties.
This security interest shall be security for any and all Royalties, damages, expenses or other sums owed to
us hereunder and for any other amounts you owe to us. You agree to execute any documents, including but
not limited to, a UCC-1 (or replacements or extensions for the UCC-1) that we reasonably believe to be
necessary to perfect said security interest prior to the opening of the Franchised Business, and hereby
appoint us as its attorney-in-fact for the purpose of executing such documents should you fail to do so.
Except with respect to your sales of inventory in the ordinary course of business. you shall not sell, transfer,
lease, sublease, assign, remove, waste, destroy, encumber or relocate any of the property described herein
as subject to our security interest. Further, you shall take no other action which interferes with our security
interest in said property, unless and until we release our security interest in the same.

| 29.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

| 29.1 Governing Law

Except as governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051, et
seq.), this Franchise Agreement and the franchise relationship shall be governed by the laws of the State
Kentucky (without reference to its principles of conflicts of law), but any law of that State that regulate the
offer and sale of franchises or business opportunities or governs the relationship of a franchisor and its
franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are met independently without reference to
this Section.

29.2 Relationship of the Parties

You understand that you are an independent contractor and are not authorized to make any contract,
agreement, warranty or representation or create any obligation on our behalf under this Franchise
Agreement. You understand and agree that nothing in this Franchise Agreement creates a fiduciary
relationship between you and us or is intended to make either party a general or special agent, legal
representative, subsidiary, joint venture, partner, employee or servant of the other for any purpose. During
the Term, you must conspicuously identify yourself at your base of operations, and in all dealings with third
parties, as a franchisee of ours and the independent owner of your Franchised Business. You agree to place
such other notices of independent ownership on such forms, stationery, advertising, business cards and
other materials as we may require from time to time. Neither we nor you are permitted to make any express
or implied agreement, warranty or representation, or incur any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the other,
or represent that our relationship is other than franchisor and franchisee. In addition, neither we nor you
will be obligated by or have any liability under any agreements or representations made by the other that
are not expressly authorized by this Franchise Agreement. You further agree that fulfillment of any and all
of our obligations written in the Franchise Agreement, or based on any oral communications which may be
ruled to be binding in a court of law, shall be our sole responsibility and none of our owners, officers,
agents, representatives, nor any individuals associated with us shall be personally liable to you for any
reason.

29.3 Severability and Substitution

Each section, subsection, term and provision of this Franchise Agreement, and any portion thereof, shall
be considered severable. If any applicable and binding law imposes mandatory, non-waivable terms or
conditions that conflict with a provision of this Franchise Agreement, the terms or conditions required by
such law shall govern to the extent of the inconsistency and supersede the conflicting provision of this
Franchise Agreement. If a court concludes that any promise or covenant in this Franchise Agreement is
unreasonable and unenforceable, including without limitation, the Brand Covenants: (i) the court may
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modify such promise or covenant to the minimum extent necessary to make such promise or covenant
enforceable: or (i1) we may unilaterally modify such promise or covenant to the minimum extent necessary

to make such promise or covenant enforceable and consistent with the original intent of the parties (i.e., to
provide maximum protection for us and to effectuate your obligations under the Franchise Agreement to
the fullest extent permitted by law), and you agree to be bound by the modified provisions.

294 Waivers

We and you may, by written instrument, unilaterally waive or reduce any obligation of or restriction
upon the other. Any waiver granted by us shall apply only the to the specifically waived provisions and
shall not affect any other rights we may have. We and you shall not be deemed to have waived or impaired
any right, power or option reserved by this Franchise Agreement (including the right to demand exact
compliance with every term, condition and covenant in this Franchise Agreement, or to declare any breach
of this Franchise Agreement to be a default, and to terminate the Franchise Agreement before the expiration
of its Term) by virtue of: (i) any custom or practice of the parties that varies with the terms of this Franchise
Agreement; (i1) any failure, refusal or neglect of us or you to exercise any right under this Franchise
Agreement or to insist upon exact compliance by the other with its obligations under this Franchise
Agreement, including any mandatory specification, standard or operating procedure; (iii) any waiver,
forbearance, delay, failure or omission by us to exercise any right, power or option, whether of the same,
similar or different nature, relating to other Travelin’ Tom’s franchisees; or (iv) the acceptance by us of any
payments due from you after breach of this Franchise Agreement.

29.5 Approvals

Whenever this Franchise Agreement requires our approval, you must make a timely written request for
approval, and the approval must be in writing in order to bind us. Except as otherwise expressly provided
in this Franchise Agreement, if we fail to approve any request for approval within the required period of
time, we shall be deemed to have denied your request. If we deny approval and you seek legal redress for
the denial, the only relief to which you may be entitled is to acquire our approval. Except where this
Franchise Agreement states that we may not unreasonably withhold our approval or consent, we may
withhold such approval or consent, in our sole discretion. You are not entitled to any other relief or damages
for our denial of approval.

29.6 Force Majeure

No party shall be liable for any loss or damage that arises directly or indirectly through or as a result of
any failure or delay in the fulfilment its obligations in whole or in part (other than the payment of money
as may be owed by a party) under this Franchise Agreement where the delay or failure is due to “Force
Majeure.” In the event of Force Majeure, the parties shall be relieved of their respective obligations only
to the extent each party, respectively, is prevented or delayed in performing its obligations during the period
of Force Majeure. As used in this Franchise Agreement, the term “Force Majeure” shall mean any act of
God, strike, lock-out or other industrial disturbance, war (declared or undeclared), riot, epidemic, fire or
other catastrophe, act of any government and any other similar cause which is beyond the party’s control
and cannot be overcome by use of normal commercial measures. The party whose performance is affected
by an event of Force Majeure shall give prompt notice of such event to the other party, which in no case
shall be more than 48 hours after the event, and provide them with the information regarding the nature of
the event and its estimated duration. The affected party will provide the other party with periodic reports
regarding the status and progress of the Force Majeure event. Each party must use its best efforts to mitigate
the effect of the event of Force Majeure upon its performance of the Agreement and to fulfill its obligations
under the Franchise Agreement.

{00169371.DOCX. } C-95
[2024 FA vIF]



Upon completion of a Force Majeure event, the party affected must as soon as reasonably practicable
recommence the performance of its obligations under this Franchise Agreement. Any delay resulting from
an event of Force Majeure will extend performance accordingly or excuse performance (other than payment
of money), in whole or in part, only to the extent reasonable under the circumstances. However, in the
event the Force Majeure continues for a period of six months or more, then the unaffected party may, at its
option, terminate this Franchise Agreement by thirty (30) days prior written notice to the party asserting
such Force Majeure. An event of Force Majeure does not relieve a party from liability for an obligation
which arose before the occurrence of the event, nor does that event affect any obligation to pay money
owed under the Franchise Agreement or to indemnify us, whether such obligation arose before or after the
Force Majeure event. An event of Force Majeure shall not affect your obligations to comply with any
restrictive covenants in this Franchise Agreement during or after the Force Majeure event.

29.7 Delegation

We have the right in our sole and absolute discretion to delegate to third party designees, whether these
designees are our agents or independent contractors with whom we have contracted the performance of any
portion or all of our obligations under this Franchise Agreement, and any right that we have under this
Franchise Agreement. If we do so, such third-party designees will be obligated to perform the delegated
functions for you in compliance with this Franchise Agreement.

HE—BINDING EFEECT

29.8 Binding Effect

This Franchise Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each copy so executed and delivered
will be deemed an original. This Franchise Agreement is binding upon us-and-yeu-and-eurthe parties to
this Franchise Agreement and yeartherr respectrve executors, adnnnrstrators beneﬁeraﬁes—peﬂnrﬁedhelrs
assigns; and successors in interest. St o 3 A
%hrs—Franelﬂs%green&ent—n&aﬁLnet—bﬁned-rﬁedNothlng in thrs F ranchlse Agreement is 1ntended nor shall
be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party to this Franchise
Agreement; provided, however, that the Additional Insureds and the Indemnified Parties are intended third

party beneficiaries under this Franchise Agreement with respect to indemnification obligations of the
franchisee.

29.9 Integration

This Franchise Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may not be changed

except by a wrltten agreernenfédocurnent signed by both eur—and—year—deﬂy—aaﬂ&er&ed—e#ﬁeers—pre&&éed—

ey > e : q val-parties. Any
emall correspondence or other form of 1nformal electronlc communication shall not be deemed to modify

this Franchise Agreement unless such communication is signed by both parties and specifically states that
it is intended to modify this Franchise Agreement. The attachment(s) are part of this Franchise Agreement,
which, together with any amendments or addenda executed on or after the Effective Date, constitutes the
entire understanding and agreement of the parties, and there are no other oral or written understandings or
agreements between us and you about the subject matter of this Franchise Agreement. No provision herein
expressly identifying any term or breach of this Franchise Agreement as material shall be construed to
imply that any other term or breach which is not so identified is not material. As referenced above, all
mandatory provisions of the Brand Manual are part of this Franchise Agreement; however, notwithstanding
the foregoing, we may modify the Brand Manual at any time.
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a—l—l—elra+ms—aﬂsmg—eut—ef—er—rel-a{-mg—te—Anv representatlons made before entermg into thlS Franchlse
Agreement er-ourrelationship—with-yeu—wil-be-barredare not enforceable unless ajudictal-or-arbitration
proceedingis-commeneced-withinene-year-fromthey are specifically contained in this Franchise Agreement.
This provision is intended to define the date-en—which-nature and extent of the party-assertingthe-elaim

kn%er—sheuld—ha#%la&ewn—ef—th&f&ets—gwf&g—ﬂsepartles mutual contractual mtent and serves to the

The-preambles—and-attachments—are-apart-ef-there is no intention to enter into contract relations
other than the terms contained in thlS Franchise Agreement—w%eh—tegeﬂ%e&w%ﬂa—the—Sys&em—Smﬂdafds

3 ’ . The parties acknowledge that these
hmltatlons are 1ntended to achleve the thhCSt posmble degree of certainty in the definition of the contract
being formed, in recognition of the fact that uncertainty creates economic risks for both parties which, if

not addressed as pr0V1ded in this Franchise Agreement)—&nd—@h%ﬁa&ehseDﬂelesm%Deehmeﬁt—eeﬂs%H&te
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bargain. Nothing in this Franchise Agreement erin-anyrelated-agreement-is intended to disclaim any
of the representations we made in the Eranchise Diselosure- Documentfranchise disclosure document.

Covenant of Good Faith

If applicable law implies a covenant of good faith and fair dealing in this Franchise Agreement, the
parties agree that the covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations that are inconsistent with a fair
construction of the terms of this Franchise Agreement. 38-0——COVENANTOEGOOD-FEAITH

- 2 At Addltlonally, 1f apphcable law shall 1mp1y the
covenant, you agree that (i) this Franchlse Agreement (and the relationship of the parties that is inherent
in this Franchise Agreement) grants us the discretion to make decisions, take actions; and/or refrain from
taking actions not inconsistent with our explicit rights and obligations under this Franchise Agreement that
may affeet-favorably or adversely affect your interests; (ii) we will use our judgment in exercising thethat

dlscretlon based on our general assessment of our own interests and balancmg those interests agalnst the

general 1nterests er—theof our franchlsees ( 1nclud1n,cz ourselves and our

affiliates if applicable), and not based on your or any other franchisee’s specific individual interests-ef-any
otherparticularfranehisee; (iil) we will have no liability to you for the exercise of our discretion in this
manner, so long as the discretion is not exercised in bad faith; and (iv) in the absence of bad faith, no trier
of fact in any arbitration or litigation shall substitute its judgment for our judgment so exercised.
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29.11

Cumulative Rights

The rights of the parties under this Franchise Agreement and-fellewingare cumulative and no exercise
or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this Franchise Agreement will preclude any
other right or remedy available under this Franchise Agreement or by law.

| Survival

All provisions that expressly or by their nature survive the termination, expiration;-ernen-renewal-of
this-Franchise- Agreement or Transfer of this Franchise Agreement (or the Transfer of an ownership interest
in the Franchised Business) will continue in full force and effect, even after the termination, expiration or
Transfer of the Franchise Agreement, until they are fully satisfied or expire by their own terms.

18— NOHCESAND PAYMENTS:

Allwritten-Construction

The headings in this Franchise Agreement are for convenience only and do not define, limit or construe
the contents of the sections or subsections. All references to Sections refer to the Sections contained in this
Franchise Agreement unless otherwise specified. All references to days in this Franchise Agreement refer
to calendar days unless otherwise specified. The term “you” as used in this Franchise Agreement is
applicable to one or more persons or an Entity, and the singular usage includes the plural and the masculine

and neuter usages include the other, the feminine and the possessive.

| Time is of the Essence |

Time is of the essence in this Franchise Agreement and every term thereof.

| Notice |
i i i v given under this

Franchise Agreement wﬂ-lmust be in Wr1t1n,<1 and shall be deemed—te—be—del—wered—

H———considered given at the time delivered by hand:

)——, or one business day after transmissionsending by faestmiefax, email; or ethercomparable
clectronic system-H-the-senderhas-contirmation-otsuecessfultransmission:

3>——, one business day after being
ee&&er—se%e&fer—naet—b&smess—éaydehvery—er

“4— bV any trackable dehverv method or three busmess days after p}aeemeﬁt—m—the—U-mted

edplaced in the mail,

postage prepald—
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—Awy-, by certified mail with a return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed: (a) to us at
5945 Centenmal C1rcle F lorence Kentuckv 41042 unless written notice te—as—m&st—b&seﬁt—te—th&address
he-sig o we-may-is given of a change this-of

address and ( b) to you at the address fer—ne&ee—by—gwmg—yeﬂ—ﬂeﬂee—ef—ﬂ&e—ﬁew—addfess—z%ﬂyset forth on

Attachment A of th1s Franchlse Agreement unless written notice we—seﬂd—te—yea—m-ay—be—seﬂt—eﬂ-l-y—te—the

Seet}eﬂ—ls given of a change of address

(Signature Page Follows)
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The parties to this Franchise Agreement have executed this Franchise Agreement effective as of the
Effective Date set forth in Attachment A.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC [Insert Entity Name]

a Delaware limited liability company [insert State/Type of Entity]
Sign: Sign:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Title: Title:

Or if Franchisee is an individual(s)

Sign:
individually

Printed Name:

Sign:
individually

Printed Name:
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ATTACHMENT A
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISE DATA SHEET

1. Effective Date. The Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement is: ,20
2. Franchisee. The franchisee identified in the introductory paragraph of the Franchise Agreement
1S:
3. Notice Address. Franchisee Notice Address is:
Attn:
4. Initial Franchise Fee. The “Initial Franchise Fee” is: (check one):

$15.000 for a single Franchise.

Not applicable; this Franchise Agreement is signed as a Successor Franchise Agreement or
as a result of a Transfer.

This Franchise Agreement is being signed under an area development agreement between
you and a credit of § from your Development Fee towards the purchase price of the
BEV. This Franchise Agreement constitutes franchise number out of a total of up to
franchises under the area development agreement between you and us dated

.20 .

5. BEYV Royalty Schedule. Your BEV Royalty Schedule will be (select one):
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: 6 annual installments; 9 annual installments

6. BEYV Identification Number: The BEV number or VIN number is:

7. Territory. The Territory set forth in Section 4 of the Franchise A greement will be the area as shown
on the map or described below:

(Signature Page Follows)
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Tt O —TNarcrs

Printed Name:

DY
Title-
LTIV
Date-
Date:

C-4
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T OrtCO—TNartaCr

Printed Name-

DPate-

Title-
THIS:

C-5

=ZatC
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FRANCHISOR:
MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC

a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:

Printed Name:

Title:

{00453827
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FRANCHISEE:

[Insert Entity Name]
[insert State/Type of Entity]

Sign:

Printed Name:

Title:

Or if Franchisee is an individual(s)

Sign:

individually

Printed Name:

Sign:

individually

Printed Name:




ATTACHMENT B
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT-ATFACHMENTA

. . . . . .
4 Ident*iieat_]en ei \zlannnlnn Owner—VYour anaocing Ouwmneracofthe Effectivve PDateig
0 HagiH e oWwhelr —y ot rvidhd g owhtr a5 ot e = ecaveoate1s
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C-A-2
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OWNERSHIPINTERESTS

 hown in Astac :Zli i

Franchisee:
Form of Ownership
(Check One)
_ Individual (s) Partnership —— Corporation Limited
Liability Company

INSTRUCTIONS: If the franchisee is an individual (or individuals), please complete section I below

only. If the franchisee is a business entity, please complete sections II and III below.

SECTION I (For Individual(s)*):

Name Address

*If you plan to operate your Franchised Business through a business entity in the future, you will need to
notify us, transfer this Franchise Agreement to the Entity, and sign all of our transfer documents.
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SECTION II (For Entities):

A. State and Datedate of Formation/Incorporation:

B. Management (managers, officers, board of directors, etc.):

Name Title

C. Owners (Members, Stockholders, Partners®:)**:

Please include each person or entity who is a direct and indirect owner of franchisee (attach additional
sheets if necessary). If any of the owners are also business entities, please list the entities and owners of
each of those business entities also.

Name Address Percentage Owned

***If any members, stockholders or partners are entities, please list entities and the owners of such entities
up through the individuals.

i ollowi
SECTION III (For Entities):

A. Identification of Managing Owner. Your Managing Owner is
. You may not change the Managing Owner without prior

written approval.

B. Identification of Designated Manager. Your Designated Manager, if applicable, is
You may not change the Designated

Manager without prior written approval.

{00169371.DOCX. } C-B-2
[2024 FA vIF]



This form is current and complete as of .20

FRANCHISEE: FRANCHISEE:

[Insert Entity Name]
[Insert State/Type of Entity]

By: Sign:
Printed Name:
Printed Name: Title:
Date:
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ATTACHMENT C
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TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT-ATFACHMENT €

OWNERSFRANCHISE OWNER AGREEMENT

__ Asacondition to the exeentiengranting by Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (“we” or “us®};”) of a
Eranehise-Agreementfranchise agreement with (“Franchisee”),
each of the undersigned individuals (“Owners”), who constitute all of the owners of a direct or indirect
beneficial interest in Franchisee, as well as their respective spouses, covenant and agree to be bound by this
Owners Agreement (“OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement”).

1. Acknowledgments.

1.1 Franchise Agreement. Franchisee entered into a franchise agreement with us
effective as of - .20 (“Franchise Agreement”).
Capitalized words not defined in this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement will have the same meanings
ascribed to them in the Franchise Agreement.

1.2 Owners’ Role-ef-Owners. Owners are the beneficial owners or spouses of the
beneficial owners of all of the_direct and indirect equity interest, membership interest, or other equity
controlling interest in Franchisee and acknowledge there are benefits received and to be received by each
Owner, jointly and severally, and for themselves, their heirs, legal representatives, and assigns.
Franchisee’s obligations under the Franchise Agreement, including the confidentiality and non-compete
obligations, would be of little value to us if Franchisee’s direct and indirect owners were not bound by the
same requirements. Under the provisions of the Franchise Agreement, Owners are required to enter into
this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement as a condition to our entering into the Franchise Agreement with
Franchisee. Owners will be jointly and severally liable for any breach of this OwnersFranchise Owner
Agreement.

2. Non-Disclosure and Protection of Confidential Information.

2.1 Confidentiality. Under the Franchise Agreement, we will provide Franchisee with
specialized training, proprietary trade secrets, and other Confidential Information relating to the
establishment and operation of a franchised business. The provisions of the Franchise Agreement
governing Franchisee’s non-disclosure obligations relating to our Confidential Information are hereby
incorporated into this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement by reference, and Owners agree to comply with
each obligation as though fully set forth in this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement as a direct and primary
obligation of Owners. Further, we may seek the same remedies against Owners under this OwaersFranchise
Owner Agreement as we may seek against Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement. Any and all
information, knowledge, know-how, techniques, and other data; which we designate as confidential; will
also be deemed Confidential Information for purposes of this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement.

2.2 Immediate Family Members.- Owners acknowledge that they could circumvent
the purpose of Section 2.1 by disclosing Confidential Information to an immediate family member (i.e.,
spouse, parent, sibling, child, or grandchild). Owners also acknowledge that it would be difficult for us to
prove whether Owners disclosed the Confidential Information to family members. Therefore, each Owner
agrees that he or she will be presumed to have violated the terms of Section 2.1 if any member of his or her
immediate family uses or discloses the Confidential Information or engages in any activities that would
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constitute a violation of the covenants listed in Section 3, below, if performed by Owners. However,
Owners may rebut this presumption by furnishing evidence conclusively showing that Owners did not
disclose the Confidential Information to the family member.

3. Covenant Not to Compete.

3.1 Non-Competition During and After the Term of the Franchise Agreement. Owners
acknowledge that as a participant in our system, they will receive proprietary and confidential information
and materials, trade secrets, and the unique methods, procedures, and techniques which we have developed.
The provisions of the Franchise Agreement governing Franchisee’s restrictions on competition both during
the term of the Franchise Agreement and following the expiration-e, termination or transfer of the
Franchise Agreement are hereby incorporated into this OwsnersFranchise Owner Agreement by reference,
and Owners agree to comply with and perform each such covenant as though fully set forth in this
OwmersFranchise Owner Agreement as a direct and primary obligation of Owners. Further, we may seek
the same remedies against Owners under this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement as we may seek against
Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement.

32 Construction of Covenants. The parties agree that each such covenant related to
non-competition will be construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this
OvwnersFranchise Owner Agreement. If all or any portion of a covenant referenced in this Section 3 is held
unreasonable or unenforceable by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction in a final decision to which

we are a party, Owners agree to beremain bound by-anylessercovenant-subsumed-withinthe-terms-ofsuch
covenant-thatimpesesto the maximum dutyextent permitted by law, as if theresultingthat covenant were

separately stated in and made a part of this Section 3.

33 Our Right to Reduce Scope of Covenants. Additionally, we have the right, in our
sole discretion, to unilaterally reduce the scope of all or part of any covenant referenced in this Section 3
of this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement, without Owners’ consent (before or after any dispute arises),
effective when we give Owners written notice of this reduction. Owners agree to comply with any covenant
as so modified.

4. Continuing Guarantee.

4.1 Payment. Owners will pay us (or cause us to be paid) all monies payable by
Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement whether now or in the future on the dates and in the manner
required for payment in the relevant agreement.

4.2 Performance. Owners unconditionally guarantee the—full performance and
dlscharge by Franchrsee of all of Franchrsee ] obhgatlons under the Franchrse Agreement at—th%ﬁ-m%&né

on the date and trmes and in the manner requrred in the relevant agreement.

4.3 Indemnification. Owners will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless us, all of our
affiliates, and the respective shareholders, directors, partners, employees, and agents of such entities,
against and from all losses, damages, costs, and expenses which we or they may sustain, incur, or become
liable for, whether now or in the future, by reason of: (ai) Franchisee’s failure to pay the menies
payableamounts owed (to us or any of our affiliates) pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, or to do and
perform any other act, matter, or thing required by the Franchise Agreement; or (bii) any action by us to
obtain performance by Franchisee of any act, matter, or thing required by the Franchise Agreement.
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4.4 No Exhaustion of Remedies. Owners acknowledge and agree that we willare not

be-obligated to preceed-againstFranchisee-er-cxhaust any-seeurity-fromFEranchisee-orpurste-or-exhatst

anyall remedy;—inelading—any (whether legal or equitable—) against or pursue relief againstfrom the
Franchisee, before proceeding to enforce the obligations of the Owners as guarantors under this

OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement;-and-the. The enforcement of saehOwners’ obligations can take place
before, after, or eentemperaneeustysimultaneously with; the enforcement of any of the Franchisee’s debts
or obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

4.5 Waiver of Notice. Without affecting Owners’ obligations under this Section 4, we
can extend, modify, or release any of Franchisee’s indebtedness or obligation, or settle, adjust, or
compromise any claims against Franchisee, all without notice to the Owners. Owners waive notice of
amendment of the Franchise Agreement and notice of demand for payment or performance by Franchisee.

4.6 Effect of Owner’s Death. Upon the death of an Owner, the estate of such Owner
will be bound by the obligations in this Section 4, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing
at the time of death:, and the obligations of any other Owners will continue in full force and effect.

4.7 Waiver of Acceptance, Default and Defenses. Owners waive: (i) acceptance and
notice of acceptance by us of the forgoing undertakings; (b) protest and notice of default to any party with
respect to the indebtedness or non-performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; and (¢) any and all
other notices and legal or equitable defenses, right of setoff, claim or counterclaim whatsoever to which
they may be entitled at any time hereunder.

4.8  Continuing Nature. Owners agree that each of the obligations in this Section 4 shall
be continuing and shall not be discharged by: (i) the insolvency of Franchisee or the payment in full of all
of the obligations at any time; (ii) the power or authority or lack thereof of Franchisee to incur the
obligations; (iii) the validity or invalidity of any of the obligations; (iv) the existence or non-existence of
Franchisee as a legal entity; (v) the transfer or assignment of all or a portion of the ownership in Franchisee
and/or the assets of Franchisee; (vi) the execution of an owners agreement or any other form of guaranty
by any direct, indirect or beneficial owner of Franchisee in favor of us or our successors or assigns; (vii)
any statute of limitations affecting the liability of Owners or the ability of us to enforce this Franchise
Owner Agreement or the obligations; (vii1) any right of offset, counterclaim or defense of any Owner,
including, without limitation, those which have been waived by Owners pursuant to this Franchise Owners
Agreement; or (ix) the expiration, termination or assignment of the Franchise Agreement or any other
agreement between you or Franchisee and us or our affiliates.

S. Transfers.

_Owners acknowledge and agree that we have granted the Franchise Agreement to Franchisee in
reliance on Owners’ business experience, skill, financial resources, and personal character. Accordingly,
Owners agree=—a) not to sell, encumber, assign, transfer, convey, pledge, merge, or give away any direct or
indirect interest in this Franchisee, unless Owners first comply with the sections in the Franchise Agreement
regarding transfersTransfers. Owners acknowledge and assignmentand-bjagree that any-attemptattempting
to de-seTransfer an interest in the Franchisee without our express written consent, except those situations
provided in the Franchise Agreement where our consent is not required, will be a matertal-breach of this
Ovwmners-Franchise Owner Agreement and the Franchise Agreement. We may, from time to time, without
notice to Owners, assign or transfer any or all of Owners’ rights, duties and obligations or any interest
therein in this Owners Agreement and, notwithstanding any assignment(s) or transfer(s), the rights, duties
and obligations shall be and remain for the purpose of this Owners Agreement. Each and every immediate
and successive assignee or transferee of any of the rights, duties or obligations of any interest therein shall,
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to the extent of such party’s interest in the rights duties and/or obligations, be entitled to the benefits of this
Owners Agreement to the same extent as if such assignee or transferee were us.

6. Notices.

6.1 Method of Notice. Any notices given under this OwnersFranchise Owner
Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in accordance with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

6.2 Notice Addresses. Our current address for all communications under this
OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement is:

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC
5945 Centennial Circle
Florence, Kentucky 41042

The current address of each Owner for all communications under this OwnersFranchise
Owner Agreement is designated on the signature page of this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement. Any
party may designate a new address for notices by giving written notice to the other parties of the new
address according to the method set forth in the Franchise Agreement.

7. Enforcement of This OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement.

7.1 Dispute Resolution. Any claim or dispute arising out of or relating to this
OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement shall be subject to the dispute resolution provisions of the Franchise
Agreement. This agreement to engage in such dispute resolution process shall survive the termination or
expiration of this Owners-Franchise Owner Agreement.

7.2 Choice of Law; Jurisdiction and Venue. This OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement
and any claim or controversy arising out of, or relating to, any of the rights or obligations under this
OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement, and any other claim or controversy between the parties, shalwill be
governed by the choice of law-and, jurisdiction, and venue provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

7.3 P—rews*ena}Equltable Remedies. We—ha*e—thﬁight—te—seek—ffem—an—appfepﬂate

enfe;ee—@aw&ers—el%ga&e&s&mder—ﬂns—@%&efs%gfeement—Owners acknowledge and agree that thefe—rs

h-the covenants and obligations of the
HedgeOwners relate to special, unique

and agfe%that—m—th%eventextraordmarv matters and that a V101at10n of any nen-complianee;-we-wil-be-of

the terms of such covenants and obligations will cause us irreparable injury for which adequate remedies
are not available at law. Therefore, Owners agree that we shall be entitled to temperary—preliminary;-and

permanent-infunetions;-as-well-as-allan injunction, restraining order or such other equitable relief that-any
eourt-with(without the requirement to post bond) as a court of competent jurisdiction may deem jast-and

preper—necessary or appropriate to restrain Owners from committing any violation of the covenants and
obligations contained in this Franchise Owner Agreement. If injunetiveequitable relief is granted, Owners’
only remedy will be the court’s dissolution of the injunctive relief. If the-injunetiveequitable relief was
wrongfully issued, Owners expressly waive all claims for damages they incurred as a result of the wrongful
issuance.

8. Miscellaneous.
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8.1 No Other Agreements. This OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement constitutes the
entire, full, and complete agreement between the parties, and supersedes any earlier or contemporaneous
negotiations, discussions, understandings, or agreements. There are no representations, inducements,
promises, agreements, arrangements, or undertakings, oral or written, between the parties relating to the
matters covered by this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement, other than those in this OwsersFranchise
Owner Agreement. No other obligations, restrictions, or duties that contradict or are inconsistent with the
express terms of this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement may be implied into this OwsersFranchise Owner
Agreement. Except for unilateral reduction of the scope of the covenants permitted in Section 3.3 (or as
otherwise expressly provided in this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement), no amendment, change, or
variance from this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement will be binding on either party unless it is mutually
agreed to by the parties and executed in writing. Time is of the essence.

8.2 Severability. Each provision of this OwsersFranchise Owner Agreement, and any
portions thereof, will be considered severable. If any provision of this OwsersFranchise Owner Agreement
or the application of any provision to any person, property, or circumstances is determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this OwnersFranchise Owner
Agreement will be unaffected and will still remain in full force and effect. The parties agree that the
provision found to be invalid or unenforceable will be modified to the extent necessary to make it valid and
enforceable, consistent astaeh-as-peossible-with the original intent of the parties (i.e-., to provide maximum
protection for us and to effectuate the Owners’ obligations under the Franchise Agreement to the fullest
extent permitted by law), and the parties agree to be bound by the modified provisions.

8.3 No Third- Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this OwnersFranchise Owner
Agreement is intended to confer upon any person or entity (other than the parties and their heirs, successors,
and assigns) any rights or remedies under or by reason of this OwsersFranchise Owner Agreement.

8.4 Construction. Any term defined in the Franchise Agreement which is not defined
in this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement will be ascribed the meaning given to it in the Franchise
Agreement. The language of this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement will be construed according to its
fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. All words in this OwsersFranchise Owner
Agreement refer to whatever number or gender the context requires. If more than one party or person is
referred to as you, their obligations and liabilities must be joint and several. Headings are for reference
purposes and do not control interpretation.

8.5 Binding Effect. _This OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement may be executed in

counterparts, and each copy so executed and delivered will be deemed an original. This OwsersFranchise
Owner Agreement is binding on the parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal
representatives, successors, and (permitted) assigns.
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the undersigned.” or “you”

888.6  Successors. References to “Franchisor,” “Owners,
include the respective parties’ heirs, successors, assigns, or transferees.

8.7 Nonwaiver. Our failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision of this
OwmersFranchise Owner Agreement shall not be a waiver of our right to do so. Delay or omission by us
respecting any breach or default shall not affect our rights respecting any subsequent breaches or defaults.
All rights and remedies granted in this OwsersFranchise Owner Agreement shall be cumulative.

8.98  No Personal Liability. ¥ewOwners agree that fulfillment of any and all of our
obligations written in the Franchise Agreement or this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement, or based on
any oral communications which may be ruled to be binding in a court of law, shall be our sole responsibility
and none of our owners, officers, agents, representatives, nor any individuals associated with us shall be
personally liable to ye#Owners for any reason.

8 H0—Owners9 Franchise Owner Agreement Controls. In the event of
any discrepancy between this OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement and the Franchise Agreement, this
OwnersFranchise Owner Agreement shall control.
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have entered into this OwsnersFranchise Owner Agreement
as of the effeetive-dateEffective Date of the Franchise Agreement.

{00169371.DOCX. } C-C-8
[2024 FA vIF]



OWNER(S): SPOUSE(S)):
Sign: Sign:
Printed ~ Name:  [Insert printed Name: [Insert
Owner Name of Name of Spouse_Name
OwnerHere] Here]
Address: Address:
Sig: Sien:
[Insert printed  Name: [Insert

NameAddress of Owner]  NameAddress of Spouse]
Address:

Address:
Sion
Sign:

Sion

Sign:
Sign: Sign:
Printed Name: [Insert Printed Name: [Insert
Owner Name of Name—ef—Spouse_Name
OwnerHere] Here]
Address: Address:

{00169371.DOCX. }
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Sign- Sign-
o1gH: o1igH:

Printed—Name:  [Insert Printed—Name: [Insert
NameAddress of Owner] NameAddress of Spouse]

Sign: Sien:

Printed Name: [Insert printed Name: [Insert

Owner Name Here] Spouse Name Here]
Address:_[Insert Address of Address: [Insert Address
Owner of Spouse]

Rev.030824
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ATTACHMENT D
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT AMENDMENT

This Amendment is made and entered into as of the effective date listed in the signature block
(“Effective Date”) by and between Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Franchisor”) and the Franchisee identified on the signature block below (‘“Franchisee’), with reference
to the following facts:

A. The parties have entered into a Travelin’ Tom’s franchise agreement pursuant to which
Franchisee will operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Franchise (the “Franchise Agreement”).

B. Subject to the conditions of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee has the option to
purchase additional Travelin’ Tom’s equipment (“Additional Equipment”) for use in the
Franchisee’s Territory.

C. The parties hereto desire to amend the Franchise Agreement as set forth herein. Unless
defined herein all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning in the Franchise

Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants, warranties and mutual agreements
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT. Franchisee desires to purchase a BEV Cart for use in the
Protected Territory. The AE Royalty for the BEV Cart is $2.000 per year. Franchisee agrees to pay the
AE Royalty in ___ installments of § per month and to make all payments together with the
Royalty for the BEV. Franchisee acknowledges that the AE Royalty may increase upon entering into a
Successor Franchise Agreement. The AE Rovalty shall be due for so long as Franchisee owns the
Additional Equipment. Franchisee must present evidence to Franchisor, as required by Franchisor in its
sole discretion that Franchisee no longer owns the Additional Equipment prior to Franchisee being excused
from paying any further AE Royalties. Franchisee shall not be entitled to receive a refund on any AE
Rovalty paid. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the AE Royalty may increase upon renewal of the
Franchise Agreement and agrees to pay Franchisor the then-current Royalty amount upon any such renewal.
The anticipated purchase price for the BEV Cart is $ to $ and is subject to change.
The AE Royalty is separate for each piece of Additional Equipment that Franchisee owns.

2. AMENDMENT BINDING. This Amendment will be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of each party and to each party’s respective successors and assigns.

3. NO FURTHER CHANGES. Except as specifically provided in this Amendment, all of
the terms, conditions and provisions of the Franchisee Agreement will remain in full force and effect as
originally written and signed. In the event of any inconsistency between the Franchise Agreement and this
Amendment, this Amendment shall control.

(Signature Page Follows)

{00453827
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties duly executed this Amendment as of the dates listed below.

Maebhile-Coffee- Company; LEC
[Insert Entity Name],
[Insert State/Type of Entity]

Sign:
MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC Printed N )
a Delaware limited liability company rinte ame:
Title:
Sign:
Printed Name:
Title: Or if Franchisee is an individual(s)
Sign:
individually
% .
Date: Printed Name:
*Effective Date
Sign:
individually
Printed Name:
100153827
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EXHIBIT D

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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EXHIBIT E

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE
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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

(This questionnaire is not to be used for any franchise sale in or to residents of California, Hawaii,
Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South
Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or Wisconsin)

As you know, Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (“we” or “us”), and you are preparing to enter into a Franchise
Agreement and Area Development Agreement, if applicable, for the operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee
franchise. You cannot sign or date this questionnaire the same day as the Receipt for the Franchise
Disclosure Document, but you must sign and date it the same day you sign the Franchise
Agreement. Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each
question. If you answer “No” to any of the questions below, please explain your answer in the table provided
below.

Do not sign this Questionnaire if you are a resident of Maryland or the franchise is to be operated in
Maryland.

1. Yes  No__ Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement and
Area Development Agreement, if applicable, and each attachment or exhibit
attached to it that we provided?

2. Yes  No__ Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Disclosure
Document and each attachment or exhibit attached to it that we provided?

3. Yes  No__ Did you sign a receipt for the Franchise Disclosure Document indicating the
date you received it?

4. Yes No Do you understand all the information contained in the Franchise Disclosure
Document and Franchise Agreement?

5. Yes  No__ Have you reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise
Agreement with a lawyer, accountant, or other professional advisor, or have
you had the opportunity for such review and chosen not to engage such
professionals?

6. Yes  No_ Have you had the opportunity to discuss the benefits and risks of developing
and operating a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise with an existing Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee franchisee?

7. Yes No Do you understand the risks of developing and operating a Travelin’ Tom’s
Coffee Franchise?

8. Yes  No Do you understand the success or failure of your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee
Franchise will depend in large part upon your skills, abilities, and efforts, and
those of the persons you employ, as well as many factors beyond your control
such as competition, interest rates, the economy, inflation, labor and supply
costs, and other relevant factors?

9. Yes No Do you understand all disputes or claims you may have arising out of or
relating to the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement, if

100453833
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10. Yes
1. Yes
12. Yes
13. Yes
14. Yes
15. Yes

No

applicable, must be arbitrated in Kentucky, if not resolved informally or by
mediation, (subject to state law)?

Do you understand that you must satisfactorily complete the initial training
program before we will allow your Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise to open
or consent to a transfer of the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise to you?

Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our behalf made
any statement or promise regarding the costs involved in operating a
Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise that is not contained in the Franchise
Disclosure Document or that is contrary to, or different from, the information
contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document?

Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our behalf made
any statement or promise or agreement, other than those matters addressed in
your Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement, if applicable,
and any addendum, concerning advertising, marketing, media support,
marketing penetration, training, support service, or assistance that is contrary
to, or different from, the information contained in the Franchise Disclosure
Document?

Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our behalf made
any statement or promise regarding the actual, average or projected profits or
earnings, the likelihood of success, the amount of money you may earn, or
the total amount of revenue a Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise will generate
that is not contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document or that is contrary
to, or different from, the information contained in the Franchise Disclosure
Document?

Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement_and Area Development
Agreement, if applicable, including each attachment or exhibit to the Franchise
Agreement, contains the entire agreement between us and you concerning the
Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise?

Do you understand that we are relying on your answers to this questionnaire
to ensure that the franchise sale was made in compliance of state and federal
laws?

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE WILL
RELY ON THEM. BY SIGNING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE, YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU
HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO THE
ABOVE QUESTIONS.

Signature of Franchise Applicant

Signature of Franchise Applicant

100453833
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Name (please print) Name (please print)

Date Date

Signature of Franchise Applicant Signature of Franchise Applicant
Name (please print) Name (please print)

Date Date

Signature of Franchise Applicant Signature of Franchise Applicant
Name (please print) Name (please print)

Date Date

EXPLANATION OF ANY NEGATIVE RESPONSES (REFER TO QUESTION NUMBER):

uestion Number Explanation of Negative Response
p g p
Rev. 636123071823
100153833
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EXHIBIT EF

BRAND MANUAL
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Section Number of Pages
Introduction to the Manual 3
Introduction to our Franchise 12
Pre-Opening Procedures 14
Human Resources 31
Daily Operating Procedures 23
Marketing 14
Other Resources 3
Appendix 281

Total Number of Pages: 390
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EXHIBIT ¥G

LIST OF CURRENT AND FORMER FRANCHISEES
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MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
LIST OF FRANCHISEES

Current Franchisees as of December 31, 20232022

. . Zip Outlets

Franchisee Address —City State Code Phone Ojpemiiz
. 1520 Simmsville RdRoad
Butler, Kevin & Karla | o 0 1200 Alabaster AL | 35007 | (205.)620-3553 | AL:1
Mattox, Craig 801 Mundy Drive Anniston AL 36207 (256) 453-6567 AL: 1
, (256) 924-
O'Rear, Russ & Amber | 156 Nick Davis Rd Harvest AL | 35749 | 89335007760 | AL:2
Stefaniak, David &
Holly 20278 Capitol Hill Dr. Tanner AL 35671 (256) 434-1734 AL: 1
Burley. Lisa 1616 West Morris Avenue Fresno CA | 93711 (559) 779-2969 CA: 1
Rotner, Dan & Shelton,
Brian 5242 Silverwood Dr Johnstown CO 80534 (970) 222-1946 CO: 1
Ingle, Mark-&Debbie 7540 Dawn Dr Littleton Cco 80125 (720) 916-1571 CO: 1
Tennal, Amy 5594 West 118th Place Westminster Cco 80020 (720) 722-3085 CO: 1
Barnes, Ray & Young,
Josh 41A Eagle Rd. Danbury CT 6810 (475) 218-1505 CT: 1
Wallen, Marisa &
Jeremy 6420 CR 569 Center Hill FL 33514 (352) 593-0293 FL: 1
Bartlett, Russell & Karen | 7512 Sears Boulevard Pensacola FL 32514 (850) 262-8217 FL: |
Mahar, Mike 106 Seattle Slew Canton GA 30115 (678) 439-1222 GA: 23
Kinney, Marc & Marilyn | 185 Cline Smith Rd Cartersville GA 30121 (678) 383-7474 GA: 12
Schrader, Richard &
Kathy 2893 Thurleston Lane Duluth GA 30097 (706) 915-3836 GA: 1
Riser, Daryl-& F70)-854-
e 1331 Sandy-Creek3324 High MadisenJacks 3065030 | 2812(678) 588-
EisaLomax, Cole Falls Rd on GA 233 8416 GA: 12
Neely. Calvin 80 Wood Valley LaGrange GA 30240 (706) 957-0870 GA: 1
Fuller, Paul & Haley 15945 106th Avenue Davenport 1A 52804 (563) 296-0157 IA: 1
Booms, Jon & Rachel 6450 White Gate Court Marion 1A 52302 (319) 893-2286 IA: 1
Baker, Tyler-&Emily 2850 Tunnel Mill Rd Webster City 1A 50595 (515) 835-0052 IA: 12
Wilmes, Chris & Leslie | 467 East Andes Drive Meridian D 83642 (208) 680-1822 ID: |
Anti, Steven & Stacey 5717 North Northcott Avenue Chicago IL 60631 (224) 725-3792 IL: |
Hanner, Wes & Charles | 801 W. Church St Savoy IL 61874 (217) 722-1623 IL: |
Taylor, Derek & Dean 1911 Bell Rd-Road Chandler IN 47610 (812) 250-1328 IN: 1
Burtraw, Trevor 1511 Cliftwood Drive Clarksville IN 47129 (502) 419-2112 IN: 1
Heilshorn, Billy & Amy | 8134 N. Clinton St. Fort Wayne IN 46825 (260) 440-6444 IN: 2
Cole, Dawn 550 North Union Street Gary IN 46403 (219) 973-4396 IN: 1
Greene, Steve & Noblitt,
Levi 30555 Raintree Dr. Granger IN 46530 (574) 675-1902 IN: 1
Farah. Jeanne & Kenadid | 9694 Decatur Drive Indianapolis IN 46256 (317) 902-9310 IN: 1
Popov, Tony 7643 Dean Road Indianapolis IN 46240 (812) 287-9080 IN: 1
Valiant, Tim 226 North Wilmington Lane Lafayette IN 47905 (765) 746-6814 IN: 23
. 5780 South Old US Highway

Pocock, Drew & Valerie | 7 Pleasant Lake | IN 46779 (260) 319-6910 IN: 1
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. . Zip Outlets
Franchisee Address —City State Code Phone Gipemint
Douglas, Matt 130 Aspen Lane Lawrence KS 66049 (785) 289-5099 KS: 1
Porter, Kristic & Rob 22621 West 49th Street Shawnee KS 66226 (913) 229-4394 KS: 1
Gerber, Trish & Shon 1018 East Pembrook Road Derby KY 67037 (316) 308-7638 KS: 1
Lamb, Scott & Lisa 410 Jake StreetSt Richmond KY 40475 (859-) 407-0525 KY: 34
Harbin, Ben 82 Alfred Lane Shepherdsville KY 40165 (270) 872-7997 KY: 1
Nicholson, Todd 3867 Plaza Tower Drive Baton Rouge | LA 70816 (337) 764-6443 LA: 1
Dickson, Scott & Sharon | 267 Jim Finley Road Calhoun LA 71225 (318) 610-8828 LA: 1
Juncker, Roy 609 Fairfield Avenue Gretna LA 70056 (504) 457-1530 LA: 1
Jacobs, Chuck & Leigh | 23327 White Elm Court California MD 20619 (240) 309-3033 MD: 1
Shuman, Steve (443)

> 6608 Gleaming Sand Chase Columbia MD 21044 6109718-0246 MD: 1
Elmore. Joni & Claude | 3326 East Joppa Road Parkville MD 21234 (443) 652-2600 MD: |
Leftridge, Terry & Rose | 4516 Qak Ridge Dr. Street MD 21154 (410) 303-9000 MD: |
Amin, Kunal 424 North Church St. Thurmont MD 21788 (301) 799-3873 MD: 1
Walker, Skyler 5856 Birchcrest Drive Saginaw MI 48638 (989) 297-1142 MI: 12
Plocharczyk, Sheena &

Leonard 4317 Earl Ct Ypsilanti MI 48197 (734) 249-8145 MI: 1
Devere, Libb 1101 Southwest 8th Street Grand Rapids | MN 55744 (218) 398-4110 MN: 1
Kingree, Richie-&Xristt | 2816 Whitetail Estates Barnhart MO 63012 (314) 649-3777 MO: 12
Cook. Chris & Cathy 2400 Corona Road Columbia MO | 65203 | (573)819-5432 MO: 1
Murphree, Dale &

MusphreeCurtis 19805 NE 129th St Kearney MO 64060 (816) 476-7835 MO: 1
Daleo, Robert 1402 Devonshire County Drive Wentzville MO 63385 (636) 344-9363 MO: 23
Kimball, Chris &

Suzanne 309 North Jackson Street Poplarville MS 39470 (601) 337-1069 MS: 1
Nelson. Reginald 5415 Eneida Sue Drive Charlotte NC | 28214 | (980)420-3411 NC: 1
Pounds, Jim 671 Godley Road Grimesland NC 27837 (252) 320-7367 NC: 1
Cribb, Stephen &

PamPamela 510 Marlboro St Hamlet NC 28345 (910) 995-2963 NC: 1
Engelhard, David & Morehead

Leslie 5043-A Mattie Street City NC 28557 (252) 422-8667 NC: 1
Rewczuk, Lori-dePeyton | 18101 S. 228th St Gretna NE 68028 (402) 350-5347 NE: 12
Ivey, Dooug & Beth 1530 West Silverado Drive Lincoln NE 68521 (402) 417-0078 NE: 1
Placencio, Keith 1920 Martha Drive Las Cruces NM | 88001 (915) 255-0605 NM: 1
Peters, Robert 4690 Longley Lane Reno NV 89502 (775) 409-6995 NV: 1
Nitti, Scott & Nicole-&

Seott 90 Ridgeway Estates Rochester NY 14626 (585-) 566:-2866 NY:2
Holibaugh, Joey &

Tiffany 2853 Westway Drive Suite B Brunswick OH 44212 (440) 539-0529 OH: 1
Humm, Scott & Balko

Matt 2119 Stonecliff Drive Findlay OH 45840 (419) 348-6506 OH: 1
Crites, Scott 651 Brumfield Road Lancaster OH 43130 (740) 412-3933 OH: 1
Andrews, Sandra &

Ted/Woodard, Blaise &

Lewis 8717 Woolstone Court Maineville OH 45039 (412) 498-9444 OH: 2
Murphy, Heather 2471 Orchid St NW North Canton | OH 44720 (330) 356-9623 OH: 1

ToMS
COFFEE
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Zip

Outlets

Franchisee Address —City State Code Phone Gipemint
Church. Michelle 10080 Ohio 550 Vincent OH | 45784 | (740)202-9606 OH: 1
Lindsey, Joe 12609 Southwest 24th Street Yukon OK 73099 (405) 796-9540 OK: 1
Thompson, Cynthia &
Michael 19777 US HWY 97 S Klamath OR 97603 (541) 205-9180 OR: |
Russell. Matt 1638 Fieldstone St. Allentown PA 18106 (484) 239-3319 PA: 1
Radziwon, Randy &
Nancy 805 Cleardale Dr Greensburg PA 15601 (724) 420-7676 PA: 12
Davis, Craig & Debbie | 26 Bugler Dr New Oxford PA 17350 (717) 353-5011 PA: 12
Egli, Andrew & Mlinac
Ross 1201 Parkway View Dr. Pittsburgh PA 15205 (412) 498-9444 PA: 1
Buchan, Daniel & Jamie | p 0, Box 41161 Charleston el 29423 (843) 882-4402 SC: 1
Buckley. Barbie & Mark | 2895 Summertrees Blvd Johns Island el 29455 (843) 830-9966 SC: 1
Hyatt, Bebyan-& Kristin
& DeLynn 867 Kemper Church Road Lake View SC 29563 (843) 845-3197 SC: 1
Mackey, Scott & Angela | 141 Talley Scott Road Piedmont el 29673 (864) 380-0154 SC: 1
. . Bell 9313801

Ruger-Stacia- b
Willia Rodriguez. | 1556 casterock Br1311 BuckleClakss 3704237 | 5611(615) 663-
e Anderton Road He N 020 5237 TN: 1
Howard, Ben & Claire 173 illeLeba 37

’ Village Circle non TN 087 (615-) 490-4026 TN: 42
Witt, Derek & Carrie 10412 Cobb Lane Mascot N 37806 (865) 800-4246 TN: 1
Lyon, Landon &
Melinda 580 U.S. 70 SET 102 Pegram N 37143 (615) 512-1334 TN: 1
Spring, Richard 15157 North State Hwy 94 Apple Springs | TX 75926 (936) 219-0693 TX: 1
Reese, Wayne & Diana | 7701 White Fawn Rd Arlington TX 76002 (214-) 997-1219 TX: 2
Reeder, Karey &
Shelton, Susan 144 S Reeder Hill Buffalo X 75831 (903) 388-6649 TX: 1
Rosas, Rudy & Christina | 2533 Cresterrace Drive Corpus Christi | TX 78415 (361) 588-8667 TX: 1
Garza, Rene and&
Christy 6005 Bobtail Drive Corpus Christi X 78414 (361) 688-9351 TX: 12
Fiveash, Nick &
Christina 6202 Lennox Ln Garland X 75043 (945) 400-3699 TX: 1
Hammond, Lee Ann 4626 County Rd 2200 Greenville TX 75402 (469) 659-9491 TX: 12
Pharis, Mike & Natasha | 132247 Circle N Drive E Helotes TX 78023 (210) 846-0421 TX: 1
Sinclair, Cherie 1802 Afton St Houston TX 77055 (713-) 300-1210 TX: 23

. . 4616-Catiait Lane3630 E Loop 7560475
Dibble, Keith & Sandy | 1, 3. 0 Longview TX 602 (903-) 431-2215 TX: 12
Kashuda, Mark &
Theresa 3110 Gray Thrush Missouri City X 77459 (832) 820-8607 TX: 12
. New
Manning, Jesse & Sandy - .
Manning, Jesse & Sandy | 35, wejmer Road Braunfels X 78130 (830) 627-9000 TX: 1
. North
Holleman, Steve & Paige | ¢34 hiner Drive Richland Hills | TX 76182 (817) 939-9805 TX: 12
Alexander, Joe & Amy | 610 Gerry Lane Red Oak X 75154 (817) 925-7261 TX: 2
Rodriguez. Carlos 5929 Lyndhurst Drive San Angelo | TX | 76901 (325) 218-3009 TX: 1
Hargrove, Justin & Tara | 2405 Kensington Dr Tyler TX 75703 (903) 287-7484 TX: 2
Kapavik, John & Jessica | p 0. Box 295 West TX 76691 (254) 265-7878 TX: 12
Becerra, Annya & Lowe,
Josh 1657 North 400 West Orem UT 84057 (385) 323-2226 UT: |
TOM'S
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. . Zip Outlets
Franchisee Address —City State Code Phone Gipemint
Dearing, Tim &

Mittelstaedt Joel 11120 Air Park Road Ashland VA 23005 (804) 283-0649 VA: 1

Bourroughs. Noel 4722 Caronia Way Fairfax VA 22030 (703) 216-3085 VA: 1

Dietzen, Jon 3700 Woodside Ct Appleton WI 54913 (920) 284-1265 WI: 12
Sterken, Jamie &

Jamison 681 Shady Lane Oconomowoc WI 53066 (262) 269-3381 WI: 1

Sanftleben, Scott &

Dorothy 322 Meadowside Dr Verona WI 53593 (608-) 347-1514 WI: 1

Hall, Nathaniel & Jess 510 South Queen St Martinsburg | WV | 25401 (681) 416-1377 WV: |

Franchisees with Unopened Outlets as of December 31, 20232022

None

Former Franchisees:

The name and last known address of every franchisee who had a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise
transferred, terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do
business under our Franchise Agreement during the period January 1, 20232622 to December 31,
20222023, or who has not communicated with us within ten weeks of the Issuance Date of this Franchise
Disclosure Document are listed below.
disclosed to other buyers when you leave the Franchise System.

Noene

==TRAVELIN'=

TOM'S

COFFEE
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If you buy this Franchise, your contact information may be




. . Zip Outlets
Franchisee Street City State Code Phone Closed
Riser, Daryl & Lisa 1331 Sandy Creek Madison GA 30650 (706) 688-9693 | GA: 1
Road
Ruger, Stacia 1056 Casterock Dr Clarksville ™N 37042 (931) 801-5611 | TN: 1
106453833
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STATE ADDENDA AND AGREEMENT RIDERS

ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS,
AND FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT FOR CERTAIN STATES FOR
MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC

The following modifications are made to the Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (“Franchisor,” “us,”
“we,” or “our”) Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”) given to franchisee (“Franchisee,” “you,” or
“your”) and may supersede, to the extent then required by valid applicable state law, certain portions of the
Franchise Agreement between you and us dated , 20 (“Franchise
Agreement”). When the term “Franchisor’s Choice of Law State” is used, it means Kentucky. When
the term “Supplemental Agreements” is used, it means “aeneArea Development Agreement”.

Certain states have laws governing the franchise relationship and franchise documents. Certain
states require modifications to the FDD, Franchise Agreement and other documents related to the sale of a
franchise. This State Specific Addendum (“State Addendum”) will modify these agreements to comply
with the state’s laws. The terms of this State Addendum will only apply if you meet the requirements of
the applicable state independently of your signing of this State Addendum. The terms of this State
Addendum will override any inconsistent provision of the FDD, Franchise Agreement or any Supplemental
Documents. This State Addendum only applies to the following states: California, Hawaii, Illinois, lowa,
Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Ohio, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

If your state requires these modifications, you will sign this State Addendum along with the
Franchise Agreement and any Supplemental Agreements.

CALIFORNIA
The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial

Protection and Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the
commissioner.

The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the
sale of the Franchise be delivered together with the FDD-_14 days prior to execution of agreement.

California Corporations Code Section 31125 requires us to give to you an FDD approved by the
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation before we ask you to consider a material modification of
your Franchise Agreement.

The Franchise Agreement contains, and if applicable, the Supplemental Agreements may contain,
provisions requiring binding arbitration with the costs being awarded to the prevailing party. The arbitration
will occur in Kentucky. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to
determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section
20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of the
Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreements restricting venue to a forum outside the State of
California. The Franchise Agreement may-eentaincontains a mediation provision. H-se;-theThe parties
shall each bear their own costs of mediation and shall share equally the filing fee and the mediator’s fees.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements require the application of the law of
Kentucky. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.
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Neither Franchisor nor any other person listed in Item 2 of the FDD is subject to any currently
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in such association or exchange.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to you
concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental
Agreements contain a provision that is inconsistent with the California Franchise Investment Law, the
California Franchise Investment Law will control.

The Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements may—provide for termination upon
bankruptcy. Any such provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. SEC.
101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement contains, and if applicable, the Supplemental Agreements may contain,
a covenant not to compete provision which extends beyond the termination of the Franchise. Such
provisions may not be enforceable under California law.

Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.
Any such provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreements may not be
enforceable.

You must sign a general release of claims if you renew or transfer your Franchise. California
Corporations Code Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law
(California Corporations Code Sections 31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code Section
20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code
Sections 20000 through 20043).

Our website has not been reviewed or approved by the California Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation. Any complaints concerning the content of this website may be directed to the
California Department of Financial Protection and Innovation at www.dfpi.ca.gov.

Item 6 of the FDD is amended to state the highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10%
annually.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Fee Deferral

The Department of Financial Protection and Innovation has determined that we, the franchisor,
have not demonstrated we are adequately capitalized and/or that we must rely on franchise fees to fund
our operations. The Commissioner has imposed a fee deferral condition, which requires that we defer the
collection of all initial fees from California franchisees until we have completed all of our pre-opening
obligations and you are open for business.
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HAWAI

The following is added to the Cover Page:

THIS FRANCHISE WILL BE/HAS BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAIIL. FILING DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY
THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING
BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE
INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR
SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO

YOU

OR SUBFRANCHISOR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE

EXECUTION BY YOU OR SUBFRANCHISOR OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE
OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY YOU, WHICHEVER OCCURS
FIRST, A COPY OF THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT,
TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING
TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE.

THIS

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY

ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED
TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS
AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH US AND YOU.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

The status of the Franchisor’s franchise registrations in the states which require registration is as

follows:

100453833
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States in which this proposed registration is effective are listed on the third page of the
FDD on the page entitled, “State Effective Dates.”

States which have refused, by order or otherwise, to register these Franchises are:

None



3. States which have revoked or suspended the right to offer the Franchises are:
None
4. States in which the proposed registration of these Franchises has been withdrawn are:
None
Fee Deferral

Items 5 and 7 of the FDD and Section 46 of the Franchise Agreement are amended to state: Based
upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs has
required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be
deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the Franchise Agreement and the
franchise is opened for business.

ILLINOIS

Sections 4 and 41 and Rule 608 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that court litigation must
take place before Illinois federal or state courts and all dispute resolution arising from the terms of this
Agreement or the relationship of the parties and conducted through arbitration or litigation shall be subject to
Ilinois law. The FDD, Franchise Agreement and Supplemental Agreements are amended accordingly.

The governing law or choice of law clause described in the FDD and contained in the Franchise
Agreement and Supplemental Agreements is not enforceable under Illinois law. This governing law clause
shall not be construed to negate the application of Illinois law in all situations to which it is applicable.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that “any condition, stipulation or provision
purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of this Act or
any other law of this State is void.” The Franchise Agreement is amended accordingly. To the extent that the
Franchise Agreement would otherwise violate Illinois law, such Agreement is amended by providing that all
litigation by or between you and us, arising directly or indirectly from the Franchise relationship, will be
commenced and maintained in the state courts of Illinois or, at our election, the United States District Court for
Illinois, with the specific venue in either court system determined by appropriate jurisdiction and venue
requirements, and Illinois law will pertain to any claims arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

Item 17.v, Choice of Forum, of the FDD is revised to include the following: “provided, however,
that the foregoing shall not be considered a waiver of any right granted upon you by Section 4 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.”

Item 17.w, Choice of Law, of the FDD is revised to include the following: “provided, however,
that the foregoing shall not be considered a waiver of any right granted upon you by Section 4 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.”

The termination and non-renewal provisions in the Franchise Agreement and the FDD may not be
enforceable under Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

Under Section 705/27 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, no action for liability under the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act can be maintained unless brought before the expiration of three years after
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the act or transaction constituting the violation upon which it is based, the expiration of one year after you
become aware of facts or circumstances reasonably indicating that you may have a claim for relief in respect
to conduct governed by the Act, or 90 days after delivery to you of a written notice disclosing the violation,
whichever shall first expire. To the extent that the Franchise Agreement is inconsistent with the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act, Illinois law will control and supersede any inconsistent provision(s).

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Franchise Fee Deferral

The Illinois Attorney General’s Office has imposed the Franchise Fee deferral requirement due to
our financial condition. Items 5 and 7 of the FDD and Section 46 of the Franchise Agreement are hereby
revised to state that payment of the Initial Franchise Fee, shall be deferred until after all of Franchisor’s
initial obligations are complete and the Franchise is open for business.

See the last page of this Exhibit for your signature.

INDIANA

Item 8 of the FDD is amended to add the following:
Under Indiana Code Section 23-2-2.7-1(4), we will not accept any rebates from any person with
whom you do business or associate in relation to transactions between you and the other person,
other than for compensation for services rendered by us, unless the rebate is properly accounted for
and submitted to you.

Item 17 of the FDD is amended to add the following:
Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(7) makes it unlawful for us to unilaterally terminate your Franchise
Agreement unless there is a material violation of the Franchise Agreement and termination is not

in bad faith.

Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(5) prohibits us to require you to agree to a prospective general release of
claims subject to the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act.

The “Summary” column in Item 17.r. of the FDD is deleted and the following is inserted in its place:
No competing business for two (2) years within the Protected Territory.
The “Summary” column in Item 17.t. of the FDD is deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this provision, you do not waive any right under the
Indiana Statutes with regard to prior representations made by us.
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The “Summary” column in Item 17.v. of the FDD is deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

Litigation regarding Franchise Agreement in Indiana; other litigation in Franchisor’s Choice of
Law State. This language has been included in this Franchise Disclosure Document as a condition
to registration. The Franchisor and the Franchisee do not agree with the above language and believe
that each of the provisions of the Franchise Agreement, including all venue provisions, is fully
enforceable. The Franchisor and the Franchisee intend to fully enforce all of the provisions of the
Franchise Agreement and all other documents signed by them, including but not limited to, all
venue, choice-of-law, arbitration provisions and other dispute avoidance and resolution provisions
and to rely on federal pre-emption under the Federal Arbitration Act.

The “Summary” column in Item 17.w. of the FDD is deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

Indiana law applies to disputes covered by Indiana franchise laws; otherwise Franchisor’s Choice
of Law State law applies.

Despite anything to the contrary in the Franchise Agreement, the following provisions will supersede and
apply to all Franchises offered and sold in the State of Indiana:

1. The laws of the State of Indiana supersede any provisions of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement,
or Franchisor’s Choice of Law State law, if such provisions are in conflict with Indiana law.

2. The prohibition by Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the Franchise
without good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined under law as including any material
breach of the Franchise Agreement, will supersede the provisions of the Franchise Agreement
relating to termination for cause, to the extent those provisions may be inconsistent with such
prohibition.

3. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that would require you to prospectively assent to a
release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel which purports to relieve any person from
liability imposed by the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law is void to the extent that such
provision violates such law.

4. The covenant not to compete that applies after the expiration or termination of the Franchise
Agreement for any reason is hereby modified to the extent necessary to comply with Indiana Code
23-2-2.7-1 (9).

5. The following provision will be added to the Franchise Agreement:

No Limitation on Litigation. Despite the foregoing provisions of this Agreement, any
provision in the Agreement which limits in any manner whatsoever litigation brought for
breach of the Agreement will be void to the extent that any such contractual provision
violates the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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IOWA
Any provision in the Franchise Agreement or Compliance Questionnaire which would require you to
prospectively assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel which purports to relieve any
person from liability imposed by the lowa Business Opportunity Promotions Law (Iowa Code Ch. 551A)
is void to the extent that such provision violates such law.
The following language will be added to the Franchise Agreement:

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION

(enter date of transaction)

You may cancel this transaction, without penalty or obligation, within three business days from the above
date. If you cancel, any property traded in, any payments made by you under the contract or sale, and any
negotiable instrument executed by you will be returned within ten business days following receipt by the
seller of your cancellation notice, and any security interest arising out of the transaction will be cancelled.

If you cancel, you must make available to the seller at your residence or business address, in substantially
as good condition as when received, any goods delivered to you under this contract or sale; or you may, if
you wish, comply with the instructions of the seller regarding the return shipment of the goods at the seller’s
expense and risk.

If you do not agree to return the goods to the seller or if the seller does not pick them up within 20 days of
the date of your notice of cancellation, you may retain or dispose of the goods without any further
obligation.

To cancel this transaction, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of this cancellation notice or any other
written notice to Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence, Kentucky 41042, or
send a fax to Mobile Coffee Company, LLC at (859) 282-9890 not later than midnight of the third business
day after the Effective Date.

I hereby cancel this transaction.

Franchisee:
By:
Print Name:
Its:
Date:
100153833
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MARYLAND

AMENDMENTS TO FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS AND
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

Item 17 of the FDD and the Franchise Agreement are amended to state: “The general release required
as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

Item 17 of the FDD and sections of the Franchise Agreement are amended to state that you may bring
a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Any
claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three
years after the grant of the Franchise.

The Franchise Agreement and Franchise Disclosure Questionnaire are amended to state that all
representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel, or waiver of liability are not
intended to, nor shall they act as a release, estoppel, or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under Federal Bankruptcy Law (11 U.S.C.A Sec. 101 et seq.).

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Fee Deferral

Items 5 and 7 of the FDD and the Franchise Agreement are amended to state: Based upon the
franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has required a financial assurance.
Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its
pre-opening obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating to a
franchise:

(@ A prohibition on your right to join an association of franchisees.
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(b) A requirement that you assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives you of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude you, after entering into a
Franchise Agreement, from settling any and all claims.

©) A provision that permits us to terminate a Franchise prior to the expiration of its term except
for good cause. Good cause shall include your failure to comply with any lawful provision of the Franchise
Agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which
in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits us to refuse to renew your Franchise without fairly compensating you
by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of your inventory, supplies,
equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to us and inventory, supplies,
equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the Franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the Franchise is less than five (5) years;
and (ii) you are prohibited by the Franchise Agreement or other agreement from continuing to conduct
substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or
other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the Franchise or you do not receive
at least six (6) months’ advance notice of our intent not to renew the Franchise.

(e) A provision that permits us to refuse to renew a Franchise on terms generally available to other
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal
provision.

® A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside the State of Michigan.
This shall not preclude you from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at
a location outside this state.

(2) A provision which permits us to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a Franchise, except
for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent us from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the
Franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

1 the failure of the proposed transferee to meet our then-current reasonable
prop
qualifications or standards.

(i1) the fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of us or our subfranchisor.

(iii) the unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all
lawful obligations.

(iv) your or proposed transferee’s failure to pay any sums owing to us or to cure any
default in the Franchise Agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires you to resell to us items that are not uniquely identified with us. This
subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to us a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a
Franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets,
nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants us the right to acquire the assets of a Franchise for the
market or appraised value of such assets if you have breached the lawful provisions of the Franchise Agreement
and have failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).
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1 A provision which permits us to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer our
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to you unless provision has been made for providing the required
contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan

Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Attn: Franchise

670 Law Building

525 W. Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 48913
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

MINNESOTA

Despite anything to the contrary in the Franchise Agreement, the following provisions will supersede and
apply to all Franchises offered and sold in the State of Minnesota:

1. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement which would require you to assent to a release,
assignment, novation or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota
Statutes, Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22 will be void to the extent that such contractual provision
violates such law.

2. Minnesota Statute Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibit the franchisor from
requiring litigation to be conducted outside of Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the FDD or
Franchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws
of Minnesota.

3. Minn. Rule Part 2860.44001J. prohibits a franchisee from waiving his rights to a jury trial or waiving
his rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction, or
consenting to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. Any provision in the
Franchise Agreement which would require you to waive your rights to any procedure, forum or
remedies provided for by the laws of the State of Minnesota is deleted from any agreement relating
to Franchises offered and sold in the State of Minnesota; provided, however, that this paragraph
will not affect the obligation in the Franchise Agreement relating to arbitration.
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10.

With respect to Franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minnesota Statute
Section 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, except in certain specified cases, that you be
given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the Franchise Agreement; and that consent to the transfer of the Franchise will not be
unreasonably withheld.

Item 13 of the FDD is hereby amended to state that we will protect your rights under the Franchise
Agreement to use the Marks, or indemnify you from any loss, costs, or expenses arising out of any
third-party claim, suit or demand regarding your use of the Marks, if your use of the Marks is in
compliance with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement and our System Standards.

Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a
general release. As a result, the FDD and the Franchise Agreement, which require you to sign a
general release prior to renewing or transferring your Franchise, are hereby deleted from the
Franchise Agreement, to the extent required by Minnesota law.

The following language will appear as a new paragraph of the Franchise Agreement:

No Abrogation. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21, nothing in the dispute
resolution section of this Agreement will in any way abrogate or reduce any of your rights
as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80.C.

Minnesota Statute Section 80C.17 states that no action for a violation of Minnesota Statutes,
Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22 may be commenced more than three years after the cause of action
accrues. To the extent that the Franchise Agreement conflicts with Minnesota law, Minnesota law
will prevail.

Item 6 of the FDD and Section 4:G6.2 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended to limit the
Insufficient Funds Charge to $30 per occurrence pursuant to Minnesota Statute 604.113.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

NEW YORK

L.

100453833

The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SERVICES OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW
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3.

YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR
HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN-FHAF ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND
THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR
MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR
CANNOTCAN NOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE
THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

The following is added at the end of Item 3:

—HxeeptasprovidedWith the exception of what is stated above, with-regardthe following
applies to Franehisorthe franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item 2, or an affiliate

offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that
person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices or comparable
civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the
business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or
financial condition of the Eranchise-Systemfranchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a
felony charge, or within the tenlO-year period immediately preceding the application for
registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been
the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud,
embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive
practices or comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or
decree relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust,
trade regulation, or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding
brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities
association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is
subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity
as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation,
actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements

for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval of
transfer:”

100453833

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
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proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5) be

satisfied.
4. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee:>

——”: You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Choice of

99 99

forum?;,” and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law:>";

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or apen-the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York.

6. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements - No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law,
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other
term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

7. Receipts - Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale Act (N.Y.
Gen. Bus. L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a Franchise Disclosure Document (offering
prospectus) must be provided to a prospective franchisee before a sale may be made. New York law
requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal
meeting, ten (10) business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement, or the payment of
any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

NORTH DAKOTA

Sections of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements requiring that you
sign a general release, estoppel or waiver as a condition of renewal and/or assignment may not be enforceable
as they relate to releases of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

Sections of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements requiring
resolution of disputes to be outside North Dakota may not be enforceable under Section 51-19-09 of the North
Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Sections of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements relating to choice
of law may not be enforceable under Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and are
amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Any section of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements requiring you
to consent to liquidated damages and/or termination penalties may not be enforceable under Section 51-19-09
of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Any sections of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements requiring you
to consent to a waiver of trial by jury may not be enforceable under Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota
Franchise Investment Law, and are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

100453833
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Any sections of the FDD, the Franchise Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements requiring you
to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages may not be enforceable under Section 51-19-09 of
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Item 17(r) of the FDD and Seetions+6D-and1+6GSection 18 of the Franchise Agreement disclose the
existence of certain covenants restricting competition to which Franchisee must agree. The Commissioner has
held that covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06 of the North Dakota Century Code,
without further disclosing that such covenants may be subject to this statue, are unfair, unjust, or inequitable
within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. The FDD and the
Franchise Agreement are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

Section +8:M27.7 of the Franchise Agreement requires franchisees to consent to a limitation of claims
within one year. The Commissioner has determined this to be unfair, unjust, and inequitable within the intent
of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. This provision is amended accordingly to
state the statute of limitations under North Dakota Law will apply.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Fee Deferral:

Items 5 and 7 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and Section 46 of the Franchise Agreement
regarding payment of the initial franchise fee are amended to state that the franchise fee will be deferred
until all initial obligations owed to the Franchisee by the Franchisor have been fulfilled and the franchisee

has commenced doing business pursuant to the Franchise Agreement.

OHIO
The following language will be added to the front page of the Franchise Agreement:

You, the purchaser, may cancel this transaction at any time prior to midnight of the fifth business day
after the date you sign this agreement. See the attached notice of cancellation for an explanation of this right.

Initials Date

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION

(enter date of transaction)

You may cancel this transaction, without penalty or obligation, within five (5) business days from
the above date. If you cancel, any payments made by you under the agreement, and any negotiable
instrument executed by you will be returned within ten (10) business days following the seller’s receipt of
your cancellation notice, and any security interest arising out of the transaction will be cancelled. If you
cancel, you must make available to the seller at your business address all goods delivered to you under this
agreement; or you may, if you wish, comply with the instructions of the seller regarding the return shipment
of the goods at the seller’s expense and risk. If you do make the goods available to the seller and the seller
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does not pick them up within 20 days of the date of your notice of cancellation, you may retain or dispose
of them without further obligation. If you fail to make the goods available to the seller, or if you agree to
return them to the seller and fail to do so, then you remain liable for the performance of all obligations
under this agreement. To cancel this transaction, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of this cancellation
notice or any other written notice to Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence,
Kentucky 41042, or send a fax to Mobile Coffee Company, LLC at (859) 282-9890 not later than midnight
of the fifth business day after the Effective Date.

I hereby cancel this transaction. Franchisee:
By:
Date: Print Name:
Its:
RHODE ISLAND

§ 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A provision in a franchise
agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws
of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.” The FDD, the Franchise
Agreement, and the Supplemental Agreements are amended accordingly to the extent required by law.

The above language has been included in this FDD as a condition to registration. The Franchisor and
the Franchisee do not agree with the above language and believe that each of the provisions of the Franchise
Agreement and the Supplemental Agreements, including all choice of law provisions, are fully enforceable.
The Franchisor and the Franchisee intend to fully enforce all of the provisions of the Franchise Agreement, the
Supplemental Agreements, and all other documents signed by them, including but not limited to, all venue,
choice-of-law, arbitration provisions and other dispute avoidance and resolution provisions and to rely on
federal pre-emption under the Federal Arbitration Act.

No statement, questionnaire,-or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

SOUTH DAKOTA

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Fee Deferral

400153833
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Item 5 and 7 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and the Franchise Agreement are hereby amended
to state that the Initial Franchise Fee will be deferred until the Franchisor has completed all of its pre-opening
obligations and the franchise is open for business. The following language will be added to the franchise
agreement:

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF DEFERRAL OF INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE

(“Franchisee™) entered into a Franchise Agreement with Mobile Coffee Company,
LLC (“Franchisor”) on , 20 for the operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise in
South Dakota. As a condition for Franchisor’s registration to offer franchises for sale in South Dakota, the
South Dakota Department of Labor and Regulation, based on Franchisor’s financial condition, required
Franchisor to defer the initial franchise fee for the purchase of such franchise until Franchisor has fulfilled
all of its initial obligations under the Franchise Agreement and Franchisee has commenced doing business.
This is an acknowledgement that such initial franchise fee has been deferred by Franchisor until such time.

FRANCHISOR:

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
an Delaware limited liability company

Date: By:
FRANCHISEE:

Date: By:

VIRGINIA

Item 17(h). The following is added to Item 17(h):

“Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
use undue influence to induce a franchisee to surrender any right given to him under the franchise. If
any provision of the Franchise Agreement or Supplemental Agreements involve the use of undue
influence by the Franchisor to induce a franchisee to surrender any rights given to franchisee under the
Franchise, that provision may not be enforceable.”

In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, the FDD
for Mobile Coffee Company, LLC for use in the Commonwealth of Virginia shall be amended as follows:

Additional Disclosure. The following statements are added to Item 8 and Item 17.h.

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the
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Franchise Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the
Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Fee Deferral
The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities and Retail Franchising requires
us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by franchisees to the franchisor

until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement.

WASHINGTON

WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AREA DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT, FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE; AND-FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE-DOCUMENT, AND RELATED AGREEMENTS

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which
may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of
termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of
the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or
mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an
action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable. The above-referenced language contained in any agreement attached to this Franchise
Disclosure Document does not apply to Washington franchisees per RCW 19.100. Section +8327.6 of the
Franchise Agreement states franchisee agrees to waive the right to a jury trial and Section 7 of the System
Protection Agreement state franchisee agrees to waive any right to challenge the terms of the brand
covenants as being overly broad, unreasonable or otherwise unenforceable. These provisions do not apply
to Washington franchisees.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

100453833
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Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent
contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the
party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that
conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from
(1) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

Sections 1.B(6), 1.B(7) and 1.B(10) of the Franchise Agreement do not apply to Washington
franchisees.

RCW 19.100.220(2) provides that any agreement, condition, stipulation or provision purporting to
bind any person to waive compliance with RCW 19.100 or any rule or order thereunder in void. As such,
it is misleading and contravenes RCW 19.100.180(2)(g) to require a franchisee to limit the time period for
claims beyond the limit imposed by the statute. Section +8M27.7 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby
revised to remove the one (1) year time limit provision.

RCW 19.100.180(1) provides that the franchisor deal with the franchisee in good faith and RCW
19.100.180(2)(j) sets forth limitations on termination and requirements for opportunities to cure set. As a
result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement, including Section +8-A28 or elsewhere,
may be void and unenforceable in Washington. Section +8-A28 of the Franchise Agreement shall be
interpreted consistent with RCW 19.100.180.

A liquidated damages provision in a Franchise Agreement may be construed as a penalty under
Washington law if the amount is found to bear no reasonable relation to actual damages. As a result, the
liquidated damages provision in Item 6 of the FDD and the Franchise Agreement does not apply to
Washington franchisees.

RCW 19.100.180 requires that a franchisor deal with a franchisee in good faith. As a result, the
portion of Section ++D22.1 of the Franchise Agreement that requires the franchisee to indemnify the
Indemnified Party for the Indemnified Party’s negligence does not apply to Washington franchisees.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Franchise Fee Deferral:

Item 5 and Item 7 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and Section 46 of the Franchise
Agreement are hereby amended to state that all Initial Fees will be deferred until the Franchisor completes
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all of its training and other initial obligations to Franchisee and the Franchisee is open for business (listed
in Item 11 of this Disclosure Document).

WISCONSIN

The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Chapter 135 of the Wisconsin Statutes supersedes any
provision of the Franchise Agreement if such provision is in conflict with that law. The Franchise
Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement and the Supplemental Agreements are amended
accordingly.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

(Signatures on following page)
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APPLICABLE ADDENDA

If any one of the preceding Addenda for specific states (“Addenda”) is checked as an “Applicable
Addenda” below, then that Addenda shall be incorporated into the Franchise Disclosure Document,
Franchise Agreement and any other specified agreement(s) entered into by us and the undersigned
Franchisee. To the extent any terms of an Applicable Addenda conflict with the terms of the Franchise
Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and other specified agreement(s), the terms of the Applicable
Addenda shall supersede the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

[] California [] Michigan [] Rhode Island
] Hawaii ] Minnesota ] South Dakota
] Illinois ] New York ] Virginia
[] Towa [] North Dakota [] Washington
[] Indiana [] Ohio [] Wisconsin
] Maryland

Dated: , 20

FRANCHISOR:

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC

By:

Title:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Title:

030423071823
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EXHIBIT HI

CONTRACTS FOR USE WITH THE TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

The following contracts contained in Exhibit HI are contracts that Franchisee is required to utilize or execute
after signing the Franchise Agreement in the operation of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business. The following are
the forms of contracts that Mobile Coffee Company, LLC uses as of the Issuance Date of this Franchise
Disclosure Document. If they are marked “Sample,” they are subject to change at any time.
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EXHIBIT HI-1

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

SAMPLE WAIVER AND RELEASE OF CLAIMS

This Waiver and Release of Claims (“Release”) is made as of [DATE] by and among [Entity
Name], d/b/a [“dba name™], a(n) [state] [entity name] (“Franchisee”), each of the undersigned individuals
holding an ownership interest in Franchisee (“Owner(s),”) and (collectively with Franchisee, “Releasors™)
Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Franchisor,” and together with
Releasors, each, a “Party” and together, the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have entered into a Franchise Agreement (‘“Agreement”)
pursuant to which Franchisee was granted the right to own and operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Business;

WHEREAS, (Franchisee has notified Franchisor of its desire to transfer the Agreement and
all rights related thereto, or an ownership interest in Franchisee, to a transferee/enter into a successor
franchise agreement/amend the Agreement) or (the Agreement is being terminated/or indicate other
reason for the requirement of this waiver and release), and Franchisor has consented to such
(transfer/successor franchise agreement/amendment/termination/other reason); and

WHEREAS, as a condition to Franchisor’s consent to (transfer the Agreement/enter into a
successor franchise agreement/amend the Agreement/terminate the Agreement/other reason),
Releasors have agreed to execute this Release upon the terms and conditions stated below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Franchisor’s consent, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally
bound, Releasors hereby agree as follows:

1. Representations and Warranties. Releasors represent and warrant they are duly authorized
to enter into this Release and to perform the terms and obligations herein contained, and have not assigned,
transferred, or conveyed, either voluntarily or by operation of law, any of their rights or claims against
Franchisor or any of the rights, claims, or obligations being terminated and released hereunder. Each
individual executing this Release on behalf of Franchisee represents and warrants that they are duly
authorized to enter into and execute this Release on behalf of Franchisee. Releasors further represent and
warrant that all individuals that currently hold a direct or indirect ownership interest in Franchisee are
signatories to this Release.

2. Release. Releasors and their subsidiaries, affiliates, parents, divisions, successors, assigns,
and all persons or firms claiming by, through, under, or on behalf of any or all of them, hereby release,
acquit, and forever discharge Franchisor, any and all of their affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, or related
companies, divisions, and partnerships, and its and their past and present officers, directors, agents, partners,
shareholders, employees, representatives, successors, assigns, and attorneys, and the spouses of such
individuals (collectively, the “Released Parties’), from any and all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses,
actions, or causes of action which Releasor may now have or has ever had, whether known or unknown,
past or present, absolute or contingent, suspected or unsuspected, of any nature whatsoever, including
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all claims, liabilities, damages, expenses, actions, or causes
of action directly or indirectly arising out of or relating to the execution and performance of the Agreement
and the offer and sale of the franchise related thereto, except to the extent such liabilities are payable by the
applicable indemnified party in connection with a third-party claim.
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3. Nondisparagement. Releasors expressly covenant and agree not to make any false
representation of facts, or to defame, disparage, discredit, or deprecate any of the Released Parties or
otherwise communicate with any person or entity in a manner intending to damage any of the Released
Parties, their business, or their reputation.

4, Confidentiality. Releasors agree to hold in strictest confidence and not disclose, publish,
or use the existence of, or any details relating to, this Release to any third party without Franchisor’s express
written consent, except as required by law.

5. Miscellaneous.

a. Releasors agree that they have read and fully understand this Release and that the
opportunity has been afforded to Releasors to discuss the terms and contents of said Release with legal
counsel and/or that such a discussion with legal counsel has occurred.

b. This Release shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Kentucky.

c. Each individual and entity that comprises Releasors shall be jointly and severally
liable for the obligations of such Releasors.

d. In the event that it shall be necessary for any Party to institute legal action to
enforce or for the breach of any of the terms and conditions or provisions of this Release, the prevailing
Party in such action shall be entitled to recover all of its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees.

e. All of the provisions of this Release shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the Parties and their current and future respective directors, officers, partners, attorneys, agents,
employees, shareholders, and the spouses of such individuals, successors, affiliates, and assigns. No other
party shall be a third-party beneficiary to this Release.

f. This Release constitutes the entire agreement the Parties and, as such, supersedes
all prior oral and written agreements or understandings between and among the Parties regarding the subject
matter hereof. This Release may not be modified except in a writing signed by all of the Parties. This
Release may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of
which together shall constitute but one and the same document.

g. If one or more of the provisions of this Release shall for any reason be held invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect or
impair any other provision of this Release, but this Release shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had not been contained herein.

h. Releasors agree to do such further acts and things and to execute and deliver such
additional agreements and instruments as may be reasonably required to consummate, evidence, or confirm
the Release contained herein in the matter contemplated hereby.

1. This Release is inapplicable with respect to claims arising under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, chapter 19.100 RCW, and the rules adopted thereunder in accordance
with RCW 19.100.220.

(Signatures on following page)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Waiver and Release of Claims as of

the date first written above.
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FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Its:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Its:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Its:




FRANCHISEE’S OWNERS:

Date

Signature

Typed or Printed Name

FRANCHISEE’S OWNERS:
Date

Signature

Typed or Printed Name

FRANCHISEE’S OWNERS:
Date

Signature

Typed or Printed Name

Rev. 092122
100153833
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EXHIBIT HI-2

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

SAMPLE SYSTEM PROTECTION AGREEMENT

This System Protection Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by the undersigned (“you” or
your”) in favor of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and its successors
and assigns (“us,” “we,” or “our”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

13

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings given
to them below:

“Competitive Business” means any business that: (i) operates a food truck, beverage truck or
primarily serves food and/or beverages from a vehicle, kiosk or other moveable property; (ii) derives at
least 5% or more of its gross sales from the offering of coffee, tea or similar products; (iii) sells or offers to
sell products the same as or 51m11ar to the type of products sold by yvouiand/orfrom-the Eranchisee

: A auth iithe Franchised Business as the
concept evolves over tlrne ( iv) prov1des or offers to prov1de serv1ces the same as or snnllar to the type of
services sold by you § -th § o 65, or (v) any

business that grants franchlses or llcenses to others or operates the se%ees—w&&utheﬂ-za—bat— ype of
businesses specified in subparagraphs (i) through (iv) above, but excludes a FravelinTFem sFranchised

Business operating pursuwant-teunder a franchise agreement with us_or our affiliates.

“Copyrights” means all works and materials for which we or our affiliate have secured common
law or registered copyright protection and that we allow franchisees to use, sell, or display in connection
with the marketing and/or operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Business or the solicitation or offer of a Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee franchise, whether now in existence or created in the future.

“Franchisee” means the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisee for which you are a manager or officer.

“Franchisee Territory” means the territory granted to you pursuant to a franchise agreement with
us.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, our Marks, Copyrights, Know-how,
and System.

“Know-how” means all of our trade secrets and other proprietary information relating to the
development, construction, marketing, and/or operation of a Travelin® Tom’s Business, including, but not
limited to, methods, techniques, specifications, proprietary practices and procedures, policies, marketing
strategies, and information comprising the System and the Manual.

“Manual” means our confidential operations manual for the operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s
Business, which may be periodically modified by us.

“Marks” means the logotypes, service marks, and trademarks now or hereafter involved in the
operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Business, including “Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee,” and any other trademarks,
service marks, or trade names that we designate for use by a Travelin’ Tom’s Business. The term “Marks”
also includes any distinctive trade dress used to identify a Travelin® Tom’s Business, whether now in
existence or hereafter created.

“Prohibited Activities” means any or all of the following: (i) owning, operating, or having any
other interest (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, creditor,
representative, agent, or in any similar capacity) in a Competitive Business (other than owning an interest
of five percent (5%) or less in a publicly-traded company that is a Competitive Business); (ii) diverting or
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attempting to divert any business from us (or one of our affiliates or franchisees); and/or (iii) inducing or
attempting to induce any customer of ours (or of one of our affiliates or franchisees) to transfer their
business to you or to any other person that is not then a franchisee of ours.

“Restricted Period” means the two (2)-year period after you cease to be a manager or officer of
Franchisee’s Travelin® Tom’s Business; provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction
determines that this period of time is too long to be enforceable, then the “Restricted Period” means the
nine (9) month period after you cease to be a manager or officer of Franchisee’s Travelin’ Tom’s Business.

“Restricted Territory” means the geographic area within: (i) a 20-mile radius from Franchisee’s
Travelin’ Tom’s Business (and including the premises of the approved location of Franchisee); and (ii) a
20-mile radius from all other Travelin’ Tom’s Businesses that are operating or under development as of the
beginning of the Restricted Period; provided, however, that if a court of competent jurisdiction determines
that the foregoing Restricted Territory is too broad to be enforceable, then the “Restricted Territory” means
the geographic area within a 10-mile radius from Franchisee’s Travelin’ Tom’s Business (and including the
premises of the approved location of Franchisee).

“System” means our system for the establishment, development, operation, and management of a
Travelin® Tom’s Business, including Know-how, proprietary programs and products, Manual, and
operating system.

2. Background. You are a manager or officer of Franchisee. As a result of this relationship,
you may gain knowledge of our System. You understand that protecting the Intellectual Property and our
System are vital to our success and that of our franchisees and that you could seriously jeopardize our entire
System if you were to unfairly compete with us. In order to avoid such damage, you agree to comply with
the terms of this Agreement.

3. Know-How and Intellectual Property. You agree: (i) you will not use the Know-how in
any business or capacity other than the Travelin’ Tom’s Business operated by Franchisee; (ii) you will
maintain the confidentiality of the Know-how at all times; (iii) you will not make unauthorized copies of
documents containing any Know-how; (iv) you will take such reasonable steps as we may ask of you from
time to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Know-how; and (v) you will stop using the
Know-how immediately if you are no longer a manager or officer of Franchisee’s Travelin’ Tom’s
Business. You further agree that you will not use all or part of the Intellectual Property or all or part of the
System for any purpose other than the performance of your duties for Franchisee and within the scope of
your employment or other engagement with Franchisee. These restrictions on Know-how, Intellectual
Property and the System shall not apply to any information which is information publicly known or
becomes lawfully known in the public domain other than through a breach of this Agreement or is required
or compelled by law to be disclosed, provided that you will give reasonable notice to us to allow us to seek
protective or other court orders.

4. Unfair Competition During Relationship. You agree not to unfairly compete with us at
any time while you are a manager or officer of Franchisee’s Travelin’ Tom’s Business by engaging in any
Prohibited Activities.

5. Unfair Competition After Relationship. You agree not to unfairly compete with us
during the Restricted Period by engaging in any Prohibited Activities; provided, however, that the
Prohibited Activity relating to having an interest in a Competitive Business will only apply with respect to
a Competitive Business that is located within or provides competitive goods or services to customers who
are located within the Restricted Territory. If you engage in any Prohibited Activities during the Restricted
Period, then you agree that your Restricted Period will be extended by the period of time during which you
were engaging in the Prohibited Activity.
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6. Immediate Family Members. You acknowledge that you could circumvent the purpose
of this Agreement by disclosing Know-how to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, parent, sibling,
child, grandparent or grandchild). You also acknowledge that it would be difficult for us to prove whether
you disclosed the Know-how to family members. Therefore, you agree that you will be presumed to have
violated the terms of this Agreement if any member of your immediate family: (i) engages in any Prohibited
Activities during any period of time during which you are prohibited from engaging in the Prohibited
Activities; or (ii) uses or discloses the Know-how. However, you may rebut this presumption by furnishing
evidence conclusively showing that you did not disclose the Know-how to the family member.

7. Covenants Reasonable. You acknowledge and agree that: (i) the terms of this Agreement
are reasonable both in time and in scope of geographic area; and (ii) you have sufficient resources and
business experience and opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with the terms of this
Agreement. YOU HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO CHALLENGE THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT AS
BEING OVERLY BROAD, UNREASONABLE, OR OTHERWISE UNENFORCEABLE.

8. Breach. You agree that failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement will cause
substantial and irreparable damage to us and/or other Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees for which there
is no adequate remedy at law. Therefore, you agree that any violation of the terms of this Agreement will
entitle us to injunctive relief. You agree that we may apply for such injunctive relief without bond, but
upon due notice, in addition to such further and other relief as may be available at equity or law, and the
sole remedy of yours in the event of the entry of such injunction will be the dissolution of such injunction,
if warranted, upon hearing duly held (all claims for damages by reason of the wrongful issuance of any
such injunction being expressly waived hereby). If a court requires the filing of a bond notwithstanding the
preceding sentence, the parties agree that the amount of the bond shall not exceed $1,000. None of the
remedies available to us under this Agreement are exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others
under this Agreement, or at law or in equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance, and recovery
of monetary damages. Any claim, defense, or cause of action that you may have against us, our owners or
our affiliates, or against Franchisee, regardless of cause or origin, cannot be used as a defense against our
enforcement of this Agreement.

9. Miscellaneous.

a. If we pursue legal remedies against you because you have breached this Agreement
and prevail against you, you agree to pay our reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in doing so.

b. This Agreement will be governed by, construed, and enforced under the laws of
Kentucky, and the courts in that state shall have jurisdiction over any legal proceedings arising out of this
Agreement.

c. Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion thereof, is
severable. If any section, subsection, or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not affect the
enforceability of any other section, subsection, or portion; and each party to this Agreement agrees that the
court may impose such limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it deems in its discretion necessary to
make such terms reasonable in scope, duration, and geographic area.

d. You and we both believe that the covenants in this Agreement are reasonable in
terms of scope, duration, and geographic area. However, we may at any time unilaterally modify the terms
of this Agreement upon written notice to you by limiting the scope of the Prohibited Activities, narrowing
the definition of a Competitive Business, shortening the duration of the Restricted Period, reducing the
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geographic scope of the Restricted Territory, and/or reducing the scope of any other covenant imposed upon
you under this Agreement to ensure that the terms and covenants in this Agreement are enforceable under

applicable law.

(Signatures on following pages)
EXECUTED on the date stated below.

Date
Signature
Typed or Printed Name
Date
Signature
Typed or Printed Name
Date
Signature
Typed or Printed Name
Rev. 120619
100453833,
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EXHIBIT HI-3

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

SAMPLE CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

This Confidentiality Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by the undersigned (“you”) in favor
of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and its successors and assigns
“us”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings given
to them below:

“Copyrights” means all works and materials for which we or our affiliate(s) have secured common
law or registered copyright protection and that we allow Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees to use, sell, or
display in connection with the marketing and/or operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Business, whether now in
existence or created in the future.

“Franchisee” means the Travelin® Tom’s Coffee franchisee for which you are an employee,
independent contractor, agent, representative, or supplier.

“Intellectual Property” means, collectively or individually, our Marks, Copyrights, Know-how,
Manual, and System.

“Know-how” means all of our trade secrets and other proprietary information relating to the
development, construction, marketing, and/or operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Business, including, but not
limited to, methods, techniques, specifications, proprietary practices and procedures, policies, marketing
strategies, and information comprising the System and the Manual.

“Travelin’ Tom’s Business” means a business that provides coffees, teas, and related products to
the general public in a mobile environment and other related products and services using our Intellectual
Property.

“Manual” means our confidential operations manual for the operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s
Business.

“Marks” means the logotypes, service marks, and trademarks now or hereafter involved in the
operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Business, including “Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee” and any other trademarks,
service marks, or trade names that we designate for use by a Travelin’ Tom’s Business. The term “Marks”
also includes any distinctive trade dress used to identify a Travelin® Tom’s Business, whether now in
existence or hereafter created.

“System” means our system for the establishment, development, operation, and management of a
Travelin® Tom’s Business, including Know-how, proprietary programs and products, confidential
operations manuals, and operating system.

2. Background. You are an employee, independent contractor, agent, representative, or
supplier of Franchisee. Because of this relationship, you may gain knowledge of our Intellectual Property.
You understand that protecting the Intellectual Property is vital to our success and that of our franchisees,
and that you could seriously jeopardize our entire Franchise System if you were to use such Intellectual
Property in any way other than as described in this Agreement. In order to avoid such damage, you agree
to comply with this Agreement.
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3. Know-How and Intellectual Property: Nondisclosure and Ownership. You agree:
(1) you will not use the Intellectual Property in any business or capacity other than for the benefit of the
Travelin’ Tom’s Business operated by Franchisee or in any way detrimental to us or to the Franchisee;
(ii) you will maintain the confidentiality of the Intellectual Property at all times; (iii) you will not make
unauthorized copies of documents containing any Intellectual Property; (iv) you will take such reasonable
steps as we may ask of you from time to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Intellectual
Property; and (v) you will stop using the Intellectual Property immediately if you are no longer an employee,
independent contractor, agent, representative, or supplier of Franchisee. You further agree that you will
not use the Intellectual Property for any purpose other than the performing your duties for Franchisee and
within the scope of your employment or other engagement with EranehiseeFranchise.

The Intellectual Property is and shall continue to be the sole property of Mobile Coffee Company,
LLC You hereby assign and agree to assign to us any rights you may have or may acquire in such Intellectual
Property. Upon the termination of your employment or engagement with Franchisee, or at any time upon our
or Franchisee’s request, you will deliver to us or to Franchisee all documents and data of any nature pertaining
to the Intellectual Property, and you will not take with you any documents or data or copies containing or
pertaining to any Intellectual Property.

4. Immediate Family Members. You acknowledge you could circumvent the purpose of
this Agreement by disclosing Intellectual Property to an immediate family member (i.e., spouse, parent,
sibling, child, or grandchild). You also acknowledge that it would be difficult for us to prove whether you
disclosed the Intellectual Property to family members. Therefore, you agree you will be presumed to have
violated the terms of this Agreement if any member of your immediate family uses or discloses the
Intellectual Property. However, you may rebut this presumption by furnishing evidence conclusively
showing you did not disclose the Intellectual Property to the family member.

5. Covenants Reasonable. You acknowledge and agree that: (i) the terms of this Agreement
are reasonable both in time and in scope of geographic area; and (ii) you have sufficient resources and
business experience and opportunities to earn an adequate living while complying with the terms of this
Agreement. YOU HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO CHALLENGE THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT AS
BEING OVERLY BROAD, UNREASONABLE, OR OTHERWISE UNENFORCEABLE.

6. Breach. You agree that failure to comply with this Agreement will cause substantial and
irreparable damage to us and/or other Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees for which there is no adequate
remedy at law. Therefore, you agree that any violation of this Agreement will entitle us to injunctive relief.
You agree that we may apply for such injunctive relief, without bond, but upon due notice, in addition to
such further and other relief as may be available at equity or law, and the sole remedy of yours, in the event
of the entry of such injunction, will be the dissolution of such injunction, if warranted, upon hearing duly
held (all claims for damages by reason of the wrongful issuance of any such injunction being expressly
waived hereby). If a court requires the filing of a bond notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the parties
agree that the amount of the bond shall not exceed $1,000. None of the remedies available to us under this
Agreement are exclusive of any other, but may be combined with others under this Agreement, or at law or
in equity, including injunctive relief, specific performance, and recovery of monetary damages. Any claim,
defense, or cause of action you may have against us or against Franchisee, regardless of cause or origin,
cannot be used as a defense against our enforcement of this Agreement.

7. Miscellaneous.

a. Although this Agreement is entered into in favor of Mobile Coffee Company, LLC,
you understand and acknowledge that your employer/employee, independent contractor, agent,
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representative, or supplier relationship is with Franchisee and not with us, and for all purposes in connection
with such relationship, you will look to Franchisee and not to us.

b. If we pursue legal remedies against you because you have breached this Agreement
and prevail against you, you agree to pay our reasonable attorney fees and costs in doing so.

c. This Agreement will be governed by, construed, and enforced under the laws of
Kentucky, and the courts in that state shall have jurisdiction over any legal proceedings arising out of this
Agreement.

d. Each section of this Agreement, including each subsection and portion, is
severable. If any section, subsection, or portion of this Agreement is unenforceable, it shall not affect the
enforceability of any other section, subsection, or portion; and each party to this Agreement agrees that the
court may impose such limitations on the terms of this Agreement as it deems in its discretion necessary to
make such terms enforceable.

EXECUTED on the date stated below.

Date
Signature
Typed or Printed Name
Date
Signature
Typed or Printed Name
Date
Signature
Typed or Printed Name
Rev. 032916
100153833
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EXHIBIT HI-4

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

SAMPLE APPROVAL OF REQUESTED ASSIGNMENT

This Approval of Requested Assignment (“Agreement”) is entered into this day of

, 20 , between Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (“Franchisor”), a

Delaware limited liability company, (“Former Franchisee”), the

undersigned owners of Former Franchisee (“Owners”) and , a
[State] [corporation/limited liability company] (“New Franchisee”™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Former Franchisee entered into that certain franchise agreement dated

, 20 (“Former Franchise Agreement”), in which Franchisor

granted Former Franchisee the right to operate a Travelin® Tom’s Coffee franchise located at
(“Franchised Business™); and

WHEREAS, Former Franchisee desires to assign (“Requested Assignment”) the Franchised
Business to New Franchisee, New Franchisee desires to accept the Requested Assignment of the Franchised
Business from Former Franchisee, and Franchisor desires to approve the Requested Assignment of the
Franchised Business from Former Franchisee to New Franchisee upon the terms and conditions contained
in this Agreement, including that New Franchisee sign Franchisor’s current form of franchise agreement
together with all exhibits and attachments thereto (“New Franchise Agreement”), contemporancously
herewith.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and agreements herein
contained, the parties hereto hereby covenant, promise, and agree as follows:

1. Payment of Fees. In consideration for the Requested Assignment, Former Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees to pay Franchisor the Transfer Fee, as required under the Franchise Agreement
(“Franchisor’s Assignment Fee”).

2. Assignment and Assumption. Former Franchisee hereby consents to assign all of its rights
and delegate its duties with regard to the Former Franchise Agreement and all exhibits and attachments
thereto from Former Franchisee to New Franchisee, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
and conditioned upon New Franchisee’s signing the New Franchise Agreement pursuant to Section 5 of
this Agreement.

3. Consent to Requested Assignment of Franchised Business. Franchisor hereby consents to
the Requested Assignment of the Franchised Business from Former Franchisee to New Franchisee upon

receipt of the Franchisor’s Assignment Fee from Former Franchisee and the mutual execution of this
Agreement by all parties. Franchisor waives its right of first refusal set forth in the Former Franchise
Agreement.

4, Termination of Rights to the Franchised Business. The parties acknowledge and agree that
effective upon the date of this Agreement, the Former Franchise Agreement shall terminate and all of
Former Franchisee’s rights to operate the Franchised Business are terminated and that from the date of this
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Agreement only New Franchisee shall have the sole right to operate the Franchised Business under the New
Franchise Agreement. Former Franchisee and the undersigned Owners agree to comply with all of the
covenants in the Former Franchise Agreement that expressly or by implication survive the termination,
expiration, or transfer of the Former Franchise Agreement. Unless otherwise precluded by state law,
Former Franchisee shall execute Franchisor’s current form of General Release Agreement.

5. New Franchise Agreement. New Franchisee shall execute the New Franchise Agreement
for the Franchised Business (as amended by the form of Addendum prescribed by Franchisor, if applicable),
and any other required contracts for the operation of a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise as stated in
Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document.

6. Former Franchisee’s Contact Information. Former Franchisee agrees to keep Franchisor
informed of its current address and telephone number at all times during the three-year period following
the execution of this Agreement.

7. Acknowledgement by New Franchisee. New Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the
purchase of the rights to the Franchised Business (‘“Transaction”) occurred solely between Former
Franchisee and New Franchisee. New Franchisee also acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor played no
role in the Transaction and that Franchisor’s involvement was limited to the approval of Requested
Assignment and any required actions regarding New Franchisee’s signing of the New Franchise Agreement
for the Franchised Business. New Franchisee agrees that any claims, disputes, or issues relating New
Franchisee’s acquisition of the Franchised Business from Franchisee are between New Franchisee and
Former Franchisee, and shall not involve Franchisor.

8. Representation. Former Franchisee warrants and represents that it has not heretofore
assigned, conveyed, or disposed of any interest in the Former Franchise Agreement or Franchised Business.
New Franchisee hereby represents that it received Franchisor’s Franchise Disclosure Document and did not
sign the New Franchise Agreement or pay any money to Franchisor or its affiliate for a period of at least
14 calendar days after receipt of the Franchise Disclosure Document.

9. Notices. Any notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and if delivered by
hand, or transmitted by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or via telegram or
telefax, shall be deemed to have been given on the date so delivered or transmitted, if sent to the recipient
at its address or telefax number appearing on the records of the sending party.

10. Further Actions. Former Franchisee and New Franchisee each agree to take such further
actions as may be required to effectuate the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including any and all
actions that may be required or contemplated by the Former Franchise Agreement.

11. Affiliates. When used in this Agreement, the term “Affiliates” has the meaning as given
in Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933.

12. Miscellaneous. This Agreement may not be changed or modified except in a writing signed
by all of the parties hereto. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same document.
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns.

13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Kentucky.

100453833
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(Signatures on following page)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement under seal, with the intent
that this be a sealed instrument, as of the day and year first above written.

FRANCHISOR:
MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

FORMER FRANCHISEE:

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

NEW FRANCHISEE:

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Rev. 031821
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EXHIBIT HI-S

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

ADDITIONAL FRANCHISE RESERVATION AGREEMENT

This Additional Franchise Reservation Agreement (“AFR Agreement”) is made between Mobile Coffee

Company, LLC (“us” or “we”) and (“you”) is made and
entered into ,20__ (“Effective Date”).
1. General Description of Agreement. This AFR Agreement sets out the terms and the conditions

under which we will reserve a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise and territory (each, a “Reserved
Business”).

a. In order to establish a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise, you will be required to enter into
a Franchise Agreement for the Reserved Business, the form of which will be our then-current form
Franchise Agreement then being offered to new Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchisees (that form of Franchise
Agreement is referred to in AFR Agreement as the “Franchise Agreement”).

b. You acknowledge and represent to us that you understand that this AFR Agreement is not
a Franchise Agreement, and that you have no right to open a Travelin’ Tom’s Business under this AFR
Agreement. You will be permitted to open a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise only if: (a) we approve you
to do so; (b) you and we sign a Franchise Agreement; and (c) you pay us all applicable initial fees that are
due under the Franchise Agreement.

2. Term. The term of this AFR Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless
otherwise negotiated, terminated or extended as provided herein, shall continue until the earlier of (i) the
Expiration Date (as defined in Section 5), or (ii) the date of execution of the Franchise Agreement for the
Reserved Business (“Term”).

3. Reserved Territory. The territory covered under this AFR Agreement is referred to as the
“Reserved Territory.” The specific Reserved Territory is:

Reserved Territory Zip Codes

If you fail to purchase a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise for the Reserved Territory during the term, you
will not be able to enter into another agreement to reserve the Reserved Territory.

4. Deadline. You must sign a Franchise Agreement for your Reserved Business for the Reserved
Territory no later than one year from the Effective Date (“Deadline’).

5. Right of First Refusal. If you do not meet the Deadline for any reason, we will allow you a right
of first refusal for the Reserved Territory (“ROFR”) subject to the restrictions contained in this Section.
This ROFR will shall expire on the earlier of the execution of a Franchise Agreement for the Reserved
Business, or 12 months after the Deadline (“Expiration Date”). If, after the Deadline, a qualified
prospective franchisee has applied to operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Business in the Reserved Territory, then
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we will provide to you (i) written notification stating the same and (ii) the then-current Franchise Disclosure
Document and franchise agreement (“Franchisor’s Notice”). You will have twenty days from the receipt
of Franchisor’s Notice to sign a Franchise Agreement for the Reserved Territory and pay the applicable
fees.

You will forfeit your ROFR upon the occurrence of the earlier of the occurrence of any of the following:
(1) you indicate in writing that you do not want to exercise this ROFR; and (2) you decline to exercise your
rights under this Section within the twenty day period described above.

6. Reservation Fee. At the time of signing this AFR Agreement, you must pay us a nonrefundable
“Reservation Fee” of ten thousand dollars ($10,000). The Reservation Fee is paid in consideration of our
agreement not to award franchise rights to any portion of the Reserved Territory prior to the Deadline,
subject to the terms of this Agreement. This amount is fully earned by us when we sign this AFR
Agreement. This Additional Franchise Reservation Deposit will be applied towards the initial franchise
fee that you must pay us under Franchise Agreement for the Reserved Business if you proceed with the
purchase of the Reserved Business and a brand new BEV. If you do not sign a Franchise Agreement for
the Reserved Business for any reason, we will keep the Reservation Fee and you will not be entitled to any
refund. Additionally, if you purchase a used BEV, you will forfeit the Reservation Fee.

7. Assignment. We have the unrestricted right to assign this AFR Agreement without prior notice to
you. You may not assign this AFR Agreement.

8. Defaults. You will be in default under this AFR Agreement if any other agreement between you
(and/or your affiliates) and us (and/or our affiliates) is terminated. If you are in default under this AFR
Agreement, we will have the right to terminate AFR Agreement by giving you written notice of termination,
which will take effect immediately (unless otherwise required under applicable law).

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement incorporates the full and complete agreement between the
parties concerning the subject of this AFR Agreement, and supersedes any and all prior correspondence,
conversations, representations, or statements of whatever nature concerning the subject of this AFR
Agreement. This AFR Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of Kentucky without
regard to its conflict of laws principles. This AFR Agreement may not be modified without the written
consent of both parties

“US”
Mobile Coffee Company, LL.C

By:
Name:
Its:
Date:

“You” (Your Franchise Entity Name)

By:
Name:
Your Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT HI-6

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

PROMISSORY NOTE - EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
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EXHIBIT HI-7

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

RETAIL INSTALLMENT CONTRACT - ALLY FINANCIAL, INC.
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EXHIBIT HI-8
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT - AUXILIOR CAPITAL PARTNERS
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EXHIBIT HI-9
TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

PROMISSORY NOTE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT — OSGOOD BANK
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EXHIBIT HI-10

AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION FORM

Franchisee Information:

Franchisee Name Business No.

Franchisee Mailing Address (street) Franchisee Phone No.

Franchisee Mailing Address (city, state, zip)

Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different from above)

Franchisee Fax No. Franchisee E-mail Address

Bank Account Information:

Bank Name

Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)
[ 1 Checking [ |Savings

Bank Account No. (check one) Bank Routing No. (9 digits)
Bank Mailing Address (city, state, zip) Bank Phone No.
Authorization:

Franchisee hereby authorizes Mobile Coffee Company, LLC (“Franchisor”) to initiate debit entries to
Franchisee’s account with the Bank listed above, and Franchisee authorizes the Bank to accept and to debit the
amount of such entries to Franchisee’s account. Each debit shall be made from time to time in an amount
sufficient to cover any fees payable to Franchisor pursuant to any agreement between Franchisor and
Franchisee as well as to cover any purchases of goods or services from Franchisor or any affiliate of Franchisor.
Franchisee agrees to be bound by the National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA) rules in the
administration of these debit entries. Debit entries will be initiated only as authorized above. This
authorization is to remain in full force and effect until Franchisor has received written notification from
Franchisee of its termination in such time and in such manner as to afford Franchisor and the Bank a reasonable
opportunity to act on it. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor of any changes to any of the information contained
in this authorization form at least 30 days before such change becomes effective.

Signature: Date:
Printed Name:
Its:

Federal Tax ID Number: Rev. 032916

NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.
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EXHIBIT HI-11

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

SAMPLE ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Asset Purchase Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of ,20  (“Effective
Date”), by and among a and its  owners,

(together, the “Franchisee”), and Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“MC”). Franchisee and MC shall each be a “Party” and collectively,
the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS: Franchisee, entered into a franchise agreement with MC. dated , 20
(“Franchise Agreement”) to operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee business;

WHEREAS: (the Franchise Agreement is being terminated/is expiring/is being transferred) and
Franchisor is exercising its right of first refusal to purchase certain Assets (as defined below) of Franchisee;
and

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement and those contained
herein, Franchisee has agreed to sell, convey, assign, transfer and deliver to MC, and MC has agreed to
purchase and accept delivery of, all of Franchisee’s rights, title and interest in and to the Assets (as defined
below);

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, agreements, covenants, and
representations contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of

which is thereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

L. Purchase and Sale of Assets; Purchase Price.

A. Subject to the provisions set forth herein, Franchisee hereby sells, conveys,
assigns, transfers and sets over unto MC all of Franchisee’s right, title and interest in, to and under the
assets set forth on Attachment 1 (“Assets”) free and clear of any and all liens, in exchange for the Purchase
Price (as hereinafter defined), and MC hereby accepts such conveyance, assignment, transfer and
delivery.

B. As consideration for the transfer of the Assets by Franchisee to MC, MC shall
pay to Franchisee funds in the amount of the aggregate purchase price for the Assets set forth on
Attachment 1 (“Purchase Price™), by wire transfer of immediately available funds. Franchisee and MC
agree to allocate the Purchase Price among the Assets for all purposes in accordance with Attachment 1.

C. Franchisee shall transfer title to the Assets to MC, free and clear of any and all
liens or encumbrances, simultaneously with receipt of MC’s payment(s) of the Purchase Price to
Franchisee, and upon receipt of this Agreement.

IL. MC’s Assumption of Liabilities. MC hereby assumes any liabilities related to the Assets
arising from and after the Effective Date. Franchisee agrees to maintain insurance on the Assets until all
assets are in the possession of MC. Risk of loss transfers only upon actual delivery of the Assets to MC.
This Agreement remains contingent upon the Assets being as represented by Franchisee, namely, in
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reasonably good condition, as determined in MC’s reasonable discretion, considering factors such as age
and mileage.

1L Representations and Warranties.
A. Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to MC, as of the Effective Date, as
follows:
1. Franchisee is a , validly existing under the laws of the State of
2. Franchisee has valid, good and marketable title to the Assets and such

Assets are transferred free and clear of all liens. Franchisee has the unrestricted right to transfer, assign,
convey and delivery to MC all right, title and interest in and to the Assets.

3. Franchisee has the requisite power, authority and legal capacity to execute,
deliver and perform this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein. Franchisee
has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.

4, The execution, delivery and performance by Franchisee of this Agreement
constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of Franchisee enforceable against it in accordance with
its terms, and the consummation by Franchisee of the transactions contemplated herein do not and will not
violate or conflict in any way with any provision of Franchisee’s articles of incorporation or bylaws.

5. Franchisee or its owner(s) has prepared in a correct and complete (in all
material respects) manner and filed all federal, state, county, local, and foreign tax returns and reports
(including but not limited to, sales taxes, use taxes, payroll taxes, unemployment insurance and business
personal property taxes, each a “Tax” and collectively, the “Taxes”) heretofore required to be filed by
Franchisee and have paid all taxes shown as due thereon along with any fine, penalty, interest, late charge
or loss owed thereunder; and no taxing authority has asserted any deficiency in the payment of any Tax or
informed Franchisee that it intends to assert any such deficiency or to make any audit or other investigation
of Franchisee for the purpose of determining whether such a deficiency should be asserted against
Franchisee. There are no encumbrances, nor to Franchisee’s knowledge will there be any encumbrances in
the future, on any of the Assets that arose in connection with any failure (or alleged failure) to pay any Tax.

B. MC represents and warrants to Franchisee, as of the date hereof, as follows:
1. MC is a corporation validly existing under the laws of the State of
Kentucky.
2. MC has the requisite power, authority and legal capacity to execute,

deliver and perform this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein. MC has taken
all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.

3. The execution, delivery and performance by MC of this Agreement
constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of MC enforceable against it in accordance with its terms,
and the consummation by MC of the transactions contemplated herein do not and will not violate or conflict
in any way with any provision of MC’s certificate of formation or limited liability company agreement.

C. All representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall survive the
execution and delivery of this Agreement for the applicable statute of limitations period.
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IV. Franchisee’s Obligations. On the Effective Date, Franchisee shall deliver to MC the
following:

A. A Bill of Sale attached hereto as Attachment 2 for all equipment and any such other
documents as MC may reasonably request in order to accomplish the sale of the Assets to MC, all of which
shall be (i) duly executed by Franchisee (and/or its owner(s)) and (ii) in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to MC.

B. Receipt or other evidence acceptable to MC that all Taxes have been paid in full
prior to the Effective Date.

C. Such other documents as are reasonably requested by MC in order to effect the
transfer of Assets described in this Agreement.

V. Miscellaneous

A. This Agreement represents the full and complete agreement of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and this Agreement supersedes and replaces any prior agreements,
whether oral or written. Any amendments or modifications of this Agreement must be in writing and
executed by both Parties.

B. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted under the laws (without
reference to choice or conflict of laws) of the State of Kentucky, and resolution of any claims thereunder
shall be as set forth in the Franchise Agreement.

C. If one or more provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect or
impair any other provision of this Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable provision had not been contained herein.

D. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and by different Parties on
different counterparts with the same effect as if the signatures thereto were on the same instrument. This
Agreement shall be effective and binding upon all Parties thereto as of the date when all Parties have
executed a counterpart of this Agreement.

E. Each Party agrees that it has had ample opportunity to confer with legal counsel
of its choice and each shall pay its own costs incurred therein. The Parties acknowledge that there can
be different state requirements regarding titles, taxes, and escrow and agree that they have investigated
such requirements as they may relate to the transaction contemplated herein and have provided for them
in this Agreement as may be necessary.

F. Each individual and entity that comprises Franchisee shall be jointly and
severally liable for the obligations of Franchisee.

G. In the event that it shall be necessary for any Party to institute legal action to
enforce or for the breach of any of the terms and conditions or provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing
Party in such action shall be entitled to recover all of its reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees.

H. At any time and from time to time after the Effective Date: (a) Franchisee shall
execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered to MC such other instruments and take such
other action, all as MC may reasonably request, in order to carry out the intent and purpose of this
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Agreement; and (b) MC shall execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered to Franchisee
such other instruments and take such other action, all as Franchisee may reasonably request, in order to
carry out the intent and purpose of this Agreement.

L Each Party agrees that the terms of this Agreement shall remain confidential.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties thereto has caused this Agreement to be duly
executed to be effective as of the Effective Date written above.

FRANCHISEE: MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY,;
E-€COM

By: By: Tony Lamb

Its: Its: CEO

OVWNERS

Name:

Name:
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ATTACHMENT 1

ASSETS AND PURCHASE PRICE

ASSETS:

PURCHASE PRICE AND ALLOCATION:
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ATTACHMENT 2

BILL OF SALE
THIS BILL OF SALE (“Bill of Sale”) is effective as of 12:01 a.m. on , 20,
by and between ,a (“Seller”’) and Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a

Delaware limited liability company (“Purchaser”). Purchaser and Seller may each be referred to herein as a
“Party.

Seller and Purchaser are parties to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated , 20
(“Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Seller has agreed to sell the Assets to Purchaser and Purchaser
has agreed to purchase the Assets from Seller. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Purchase Agreement.

The Parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. For true and lawful consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, Seller hereby sells, assigns, transfers, conveys and delivers to Purchaser, its successors and
assigns, to have and to hold forever, all of Seller’s right, title and interest in and to the Assets referenced in
the Purchase Agreement.

2. The sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance and delivery of the Assets under this
Bill of Sale is subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement and its
Attachments and is not intended to and does not expand, limit, alter or modify the rights and obligations of
the parties thereunder. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of the Purchase
Agreement and the terms hereof, the terms of the Purchase Agreement shall govern.

3. If any provision of this Bill of Sale is held invalid or unenforceable by any court
of competent jurisdiction, it is the intent of the Parties that all other provisions of this Bill of Sale be
construed to remain fully valid, enforceable, and binding on the parties. This Bill of Sale shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Kentucky, without giving effect to any conflict
of laws principles. This Bill of Sale may be executed in several counterparts, and each executed counterpart
shall be considered an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Purchaser have each signed this Bill of Sale as of the day
and year first set forth above.

SELLER: PURCHASER: MOBILE COFFEE
COMPANY EECCOM

By: Tony Lamb
By: Its: CEO
Its:

ToM'S
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EXHIBIT HI-12

TRAVELIN’ TOM’S COFFEE FRANCHISE

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT TRANSFER ADDENDUM

This Franchise Agreement Transfer Addendum (“Transfer Addendum”) is made and entered into
as of [date] (“Effective Date”), by and between MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“Franchisor”) and [Entity Name], d/b/a [“DBA Name™], a(n) [state] [type of entity]
(“Franchisee”) (each, a “Party” and together, the “Parties”™).

BACKGROUND

A. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to a Franchise Agreement (“Franchise
Agreement”) [dated/dated as of] [date] as a result of an approved transfer of a franchised
business of Franchisor (“Franchised Business”).

B. Franchisor and Franchisee desire to amend the Franchise Agreement to reflect
Franchisee’s status as a transferee franchisee for the Franchised Business.

C. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Transfer Addendum shall have the
meanings set forth in the Franchise Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the parties and
subject to the following terms and conditions, it is agreed as follows:

1. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that because the Franchised Business is already open and
operating and being acquired via a transfer, Franchisee and Franchisor shall be relieved of
performing certain pre-opening and development obligations set forth in the Franchise
Agreement. Specifically:

a. Franchisee has already acquired the truck and, if applicable, additional equipment
(“Assets”) under Section 3-B13.13 of the Franchise Agreement upon transfer of the
Franchised Business. Section 3-B13.13 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended
accordingly. If any equipment is required for the Assets as set forth in Section
3B13.13 of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee agrees to purchase such items from
Franchisor prior to operating the Assets.

b. Because Franchisee is a transferee franchisee, Franchisee shall not be required to pay
the Initial Franchise Fee. Section 4:A6.6 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby
amended accordingly.

e—If Franchisee is an existing franchisee under the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee System,
Franchisee shall not be required to attend Initial Training and there shall be no Initial
Training Deadline. Accordingly, Franchisor is under no obligation to provide Initial
Training to Franchisee. If Franchisee is not an existing franchisee under the Travelin’
Tom’s Coffee System, Franchisee shall complete the initial training program contained
in Item 11 and Franchise Agreement Section 58 prior to beginning operation of the
Travelin® Tom’s Coffee franchise. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any successor
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Designated Manager must attend Initial Training and additional persons may attend
the Initial Training in accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement; such
Designated Managers and/or additional persons shall be required to pay for hotel and
transportation costs associated with attending Initial Training. Section 5-AS8 of the
Franchise Agreement is hereby amended accordingly;

This Transfer Addendum constitutes the entire and complete agreement between
Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and
all prior agreements. No amendment, change, or variance from this Transfer Addendum
shall be binding on either party unless mutually agreed to in a writing signed by both
parties.

This Transfer Addendum forms an integral part of the Franchise Agreement. The terms
of this Transfer Addendum shall control if they conflict with the terms of the Franchise
Agreement. Except as modified or supplemented by this Transfer Addendum, the terms of
the Franchise Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties have executed this Transfer Addendum as of the day and
year first written above.

[FULL ENTITY NAME] MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC
By: [Signing Owner’s Name] By: Tony Lamb
Its: [Title of Signing Owner]| Its: CEO
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EXHIBIT HI-13

SAMPLE ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Amendment is made and entered into as of the effective date listed in the signature block
(“Effective Date”) by and between Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Franchisor”) and the Franchisee identified on the signature block below (“Franchisee’), with reference
to the following facts:

A. The parties have entered into a Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee franchise agreement pursuant to
which Franchisee will operate a Travelin® Tom’s Coffee Franchise (“Franchise
Agreement”).

B. Subject to the conditions of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee has the option to
purchase additional Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee equipment (“Additional Equipment”) for use
in the Franchisee’s Protected Territory.

C. The parties hereto desire to amend the Franchise Agreement as set forth herein. Unless
defined herein, all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning in the Franchise
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants, warranties, and mutual agreements
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT. Franchisee desires to purchase the following Additional
Equipment for use in the Protected Territory and shall pay the Additional Equipment Royalty listed for such
equipment under the Franchise Agreement and this Amendment for so long as Franchisee owns the
Additional Equipment.

.. Additional Equipment
. Additional
Equipment Purchase Amount . Royalty Payment
Equipment Royalty Terms

Franchisee must present evidence to Franchisor, as required by Franchisor in its sole discretion, that
Franchisee no longer owns the Additional Equipment prior to Franchisee being excused from paying any
further Additional Equipment Royalties. Franchisee shall not be entitled to receive a refund on any
Additional Equipment Royalty paid. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Additional Equipment
Royalty may increase upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement and agrees to pay Franchisor the then-
current Royalty amount upon any such renewal.

2. AMENDMENT BINDING. This Amendment will be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of each party and to each party’s respective successors and assigns.
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3. NO FURTHER CHANGES. Except as specifically provided in this Amendment, all the
terms, conditions, and provisions of the Franchisee Agreement will remain in full force and effect as
originally written and signed. In the event of any inconsistency between the Franchise Agreement and this
Amendment, this Amendment shall control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties duly executed this Amendment as of the dates listed
below.

Mobile Coffee Company, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

*Date:

*Effective Date

FRANCHISEE:

Company Name

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:
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EXHIBIT I-14

FIXED LOCATION AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Amendment to the Franchise Agreement (the “Amendment”) is made and entered into this
between Mobile Coffee Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
(“Franchisor”), and [Entity name], a(n) [State and entity type] (referred to herein as “Franchisee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS. Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a franchise agreement (with all attachments
and exhibits thereto, the “Franchise Agreement”) dated [Date], pursuant to which Franchisee was granted
the right to operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Franchise (the “Travelin’ Tom’s Business”):

WHEREAS. Franchisee desires to operate a Travelin’ Tom’s Business from a permanent location
in tandem with the BEV (“Mobile Business”), which is referred to in the Franchise Agreement as a “Fixed
Location Business;” and

WHEREAS., Franchisor and Franchisee desire to modify the Franchise Agreement consistent with
the operation of a Fixed Location Business in tandem with the Mobile Business pursuant to and in
accordance with the terms of this Amendment.

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Franchise Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants and promises contained
in this Amendment and for mutual consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into the terms of this
Amendment as if fully restated herein.

2. FIXED LOCATION BUSINESS. Upon execution of this Amendment, Franchisee is
hereby granted the right to operate a Fixed Location Business in tandem with the existing Mobile Business
under the Franchise Agreement. The Mobile Business shall remain in full force and effect and all references
to the BEV shall be unaffected unless modified by this Amendment.

3. PREMISES AND PREMISES STANDARDS. A new Section 13.14 is hereby appended
to the Franchise Agreement which is hereby amended to include the following in connection with the Fixed
Location Business:

13.14 Premises and Premises Standards. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Franchise
Agreement shall be for both the Fixed Location Business and the BEV. The site of the Fixed Location
Business shall be: [insert address] (the “Premises”). Franchisee may only operate the Fixed Location
Business from the Premises and may not relocate the Fixed Location Business without the written consent
of Franchisor which it may withhold in its sole discretion. You may not utilize any other Premises in the
operation of your Franchised Business, and the Premises must only be used for the operation of your
Franchised Business and not for any other purpose.

You agree to comply with all applicable zoning, land use, and other legal requirements, as well as
obtain all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals required to operate from a fixed location at your sole
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expense. You must operate your Fixed Location Business in accordance with any fixed location policies,
procedures, and standards set forth in our Brand Manual. Although fixed location businesses may follow
a consistent theme, you acknowledge and agree that the details for your Fixed Location Business may differ,
often based upon local requirements and you agree that your Fixed Location Business may not be identical
to those of other franchisees. If modifications to the Premises are necessary to comply with applicable local
laws and/or ordinances, you may be required to pay a fee to us or our affiliate for the costs and expenses in
making the necessary modifications to the Premises. You will also be required to purchase an initial
inventory of Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee equipment, uniforms, and supplies from us or our affiliates when you
lease or purchase the Premises. These payments are non-refundable.

You must use our approved supplier for the decoration and/or design of your Fixed Location
Business. Your Fixed Location Business must meet our then-current standards that we specify and that are
contained in the Brand Manual. You must not use the Premises for any purpose other than the operation of
your Fixed Location Business. You agree to: (i) decorate your Fixed Location Business under our then-
current System standards, and at our request, periodically update or improve the decoration of the Fixed
Location Business (any such updates or improvements must be made within 30 days of our delivery of
notice to you that such updates or improvements must be made); (ii) maintain the condition of the Fixed
Location Business consistent with the image of a Franchised Business and in accordance with the System
standards; (ii1) not transfer the Fixed Location Business without first removing all of the Marks from the
Fixed Location Business and any additional equipment; and (iv) obtain and maintain all appropriate permits,
business and contractor licenses and certifications used in the Franchised Business. During the Term, you
agree to take the following actions: (A) thoroughly clean, repaint, and redecorate the interior and exterior
of the Fixed Location Business and any additional equipment at intervals we prescribe; (B) repair the
interior and exterior of the Fixed Location Business; and (C) at our request, to periodically improve and
modify the Fixed Location Business to conform to the then-current System standards. You will place or
display at the Fixed Location Business, only those signs, emblems, designs, artwork, lettering, logos, and
display and advertising materials we approve from time to time. If at any time in our reasonable judgment,
the general state of repair, appearance, or cleanliness of the Fixed Location Business of the Franchised
Business or its fixtures, furnishings, equipment, assets, or signs does not meet our standards, we may notify
you and specify the action you must take to correct the deficiency. These corrective actions will be
performed at your sole expense.

4. ROYALTY FEE. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Royalties for the Fixed
Location Business shall be paid separate from and in addition to the Mobile Business. The Royalties for
the Fixed Location Business shall be paid monthly and shall equal the greater of: (i) $166.67 per month or
(i1) two percent (2%) of all Gross Sales for the prior month. “Gross Sales” means the total of all income,
revenues, and consideration received or receivable by Franchisee as payment, whether in cash or for credit
or barter, or other means of exchange (and, if for credit or barter, whether or not payment is received
therefor), on account of any and all food, beverages, goods, merchandise, services or products sold in or
from the Fixed Location Business, including in-store, carry-out, drive-thru, online orders, delivery, third-
party voucher sales, gift cards, catering or otherwise, or which are promoted or sold under any of the Marks,
during each month of the Term, whether or not Franchisor offers such services or products in its other
locations, including: (a) revenues from sales of any nature or kind whatsoever, derived by Franchisee or by
any other person or Entity (including Franchisee’s Affiliate(s)) from the Fixed Location Business: (b) sales
of authorized products in contravention of the Franchise Agreement; (c) the proceeds of any business
interruption insurance, after the satisfaction of any applicable deductible; and (d) sales from vending
devices including pay telephones. Notwithstanding the foregoing, “Gross Sales” shall exclude the
following: (i) sales from the Mobile Business; (i1) sums representing sales taxes collected directly from
customers by Franchisee in the operation of the Fixed Location Business, and any sales, value added or
other tax, excise or duty charged to customers which is levied or assessed against Franchisee by any Federal,
state, municipal or local authority, based on sales of specific goods, products, merchandise or services sold
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or provided at or from the Fixed Location Business, provided that such taxes are actually transmitted to the
appropriate governmental authority; (iil) sums representing tips, gratuities or service charges paid directly
by customers to employees of Franchisee or paid to Franchisee and promptly and to the extent turned over
to such employees by Franchisee in lieu of direct tips or gratuities; (iv) proceeds from isolated sales of
equipment and trade fixtures not constituting any part of Franchisee’s products and services offered for
resale at the Fixed Location Business nor having any material effect upon the ongoing operation of the
Fixed Location Business required under the Franchise Agreement; and (v) revenues received on account of
sales of pre-paid gift cards and certificates; provided, however, that revenues received on redemption of
such pre-paid gift cards and certificates shall be included as part of “Gross Sales.” For purposes of clarity,
with respect to goods, merchandise, services or products sold pursuant to coupons or other discounts (which
must be approved in advance by Franchisor), Gross Sales shall not include the amount of the discount from
the original undiscounted purchase price of such goods, merchandise, services or products.

Franchisee shall calculate the Royalties amount due to Franchisor and cause Franchisor to receive
payment of all Royalties amounts then owed to Franchisor, together with a statement of Franchisee’s Gross
Sales for the applicable month (certified as complete and accurate by a duly authorized representative of
Franchisee), by no later than the 15th day following such month. The statement may be provided by

software approved by Franchisor. In the event that the software is not functioning or this feature is not
available, Franchisee shall prepare and submit the required reports manually.

We reserve the right to adjust your minimum Royalty annually based on the Consumer Price Index
as defined by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.

5. POINT OF SALE SYSTEM. If Required by Franchisor, Franchisee agrees to install a
separate point of sale system, as detailed in Section 14.1 of the Franchise Agreement, for the Fixed Location
Business. Franchisee acknowledges that the point of sale system would be separate from any requirement
to purchase a point of sale system for the Mobile Business.

6. TERRITORY. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Fixed Location Business
will be located within the Territory for the Mobile Business and that no additional territorial rights shall be

granted.

7. TECHNOLOGY FEE AND BUSINESS MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE FEE. The
Business Management Software Fee shall be $35 (or the then-current price) and is subject to increase in
accordance with Section 6.10 of the Franchise Agreement. The Business Management Software Fee for
the Fixed Location Business shall not count towards the fee calculation as a BEV, instead each shall be
calculated independently. Franchisor and Franchisee agree and acknowledge that Franchisee shall pay a
separate Technology Fee (currently, $500 per year) for the Fixed Location Business and Section 6.9 of the
Franchise Agreement is hereby amended accordingly.

8. INSURANCE. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the insurance requirements set
forth in Section 19 of the Franchise Agreement relates to a BEV and not to a Fixed Location Business.
Therefore, Franchisee agrees to procure and maintain all insurance required by Franchisor under the Brand
Manual and the local operator at the Premises as well as in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

9. COMPETITIVE BUSINESS. The definition of “Competitive Business” in Section 18.2
of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended to include the word “restaurant” before “food truck”.

10. REFERENCES TO BEV AND ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT. The references to the
BEV and/or Additional Equipment in Sections 2, 5.2.3, 5.3, 6.12, 13.11, 21.1, 25.5, and 25.10 are each
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hereby amended and restated to simultaneously refer to the Fixed Location Business and the Premises.

11. INTERDEPENDENCE AND TERMINATION. The Fixed Location Business under
the Franchise Agreement will operate within the Territory assigned to Franchisee in Franchise Agreement
and the Mobile Business will be operated in tandem by Franchisee. Franchisor agrees to grant Franchisee
the Fixed Location Business on the condition that Franchisee continues to operate the Mobile Business
under the Franchise Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that the Fixed Location Business is
dependent on the continued operation of the Mobile Business. If the Mobile Business ceases operations or
1s_otherwise terminated pursuant to Franchise Agreement for any reason, Franchisor shall have the
immediate right to terminate the rights given to Franchisee under this Amendment, including the right to
operate the Fixed Location Business. Franchisor may also terminate this Amendment and Franchisee’s
right to operate the Fixed Location Business pursuant to the termination provisions of the Franchise
Agreement. In the event that this Amendment is terminated, and that Franchisee is in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement as it pertains to the Mobile Business, the Franchise Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect with regards to the Mobile Business. Franchisor and Franchisee may only terminate this
Amendment by written agreement. If Franchisee decides to terminate this Amendment and Franchisee’s
right to operate the Fixed Location Business, Franchisee must notify Franchisor in writing of its intention
to do so at least 30 days before ceasing operation of the Fixed Location Business.

12. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER. Franchisee may not transfer,
assign or convey any of the rights under the Franchise Agreement without doing so in tandem with this
Amendment. Therefore, the following is added as a new Section 16.3.14 to the Franchise Agreement:

3

‘16.3.14 Fixed Location Business The transferee agrees to take assignment of this
Franchise Agreement under the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement as amended by

that certain Fixed Location Form Amendment.”

13. FRANCHISEE REPRESENTATIONS. Franchisee understands that the Fixed Location
Business is a departure from the Franchisor’s traditional operation of a mobile based concept and
understands and acknowledges that the Fixed Location Business is different from Franchisor’s current
System. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees as follows:

a) Franchisee has conducted an independent investigation of the costs and risks
associated with the Fixed Location Business and, in specific recognition thereof, desires to move
forward with the Fixed Location Business at its sole risk and expense.

b) Franchisee has voluntarily entered into the Fixed Location Business and this
Amendment.
c) The Fixed Location Business will require Franchisee to incur increased initial and

ongoing expenses in operating the Fixed Location Business including but not limited to build-out,
inventory, equipment, supplies, materials, products, staff training and signage. Franchisee
acknowledges that the expenses will result in a material increase to the cost to operate the Fixed
Location Business and that it has had an opportunity to investigate these expenses prior to entering
into this Amendment and is solely responsible for such expenses.

d) Franchisee is solely responsible for the development, operation, and maintenance
of the Fixed Location Business and Franchisor expressly disclaims any obligation to provide
support, guidance, resources, or assistance related to the Fixed Location Business.

e) Franchisee has independently determined that the Fixed Location Business would
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be compatible with the operation of the Travelin’ Tom’s Business and as a part of the System.

) Franchisee received this Amendment in the same form herein at least seven (7)
days prior to the date that this Amendment shall be executed.

14. NO REPRESENTATIONS BY FRANCHISOR. Franchisor makes no representations,
warranties, or guaranties, express or implied, relating to the viability of the Fixed Location Business,
including but not limited to the potential revenues, income, profits, volume or success of the Fixed Location
Business contemplated by this Amendment.

15. REAFFIRMATION. Except as specifically provided in this Amendment, all of the terms,
conditions and provisions of the Franchise Agreement will remain in full force and effect as originally
written and signed. In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of the Franchise Agreement
and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control.

16. NO RELIANCE OR COERCION. The parties each acknowledge that, in entering into
this Amendment, neither of the parties has relied on any representations from the other party. The parties
further acknowledge that they are freely and voluntarily entering into this Amendment, uncoerced by any
person, and that they have sought and obtained the advice of legal counsel of their choice with regard to
this Amendment.

17. COUNTERPARTS AND TELECOPIES. This Amendment may be executed in
counterparts or by copies transmitted by telecopier, all of which shall be given the same force and effect as
the original. This Amendment shall be effective when the signatures of all parties have been affixed to
counterparts or copies.

18. FURTHER ASSURANCE. Each of the Parties will, upon reasonable request of the other,
sign any additional documents necessary or advisable to fully implement the terms and conditions of this
Amendment.

19. AMENDMENT BINDING. This Amendment will be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of each party and to each party’s respective successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed and delivered this Amendment the date and year first written above.

(Signatures on following page)
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FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

MOBILE COFFEE COMPANY, LLC, [ENTITY NAME],

a Delaware limited liability company a(n) [State and entity type
By: By:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT J

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES
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State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated

below:

State Effective Date

California Pending

Hawaii Pending

[linois Apri25;-2023Pending

Indiana May20,2022;
RenewsMay20,2023Pending

Maryland Pending

Michigan May24,2022;
RenewsMay24.2023Pending

Minnesota Pending

New York Pending

North Dakota Pending

Rhode Island May24,2022;
Renews May24,2023Pending

South Dakota Pending

Virginia Apri27,20623Pending

Washington Pending

Wisconsin Apri21-2623Pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other
laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-

assisted marketing plans.

100453833
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EXHIBIT JK

RECEIPT
400153833
{00169511.DOCX. } JK-1

[26232024 FDD v1F]



RECEIPT
(Retain This Copy)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Mobile Coffee Company, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you
14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Under lowa law, if applicable, Mobile Coffee Company, LLC must provide this disclosure document to
you at your first personal meeting to discuss the franchise. Michigan requires Mobile Coffee Company,
LLC to give you this disclosure document at least ten (10) business days before the execution of any binding
franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. New York
requires you to receive this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or ten (10)
business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration
that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Mobile Coffee Company, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false
or misleading statement or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred
and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the appropriate
state agency identified on Exhibit A.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is:
Tony Lamb, 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence, KY 41042 and 1-800-566-2423

Issuance Date: April 26,202318, 2024

I received a disclosure document issued April 26,2062318, 2024 which included the following exhibits:

Exhibit A State Administrators/Agents for Service of Process
Exhibit B Financial Statements

Exhibit C  Franchise Agreement

Exhibit D  Area Development Agreement

Exhibit E  Franchise Disclosure Questionnaire

Exhibit F  Brand Manual Table of Contents

Exhibit G List of Current and Former Franchisees

Exhibit H State Addenda and Agreement Riders

Exhibit I Contracts for use with the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise
Exhibit J State Effective Dates

Exhibit K  Receipt

Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name
Rev. 012417
100453833,
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PLEASE RETAIN THIS COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS.
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RECEIPT
(Our Copy)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Mobile Coffee Company, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you
14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Under lowa law, if applicable, Mobile Coffee Company, LLC must provide this disclosure document to
you at your first personal meeting to discuss the franchise. Michigan requires Mobile Coffee Company,
LLC to give you this disclosure document at least ten (10) business days before the execution of any binding
franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. New York
requires you to receive this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or ten (10)
business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration
that relates to the franchise relationship.

If Mobile Coffee Company, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false
or misleading statement or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred
and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the appropriate
state agency identified on Exhibit A.

The name, principal business address, and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is:
Tony Lamb, 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence, KY 41042 and 1-800-566-2423

Issuance Date: April 206;202318, 2024

I received a disclosure document issued April 26,2062318, 2024 which included the following exhibits:

Exhibit A  State Administrators/Agents for Service of Process
Exhibit B Financial Statements

Exhibit C  Franchise Agreement

Exhibit D  Area Development Agreement

Exhibit E  Franchise Disclosure Questionnaire

Exhibit F Brand Manual Table of Contents

Exhibit G List of Current and Former Franchisees

Exhibit H State Addenda and Agreement Riders

Exhibit I Contracts for use with the Travelin’ Tom’s Coffee Franchise
Exhibit J State Effective Dates

Exhibit K Receipt

Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name
Rev. 012417
100153833
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Please sign this copy of the receipt, date your signature, and return it to Mobile Coffee Company,
LLC, 5945 Centennial Circle, Florence, KY 41042.
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